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Welcome to the 202 2 edition of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited , previously known as Good Group (Australia)
Limited . Australia and the world continue to emerge from the challenges caused by the COVID19 crisis, however
2022 has ushered in new challenges in financial reporting . The economic and geopolitical ramifications of the
conflict in Ukraine are being felt globally . Inflation, soaring energy costs, interest rate and foreign exchange
market volatility and supply chain breakdowns have all conspired to create an uncertain financial reporting
landscape. Entities, particularly those whose operations are exposed to conditions in Eastern Europe, must deal
with the impacts of the conflict, as well as remaining vigilant as to the lingering impacts of the  COVID-19. For
further discussion on this topic, see our publication Accounting considerations for the war in Ukraine .

The years ahead will hopefully see an exciting evolution of financial reporting both within Australia and abroad.

The future financial reporting landscape includes several projects related to disclosures, including presentation
and disclosure in primary fi nancial statements , and upcoming amendments with respect to classification of
liabilities as current or non -current and disclosure of accounting policies. In addition, t he establishment of the
International Sustainability Standards Board has seen progress on the development of a climate -related
disclosures standard and a standard on general requirements for sustainability -related financial disclosures. How
these will be implemented in Australia is still being developed.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited provides illustrative consolidated financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2022. Although the main body of the financial statements references against International

Financial Reporting Standards, these are equivalent to Australian Accounting St andards, and they have been
supplemented with other Australian reporting requirements , including a Directors Report, Remuneration Report,
ASX additional information A Y ~ " z x 2 ¥ " ©dnd aYseckof Mustrating-additional Australian -specific
disclosures as well as alternative presentations commonly used in Australia.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited provides illustrative examples of the types of disclosures which may be
required (if material), and therefore the systematic ordering of the notes la  rgely follows one possible grouping
suggested by Australian Accounting Standards (AASB) 101. An alternate grouping according to nature and
perceived importance may permit users of the financial statements to more effectively understand and compare
the info rmation provided. Further discussion on this and an example of such a grouping can be found on

pages iv-v.

| trust this publication will prove useful when preparing your financial statements for the next reporting season.

Frank Palmer
Partner, Ernst & Young Australia and EY Oceania IFRS Leader
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Caveat

The names of people and corporations, and also descriptions of events related to Quality Holdings (Australia) included in these

illustrations are fictitious and have been created for the purpose of illustration only. Any resemblance to any person or bus iness

is purely coincidental.
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The following styles of abbreviation are used in these illustrative financial statements:

IAS 33.41 International Accounting Standard No. 33, paragraph 41
IAS 1.BC13 International Accounting Standard No. 1, Basis for Conclusions, paragraph 13
IFRS 2.44 International Financial Reporting Standard No. 2, paragraph 44
SIC 29.6 Standing Interpretations Committee Interpretation No. 29, paragraph 6
IFRIC5.6 IFRS Interpretations Committee (formerly IFRIC) Interpretation No. 5, paragraph 6 s
IFRS 91G.G.2 International Financial Reporting Standard No. 9 C Guidance on Implementing IFRS 9 g

Section G: Other, paragraph G.2 %
IAS 32.AG3 International Accounting Standa rd No. 32 CAppendix A C Application Guidance, paragraph AG3 -
Commentary The commentary explains how the requirements of IFRS have been implemented in arriving at the

illustrative disclosure
COVID19 This edition of Quality Holdings provides commentary on issues that an entity may need to consider due to
Commentary the impact of the COVID19
GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles/Practice %
IASB International Accounting Standards Board gﬁ
Interpretations IFRS Interpretations Committee é
Committee (formerly International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)) E
SIC Standing Interpretations Committee E
AASB Australian Accounting Standards Board %
AASB 15.105 Australian Accounting Standards No. 15 paragraph 105 §
AASB 1054.9 Australian Accounting Standards No. 1054 paragraph 9
CA 300A Corporations Act 2001, section 300A
Reg 2M.3.03(1) Corporations Regulations 2001, Chapter 2M, Regulation 3.03, paragraph 1
ASX Australian Securities Exchange
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This publication contains an illustrative set of consolidated financial statements for ~ Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited (the parent)
and its subsidiaries (the Group) that is prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The Group is
a fictitious, large publicly listed manufacturing company. The parent is incorpo rated in a fictitious country within Europe. The

| "z©zodyvad~¥o x« " zox ¥ Additiopat Australigndisclosur@s atelillastrated fiosh paged @3 .

Objective

This set of illustrative financial statements is one of the many prepared by EY to assist you in preparing your own financial
statements. The illustrative financial statements are intended to reflect transactions, events and circumstances that we cons ider to
be most common for a broad range of companies across a wide variety of industries. Certain disclosures are included in these
financial statements merely for illustrative purposes, even though they may be regarded as items or transactions that are not

material for Quality Holdings.

How to use these illustrative financial statements to prepare entity -specific disclosures

Users of this publication are encouraged to prepare entity  -specific disclosures. Transactions and arrangements other than
those applicab le to the Group may require additional disclosures. It should be noted that the illustrative financial statements
of the Group are not designed to satisfy  all Australia specific regulatory requirements , nor is this publication intended to
reflect disclosure requirements that apply mainly to regulated or specialised industries.

Notations shown in the right -hand margin of each page are references to IFRS or Australian Accounting Standards paragraphs, or
other Australian pronouncements that describe the specific disclosure requirements. Commentaries are provided to explain the
basis for the disclosure or to address alternative disclosures not included in the illustrative financial statements. If questions arise
as to the disclosure requirements, it is essential to refer to the relevant source material and, where necessary, to seek appropriate
professional advice.

Improving disclosure effectiveness

TermssuchasCy ~Ox ¢ ¥©« " z ¥ -2z  ¢¥vy Cand/mone précisety?@iselosyre effeptizenessiCaésérilze a Groblem in
financial reporting that has become a priority issue for the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB or Board), local
standard setters, and regulatory bodies. The growth and complexity of financial statement disclosure is also drawing significant
attention from financial statement preparers, and more importantly, the users of financial statements.

Considering the purpose of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited g lllustrative consolidated financial statements for the year ended

31 December 202 2, the notes largely follow the order in which items are presented in the primary financial statements

Paragraph 113 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements requires the notes to be presented in a systematic manner , and
paragraph 114 provides examples of different systematic orderings and groupings that preparers may consider. An alternative
structure that some may find more effective in permitting the users to identify the relevant information more easily, involves
reorganising the notes according to their nature and perceived importance. An illustrative ordering of the alternative structure that
is based on seven different n otes sections is summarised in the table below:

Corporate and Group information 3 Corporate and Group information
Basis of preparation and other significant accounting 3 Basis of preparation
policies 3 Other significant accounting policies not covered in other sections (below)
3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
3 Fair value measurement and related fair value disclosures
3 Impact of standards issued but not yet effective
Group business, operations, and management 3 Revenue from contracts with customers
3 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies
3 Hedging activities and derivatives
3 Capital management
3 Distributions made and proposed
3 Segment information
3 Basis of consolidation and informatio n on material partly owned subsidiaries
3 Interestin joint ventures and investment in associates
3 Leases
Significant transactions and events 3 Business combinations and acquisitions of non -controlling interests
3 Discontinued operations
3 Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited iv
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Intr oduction (continued)

3 Related party disclosures
Events after the reporting period

Contents

W

Detailed information on statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income items

Other operating income and expenses
Finance income and costs
Depreciation, amortisation, foreign exchange differences and costs of inventories

Detailed breakdown of administrative, employee benefits and research and
development expenses

Share-based payments
Components of other comprehensive income
Earnings per share

W W N W

W W

Introduction

w

Detailed information on statement of financial position
items

Income tax payable

Property, plant and equipment, investment properties and intangible assets
Financial assets and liabilities

Inventories

Trade receivables and contract assets

Cash and short-term deposits

Issued capital and reserves

Provisions

Government grants receivable

Trade payables

Contract liabilities

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

N N N W W N W W W W WL

Other commitments

Legal claim contingency
Guarantees

Other contingent liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Consolidated financial statements

N N W N

By structuring the notes according to their nature and perceived importance, users may find it easier to extract the relevant

information. In addition, the significant accounting policies, judgements, k ey estimates and assumptions could alternatively be

placed within the same note as the related qualitative and guantitative disclosures to provide a more holistic discussionto  users of

the financial statements. The alternative structure summarised above h as been applied in Good Group (International) Limited g
Alternative Format . Good Group (International) Limited gAlternative Format is a useful tool for entities exploring ways to enhance

alz z{{zx3~-728200 ¥{ 2}z~" {~ovox~ve ©2va3az£f£zuna@OC y~Ox¢¥0O« z0OC

Entities may find that other structures are better for enhancing disclosure effectiveness, and the approach summarised

above and illustrated in  Good Group (International) Limited gAlternative Format is only intended to illustrate that IFRS  allows
for alternative notes structures. Entities should carefully assess their specific circumstances and the preferences of the

" ~EVv" T «©z " © wz{¥"z yzx-~y~uo| ¥o o¥2az70OC ©2 " «x?2«"zC Zuo| V]| z£72
make significant changes to the financial statements.

Applying the concept of materiality requires judgement, in particular, in relation to matters of presentation and disclosure, and
inappropriate application of the concept may be another cause of the perceived disclosure problem. IFRS sets out a set of minimum
disclosure requirements which, in practic e, too often is complied with - ~2 } ¥« x¥o©O~yz " véa~¥o ¥{ rthez -~o
specific entity. That is, if the transaction or item is immaterial to the entity, then it is not relevant to users of financi al statements,

in which case, IFRS does not require the item to be disclosed (IAS 1.31). If immaterial information is included in the financial

statements, the amount of information may potentially reduce the transparency and usefulness of the financial statements as t he
material and, thus, relevant information, loses prominence.

IFRSPractice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provides practical guidance and examples that companies may find
helpful in deciding whether information is material. Entities are encouraged to consider it when making materiality judgements.
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In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to |AS 1 which provides guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality
judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The 1ASBalso issued amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 to support the

amendments in IAS 1 by explaining and demonstrating the application ofthe & { ¥@"z! £vaz " ~v¢~a~ | " ¥xz00C
disclosures.

The amendments to IAS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023  with earlier application permitted
as long as this fact is disclosed.

Appendices
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Intr oduction (continued)

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by:

3 gz ¢tvx~w| 2@}z "z8«~"z£E£zwn?a@ [¥" zp?~3~70 28Y¥ y~0Ox¢¥O0Oz 23}z
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3 Adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures

i}z “z!¢vxzEzoa ¥{ EO~|un~{~xveal -~2} @g£L£vaz ~veC vxx¥«noaASl

and IFRS Practice Statement 2 may impact the accounting policy disclosures of entities. Determining whether accounting policies

are material or not requires greater use of judgement. Therefore, entities  will have to revisit their accounting policy information

disclosures to ensure consistency with the amended standard in the year when they adopt the amendments . Quality Holdings has
not early applied the amendments in the illustrated financial statements herein.

Please also refer to Note 2.3 .

¢ ©~

As explained above, the primary purpose of these financial statements is to illustrate how the most commonly applicable

disclosure requirements can be met. Therefore, they include disclosures that may, in practice, be deemed not material to

Quality Holdings . It is essential that entities consider their own specific circumstances when determining which disclosures

to include. These financial statements are not intended to act as guidance for making the materiality assessment s, they
mustalways wz 2v-~¢¥"  zy 2¥ zo©« z 2}y? vao zwa~a  CO {~mvax~ve ©2vy?3
own materiality considerations. Only then will the financial statements provide decision -useful financial information.

For more guidance on how to improve disclosure effectiveness, please refer to our publication , Applying IFRS: Enhancing
communication effectiveness | EY - Globd (February 201 7).

Alternative performance measures

The use of alternative performance measures (APMsor ¢ o MoV Ve £ z v Ggainn@@pularity in communicating financial
information to investors. APMSs are financial measures that are not defined in the applicable reporting framework . The number of
APMs in use is large and varied depending on the message the entities are trying to convey.

Entities that are considering to present APMs in their financial statements should refer to our publications, Applying IFRS:
Alternative Performance Measures (October 2018) and Applying IFRS: Impact of coronavirus on alternative performa nce measures
and disclosures (May 2020).

Climate -related matters and financial reporting

havijiz}l}¥¢yz" " © v’z ~ox  zvO~o| ¢ ~padz"z©3zy ~o 23}z ~£] vx?2a ¥pdsitorn ¢ ~£

and financial performance. While IFRS do not explicitly refer to climate -related matters, entities must consider them in a pplying
IFRS when the effect of those matters is material.

Entities that are considering climate change in their financial statements should refer to our publication, IFRS Developments:
Effects of climate -related matters on financial statements (November 2020 ) and Applying IFRSgAccounting for Climate Change
(Updated May 2022) .

International Financial Reporting Standards  (IFRS)

The abbreviation IFRS is defined in paragraph 5 of the Preface to International Financial Reporting Standards to include ¢standards
and interpretations approved by the IASB, and International Accounting Standards (IASs) and Standing Interpretations Committ  ee
~maz "l " zaya_-¥p@© ~00«zy «Byz | 7zZa~¥«© X¥o©a-~a«2a~¥a©CC i} ~0O
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors . Thus, when financial statements are described as complying with
IFRS, it means that they comply with the entire body of pronouncements sanctioned by the IASB. This includes the IAS, IFRS and
Interpretations originated by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (formerly the SIC).

International Accounting Standards Board (IAS B)

The IASB is the independent accounting standard -setting body of the IFRS Foundation (an independent not -for -profit private sector
organisation working in the public interest). The IASB members are responsible for the development and publication of IFRSs,
including International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (IFRS for SMEs),and for approving
Interpretations of IFRSas developed by the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

In fulfilling its standard -setting duties, the IASB follows a due process, of which the publication of consultative documents, such as
discussion papers and exposure drafts, for public comment is an important component.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited Vi
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Intr oduction (continued)

The IFRS Interpretations Committee (Interpretations Committee)

The Interpretations Committee is a committee appointed by the IFRS Foundation Trustees that assists the IASB in establishing and
improving standards in financial accounting and reporting for the benefit of users, preparers and auditors of financial state ments.

The Interpretations Committee addresses issues of reasonably widespread importance, rather than issues of concern to only a
small set of entities. These include any identified financial reporting issues not addressed in IFRS. The Interpretations Com mitte e
also advises the IASB on issues to be considered in the annual improvements to IFRS project.

The International Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB)

The ISSB, createdin November 2021 by the IFRS Foundation, is the independent sustainability disclosure standard setting body of
the IFRS Foundation. The ISSB members are responsible for developing a set of sustainability disclosure standards (referredt o as
IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards). The ISSBwill develop IFRS Sustainability Disclosure Standards acknowledging the
importance of their interoperability with other reporting initiatives that address broader information needs of other parties

In fulfilling its standard -setting duties, the ISSB follows a due process, of which the publication of consultative documents, such as
discussion papers and exposure drafts, for public comment is an important component.

IFRS as at 30 June 2022

As a general approach, these illustrative financial statements d o not early adopt standards , amendments or interpretations before
their effective date.

The standards applied in these illustrative financial statements are those that were in issue as at 3 0 June 202 2 and effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 202 2. It is important to note that these illustrative financial statements will require
continual updating as standards are issued and/or revised.

Users of this publication are cautioned to check that there has been no change in requ irements of IFRS between 30 June 202 2 and
the date on which their financial statements are authorised for issue. In accordance with paragraph 30 of IAS 8, specific dis  closure
requirements apply for standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective (see  Note 36 of these illustrative financial
statements). Furthermore, if the financial year of an entity is other than the calendar year, new and revised standards appli  edin
these illustrative financial statements may not be applicable. For instance, the Group has adopted Onerous Contracts gCosts of
Fulfilling a Contract gAmendments to IAS 37 in its 202 2 illustrative financial statements. An entity with a financial year that
commences from, for example, 1 October and ends on 30 September would have to adopt the standard in its annual financial
statements beginning on 1 October 202 2. Therefore, the standard would not have been applicable in the financial statements of an
entity with a year -end of 30 September 202 2, unless it voluntarily chose to early adopt the standard.

For an overview of the upcoming changes in standards and interpretations, please refer to  our half yearly New Australian
accounting pronouncements publication.

Accounting policy choices

Accounting policies are broadly defined in IAS 8 and include not just the explicit elections provided for in some standards, but also
other conventions and practices that are adopted in applying principle -based standards.

In some cases, IFRS permit more than one accounting trea tment for a transaction or event. Preparers of financial statements
should select the treatment that is most relevant to their business and circumstances as their accounting policy.

IAS 8 requires an entity to select and apply its accounting policies cons istently for similar transactions, events and/or conditions,
unless an IFRS specifically requires or permits categorisation of items for which different policies may be appropriate. Wher e an
IFRS requires or permits such categorisation, an appropriate acco unting policy is selected and applied consistently to each
category. Therefore, once a choice of one of the alternative treatments has been made, it becomes an accounting policy and mu st
be applied consistently. Changes in accounting polic ies should only be made if required by a standard or interpretation, or if the
change results in the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information.

In this publication, when a choice is permitted by IFRS, the Group has adopted one of t he treatments as appropriate to the
circumstances of the Group. In these cases, the commentary provides details of which policy has been selected, and the reasons for
this policy selection.

Financial review by management

Many entities present a financial r eview by management that is outside the financial statements. IFRS does not require the
presentation of such information, although paragraph 13 of IAS 1 gives a brief outline of what may be included in an annual  report.
IFRS Practice Statement 1, Management Commentary provides a non-binding framework for the presentation of a management
commentary that relates to financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS. If a company decides to follow the guidance in
the Practice Statement, management is encour aged to explain the extent to which the Practice Statement has been followed. A
statement of compliance with the Practice Statement is only permitted if it is followed in its entirety. The content of a financial
review by management is often determined by local market requirements or issues specific to a particular jurisdiction.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited Vii

Contents

Introduction

Consolidated financial statements

Additional Australian disclosures

0
Q
2
k=]
(=
(o)
o
o
<



https://assets.ey.com/content/dam/ey-sites/ey-com/en_au/topics/ifrs/ey-new-au-acctg-pronouncements-for-30-june-2022.pdf
https://assets.ey.com/content/dam/ey-sites/ey-com/en_au/topics/ifrs/ey-new-au-acctg-pronouncements-for-30-june-2022.pdf

Intr oduction (continued)

Contents

Preparers of financial statements that comply with Australian Accounting Standards should note that other guidance on
management commentary already exists in Australia (for example, ASIC Regulatory Guide 230 Disclosing non-IFRS financial
information and ASIC Regulatory Guide 247 Effective disclosures in an operating and financial review ) which may take precedence
over the IFRS Practice Statement. Further, the content of a financial r eview by management in relation to the financial statements
is often determined by the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.

Changes in the 202 2 edition of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited annual financial statements

The 2022 Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited illustrative consolidated financial statements were previously known as  Good Group
(Australia) Limited .

The standards and interpretations listed below have become effective since 1  July 202 1 for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 202 2. While the list of new standards is provided below, not all of these new standards will have an impact on these
illustrative financial statements. To the extent these illustrative financial statements have changed since the 202 1 edition due to
changes in standards and interpretations, we have disclosed the impact of those changes in Note 2.4 .

Introduction

Other changes from the 202 1 edition have been made in order to reflect prac tice developments and to improve the overall quality
of the illustrative financial statements.

Changes to IFRS

The following amendments became effective as at 1 January 202 2: é
3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework g Amendments to IFRS 3 é
3 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use gAmendments to IAS 16 %
3 Onerous Contracts g Costs of Fulfilling a Contract g Amendments to IAS 37 §
3 IFRS 1First-time Adoption of Interna tional Financial Reporting Standards g Subsidiary as a first-time adopter §
3 IFRS 9Financial Instruments g zz© ~a 2}z CFE ! z" xzma(C az©a {¥~ yz"zx¥|n~a~
3 IAS 41 Agriculture gTaxation in fair value measurements g

S
COVID-19

The COVID19 outbreak was first reported near the end of 2019 in Wuhan, China. Since then, the virus has spread worldwide. On
11 March 2020, the WHO declared the COVID19 outbreak to be a pandemic.

The COVID19 shows considerable signs of easing as many countr ies have lifted travel bans, ended lockdowns and eased
guarantine measures. Many governments have announced curtailment of certain measures to provide financial and non -financial
assistance to the affected entities. At the same time , COVID19 may continue to affect companies and economies. Many entities
are still dealing with lost revenue and disrupted supply chains and, as a result, millions of workers have lost their jobs.

These developments have presented entities with challenges in preparing their IFRS financial statements. This publication provides
reminders in commentary boxes of the existing disclosure requirements that should be considered when reporting on the financi  al
effects of COVID19 and subsequent developments in IFRS financial statements. H owever, as the impact largely depends on the
ava«'z ¥{ vo zwa-27CO wW«©O~-nz©O© veoy 2}z z®2zwm?2 a¥ .-.}~x} thése} v O
consolidated financial statements.

As noted in our publication s, Applying IFRS- COVID19 related rent concessions (Updated April 2021) , Applying IFRSgDisclosure of
COVIB19 impact (October 2020) and Applying IFRSglmpact of coronavirus on alternative performance measures and disclosures (May
2020) , entities should , in particular , consider the accounting and disclosure requirements with regards to: going conc ern, financial
instruments, impairment assessment of non -financial assets, government grants, income taxes, liabilities from insurance contracts,
leases, insurance recoveries, onerous contract provisions, fair value measurement, revenue recognition, invent  ories, events after the
reporting period, other financial statement disclosure requirements, other accounting estimates  , share-based payments and APMs.

The COVID19 affects the assumptions and estimation uncertainty associated with the measurement of assets and liabilities. Therefore,
entities should carefully consider whether additional disclosures are necessary in order to help users of financial statement s understand
the judgements applied in the financial statements.

Additional Australian disclosures

The purpose of the COVID19 commentaries is to aid companies in making their assessments as to what the COVID19 impact is on
recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosures. Entities should consider the latest guidance released in their jurisdiction
along with those presented in Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited and other publications available on ey.comlifrs , for instance th e
Applying IFRS publication s mentioned above.
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https://www.ey.com/en_gl/ifrs-technical-resources/iasb-extends-relief-for-covid-19-related-rent-concessions
https://www.ey.com/en_gl/ifrs-technical-resources/applying-ifrs-disclosure-of-covid-19-impact
https://www.ey.com/en_gl/ifrs-technical-resources/applying-ifrs-disclosure-of-covid-19-impact
https://www.ey.com/en_gl/ifrs-technical-resources/applying-ifrs-impact-of-coronavirus-on-apms-and-disclosures
https://www.ey.com/en_gl/ifrs-technical-resources

Intr oduction (continued)

The war in Ukraine
The war in Ukraine, started in 2022 , triggers a number of IFRS accounting considerations affecting the financial statements.

Many countries have imposed, and continue to impose , new sanctions on specified Russian entities and individuals. Sanctions have
also been imposed on Belarus.

The situation together with potential fluctuations in commodity prices, foreign exchange rates, restrictions to imports and exports,
availability of local materials and services and access to local resources will directly impact entities that have significan  t operations
or exposures in, or to Russia, Belarus or Ukraine.

The war and its direct and indirect consequences may impact entities other than those with direct interests in the involved
countries, for instance , as a result of exposure to fluctuations in commaodity prices and for eign exchange rates, as well as the
possibility of a protracted economic downturn.

As the war continues and new sanctions are introduced the overall impact remains fluid. Since the impact also largely depends on
alz @ova« z ¥{ v oanypeténtatimpdcbhasnot®@eer iltlu§r@ed in these consolidated financial statements. Instead,
entities that are considering the impact of the war in their financial statements may refer to our publication Applying IFRS-
Accounting considerations for the war in Ukraine Updated March 2022 .
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IAS 1.10(b)
2022 2021 1AS151(c)
PEE PEEE
Notes Restated  1as 1.51(d),(e)
Continuing operations (Note 2.5) 1AS1.81A
Revenue from contracts with customers 4 179,058 159,088 IFRS 15.113(a)
Rental income 18 1,404 1,377 2
Revenue 180,462 160,465 IAS 1.82(a) =
o
Cost of sales (136,5 69) (128,386)  ias 1103 =
Gross profit 43,893 32,079 IAS 1.85, IAS 1.103
Other operating income 131 2,435 2,548  |as1.103
Selling and distribution expenses (14,001) (12,964)  1as1.99,1A5 1.103
Administrative expenses 13.9 (18,290) (12,011) |as1.99,1AS1.103
Other operating expenses 13.2 (2,554) (353)  1as 1.99,1A5 1.103 "
IAS 1.85, E
Operating profit 11,483 9,299 IAS 1.BC55-56 E
©
0
Finance costs 13.3 (1,366) (1,268) I7A.\:ol'82(b)’ e %
Finance income 13.4 202 145 g
Other income 135 98 66 =
Share of profit of an associate and a joint IAS 1.82(c) &
venture 10, 11 671 638 =
Profit before tax from  continuing operations 11,088 8,880 IAS 1.85 g
o
IAS 1.82(d),
Income tax expense 15 (3,09 2) (2.233)  ias1277
Profit for the year from continuing operations 7,996 6,647 IAS 1.85
Discontinued operations
Profit/(loss) after tax for the year from IAS 1.82(ea)
discontinued operations 14 220 (188)  IFRs 5.33(a)
Profit for the year 8,216 6,459 IAS 1.81A(a)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 7,928 6,220 IAS 1.81B(a)(ii)
Non-controlling interests 288 239 IAS 1.81B(a)(i)
8,216 6,459
(%]
Earnings per share 16 IAS 33.66 =
3 Basic, profit for the year attributable to é
ordinary equity holders of the parent DECEH DECH 2
3 Diluted, profit for the year attributable to =
ordinary equity holders of the parent PECEH PECH I
Earnings per share for continuing operations 16 ﬁ
3 Basic, profit from continuing operations s

attributable to ordinary equity holders of the

parent DECEH bDECH
3 Diluted, profit from continuing operations

attributable to ordinary equity holders of the

parent DECEH DECH

V. Sheen, Chairman
F. Canuck Group Chief Executive
31 January 2023
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Commentary
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There is no specific requirement to identify restatements to prior period financial statements on the face of the financial s tatements.
IAS 8 requires details to be provided only in the notes . The Group illustrates how an entity may supplement the requirements of IAS

8 so that it is clear to the reader that amounts in the prior period financial statements have been adjusted in comparative p  eriod(s)
of the current period financial statements.

IFRS 15.113(a) requires revenue recognised from contracts with customers to be disclosed separately from other sources of
revenue, unless presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income or statement of profit or loss . The Group has
elected to present the revenue from contracts with customers as a line item in the statement of profit or loss separate from the
other source of revenue. IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers only applies to a subset of total revenue (i.e., revenue
from cont racts with customers).

Algh FJ yz{~cm@¥Ez-wd«O~w® &o a3}z x¥« ©z ¥{itexcudes sofme-rdvenGecontgacty ~ o v "
{"¥f£ ~20©0 Ox¥!z =zC|CA ¢zv©z©O©>C ~[gh FJ y¥z0 «m¥?3 "HE KX¥@A3(VX23C §«
Therefore, entities may use different terminology in their financial statements to describe revenue arising from transactions that

are within the scope of IFRS 15. However, entities should ensure the terms used are not mi sleading and allow users to distinguish

revenue from contracts with customers from other sources of revenue.

The Group also presented a line item for total revenue on the face of the statement of profit or loss as required by IAS 1.82(a). The
Group presented rental income as part of revenue as it arises in the cou rse of its ordinary activities.

Cost of sales includes costs of inventories recognised as expense. IAS 2.34 requires that when inventories are sold, the carr ying
amount of those inventories must be recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised.

IAS 1.99 requires expenses to be analysed either by their nature or by their function within the statement of profit or loss,

whichever provides informat ion that is reliable and more relevant. If expenses are analysed by function, information about the

nature of expenses must be disclosed in the notes. The Group has presented the analysis of exp enses by function. In Appendix B, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss is presented with an analysis of expenses by nature.

The Group has presented operating profit in the statement of profit or loss although = ¥2 ~“z8«~"2zy w ~Vh FC i}
L " ¥{ ~aC ¥-~o&¥EzCva<g| a¥2 yz{~azy ~o ~A[ghC ~Vh FCWXJK ©2vaz© 2}y
the results of operating activities, or a similar line item, even though this term is not defined. The entity should ensure t he amount
discloszy ~© " z|"z0©zrnav3a~az ¥{ VX3®~-2~23-~-70 2}vd -¥«ty o¥ " fvee vae Xx¥
to exclude items clearly related to operations (such as inventory write -downs and restructuring and relocation expenses) becaus e

they occur irregularly or infrequently or are unusual in amount. Similarly, it would be inappropriate to exclude items on the grounds
alva a3}y z" y¥ pop¥3 -~p-¥¢t-z xv©O} {¢c¥- ©OA O«x} 1BG@6)yreplactieexotherdi Hes,msucvasy v
earnings before interest and taxation (EBIT), are sometimes used to refer to an operating result. Such subtotals are subject to the

guidance included in IAS 1.85A.

The Group has presented its share of profit of an associate and joint venture using the equity method under IAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures aftertheline-~2 z £ é¥! z " va~ao| | "¥{ 8®OFLEC 2VH{ FEMB=KkS¥[ 28 «¥"
jointventures v x x ¥ «a2zy {¥° «©O~no| 2} z tedicaséparatelinetitpn¥on e fac¥ of the staternent@mfit or

loss. In complying with this requirement, the Group combines the share of profit or loss from  an associate and a joint venture in one

line item. Regulators or standard setters in certain ju risdictions recommend or accept share of the profit/loss of equity method

investees being presented with reference to whether the operations of the investees are closely related to that of the report ing

entity. This may result in the share of profit/loss o f certain equity method investees being included in the operating profit, ~ whilst the
share of profit/loss of other equity method investees being excluded from operating profit. In other jurisdictions, regulator s or

standard setters believe that IAS 1.82(c) requires that share of profit/loss of equity method investees be presented as one line item

(or, alternatively, as two or more adjacent line items, with a separate line for the sub  -total). This may cause diversity in practice.

IAS 33.68 requires presentation of basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for discontinued operations either on the face of  the
statement of profit or loss or in the notes to the financial statements. The Group has elected to show this information with other
disclosures required for discontinued operations in Note 14 and to show the EPS information for continuing operations on the face
of the statement of profit or loss.

IAS 1.82(ba) requires that the statem ent of profit or loss include line items that present the impairment losses (including reversals
of impairment losses or impairment gains) determined in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The Group did not present
its impairment losses determine d in accordance with IFRS 9 separately in the statement of profit or loss as the amounts are not
considered material.

IFRS 16.49 requires a lessee to present in the statement of profit or loss , the interest expense on lease liabilities separately from

the depreciation charge for the right -of-use asset. The interest expense on the lease liabilities is a component of finance costs, which

IAS 1.82(b) requires to be presented separately in the statement of profit or loss. Consistent with this requirement, the G roup

presented interestexpen ©z ¥o ¢zv Oz ¢-~vweagz?2 x¥@2OCywbye P}z yz!-6f-nseassetundemt xx¥oR”
¥{ OvezpL~wveu@2 Cwd~-2z z®! zoO©z©CC
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IAS 1.51(c)
IAS 1.81A
2022 2021 |as1100)
PEELI PEE
Notes Restated  1as 1.51(d),(e)
(Note 2.5) 1AS 1.90
IAS 12.61A c
Profit for the year 8,216 6,459  1AS181A(a) %
>
'8
Other comprehensive income IAS 1.82A 2
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods (net of tax) :
Net gain on hedge of a net investment 195 - IFRS9.65.13
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 213,25 (246) (117) :ﬁ: ;i:gg(b)
Net gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges 213,25 (618) 24 IFRS 7:20@0
Net change in costs of hedging 213,25 (22) - %
Net loss on debt instruments at fair value through other E,
comprehensive income 21.3,25 (15) (1) IFRs 7.20(a)(vii) %
Share of other comprehensive loss of an associate 11 (30) - IAS 1.82A(b) %
Net other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified to IAS 1.82A §
profit or loss in subsequent periods (736) (94) §
<
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to %
profit or loss in subsequent periods (net of tax): §

Net gain/(loss) on equity instruments designated at fair value
IFRS 7.20(2)(vii)

through other comprehensive income 25 (18) 7 as 19.120(¢)
Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans 32 257 (273) 1As19.122
Revaluation of office properties in Euroland 17 592 - IAS16.39
Share of other comprehensive income of an associate 11 30 - IAS 1.82A(b)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss)  that will not be IAS 1.82A
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 861 (266)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 125 (360) 1As 1.81A()
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 8,341 6,099 1As181A()

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 8,053 5,860 IAS1.81B(b) (i)
Non-controlling interests 288 239 IAS1.81B(b) ()
8,341 6,099
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Commentary

The Group has elected as an accounting policy to present two statements, a statement of profit or loss and a statement of
comprehensive income, rather than a single statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income combining the two
elements. If a two-statement approach is adopted, the statement of profit or loss must be followed directly by the statement of
comprehensive income. For illustrative purposes, the disclosure of a single statement of profit or loss and other comprehensi  ve
income is presented in Appendix A.

There is no specific requirement to identify restatements to prior period financial statements on the face of the financial s tatements.
IAS 8 requires details to be provided only in the notes. The Group illustrates how an entity may supplement the requirements of IAS

8 so that it is clear to the reader that amounts in the prior period financial statements have been adjusted in comparative p  eriod(s)
of the current period financial statements.

IAS 1.90 requires an entity to disclose the amount of income tax relating to each item of other comprehensive income (OCI),

including reclassification adjustments, either in the statement of comprehensive income orinth e notes. The Group presented each

item of OCl net of the related tax effects in the statement above. The Group then disclosed the income tax effects of each item of

OClin Note 15 and the reclassification adjustments in Note 25 . Another alternative provided by IAS 1.91 is to present the different

items of OCI before the related tax effects with one amount shown for the aggregate amount of income tax relating to those it  ems.

An entity electing this alternative must allocate the tax  between those items that gnaywz ~“zx ¢v ©©~{ ~zy 2awdindt"™ ¥{ -
be reclassified to profit or loss (n subsequent periods. This alternative is illustrated in  Appendix A.

IAS 1.8 2A requires that items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss, when specific conditions are met, must be
grouped on the face of the statement of comprehensive income. Similarly, items that will not be reclassified must also be gro  uped
together. In order to make these di sclosures, an entity must analyse whether its OCI items are eligible to be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss under IFRS.

The Group has presented, in OClthe gains and losses arising from cash flow hedges, including those related to foreign curre ncy and
commaodity forward contracts that are hedges of forecast inventory purchases, that may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods. Under IFRS 9.6.5.11(d)(i), if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition ofa  non-
financial asset, the entity must remove the amount from the cash flow hedge reserve and include it directly in the initial cost or

other carrying amount of the asset as a basis adjustment. IAS 1.96 states that reclassification adjustments do not arise if a cash
flow hedge results in amounts that are removed from the cash flow hedge reserve or a separate component of equity and include d
directly in the initial cost or other carrying amount of an asset.  In subsequent periods, the amount previously recorde d in the cash
flow hedge reserve may be recognised in profit or loss when the asset (liability) is being recovered (settled). Furthermore,  other
comprehensive income arising from a cash flow hedge of a future transaction of a non -financial item may not alw ays result in a basis
adjustment . These amounts might be reclassified to profit or loss in the case of a loss that is expected not to be partially or fully
recovered (IFRS 9.6.5.11(d)(iii)), or if the future cash flows are no longer expected to occur (IFRS  9.6.5.12(b)). The Group
concluded that it should present other comprehensive income arising from cash flow hedges consistently with the requirements  for
items of othe r comprehensive income that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when speci fied conditions are met.

Under the requirements of IAS 1.82A and the Implementation Guidance to IAS 1, entities must present the share of the OCl item s of
equity method investees (i.e., associates and joint ventures), in aggregateas ©~o | ¢z ¢~o8z ~2zZHD -~zRE¢Ev©02{ 2z
alwillmtwz ~ zx¢v©O~AsatBy Becdmbet20220€C} z \ " ¥« ! CO v ©O¥ x ~ v atfair yawethrqughOCle x ~ v ¢
and an office building located in Euroland that is accounted for und er the revaluation model. Consequently, the Group presents

items of other comprehensive income related to the associate in two separate line items in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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as at 31 December 2022

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Intangible assets and goodwill

Right-of-use assets

Investment in an associate and a joint venture
Non-current financial assets

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Right of return assets

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Prepayments

Other current financial assets
Cash and short-term deposits

Assets held for sale

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Issued capital

Share premium

Treasury shares

Other capital reserves

Retained earnings

Other components of equity

Reserves of a disposal group held for sale
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Interest -bearing loans and borrowings
Other non-current financial liabilities
Provisions

Government grants

Contract liabilities

Net employee defined benefit liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities

Refund liabilities

Interest -bearing loans and borrowings
Other current financial liabilities
Government grants

Income tax payable

Provisions

Dividends payable

Liabilities directly associated with the assets
held for sale

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Notes
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As at
2022 2021 1January 2021
DEEI PEE DEEL
Restated Restated
(Note 2.5) (Note 2.5)
32,979 24,329 18,940
8,893 7,983 7,091
6,019 2,461 2,114
2,908 2,732 2,915
3,187 2,516 1,878
3761 2,816 2,273
425 365 321
58,172 43,202 35,532
26,027 23,830 24,296
1,124 929 856
25,672 22,290 25,537
4,541 5,180 3,450
244 165 226
551 153 137
17,528 14,916 11,066
75,687 67,463 65,568
13,554 Cc Cc
89,241 67,463 65,568
147,413 110,665 101,100
21,888 19,388 19,388
4,780 80 Cc
(508) (654) (774)
1,171 864 566
31,538 25,929 21,582
(642) (505) (418)
46 Cc C
58,273 45,102 40,344
2,410 740 208
60,683 45,842 40,552
22,147 23,313 21,358
806 Cc Cc
1,898 19 15
3,300 1,400 1,300
2,962 888 692
3,050 2,977 2,526
2,454 607 780
36,617 29,204 26,6 71
16,969 20,023 18,248
2,880 2,486 1,836
6,242 5,844 3,796
2,832 3,142 4,834
2,953 254 303
149 151 150
3,511 3,563 4,625
1,042 156 85
410 Cc C
36,988 35,619 33,877
13,125 c Cc
50,113 35,619 33,877
86,730 64,823 60,548
147,413 110, 665 101,1 00

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 1.10(a)
IAS 1.10(f)
IAS 1.51(c)

IAS 1.51(d),(e)

IAS 1.40A, IAS 1.40B
IAS 1.60

IAS 1.54(a)

IAS 1.54(b)

IAS 1.54(c)

IFRS 16.47

IAS 1.54(€), IAS 28.38
IAS 1.54(d), IFRS 7.8
IAS 1.54(0), IAS 1.56

IAS 1.60, IAS 1.66

IAS 1.54(g)

IFRS 15.821

IAS 1.54(h), IFRS 15.105
IFRS 15.105

IAS 1.55

IAS 1.54(d), IFRS 7.8
IAS 1.54(i)

IAS 1.54()), IFRS 5.38

IAS 1.54(r) , IAS 1.78(e)

IFRS 5.38

IAS 1.54(q)

IAS 1.60
IAS 1.54(m)

IAS 1.54(m), IFRS 7.8
IAS 1.54(l)

IAS 20.24

IFRS 15.105

IAS 1.55, 1AS 1.78(d)
IAS 1.54(0), IAS 1.56

IAS 1.60, IAS 1.69

IAS 1.54(K)

IFRS 15.105

IFRS 15.821

IAS 1.54(m), IFRS 7.8(g)
IAS 1.54(m), IFRS 7.8
IAS 1.55, 1AS 20.24

IAS 1.54(n)

IAS 1.54(l)

IAS 1.54(p), IFRS 5.38
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Commentary

IAS 1 requires an entity to present a statement of financial position at the beginning of the earliest comparative period whe n: it
applies an accounting policy retrospectively , it makes a retrospective restatement of items in its financial statements , or when it
reclassifies items in its financial statements (IAS 1.10(f)), and the change has a material effect on the statement of financ  ial
position. In these situa tions, IAS 1.40A states that an entity must present, at a minimum, three statements of financial position, two
of each of the other statements and the related notes. The three statements of financial position include the statement of fi nancial
position as at the current annual period year end, the statement of financial position as at the previous annual period year end, and
alz ©2dvazgfgzand ¥{ {~ovox~ve¢ | ¥O0~2~¥o v©O va&a 23}z wz| ~oo~o| efrédt?} z
VO 2}z é2a}~"y wv (v o xestat@lthe finAnCial Satevh@ntsio} eorréct’a¥ errpr retrospectively |, it has included a
third balance sheet as at 1 January 202 1. Such an additional balance sheet is only required if the adjustment to opening balances is
considered to be material (IAS 1.40A(b)). However, the notes related to the third balance sheet are not required, nor are additional
statements of profit or loss and other ¢ omprehensive income, changes in equity or cash flows (IAS 1.40C).

There is no specific requirement to identify restatements to prior period financial statements on the face of the financial s tatements.
IAS 8 requires details to be provided only in the note s. The Group illustrates how an entity may supplement the requirements of IAS

8 so that it is clear to the reader that amounts in the prior period financial statements have been adjusted in comparative p  eriod(s)
of the current period financial statements.

In accordance with IAS 1.60, the Group has presented current and non -current assets, and current and non -current liabilities, as
separate classifications in the statement of financial position. IAS 1 does not require a specific order of the two classific  ations. The
Group has elected to present non -current assets and liabilities before current assets and liabilities. IAS 1 requires entities to present
assets and liabilities in order of liquidity when this presentation is reliable and more relevant.

The Grouppresented € x ¥ 2 " v x @  W@Gz av&x® vimtye s@tament of fim@@al position using the terminology from IFRS
15. IFRS 15.109 allows an entity to use alternative descriptions. However, it must disclose sufficient information so that users of
the financial statements can clearly distinguish between unconditional rights to receive consideration (receivables) and cond itional
rights to receive consideration (contract assets).

IFRS 15.B25 requires an entity to present the refund liability separately from the corresponding asset (on a gross basis, rat  her than
anet basis). The Grouppresented ¢ © ~| } 2 ¥{ " z28«" o v©O©O©zaO©C vaoy & " z{«oy Calpositient ~2 ~ z (

IFRS 16.47 requires a lessee to either present in the statement of financial position, or disclose in the notes, the right  -of-use assets
separately from other assets and lease liabilities separately from other liabilities. If a lessee does not  present right -of-use assets
separately in the statement of financial position, the lessee is required to include right -of-use assets within the same line item that

the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they were owned (e.g., under prop erty, plant and equipment) and it is

required to disclose which line items in the statement of financial position include those right -of-use assets. Similarly, if the lessee

does not present lease liabilities separately in the statement of financial positi on, the lessee is required to disclose the line items in

alz ©avazfgzoad ¥{ {~avaox~ve ! ¥O0~2-~¥o -}-~-x} ~oof¢®yzvOPY¥OOCCEOL WYLV
statement of financial position. The related lease liabilteswer z | "z ©ze2zy ~8o 23}lwzw~=ag| ~¢¥\Ea @ widy"

Under IFRS 16.48, right -of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property must be presented in the statement of
financial position as investment property. The Group does not have right -of-use assets that meet the definition of investment

property.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited 8
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for the year ended 31 December

As at 1 January 2022

Adoption of amendments to IAS 37

(Note 2.4)
As at 1 January 2022 (restated )
Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income (Note 25)

Total comprehensive income
Depreciation transfer for office properties
in Euroland

Discontinued operations ( Note 14)
Issue of share capital (Note 25)
Exercise of options (Note 25)

Share based payments (Note 33)

Transaction costs (Note 8)

Cash dividends (Note 26)

Transfer of fair value reserve of equity
instruments designated at FVOCI
Transfer of cash flow hedge reserve to
inventories

Acquisition of a subsidiary ( Note 8)
Acquisition of non -controlling interests
(Note 8)

At 31 December 2022

¥ {

X}vo| z© ~n

Z § «~2

2022
Attributable to the equity holders of the parent
Fair value
Other reserve of Foreign Reserve of
Issued Share  Treasury capital Cash flow Cost of financial currency Asset disposal Non-

capital premium shares  reserves Retained hedge hedging assetsat translation revaluation group held controlling Total
(Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 25) earnings reserve reserve FVOCI reserve surplus for sale Total interests equity
DEE pEEE PEE bEE bEE bEE DEEE PDEEL bEE DEEL PDEEI PbEE| PbEE| PEE
19,388 80 (654) 864 25,929 (70) - 9 (444) - - 45,102 740 45,842
- - - - (84) - - - - - - (84) - (84)
19,388 80 (654) 864 25,845 (70) - 9 (444) - - 45,018 740 45,758
- - - - 7,928 - - - - - - 7,928 288 8,216
- - - - 257 (618) (22) (63) (51) 622 - 125 - 125

- - - - 8,185 (618) (22) (63) (51) 622 - 8,053 288 8,341

- - - - 80 - - - - (80) - - - -

- - - - - - - (46) - - 46 - - -

2,500 4,703 - - - - - - - - - 7,203 - 7,203
- 29 146 - - - - - - - - 175 - 175

- - - 307 - - - - - - - 307 - 307

- (32) - - - - - - - - - (32) - (32)

- - - - (2,389) - - - - - - (2,389) (30) (2,419

- - - - 7 - - 7) - - - - - -

- - - - - 126 2 - - - - 128 - 128

- - - - - - - - - - - - 1,547 1,547
- - - - (190) - - - - - - (190) (135) (325)
21,888 4,780 (508) 1,171 31,538 (562) (20) (107) (495) 542 46 58,273 2,410 60, 683

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 1.10(c)
IAS 1.49

IAS 1.51(b),(c)
IAS 1.106(d)

IAS 1.51(d),(e)

IAS 1.106(b)

IAS 1.106(d)(i)
IAS 1.106(d)(ii)
IAS 1.106(a)

IAS 1.96
IFRS 5.38
IAS 1.106(d)(Gii)
IAS 1.106(d)(ii),
IFRS 2.50
IAS 32.39,

IAS 1.109
IAS 1.107

IAS 1.106(d)(Gii)

IAS 1.106(d)(Gii)



Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2021 (restated)

As at 1 January 2021

Adjustment on correction of error (net of tax)
(Note 2.5)

As at 1 January 2021 (restated )
Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income (Note 25)

Total comprehensive income
Exercise of options (Note 25)
Share-based payments (Note 33)
Dividends (Note 26)

Non-controlling interests arising on a business
combination ( Note 8)

At 31 December 2021 (restated)

Attributable to the equity holders of the parent

Fair value
Other reserve of Foreign
Issued Share Treasury capital Cash flow financial currency Non-
capital premium shares reserves Retained hedge assets at translation controlling Total
(Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 25) earnings reserve FVOCI reserve Total interests equity
PEE PEE bEE bEE bEE dEELI bEE PbEE PbEEI DEEE PDEEE
19,388 - (774) 566 22,282 (94) 3 (327)) 41,044 208 41,252
- - - - (700) - - - (700) - (700)
19,388 - (774) 566 21,582 (94) 3 (327) 40,344 208 40,552
- - - - 6,220 - - - 6,220 239 6,459
- - - - (273) 24 6 (117) (360) - (360)
- - - - 5,947 24 6 (117)) 5,860 239 6,099
- 80 120 - - - - - 200 - 200
- - - 298 - - - - 298 - 298
- - - - (1,600) - - - (1,600) (49) (1,649)
- - - - - - - - - 342 342
19,388 80 (654) 864 25,929 (70) 9 (444)) 45,102 740 45,842

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 1.10(c)
IAS 1.49

IAS 1.51(h),(c)
IAS 8.28

IAS 1.106(d)

IAS 1.51(d),(e)

IAS 1.106(b)

IAS 1.106(d)(i)
IAS 1.106(d)(ii)
IAS 1.106(a)
IAS 1.106(d)(ii),
IFRS 2.50

IAS 1.107

IAS 1.106(d)(Gii)
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Commentary

There is no specific requirement to identify adjustments made retrospectively on the face of the financial statements, except for the
effect of a retrospective application or restatement on each component of equity ( IAS 1.106(b)). IAS 8 requires details to be given
¥o¢~ ~o 2}z o¥2az7OC W ¢vwze¢¢~n| 3}z x¥£!v ' va~-z0O &gzO2avaznwEh 2}
IAS 8 so that it is clear to the user that adjustments to the amounts in p rior financial statements have been reflected in the

comparative periods as presented in the current period financial statements.

For equity -settled share -based payment transactions, IFRS 2.7 requires entities to recognise an increase in equity when goods or
services are received. However, IFRS 2 Share-based Payment does not specify where in equity this should be recognised. The Group
has chosen to recognise the credit in other capital reserves. In some jurisdictions, it is common to transfer other capital reserves to
share premium or retained earnings when the share options are exercised or expire. Such transfer is also permitted by IFRS 2 .23.
However, the transfer to share premium is subject to legal restrictions that are in force in each jurisdiction. The Group has elected to
continue to present other capital reserves separately. The Group provided treasury shares to employees exercising share optio  ns
and elected to recognise the excess of cash received over the acquisition cost of those treasury shares in  share premium.

The acquisition of an additional ownership interest in a subsidiary without a change of control is accounted for as an equity

transaction in accordance with IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements. Any excess or deficit of consideration p aid over the
carrying amount of the non -controlling interests is recognised in equity of the parent in transactions where the non  -controlling
interests are acquired or sold without loss of control. The Group has elected to recognise this effect in retained  earnings. With
respect to the subsidiary to which these non -controlling interests relate, there were no accumulated components recognised in OCI.

If there had been such components, those would have been reallocated within equity of the parent (e.g., forei  gn currency translation
reserve or fair value reserve of financial assets at FVOCI).

IFRS 5.38 requires that items recognised in OCI related to discontinued operations must be separately disclosed. The Group

presents this effect in the statement of change s in equity above. However, presentation of such items within discontinued

operations does not change the nature of the reserve. Generally, reclassification to profit or loss will only occur if and wh  en required
by IFRS.

The Group recognises remeasurement gains and losses arising on defined benefit pension plans in OCI in accordance with IAS 19
Employee Benefits. As they will never be reclassified into profit or loss, they are immediately recorded in retained earnings (refer to the
statement of comprehensiv e income). IAS 19 does not require separate presentation of those components in the statement of changes
in equity but an entity may choose to present the remeasurement gains and losses in a separate reserve within the statemento f
changes in equity.

The amounts presented as change in the asset revaluation surplus and the fair value reserve of financial assets at FVOCI include a share
of other comprehensive income of the associate, which relates to the revaluation of an office building in Euroland and the

remeasurement of debt instruments at fair value through OCI. IAS 1 specifically requires that entities must present the share of other
X¥E£! "2} 20O~~~z ~ox¥£z ~27z£0 ¥{ 2}z~" z8«~27 f£z2a8}¥y -~0-z0®zf©®AyE€n
Cao¥a ay¥ wz “zx¢tvOO©-~{ ~zyC | Didosu@ GfInfeldsts in@hér Ertied doFnotprovide spdci§jcguidare on

how the investor should present its accumulated share of other comprehensive income of equity -accounted investees. The Guidance on
implementing IAS 1 contains an example in which the accumulated property, plant and equipment revaluation gain is included into the
revaluation surplus of the investor. Quality Holdings applies a similar presentation of accumula ted items of other comprehensive income
of its associate. However, as current IFRS do not contain specific requirements on this issue, other presentation approaches may also be
acceptable.

IFRS 9.B5.7.1 states that accumulated gains and losses recognised i n OCI for equity financial assets must not be subsequently
transferred to profit or loss. However, the entity may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. The Group transfer red the
accumulated gain on its equity financial assets from OCI to reta ined earnings upon derecognition of the financial asset.

IFRS 9.6.5.11(d)(i) requires that if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non  -financial asset or non -
financial liability, or a hedged forecast transaction fora  non-financial asset or a non -financial liability becomes a firm commitment for
which fair value hedge accounting is applied, the entity must remove that amount from the cash flow hedge reserve and include it
directly in the initial cost or other carrying a mount of the asset or liability. This is not a reclassification adjustment and, as such, it does
not affect OCI. The Group has cash flow hedge reserve on its cash flow hedges of forecast inventory purchases that was includ ed in the
carrying amount of inven tories.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited 11
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for the year ended 31 December 2022

Operating activities

Profit before tax from continuing operations

Profit/(loss) before tax from discontinued operations

Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant

and equipment and right -of-use assets 1

Notes

~
w
g

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets and

impairment of goodwill

Equipment received from customers

Share-based payment expense

Decrease in fair value of investment properties

Net foreign exchange differences

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Fair value adjustment of a contingent consideration

Finance income

Finance costs

Other income

Net loss on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture

Movements in provisions, pensions and government grants
Working capital changes:

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables, contract assets

and prepayments

Decrease in inventories and right of return assets

Increase in trade and other payables, contract liabilities

and refund liabilities

Interest received

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of investment properties

Purchase of financial instruments

Proceeds from sale of financial instruments
Development expenditures

Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Receipt of government grants

Net cash flows used in investing activities
Financing activities

Proceeds from exercise of share options
Acquisition of non -controlling interests
Transaction costs on issue of shares

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Net cash flows from/(used in)  financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Net foreign exchange difference

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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2022 2021
DEEE DEE
Restated
(Note 2.5)
11,08 8 8,880
213 (293)
11,321 8,687
4,341 3,794
325 174
(290) (150)
412 492
306 300
(365) (240)
(532) (2,007)
358 o]
(202) (145)
1,366 1,268
(98) (66)
652 -
(671) (638)
(815) (65)
(7,102) 2,431
1,129 1,111
4,511 2,530
14,726 17,476
250 221
(2,067) (1,173)
(2,935) (3,999)
10,974 12,525
1,990 2,319
(10,16 7) (7,581)
(1,216) (1,192)
(272) (225)
328 145
(587) (390)
230 (1,450)
2,951 642
(6,743) (7,732)
175 200
(325) -
(32) -
(406) (341)
5,649 4,871
(2,032) (4,250)
(1,979) (1,600)
(30) (49)
1,020 (1,169)
5,251 3,624
339 326
12,266 8,316
17,856 12,266

IAS 1.49
IAS 1.51(c)
IAS 1.10(d)
IAS 1.51(d),(e)

IAS 7.10,
IAS 7.18(b)

IAS 7.20(b)

IAS 7.20(c)
IAS 7.20(c)

IAS 7.20(a)

IAS 7.31
IAS 7.31
IAS 7.35

IAS 7.10, IAS 7.21
IAS 7.16(b)

IAS 7.16(a)

IAS 7.16(a)

IAS 7.16(c)

IAS 7.16(d)

IAS 7.16(a)

IAS 7.39

IAS 7.10, IAS 7.21
IAS 7.17(a)

IAS 7.42A

IAS 7.17(a)

IAS 7.17(e)

IAS 7.17(c)

IAS 7.17(d)

IAS 7.31

IFRS 12.B10(a)

IAS 7.28

IAS 7.45
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Commentary gc_a
o
IAS 7.18 allows entities to report cash flows from operating activities using either the direct method or the indirect method . The o

Group presents its cash flows using the indirect method. A statement of cash flows prepared using the direct method for opera  ting
activities is presented in Appendix C for illustrative purposes.

There is no specific requirement to identify adjustments made retrospectively on the face of the financial statements, except for the
effect of a retrosp ective application or restatement on each component of equity (IAS 1.106(b)). IAS 8 requires details to be given

¥o¢~  ~o a3}z o¥azOC W ¢vwze¢¢~n| 3}z x¥£!v va~-z0O £gzO2avazmwEh 2}
IAS 8 so that it is clear to the user that adjustments to the amounts in prior financial statements have been reflected in the

comparative periods as presented in the current period financial statements.  This is consistent with the illustrative example in

IAS 8.1G.1.6.

The Group has reconciled profit before tax to net cash flows from operating activities. However, reconciliation from profit a fter tax
is also acceptable under IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

Introduction

IAS 7.33 permits interest paid to be shown as operating or fin ancing activities and interest received to be shown as operating or
investing activities, as deemed relevant for the entity. The Group has elected to classify interest received and interest pai d
(including interest on lease liabilities and interest arising from revenue contracts , if there is any ) as cash flows from operating
activities.

Certain working capital adjustments and other adjustments included in the statement of cash flows, reflect the change in bala  nces
between 202 2 and 202 1, including the 202 2 balances of the discontinued operations grouped inline -~2 z £ © ¢v©©z 23 © x ¢tv
forovwzmay E¢~vw~¢~2~20 y~"zx2a¢ VvOO¥x-~@®%eyC-~2a} a}lz vOOza©® x¢tvOO~

IFRS 16.50 requires that in the statement of cash flows, a lessee classifi es: cash payments for the principal portion of the lease
liability within financing activities , cash payments for the interest portion of the lease liability applying the requirements in IAS 7 for
interest paid (i.e., IAS 7.31 -33), and short-term lease pay ments, payments for leases of low -value assets and variable lease
payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability within operating activities. Non  -cash activity (e.g., the initial
recognition of the lease at commencement) is required to be disclosed as a supplemental non-cash item in accordance with IAS 7.43
(see Note 31).
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Index to notes to the consolidated financial statements
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. . IAS 1.10(€)
1. Corporate information IAS 1.49

The consolidated financial statements of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, IAS 1.113
the Group) for the year ended 31 December 202 2 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of IAS 1.51(a)
the directors on 31 January 202 3. Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited (the Company or the parent) is a limited IAS 1.51(b)
company incorporated and domiciled in Euroland and whose shares are publicly traded. The registered office is

. . . IAS 1.51(c)
located at Fire House, Ashdown Square in Euroville. IAS 1138(a)
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of fire prevention and electronic equipment and services and s 1017
the management of investment property (see Note5>C ~ o { ¥" £va@ ~¥uo ¥wo 2}z \ " ¥«| (1aAs11380)
Note 7. Information on other related party relationships of the Group is provided in  Note 35. IAS 1.138(c)

2. Significant accounting policies

Commentary

iz ~yzwa~{~xva~¥o ¥{ vo zpopa-a~ CO O~|ao~{~xveod yxx¥«a?2-q4417 !
requires the significant accounting policies disclosures to summarise the measurement basis (or bases) used in preparing

the financial statements, and the other accounting policies used that are relevant to an understanding of the financial

statement s. The significant accounting policies disclosed in this note illustrate some of the more commonly applicable
accounting policies . However, it is essential that entities consider their specific circumstances when determining which
accounting policies are significant and relevant and therefore need to be disclosed.

COVID-19 commentary
Background

While the negative impact of COVID-19 is gradually declining, entities may still need to consider the impact of Covid 19 in
preparing their financial statements. While the specific areas of judgement may not change, the impact of Covid 19
resulted in the application of further judgement within those areas.

Although the financial year 202 2 is the third annual reporting period impacted by Covid 19, the economic and financial
impacts still remain to some extent , and further changes to estimates may need to be made in the measurement of
zoa ~2-70C v OOz ? Gtillbengcessary w~¢ ~2 ~z2 © £v

Entities should consider whether to disclose the measures they have taken, in line with the recommendations of the WHO
and national health ministries, to preserve the health of their employees and support the prevention of contagion in their
administrative and operational areas, such as working from home, reduced work shifts in operational areas to minimise
the number of workers commuting , rigorous cleaning of workplaces, distribution of personal protective equipment,
testing of suspected cases and measuring body temperature.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International IAS1.16
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for investment IAS 1.112(a)
proper ties, certain office properties (classified as property, plant and equipment ), derivative financial IAS 1117(a)
instruments, debt and equity financial assets and contingent consideration that have been measured at fair

value. The carrying values of recognised assets and liabilities that are designated as hedged items in fair value

hedges that would otherwise be carried at amortised cost are adjusted to recognise changes in the fair values

attributable to the risks that are being hedged in effective hedge relationships. The consolidated financial IAS 1.51(d),(e)

©3vazEfgzo2© viz | 7z0Ozov?zy ~8o 7z« ¥0O voy veEeet -veEt«z© v~
otherwise indica ted.

The Group has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going
concern.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Commentary

Entities in certain jurisdictions may be required to comply with IFRS approved by local regulations, for example, listed
companies in the European Union (EU) are required to comply with IFRS as endorsed by the EU. These financial
statements only illustrate compliance with IFRS as issued by the IASB.

A statement that the financial statements are prepared on a going -concern basis is not a requirement of IFRS. However, it

is required by regulatorsia xz " 2 v ~ @ «" ~0y~x2~¥p© voy £v  wz xr¥oredthey Groug y \
decided to disclose the basis of preparation. Entities should consider not only the specific disclosure requirements

relating to going concern in 1AS 1.25, but also the overarching disclosure requirements in IAS 1. These requirements

include those in IAS 1.122 relating to judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

financial statements.

Entities should also consider the impact of climate -related matters on their going concern assessment. Climate-related
matters may create material uncertainties related to events or conditions that cast significant doubt upon a  n entity C ©
ability to continue as a going concern,

COVID-19 commentary
Going concern

Despite the decrease in the unpredictability of the further impact of COVID-19, there still may be material uncertainties

alva xvOa y¥«w?2 ¥o 2}z zpa-27CO vw-~C~2T npfadagedéng wherfpeepaving v | ¥
{~avex~ve¢ ©2vazEfzon2OA 2¥ VvOOz©O©O vo zwa~a~ CO vw~¢~2~ 2a¥ x¥ano
assumption is appropriate. In assessing whether the going concern assumption is appropriate, the standard requires an

entity to consider all available information about the future, which is at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the

end of the reporting period. When an entity is aware, in making its going concern assessment, of material uncertainties
related2 ¥ z-z02© ¥° x¥oy~23-~¥p®© 2}va f£v  xv0O2 O~|o~{~xvo? y¥«w?
must disclose those uncertainties.

Entities will need to disclose the significant judgements made in the assessment of the existence of a m aterial
uncertainty .

When making that assessment, management takes into consideration the existing and anticipated effects of the outbreak

¥o a8}z zw2a~a"CO VX2~a~2-~70C bvaov|z£zoa ©} ¥« ¢ that wasoaingdafter v ¢ ¢
the reporting date , up until the date of which the financial statements are issued in their assessment of going concern .

This includes, but is not limited to, measures taken by governments and banks to provide relief to affected entities and
subsequent gradual curtailment of those measures by governments . These disclosures are equally as important, if not

even more so, in situations when the going concern assumption is still applied but there is some doubt as to situations

when the going concern assum ption is not applied.

Considerations that an entity might disclose to address its going concern basis include:

3 Whether the entity has sufficient cash and / or headroom in its credit facilities to support any downturn whilst noting
that the nature of COVID19 means that uncertainties will remain, and it may not be able to reasonably estimate the
future impact

3 Actions the entity has taken to mitigate the risk that the going concern assumption is not appropriate such as
activities to preserve liquidity

3 X¥oO©-~yz ' va~¥o ¥{ 2}z zpma-~-a~  CO wW«©O~0z©O £¥yz¢ voy " z¢vazy

3 Any challenges of the underlying data and assumptions used to make the going concern assessment

The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previo  us period. In

IAS 1.40A
addition, the Group presents an additional statement of financial position at the beginning of the  preceding IAS 1.10(f)
period when there is a retrospective application of an accounting policy, a retrospective restatement, or a IAS 1.38

IAS 1.38A

reclassification of items in financial statements. An additional statement of financial position as at
1 January 202 1 is presented in these consolidated financial statements due to the retrospective correction of
an error. See Note 2.5.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as
at 31 December 202 2. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

3 Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee)

3 Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee

3 The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights res  ults in control. To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

3 The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee

3 Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

3 i1z \"¥«!CO -~¥2~p| " ~|}20© voy ! ¥2azpa-y¢ -¥2a-qg|
The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the

consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control untilt he date the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non -controlling interests having a deficit balance. When
necessary, adjustments are m ade to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

¢t~mz -~2a} a}z \"¥«! CO vgouphssetsarddidbilitipsyebuity incorGeCexpérisds anda 2 -

cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, i t derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities,
non-controlling interest and other components of equity,  whilst any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 10.7

IFRS 10.B38

IFRS 10.B80
IFRS 10.B86
IFRS 10.B99

IFRS 10.B94
IFRS 10.B87
IFRS 10.B86

IFRS 10.B96
IFRS 10.B98
IFRS 10.B99
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 8 bl
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies e 11170) 0|

a) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured IFRS 3.4
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair value, and the :EEE 2:12
amount of any non -controlling interest s in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects

whether to measure the non -controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of IFRS 3.53

a1z vx8«~"2z2C0O ~yzugo?~{ talawdcpstsare éxpens@das mclrexd and iSckide®in @2 ~ ¥ o IFRS 3.B64(m) g

administrative expenses. 3

o

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include an 'FRz 2-382 E
IFRS 3.B1.

input and a substantive process th at together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired process is considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and the
inputs acquired include an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform
that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is considered unique
or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to cont  inue producing
outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate IFRS 3.15
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and p  ertinent IFRS 3.16
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by

the acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at  the acquisition  IFRS3.39
date. Contingent consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is IFRS 3.58
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial

instrument and within the s cope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with the changes in

fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9. Other contingent

consideration that is not within the scope of IFRS 9 is measured at fair value at each reporting date with

changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Consolidated financial statements

Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and IFRS 332
the amount recognised for non -controlling interests and any previous interest held over the net identifiable

assets acquired and liabilities assumed). If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate I3\
consideration transferred, the Group re -assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired IFRS 3.36
and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures u sed to measure the amounts to be recognised at

the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over

the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or loss. N

Notes
2

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose IFRS 3.863(a)
. . . . . . . N . . s IAS 36.80

of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to

each of the Gro« ! C © -gener&tihg units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of

whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generatin g unit (CGU) and part of the operation within that unit is IAS 36.86
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the

operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circum stances is measured

based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash -generating unit retained.

Additional Australian disclosures
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 8 bl
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued) Lo|

b) Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to IAS 28.3
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over

those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement IFRS 11.16
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of IFRS 11.7
an arrangement, which exists o nly when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent

of the parties sharing control.

c
o
=
o
=)
©
o
=
=
=

Commentary

The Group does not have an interest in a joint operation. If the Group had an interest in a joint operation, as per IFRS
11.20, it would recognise in relation to its interest its:

Assets, including its share of any assets held jointly

Liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly

Revenue from the sale of its share of the output a rising from the joint operation
Share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation

W N W N N

Expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are sim ilar to those necessary to
yzaz £~pz Xx¥uo2 " ¥¢ ¥-7" O©O«WO~y~v ~zOC i}z \ " ¥«! CO ~n=u
using the equity method.

Consolidated financial statements

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The IAS 28.10

Xv’' T T ~a| VE¥«wo?a ¥{ 28}z ~ob-z02£zwo2% ~0 Vvy «0O%zy 2a¥ "z

associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is

included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment separately. IAS 28.26-29

i}z ©2vazfgzoa ¥{ | "¥{~2a ¥" ¢¥OO0 "z{¢zx2© 2}z \ " ¥«!| C ASL8E()
venture. Any changein d X~ ¥{ 2} ¥0z ~0-2z0%22z0 ~0©0 | "z0©zun2zy Vv©O |\

has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its =
share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses

resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent 8 N
of the interest in the associate or joint venture. 2
i}z v]]|“z]|vaz ¥afeofqrpfitor loss & anass@iat®and a joint venture is shown on the face of N

the statement of profit or loss outside operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and non -
controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate or jointv enture.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

Additional Australian disclosures
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
2. Significant accounting policies  (continued) G
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued) o

b) Investment in associates and joint ventures  (continued)

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an IAS 28.40-43
impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group

determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is

impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between

the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recog nises the loss s
-~a}~o ¢Eh}v iz ¥{ | "¥{~2 ¥{ vo vOO¥x~vdaz voy v ¥~no2 ‘§

ie)
Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures IAS 28.22(b) .g

and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognis ed in profit or loss.

c¢) Current versus non -current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non  -current IAS 1.60
classification . An asset is current when it is:

IAS 1.66 0
Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle E»
Held primarily for the purpose of trading ::‘3;‘
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period g
Or %
3 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least §
twelve months after the reporting period §
All other assets are classified as non-current. S
A liability is current when: IAS 1.69 §
3 It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
3 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
3 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period
Or N
3 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the "
reporting period 2 N
The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of = ™
equity instrum ents do not affect its classification. N
The Group classifies all other liabilities as non -current. IAS 1.56

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non -current assets and liabilities.

Additional Australian disclosures
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)

d) Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments such as derivatives, and non -financial assets such as investment
properties, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to se |l the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

3 In the principal market for the asset or liability
Or

3 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantag eous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their econ  omic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non -financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniqu es that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

3 Level 1 CQuoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

3 Level 2 CValuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

3 Level 3 CValuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re -assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

i}z \"¥«!CO kvt«a«vad@~¥no X¥E£f~223z7 yz23z " £~070 2}z | ¥¢-~
measurement, such as investment properties and unquoted financial assets, and for non -recurring

measurement, such as assets held for sale in discontinued o perations. The Valuation Committee is comprised of
atlz }zvy ¥{ &8}z ~o-zO2£zw?d | "¥l!z2"8~70 ©Oz| £z82A }zVy
the head of the risk management department, chief finance officers and the managers of each prope rty.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as investment properties and unquoted
financial assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Involvement of external valuers is
determinzy veos«vee™ w 2}z kvC«vd@~¥no X¥E£E£~2323zz v{2dz" y-~
Committee. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. Valuers are normally rotate d every three years. The Valuation Committee decides,
v{2az" y-~0Ox«OO0~¥um®© -~2a} a}lz \ " ¥«!CO z®2z" ove avi«z ©

At each reporting date, the Valuation Committee analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be remeasuredorre v ©©z ©©zy v© ! z" 2}z \"¥«! CO vxXx¥
the Valuation Committee verifies th e major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in

the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Valuation Committee also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with releva nt
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)

d) Fair value measurement (continued)

On an interim basis, the Valuation Committee presents the valuation results to the Audit Committee and the

\ " ¥« CO ~myz|zoyzond v«y~2¥"0OC i} ~0 ~oxt«yz®© v y~0OXc«

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as IFRS 13.94
explained above.

Fair-value related disclosures for financial instrum ents and non-financial assets that are measured at fair value
or where fair values are disclosed, are summarised in the following notes:

3 Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions Notes 3, 17, 18 and 21.4
3 Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy Note 12

3 Investment in non -listed equity shares (discontinued operations) Note 14

3 Property, plant and equipment under revaluation model Note 17

3 Investment properties Note 18

3 Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) Note 21.4

3 Contingent consideration Note 21.4

Commentary

The Group has not elected to apply the portfolio exception under IFRS 13.48. If an entity makes an accounting policy
decision to use the exception, this fact is required to be disclosed, as per IFRS 13.96.

e) Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is in the business of providing fire prevention and electronic equipment and installation services. IFRS 15.2
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to IFRS 15834
the customer at an amount that reflec ts the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in

exchange for those goods or services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue

arrangements, except for the procurement services below, because it typically  controls the goods or services

before transferring them to the customer.

Commentary
IFRS 15.123 requires an entity to disclose the judgements, and changes in the judgements, made in applying the standard
that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers.

The Group included in its accounting policy disclosures those judgements that significantly affect the determination of the
amount and timing of its revenue from contracts wi th customers. Entities will need to apply judgement to ensure the
information disclosed is sufficient to meet the disclosure objective.

Sale of fire prevention and electronic equipment
Revenue from sale of fire prevention and electronic equipment is recognised at the point in time when control IFRS 15.31

¥{ @}z vO©z?a ~0©0 @"voO{z" " "zy ¥ 2}lz X«O2¥E£z" A |zwz" vV :Eiziggg

The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon delivery.

The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance IFRS 15.22
IFRS 15.48

obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties, customer loyalty
points). In determining the transaction price for the sale of fire prevention and electronic equipment, the Group
considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a significant financing component, non  -cash
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any ).

(i) Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration IFRS 15.50
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The v ariable consideration is

estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in

the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable

consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the sale of electronic equipment provide customers

with a right to return the goods within a specified period. The Group also provides retrospective volume rebates

to certain customers once the quantity o f electronic equipment purchased during the period exceeds the

threshold specified in the contract. The rights of return and volume rebates give rise to variable consideration.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of sig nificant accounting policies (continued)

e) Revenue from contracts with customers  (continued)

3 Rights of return IFRS 15.51

The Group uses the expected value method to estimate the variable consideration given the large number of IFRS 15.53
contracts that have similar characteristics. The Group then applies the requirements on constraining estimates :EEE 1222
of variable consideration in order to d etermine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the

transaction price and recognised as revenue. A refund liability is recognised for the goods that are expected to

be returned (i.e., the amount not included in the transaction price). A right of return asset (and corresponding

adjustment to cost of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover the goods from the customer.

3 Volume rebates IFRS 15.51

The Group applies either the most likely amount method or the expected value method to estimate the variable IFRS 15.53
consideration in the contract. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is IFRS 15.56
primarily driven by the number of vol ume thresholds contained in the contract. The most likely amount is used

for those contracts with a single volume threshold, whilst the expected value method is used for those with

more than one volume threshold. The Group then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of

variable consideration in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the

transaction price and recognised as revenue. A refund liability is recognised for the expected future rebates

(i.e., the amount not included in the transaction price).

The disclosures of significant estimates and assumptions relating to the estimation of variable consideration for
returns and volume rebates are provided in Note 3.

Commentary
The Group recognised refund liabilities for the goods expected to be returned and the expected volume rebates. While the

most common form of refund liabilities may be related to sales with a right of return, the  refund liability requirements
also apply if an entity expects to have to provide retrospective price reductions to a customer.

Entities must assess whether volume rebates are to be accounted for as variable consideration or as customer options to

acquire additional goods or services at a discount. Generally, if a volume rebate is applied prospectively, the rebate would

be accounted for as a customer option. Entities will need to evaluate whether the volume rebate or discount provides the
customer with an o ption to purchase goods or services in the future at a discount that represents a material right (and is,
therefore, accounted for as a performance obligation). However, a volume rebate that is applied retrospectively is
accounted for as variable considera? ~¥ o A wzxv«©z 23}z {~ove¢e | " ~xz ¥{ zvx} | ¥¥y
total purchases that are subject to the rebate programme.

Entities need to determine whether a refund liability should be characterised as a contract liability based on  the specific
facts and circumstances of the arrangement. A refund liability will not typically meet the definition of a contract liability
When an entity concludes that a refund liability is not a contract liability, it would present the refund liability separate
from any contract liability (or asset) and it would not be subject to the disclosure requirements in IFRS 15.116  -118. The
Group has determined that its refund liabilities are not contract liabilities.

(i) Significant financing component

The Group receives advance payments from customers for the sale of customised fire prevention equipment IFRS 15.60
with a manufacturing lead time of two years after signing the contract and receipt of payment. There is a IFRS 15.64
significantfinancing x ¥ £ | ¥ozoa8 {¥" 28170z x¥#o2 " vXx2a© x¥oO~yz" " ~uo|

payment and the transfer of the equipment, as well as the prevailing interest rate in the market. As such, the

transaction price for these contracts is discounted, using th e interest rate implicit in the contract  (i.e., the

interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of the equipment to the amount paid in advance). This rate is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction bet  ween the Group and

the customer at contract inception

The Group applies the practical expedient for short -term advances received from customers. That is, the IFRS 15.63
promised amount of consideration is not adjusted for the effects of a sig nificant financing component if the
period between the transfer of the promised good or service and the payment is one year or less.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)

e) Revenue from contracts with customers  (continued)

(iii) Non -cash consideration

The Group receives moulds and other tools from certain customers to be used in manufacturing fire prevention IFRS 15.66
equipment to be sold to them. The fair value of such non-cash consideration received from the customer is

included in the transaction price and measured when the Group obtains control of the equipment.

The Group estimates the fair value of the non -cash consideration by reference to its market pri ce. If the fair IFRS 15.67
value cannot be reasonably estimated, the non -cash consideration is measured indirectly by reference to the
stand-alone selling price of the fire prevention equipment.

Commentary

IFRS 15.48 requires that an entity considers the effects of: variable consideration , constraining estimates of variable
consideration, the existence of significant financing component in the contract , non-cash consideration, and
consideration payable to a customer in determining the transac tion price.

The Group did not incur any consideration payable to a customer. Consideration payable to a customer includes cash
amounts that an entity pays, or expects to pay, to the customer. The consideration payable to a customer is accounted
for as a reduction of the transaction price unless the payment to the customer is in exchange for a distinct good or
service that the customer transfers to the entity (IFRS 15.70). Entities need to include this in their accounting policy
disclosures if significant.

Warranty obligations IFRS 15.B28
The Group typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as IFRS 15.830
required by law. These assurance-type warranties are accounted for as warranty provisions. Refer to the

accounting policy on warranty provisions in section w) Provisions.

The Group also provides a warranty beyond fixing defects that existed at the time of sale. These service -type IFRS 15.829
. . . . . . IFRS 15.B32

warranties are sold either separately or bundled together with the sale of f ire prevention equipment. Contracts IFRS 15.74

for bundled sales of equipment and service -type warranty comprise two performance obligations because the IFRS 15.76

equipment and service -type warranty are both sold on a stand -alone basis and are distinct within the context of
the contract. Using the relative stand -alone selling price method, a portion of the transaction price is allocated
to the service -type warranty and recognised as a contract liability. Revenue for service -type warranties is
recognised over the period in which the service is provided based on the time elapsed.

Commentary

If the customer has the option to purchase the warranty separately or if the warranty provides a service to the customer,
beyond fixing defects th at existed at the time of sale, IFRS 15.B29 states that the entity is providing a service -type
warranty that is a separate performance obligation. Otherwise, it is an assurance -type warranty, which provides the
customer with assurance that the product comp lies with agreed-upon specifications. In some cases, it may be difficult to
determine whether a warranty provides a customer with a service in addition to the assurance that the delivered product
is as specified in the contract. To help entities make that assessment, IFRS 15.B31-33 provides relevant application
guidance.

Loyalty points programme

The Group has a loyalty points programme, Quality Points, which allows customers to accumulate points that IFRS 15.839

. . . . . IFRS 15.B40

can be redeemed for free products. The loyalty points give rise to a separate performance obligation as they IFRS 15B 42
provide a material right to the customer. IFRS 15.74
IFRS 15.76

A portion of the transaction price is allocated to the loyalty points awarded to customers based on relative
stand-alone selling price and recognised as a contract liability until the points are redeemed. Revenue is
recognised upon redemption of products by the customer.

When estimating the stand -alone selling price of the loyalty points, the Group considers the likelihood that the
customer will redeem the points. The Group updates its estimates of the points that will be redeemed on a
quarterly basis and any adjustments to the contract liability balance are charged against revenue.

The disclosures of significant estimates and assumptions relating to the estimation of the stand -alone selling
price of the loyalty points are provided in Note 3.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
2. Significant accounting policies  (continued) S =
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued) o

e) Revenue from contracts with customers  (continued)

Installation services

The Group provides installation services that are either sold separately or bundled together with the sale of IFRS 15.22
equipment to a customer. The installation services do not significantly customise or modify the fire prevention

equipment.

Contracts for bundled sales of equipment and installation services are comprised of two performance IFRS 15.74
obligations because the equipment and installation services are both sold on a stand -alone basis and are IFRS 15.76
distinct within the context of the contract. Accordingly, the Group allocates the  transaction price based on the

relative stand -alone selling prices of the equipment and installation services.

c
o
=
o
=)
©
o
=
=
=

The Group recognises revenue from installation services over time because the customer simultaneously IFRS 15.39
receives and consumes the benefits provided to them. The Group uses an input method in measuring progress :EEE ig:glls
¥{ 2}z ~o0O2%ve¢e¢ve@~¥o Oz -~~xz©O© wzxv«O0z 2}z"z ~0©0 v y-~"~

labour hours incurred) and the transfer of service tot he customer. The Group recognises revenue on the basis

of the labour hours expended relative to the total expected labour hours to complete the service.

Procurement services

The Group has contracts with customers to acquire, on their behalf, special fire prevention equipment produced

by foreign suppliers. Under these contracts, the Group provides procurement services (i.e., coordinating the
selection of suitable suppliers and managing the ordering and del ivery of the imported equipment). The Group
does not have control of the equipment before it is being transferred to the customer. The Group is acting as an
agent and recognises revenue at the net amount that is retained for these arrangements. Revenue is

recognised at a point in time (i.e., upon receipt of the customer of the equipment) because this is when the
X«©a¥Ef£z" wzoz{~20 { " ¥£ 2}z \ " ¥«! CO ! " ¥x«" z£zm2 ©z -

Contract balances IFRS 15.105
Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from installation services because the receipt of IFRS 15.107
consideration is conditional on successful completion of the installation. Upon completion of the installation and

acceptance by the customer, the a mount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables.

Consolidated financial statements

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial
assets in section p) Financial instruments ginitial recognition and subsequent measurement . N

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional is due from the customer (i.e., IFRS 15.108
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of &
financial assets in section p) Financial instruments ainitial recognition and subsequent measurement .

Notes
2

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a IFRS 15.106
customer before the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as

revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to

the customer).

Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return

Right of return assets

A right -of -return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods expected to be returned by customers. IFRS 15.821(c)
The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the IFRS 15.825
goods and any potential decreases in value. The Group updates the measurement of the asset for any revisions

to the expected level of returns and any additional decreases in the value of the returned produc ts.

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
2. Significant accounting policies  (continued) S [
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued) o

e) Revenue from contracts with customers  (continued)
Refund liabilities
A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or IFRS 15.821(b)

ZXzZ~-vwtz> {"¥Ef V X«O2¥E£z"C i}z \ " ¥«!CO "z{«omy ¢~y FRS1SBA
rebates. The liability is measured at t he amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the
customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the =
transaction price) at the end of each reporting period. §
Cost to obtain a contract IFRS 15.8 §
The Group pays sales commission to its employees for each contract that they obtain for bundled sales of :EEE 123‘1‘ =

equipment and installation services. The Group applies the optional practical expedient to immediately expense
costs to obtain a contract if the amortisation period of the asset that would have been recognised is one year or
less. As such, sales commissions are immediately recognised as an expense and included as part of employee
benefits.

Commentary

IFRS 15 requires incremental costs of obtaining a contract and certain costs to fulfil a contract to be recognised as an

asset if certain criteria are met. Any capitalised contract costs assets must be amortised on a systematic basis that is
X¥o©~©2zwa - ~a}l alz zpad-a~-CEO 2a"yaoOf{z " ¥{ 2}z “ztvazy | ¥¥yO
to obtain a contract and costs to fulfil a contract that are eligible for capitalisation.

Entities with costs to obtain a contract an d costs to fulfil a contract recognised as an asset will need to consider the
requirement in IFRS 15.128 to separately disclose the closing balances and the amount of amortisation and impairment
losses recognised during the period.

Considering the nature of costs to obtain a contract and the lack of guidance in IFRS, an entity may present these costs in

alz ©3dvazfgzn?d ¥{ {~ovex~ve¢ | ¥0~2~¥o v©O z~2}z" v ©z|v ' va&z X
(with the amortisation within cost of goods sold, changes in contract costs or similar), or a separate class of intangible

asset (with the amortisation in the same line item as amortisation of intangible assets within the scope of IAS 38

Intangible Assets). The presentation as a separate class of intangible assets would only be appropriate if the asset

capitalised is similar in nature to an intangible asset.

Consolidated financial statements

An entity will need to consider the requirements in IAS 7 (e.g., IAS 7.16(a)), when determining the classification of cash
flows arising from costs to obtain a contract, i.e., either as cash flow from operating activities or investing activities. i

Ao xX¥p2aT " yOaA 2}z ova«Tz ¥{ x¥020 2¥ {«¢t{~¢ v x¥m2 yx2a ~0 O

(%]
contract. There fore, costs to fulfil a contract should be presented as a separate class of asset in the statement of g ﬁ
financial position and its amortisation within cost of goods sold, changes in contract costs or similar. z
)
Regardless whether costs to fulfil a contract mee t the criteria for capitalisation in IFRS 15.95 or are expensed as N

incurred, the presentation of such costs in the statement of profit or loss and the presentation of related cash flows in the
statement of cash flows needs to be consistent (i.e., operating ).

Capitalised contract costs are subject to an impairment assessment at the end of each reporting period. Impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss, but the standard is silent on where to present such amounts within the primary
financial statemen ts. It would be appropriate for the presentation of any impairment losses to be consistent with the
presentation of the amortisation expense.

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices
5

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited 27




Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)

f) Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed. When the grant re lates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected
useful life of the related asset.

When the Group receives grants of non -monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal
amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the asset, based on the pattern of
consumption of the benefits of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments.

Commentary

IAS 20.24 permits two alternative ways of presenting a government grant relating to assets. The Group has elected to
present the grant in the statement of financial position as deferred income, which is recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic and rati onal basis over the useful life of the asset. Alternatively, it may choose to reduce the carrying amount

of the asset. The grant is then recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the depreciable asset by way of a reduce d
depreciation charge. Whi chever method is applied, no further disclosures are required.

The Group has chosen to present grants related to an expense item as other operating income in the statement of profit
or loss. Alternatively, IAS 20.29 permits grants related to income to be  deducted in reporting the related expense.

IAS 20.23 permits grant of a non -monetary asset to be accounted for in two alternative ways. The asset and the grant
can be accounted for using a nominal amount. Alternatively, the asset and the grant can be accou nted for at the fair
value of the non -monetary asset. The Group accounts for grants of non -monetary assets at nominal value.

g) Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporti ng date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the

statement of profit or loss. Management periodically evalu ates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

3 When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affe  cts neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

3 In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differenc  es can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax los ses can be utilised, except:

3 When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the tr ansaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

3 In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only  to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)

g) Taxes (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it IAS 12.56
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset IAS 12.37
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re -assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to

the extent that it has become probable that future taxa ble profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Group relies on the same forecast assumptions used
elsewhere in the financial statements and in other management reports, which, amon gst other things, reflect
the potential impact of climate -related development on the business, such as increased cost of production as a
result of measures to reduce carbon emission.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the IAS 12.47
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relati ng to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax IAS 12.61A
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition IAS 12.68
at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. The

adjustment is either treated as a reduction in goodwill (as long as it does not exc eed goodwill) if it was incurred

during the measurement period or recognised in profit or loss.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right IAS 12.74
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different

taxable entities which intend either to settle currentt ax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the

assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred

tax liahilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Sales tax
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax, except:

3 When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part
of the expense item, as applicable

3  When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included a s part of
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

h) Foreign currencies

i}z \"¥«! CO x¥uo©¥¢t~yvazy {~ovax~ve¢ ©2vazfzuna®© v~z | As151()
functional currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included in IAS 21.9
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct

method of consolidation and on disposal of a foreign operation, the gain or loss t hat is reclassified to profit or

loss reflects the amount that arises from using this method.

i) Transactions and balances IAS 21.21
i "voOVX®~¥o©O ~o (¥ z~|®\8 X« TzBEX~2© vz ~@m~2~ye¢te¢t 7z
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curr encies are translated at the functional currency spot IAS 21.23(a)
rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the IAS 21.28
exception of monetary items thatared z ©~| svadzy v© | v~™2a ¥[ 23}z })zy|z ¥{ 232
operation. These are recognised in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative

amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attrib  utable to exchange differences on those

monetary items are also recognised in OCI.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)

h) Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non -monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are trans lated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non -monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of th e item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or
part of it) on the derecognition of a non -monetary asset or non -monetary liability relating to advance
consideration, the date of the transactio n is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non -monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or

receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance
consideration.

ii) Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into euros at the rate of

exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their s tatements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are
recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OClI rela ting to that particular foreign
operation is reclassified to profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

i) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non  -current assets and
disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset (disposal
group), excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and the
asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the
sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell
will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale expected to be
completed within one year from the date of the classificati on.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held
for sale.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as currentitems in th e statement of
financial position.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single
amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of pro  fit or loss.

Additional disclosures are provided in Note 14 . All other notes to the financial statements include amounts for
continuing operations, unless indicated otherwise.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
5
2. Significant accounting policies (continued) -
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued) o
j) Cash dividend
The Company recognises a liability to pay a dividend when the distribution is authorised, and the distribution is IFRIC 17.10

no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws of Euroland, a distribution is authorised
when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

k) Property, plant and equipment

c
Construction in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if any. Plant and equipment is IAS 16.73(a) %
stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes :22 i::ig -§
=

the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long -term construction projects if IAS 16.16
the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at

intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their s pecific useful lives. Likewise, when a major

inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a

replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised  in

profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its

use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Refer to

significant accounting ju dgements, estimates and assumptions ( Note 3) and provisions (Note 27) for further

information about the recognised decommissioning provision.

Property, plant and equipment transferred from customers are initially measured at fair value at the date on
which control is obtained.

Consolidated financial statements

Office properties in Euroland are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses IFRIC 18.11

recognised after the date of revaluation. Valuations are performed with sufficient frequency to ensure that the S 16.24

carrying amount of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its fair value. :22 llg-;f(a)

A revaluation surplus is recorded in OCI and credited to the asset revaluation surplus in equity. However, to the IAS 16.39

extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, the AS 16.40

increase is recognised in profit an d loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluation

surplus.

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation surplus to retained earnings is made for the difference between IAS 16.41 4

yz| zx~va@~¥o wvOzy ¥o 23}lz "zavt«zy xv 7 ~po| VvE¥«n? N

cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation da te is eliminated against the gross carrying 2 o

amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any g &

revaluation surplus relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings. ™
o\

Commentary

Under IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment an entity has a policy choice for the measurement of property, plant and
equipment after initial recognition. An entity may choose either the cost model or the revaluation model for entire classes
of property, plant and equipment. The Group has elected to use the revaluation model for office properties in Euroland,
whilst other classes of property, plant and equipment are measured using the cost model. The Group has also elected to
transfer the revaluation surplus to retained earnings as the asset is being used. Alternatively, the amount could have
been transferred, in full , upon disposal of the asset.

IAS 16.73(b) IAS

Depreciation is calculated on a straight -line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows: 16.73(c)
3 Buildings 15 to 20 years

3 Plant, machinery and equipment 5to 15 years

3 Office properties in Euroland 15to 20 ye ars

Additional Australian disclosures

The Group reviews the estimated residual values and expected useful lives of assets at least annually. In
particular, the Group considers the impact of health, safety and environmental legislation in its assessment of
expected useful lives and estimated re sidual values.

Appendices
5
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)
k) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon IAS 16.67
disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from :22 i::?f
its use or disposal. Any gain or lo ss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss

when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

IAS 16.51

Commentary

On disposal of property, plant and equipment:

3 The date of disposal of the asset is the date the recipient obtains control of the asset in accordance with the
requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in IFRS 15 (IAS 16.69).

3 The amount of consideration to be included in the gain or loss arising from the derecognition is determined in
accordance with the requirements for determining the transaction price in IFRS 15. Subsequent changes to the
estimated amount of the consideration included in the gain or loss shall be accounted for in accordance with the
requirements for changes in transaction price in IFRS 15 (IAS 16.72).

The above requirements also apply to disposals of investment properties (IAS 40.67 and IAS 40.70) and intangible assets
(IAS 38.114 and IAS 38.116).

l) Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract IFRS 16.9
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short -term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right -of-use
assets representing the rig ht to use the underlying assets.

i) Right -of-use assets

The Group recognises right -of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying IFRS 16.23
asset is available for use). Right -of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and :EE: 12@3
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right -of-use assets IFRS 16.32
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or

before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right -of-use assets are depreciated on a

straight -line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

3 Plant and machinery 3 to 15 years
3 Motor vehicles and other equipment 3to 5 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the

exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section IFRS 16.33

(s) Impairment of non -financial assets.

Commentary

Under IFRS 16 Leases, the cost of a right -of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset

to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

The lessee incurs the obligation for those costs either at the commencement date or as a consequence of having used the
underlying a sset during a particular period (IFRS 16.24(d)).

i}z \"¥«! CO ¢zvO©z v ' "vo|z£zwna@© y¥ o¥?a x¥ody-~o vo ¥we~|va-~¥
site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to a specified condition.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)

l) Leases (continued)

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in -
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are
incurred t o produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lea se payments) or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

i}z \V"¥«! CO ¢tzv©z ¢~vw-~-bearnglaa@s andbarrowingsq(see Norpl.2y.0 A wad z "

iif) Short -term leases and leases of low -value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short -term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement d ate and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low -value assets recognition exemption to leases of
office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short -term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight -line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised
as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

m) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

n) Investment properties

Investment prop erties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting
date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise, including the corresponding tax effect. Fair values are determined based
on an annual valuation performed by an accredited external independent valuer applyin g a valuation model
recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of (i.e., at the date the recipient
obtains control) or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from their disposal. The difference b etween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition. In determining the amount of consideration from the
derecognition of investment property the Group considers the effects o f variable consideration, existence of a
significant financing component, non -cash consideration, and consideration payable to the buyer (if any ).

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
n) Investment properties  (continued)

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from IAS 40.57
investment property to owner -occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value :22 28:22
at the date of change in use. If owner -occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts

for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of

change in use.

Commentary

The Group has elected to state investment properties at fair value in accordance with IAS 40 Investment Property . As an

alternative, IAS 40 permit investment properties to be carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment. IAS 40 requires disclosure of the fair value of investment property recorded at cost. Therefore, entities

would still need to determine the fair value of investment properties regardless of the policy choice.

0) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets IAS 38.24
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, :22 288';1
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. IAS 38.57
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related

expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. IAS 38.88
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment IAS 38.97
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the :22 22:?0 "
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each

reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or th e expected pattern of consumption of future

economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as

appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible

assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the expense category that is consistent

with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either IAS 38.107
individually or at the cash -generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to :2: 221183
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life fr  om

indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no IAS 38.113

future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as IAS 38.54
. . IAS 38.57

an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate:

3 The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the a sset will be available for use or sale
3 Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

3 How the asset will generate future economic benefits

3 The availability of resources to complete the asset

3 The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any IAS 38.74
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the  asset begins when IAS 36.10(2)
development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected future

benefit. Amortisation is recorded in cost of sales. During the period of development, the asset is tested for

impairment annua lly.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)
0) Intangible assets (continued)

Patents and licences

The Group made upfront payments to acquire patents and licences. The patents have been granted for a period  1AS 38.122(a)
of 10 years by the relevant government agency with the option of renewal at the end of this period. Licences

for the use of intellectual property are granted for periods ranging between five and ten year s depending on the

specific licences. The licences may be renewed at little or no cost to the Group. As a result, those licences are

assessed as having an indefinite useful life.

V O«EEV™ ™ ¥{ 2}z !¥¢~x~20© v'detdissagfollon¥ 2}z \ " ¥«! CO ~n
. IAS
Licences Patents Development costs 38.118(a),(b)
Useful lives Indefinite Finite (10 years) Finite (10 -20 years)
Amortisation method No Amortised on a straight - Amortised on a straight -line basis over the
used amortisation line basis over the period period of expected future sales from the
of the patent related project
Internally generated Acquired Acquired Internally generated
or acquired

p) Financial instruments g initial recognition and subsequent measurement
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or IAS 32.11
equity instrument of another entity.

i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value IFRS 7.21

. . . " IFRS9.4.1.1
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

i}z x¢tvOO~{ ~xva&~¥no ¥{ {~ovox~ve¢ vO©Oz?a© v?&@ ~no~2a~y¢ ~ IFRS9411
X}vivxaz ~©@2~x0© vay a}z \ ¥« Cowitwtke@xcepiod & trafiefrgeeivableg tat IFRS 15108
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient , the

Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value

through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade rece ivables that do not contain a significant financing

component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price as

disclosed in section (e) Revenue from contracts with customers .

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs IFRS9.4.1.2(b)
aY¥Y |~z T ~0Cz ¥ xvO} {¢t¥-© 2a}lva@ v’z CO¥¢tz¢ v £zano?
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

i}z \"¥«!' CO wW«©O~nzOO© £¥yz¢ {¥" E£vov|~o| {~mvex~ve¢ vy IFRS9B4ALIL
to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting

contractual cas h flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at

amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows whilst financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a

business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by IFRS 9.3.1.2
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited 35

IFRS 9.4.1.2(b)

Contents

c
o
=
o
=)
©
o
=
=
=

Consolidated financial statements

Notes

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices

|

o

(e7]

<t

Lo/




Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)
p) Financial instruments g initial recognition and subsequent measurement  (continued)

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: IFRS 9.5.2.1

3 Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
3 Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

3 Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instr uments)

3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) IFRS9.4.1.2
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are IFRS 9.5.4
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,

modified or impaired.

i}z \"¥«! CO {~ovox~vet vOOz2a© va VEY¥ 2-~0zy x¥©2a ~ux¢
director included under other non -current financial assets.

Commentary

For entities that have more complex financial instruments, the SPPI assessment can be particularly challenging. The
vil¢~xva~¥o | «~yv o xlaternatérial GAARG202 2Nrovide specimekamples of instruments that pass or

fail the SPPI test. Such entities should also consider providing more detailed accounting policies in relation to their SPPI

and business model assessments. Only equity instruments that meet the definit ~¥a ¥{ z8«~23"~ (" ¥f 2}z
can be designated at fair value through OCI at initial recognition. IFRS 9 also allows entities to elect to designate non -

financial contracts such as commaodity contracts held for own use as financial assets at FV PL under certain

circumstances.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments) IFRS 9.4.1.2A
For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment IFRS 9.5.7.10
IFRS 9.5.7.11

losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is recycled to profit or loss.

i}z \"¥«!CO yzw? ~00@2 " «f£zm2© va {v~" avlt«z 2} " ¥«|}
included under other non -current financial assets.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments IFRS 9.5.7.5
designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32  Financial

Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument  -by-

instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other ~ IFRS95.7.1A
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the IFRS 98571
Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such

gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to

impairment assessment.

The Group elected to classify irrevocably its non -listed equity investments under this category.

Financial assets at fair value through pro fit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value IFRS 9.4.1.4
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. IFRS9.5.71

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised
as other income in the statement of profitor lo  ss when the right of payment has been established.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)
p) Financial instruments ginitial recognition and subsequent measurement  (continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non  -financial host, is separated from the IFRS9.4.3.3
host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related

to the host, a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition

of a derivative , and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Em  bedded

derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only

occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that

would otherwise be requ ired or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss

category.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial — assets)is IFRS9.3.2.3(3)
1 T ~Ev T ~¢ yz zx¥|w8~0©zy =~CzCA T zE£¥-zy {T¥Ef 23}z \ 7 ¥«
3 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
or

IFRS 9.3.2.4(a)

3 The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to IFRS 9.3.2.4(b)

l'v™ a2}z "zxz~-azy XxvVO} {¢¥-0©0 ~o {«¢t¢ -~23¥u¥«EYEz"
arrangement ; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,

or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,

but has transferred control of the asset

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass - IFRS 9.3.2.6()
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. :E§§ Z:g:i:ig
When it has neither transferred nor retai ned substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor

transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its

continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated lia bility. The transferred asset

and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has

retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guara ntee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower IFRS 9.3.2.16
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.

Impairment IFRS9.55.1
Further disclosures relating t o impairment of financial assets are also provided in the following notes:

3 Disclosures for significant assumptions Note 3

3 Debt instruments at fair value through OCI Note 21

3 Trade receivables, including contract assets Note 21

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair IFRS 9.5.5.1

value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interes t rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in IFRS 9553
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are IFRS9.555
possible within the next 12 -months (a 12 -month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected

over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. :EEE 2255125

Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward -looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
2. Significant accounting policies (continu ed) S [
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued) o

p) Financial instruments g initial recognition and subsequent measurement  (continued)

Commentary

An entity is required to apply the simplified approach for trade receivables or  contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component, or when the entity applies the practical expedient for contracts that have a maturity of
one year or less. However, an entity has a policy choice to apply either the simplified approach or the general approach
for the following:

3 All trade receivables or contract assets that contain a significant financing component in accordance with IFRS 15. The
policy choice may be applied separately to trade receivables and contract assets.

c
i)
=
3]
=]
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[e)
=
c

3 All lease receivables that result from transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16. The policy choice may be applied
separately to finance and operating lease receivables.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At every IFRS 9.5.5.3
reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk using all :E;f ::2'5'5
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. In making that

evaluation, the Group reassesses the internal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Group

considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30

days past due.

i1z \"¥«!CO yzw? ~pop0©2  «fzwa2© va {v-~" ave«z 2} ¥«|} IFRS 7.35F(a)

IFRS 7.35G(a)(ii)

top investment category (Very Good and Good) by the Quality Credit Rating Agency and, therefore, are IFRS 9 B5.5.22.2

considered to be low creditriskinv z ©2 £z82 ©@C ~2 ~© 2}z \ " ¥«! CO ! ¥¢~x"
12 -month basis. However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL. The Group uses the ratings fr om the Quality Credit Rating Agency
both to determine whether the debt instrument has significantly increased in credit risk and to estimate ECLSs.

™

Consolidated financial statements

Commentary

IFRS 9 contains an important simplification that, if a financial instrument has a low credit risk, then an entity is allowed to
assume at the reporting date that no significant increases in credit risk have occurred. The low credit risk concept was
intended to provide entities relief from tracking changes in the credit risk of high -quality financial instruments. This
simplification is optional, and the low credit risk simplification can be elected on an instrument  -by-instrument basis.

—
The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in IFRS 7.35F(b) o
. . . . . . IFRS 9.5.5.9
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external FRS 9B5537 N
information indicates that the Group is unl ikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before S

taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no ™
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

i) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 7.6
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as IFRS 7.21
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable tran saction costs.

i}z \"¥«!'CO {~avox~ve ¢~vw~¢~2~270 ~mxt«yz 2@ vyz vaoy
overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.

IFRS9.5.1.1

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

Additional Australian disclosures

3 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
3 Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Appendices
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)
p) Financial instruments ginitial recognition and subsequent measurement  (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they a re incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embed ded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest  -bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are d erecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance cos ts in the statement of profit
or loss.

This category generally applies to interest -bearing loans and borrowings. For more information, refer to
Note 21.

Derecognition

A financial liabil ity is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are  substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

i) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the li abilities simultaneously.

q) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and
forward commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks,
respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entere d into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, he dges are classified as:

3 Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability
or an unrecognised firm commitment

3 Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either a ttributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or
the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment

3 Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 9.4.2.1(a)

IFRS9.5.7.1

IFRS 9.4.2.1
IFRS 9.5.7.2

IFRS 9.3.3.1

IFRS 9.3.3.3
IFRS 9.3.3.2

IAS 32.42

IFRS95.1.1
IFRS 7.21

IFRS 9.6.5.2(a)

IFRS 9.6.5.2(b)

IFRS 9.6.5.2(c)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
2. Significant accounting policies  (continued) S =
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued) o

q) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting  (continued)

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship IFRS 9.6.4.1
to which it wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk IFRS 9.6.4.1
being hedged and how the Group will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectiveness

requirements (including the analysis of sources of hed ge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is

determined). A hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness

requirements:
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3 The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged

item that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually
uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

Hedges that meet all the qualifying criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other IFRS9.6.5.8
expense. The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of IFRS 9.6.5.10
the carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other expense.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is amortised
through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge us ing the EIR method. The EIR amortisation may
begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for
changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

Consolidated financial statements

If the hedged item is derecognised, the una mortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in IFRS9.6.5.9
the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to  the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a -
corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge IFRS 9.6.5.11
reserve, whilst any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss. The cash «
flow hedge reserve is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument and the
cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item.

Notes
2

The Group uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forecast
transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward commodity contracts for its exposure to volatility in the
commodity prices. The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised as other expense
and the ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is recognised in other operating income or
expenses. Refer to Note 21.3 for more details.

The Group designates only the spot element of forward contracts as a hedging instrument. The forward IFRS 9.6.5.16
element is recognised in OCIl and accumulated in a separate component of equity under cost of hedging reserve.

The amounts accumulated in OCI are accounted for, depending on the nature of the underlying hedged IFRS9.6.5.11
transaction. If the hedged transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non -financial item, the

amount accumulated in equity is removed from the separate component of equity and included in the initial cost

or other carrying amount of the hedged asset or liability. This is not a reclassification adjustment and will not be

recognised in OCI for the period. This also applies where the hedged forecast transaction of a non -financial

asset or non-financial liability subsequently becomes a firm commitment for which fair value h  edge accounting

is applied.

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)
q) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting  (continued)

For any other cash flow hedges, the amount accumulated in OCI is reclassified to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment in the same period or periods during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or
loss.

If cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued, the amount that has been accumulated in OCI must remain in
accumulated OCI if the hedged future cash flows are still expected to occur. Otherwise, the amount will be
immediately reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. After discontinua  tion, once the
hedged cash flow occurs, any amount remaining in accumulated OCI must be accounted for depending on the
nature of the underlying transaction as described above.

Hedges of a net investment

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation , including a hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for IFRS 9.6.5.13
. . L. . IFRS 9.6.5.13

as part of the net investment, are accounted for in a way similar to cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the

hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge are recognised as O Clwhilst any gains or

losses relating to the ineffective portion are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. On disposal of the

foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or losses recorded in equity is transferred to the

statement o f profit or loss.

The Group uses a loan as a hedge of its exposure to foreign exchange risk on its investments in foreign
subsidiaries. Refer to Note 21.3 for more details.

r) Invento ries

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. IAS 2.36(2)
IAS 2.9
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for, as follows: IAS 2.10
3 Raw materials: purchase cost on a first -inffirst -out basis IAS 2.25
3 Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of IAS 2.12
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs IAS 2.13
Initial cost of inventories includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges, recognised in IFRS

OCl, in respect of the purchases of raw materials. 865110

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated ¢ osts of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. IAS 2.6

s) Impairment of non -financial assets
Further disclosures relating to impairment of non -financial assets are also provided in the following notes:

3 Disclosures for significant assumptions Note 3
3 Property, plant and equipment Note 17
3 Intangible assets Note 19
3 Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives Note 20
Commentary

Under IFRS 16.33, right -of-use assets are subject to the impairment requirements of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets .

Under IFRS 15.101, assets recognised for costs to obtain a contract and costs to fulfil a contract are subject to
impairment testing. An impai rment exists if the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the amount of consideration the
entity expects to receive in exchange for providing the associated goods or services, less the remaining costs that relate
directly to providing those goods or service s. The Group does not incur any costs to obtain a contract or costs to fulfil a
contract that are eligible for capitalisation. Entities need to include an accounting policy for impairment if the assets
recognised for costs to obtain a contract and costs to fulfil a contract are significant.

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any IAS 36.6

indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimatestheas ©z 2 C¢ :ﬁi 22:26
"ZX¥-zZ"vwtz VE¥«oaC Vo vO©z2aCO “zx¥-z " vwtz VvVE¥«oa ~
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset

IAS 36.59

does not generate cash inflo ws that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)

s) Impairment of non -financial assets (continued)

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre -tax IAS 36.30

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the :22 22225
asset. In determining fair valu e less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no

such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are

corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly tra  ded companies or other available fair

value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on most recent budgets and forecast calculations, which are IAS 36.33
Pozlvizy ©z!vivaze {¥" zvx} ¥ yidudl dssets aré aflocdte@ These\bjdgets @ ¥ S %%
and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. A long -term growth rate is calculated and

applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in expense IAS 36.60
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for properties previously revalued with the AS 36.61
revaluation taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairme ntis recognised in OCI up to the amount of any

previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an :22 22-1112

indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decr.eased. If such indice}tion IAS 36.117
Z®~©20OA 23}z \ " ¥«|] zO2~L£va3z0O @}z vOOz2CO ¥~ X\jCO 7 z ias36119
~© "z-z" ©Ozy ¥o¢ ~{ 2}z7"z }Vv©O wzzwme v x} vao]recoverable? } z

amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of

the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been

determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such

reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in

which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 October and when circumstances indicate that the carrying IAS 36.10(b)
value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to ~ 1AS 36.104
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an AS 36.124
impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at 31 October at the CGU IAS 36.10(2)
level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

The Group assesses where climate risks could have a significant impact, such as the introduction of emission -
reduction legislation that may increase manufacturing costs. These risks in relation to climate - related matters
are included as key assumptions where they materially impact the measure of recoverable amount, these
assumptions have been included in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value -in-use amounts.

Commentary

IAS 36.96 permits the annual impairment test for a CGU to which goodwill has been allocated to be performed at any time
during the year, provided it is at the same time each year. Different CGUs and intangible assets may be tested at different
times.

t) Cash and short -term deposits
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and IAS 7.6

short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known S .7
amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valu e.
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and IAS 7.46

short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral
bvra ¥{ alz \"¥«!CO xvO} £vov]|z£zwmnaC
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
2. Significant accounting policies  (continued) G
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued) o

u) Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the IFRS 7.21
contract. Ins 2226

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a
market rate for an equivalent non -convertible instrument. This amount is classified as a financ ial liability
measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included i n equity. IAS 32.35

. . . . . IAS 32.AG31(a)
Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of the
conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.
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Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the con  vertible preference IAS 32.38
shares, based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are
initially recognised.

v) Treasury shares

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. IAS 32.33
C¥ | v~o ¥°7 C¥O00O ~0© "zx¥|wo~0zy ~@o | "¥{~2a ¥° ¢t¥00O ¥ao

equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is

recognised in the share premium.

w) Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past IAS 37.14
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the IAS 37 53
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some IAS 37.54
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is

recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a

provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

Consolidated financial statements

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre  -tax rate that IAS 37.45
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the N
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Notes
2

Warranty provisions
The Group provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as required by law. ™
Provisions related to these assurance-type warranties are recognised when the product is sold, or the service is
provided to the customer. Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The estimate of warranty  -related
costs is revised annually.

Restructuring provisi ons

Restructuring provisions are recognised only when the Group has a constructive obligation, which is when: IAS 37.71
IAS 37.72

(i) there is a detailed formal plan that identifies the business or part of the business concerned, the location
and number of employees affected, the detailed estimate of the associated costs, and the timeline , and

(i) 2z zE£)¢¥ z2zz0 v{{zx2zy }v-z wzzao o¥2~{~zy ¥{ 2}z

Decommissioning liability

Additional Australian disclosures

The Group records a provision for decommissioning costs of a manufacturing facility for the production of fire IAS 16.16(c)
retardant materials. Decommissioning costs are provided for at the present value of expected costs to settle :2: 2;:1?
the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of the relevant asset. The cash IFRIC 1.8
flows are discounted at a current pre -tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. :fF\zl?fs

The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recogni sed in the statement of profit or loss as a
finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as

appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs, or in the discount rate applied, are added to or deducted
from the cost of the asset. ™

The impact of climate -related matters on remediation of environmental damage is considered with determining
the decommissioning liability on the manufacturing facility which has been disclosed in  Note 27 .

Appendices
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)
w) Provisions (continued)

Greenhouse gas emissions

The Group receives free emission rights in certain European countries as a result of the European Emission IAS 8.10
Trading Schemes. The rights are received on an annual basis and, in return, the Group is required to remit

rights equal to its actual emissions. The Group has adopted the net liability approach to the emission rights

granted. Therefore, a provision is recognised only when actual emissions exceed the emission rights granted

and still held. The emission costs are recognised as other operating costs. Wher e emission rights are purchased

from other parties, they are recorded at cost, and treated as a reimbursement right, whereby they are matched

to the emission liabilities and remeasured to fair value. The changes in fair value are recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.

Onerous contracts

If the Group has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and IAS 37.66
measured as a provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established , the AS 37.69
Group recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Group cannot IAS 37.68
avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits

expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting

from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from

failure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract (i.e.,

both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activit  ies).

Commentary

IAS 37 provides a choice of presenting expenditures to settle a provision either net of any reimbursement or on a gross
basis. The Group has elected to present the expenses net of reimbursements.

IFRIC 3Emission Rights was withdrawn in June 2005. In the absence of a specific standard, management must develop an
accounting policy that results in information that is relevant and reliable. The Group has applied the net liability approach
based on IAS 20.23. However, emission rights received could also be rec ognised as intangible assets at their fair value
with all the disclosures required by IAS 38.

IFRS 15 contains no specific requirements to address contracts with customers that are, or have become, onerous. The
requirements of IAS 37 apply to the identific ation and measurement of onerous customer contracts (IAS 37.5(g)).

Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE)

The Group is a provider of electrical equipment that falls under the EU Directive on Waste Electrical and IFRIC &
Electronic Equipment. The directive distinguishes between waste management of equipment sold to private

households prior to a date, as determined by each Member State (historical waste), and waste management of

equipment sold to private households after that date (ne w waste). A provision for the expected costs of

management of historical waste is recognised when the Group participates in the market during the

measurement period, as determined by each Member State, and the costs can be reliably measured. These

costs are recognised as other operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

With respect to new waste, a provision for the expected costs is recognised when products that fall within the
directive are sold, and the disposal costs can be reliably measured. Derecognition takes place when the
obligation expires, is settled or is tran sferred. These costs are recognised as part of costs of sales.

With respect to equipment sold to entities other than private households, a provision is recognised when the
Group becomes responsible for the costs of this waste management, with the costs rec ognised as other
operating expenses or cost of sales, as appropriate.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it IFRS 3.56
is measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for :i: 2§§
provisions above or the amount initially recognised less (when appropriate) cumulative amortisation recognised ’
in accordance with the requirements for reve nue recognition.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)
x) Employee Benefits

Short -term employee benefits

Liabilities recognised for salaries and wages, annual leave and any other short term employee benefits that are
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Long term employee benefits

Liabilities recognised in respect of long service leave and any other long term employee bene fits that are not
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the
Group in respect of ser vices provided by employees up to the reporting date. Consideration is given to expected
future salary levels, historical employee turnover rates and periods of service. Expected future payments are
discounted using market yields at the reporting date on h igh quality corporate bonds with terms to maturity
and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Pensions and other post -employment benefits

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan in Euroland, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund. The Group also provides certain additional post employment healthcare benefits
to employees in the United States. These benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benef it liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the statement of
financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings throug h OCI in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the eatrlier of:

3 The date of the plan amendment or curtailment

3 The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group

IAS 19.135

IAS 19.67

IAS 19.120(c)
IAS 19.127
IAS 19.122

IAS 19.102
IAS 19.103

IAS 19.123

recogn~©z © 2}z {¥¢¢¥-~no| x}ve|z©® ~o 2}z wza yz{~azy wz ASPIH4

z®! za©z©C voy €0©z¢¢~un| vay y~02" ~w«?~¥o z®®! zn©z©C

3 Service costs comprising current servic e costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements

3 Net interest expense or income

Commentary
Entities are required to state their policy for termination benefits, employee benefit  reimbursements and benefit risk

sharing. Since these are not applicable to the Group, the disclosures related to such benefits have not been made. Entities
need to assess the nature of their employee benefits and make the relevant disclosures.

IAS 19 does not specify where in the statement of profit or loss service costs or net interest should be presented. IAS 1
allows, but does not require, disaggregation of the employee benefits cost components in profit or loss. The net interest
cost component is differ ent from the unwinding of interest component and return on asset component in the previous
version of IAS 19. Entities must apply the requirement in IAS 8.10 when developing a presentation policy for net interest
cost.

Classification

Liabilities for empl oyee benefits where the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for
at least 12 months after the reporting date are presented as current. Liabilities for employee benefits where
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlemen t for at least 12 months after the reporting date are
presented as non-current.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
2. Significant accounting policies (continued) S <
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued) ol

y) Share-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share -based IFRS 2.44
payments, whereby employees render services in exchange for equity instruments (equity -settled

transactions). Employees working in the business development group are granted Share Appreciation Rights,

which are settled in cash (cash -settled transactions).

=
Equity -settled transactions ‘%
The cost of equity -settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using IFRS 2.7 3
an appropriate valuation model, further details of which are given in  Note 31 . IFRS 2.10 E
That cost is recognised in employee benefits expense (Note 13.7 ), together with a corresponding increase in IFRS 2.19
equity (other capital reserves), over the period in which the service and, where applicable, the performance IFRS 2.20
conditions are fulfilled (the vesting period). The cumulative expense recognised for equity -settled transactions
at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
\ "¥«! CO wz©2 z0©2~£vae yinshymeritsithat will utinately vest The exferse dr credit in the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.
Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date IFRS 2.21

{v~" =—vt«z ¥{ v-v yOA w«? 2}z ¢~jz¢~}¥¥y ¥{ 2}z x¥n
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimate  ly vest. Market performance conditions are

reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated

service requirement, are considered to be non -vesting conditions. Non -vesting conditions are reflect ed in the IFRS 2.21A
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or IFRS 2.27
performance conditions.

Consolidated financial statements

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or IFRS 2.28

. L. . . . IFRS 2.B42-B44
service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non -vesting condition, the IAS 33.45
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non  -vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all o ther performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
When the terms of an equity -settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair -
value of the unmodified award, provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional o
expense, measured as at the date of modification, is recognised for any modification that increases the total 2 I
fair value of the share -based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee. Where an award g o

is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is %)
expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in  the computation of diluted
earnings per share (further details are given in Note 16).

Cash-settled transactions

A liability is recognised for the fair value of cash -settled transactions. The fair value is measured initially and at ~ 'FRS2.30
each reporting date up to and including the settlement date, with changes in fair value recognised in employee :EE: 225
benefits expense (see Note 13.7 ). The fair value is expensed over the period until the vesting date with

recognition of a corresponding liability. The fair value is determined using a binomial model, further details of

which are given in Note 31 . The approach used to account for vesting conditions when measuring equity -settled
transactions also applies to cash -settled transactions.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies  (continued)
y) Share-based payments (continued)

Commentary

In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 in which it provides guidance and examples to help entities apply
materiality judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The key changes are replacing the requirement for entities to
Yy~OXx¢t¥0z ~}-xvoagOv|xx¥«and~o| ! ¥¢~x~z0© -~a} v " z8«~"z£zm?d ay¥
guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. The
amendments will be effective for annual periods starting on or after 1 January 2023 and may be early adopted.

itz “z!l¢vxzEzoa ¥{ EO~|w~{~xveaC -~3} ¢Ef£vaz ~ve¢C vxx¥«na-fn
entities. Determining whether accounting policie s are material or not requires greater use of judgement. Therefore, entities

will have to revisit their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with the amended standard.

Zon?3 ~23-70 0O}¥«ty xv z{«¢c¢  x¥ma@ienya informatian that anly duplicdtes or gwninarise©they ~
" z8«~"z£zw2© ¥{ 2}z ~[ghoC ~© £vaz ~ve¢ ~o{¥ £va-~-¥o voyA ~{
disclosures to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements.

2.4 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures IAS 8.14
Revaluation of office properties in Euroland (property, plant and equipment)
The Group re-assessed its accounting for property, plant and equipment with respect to measurement of a IAS 16.30

certain clas s of property, plant and equipment after initial recognition. The Group had previously measured all

property, plant and equipment using the cost model whereby, after initial recognition of the asset classified as

property, plant and equipment, the asset wa s carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

On 1 January 202 2, the Group elected to change the method of accounting for office properties in Euroland
classified as property, plant and equipment, as the Gro up believes that the revaluation model provides more
relevant information to the users of its financial statements as it is more aligned to practices adopted by its
competitors. In addition, available valuation techniques provide reliable estimatesofthe ¥ { { ~xz | " ¥ |
value. The Group applied the revaluation model prospectively.

After initial recognition, office properties in Euroland are measured at fair value at the date of the revaluation IAS 8.17
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. For details IAS 8.18
refer to Note 17.

Commentary

IAS 8.17 and IAS 8.18 exempt this change in accounting policy from the requirement to retrospectively apply the policy
and to provide detailed disclosure as outlined in IAS 8.28 to IAS 8.31. Hence, the Group has appli ed its change in
accounting policy for the measurement of office properties in Euroland to the revaluation model prospectively.

New and amended standards and interpretations 1AS 8.28

The Group applied for the first -time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 202 2 (unless otherwise stated). The Group has not early adopted any other
standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Onerous Contracts gCosts of Fulfilling a Contract gAmendments to IAS 37

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable of meeting the obligations under the contract
costs (i.e., the costs that the Group cannot avoid because it has the cont ract) exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it.

The amendments specify that when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss -making, an entity needs to
include costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services including both incremental costs
(e.g., the costs of direct labour and materials) and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities

(e.g., depreciation of equipment used to fulfil the contract and costs of contract management and supervis  ion).
General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

The Group applied the amendments to the contracts for which it had not fulfilled all  of its obligations at the
beginning of the reporting period.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
<
]
2. Significant accounting policies  (continued) o <
2.4 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures ~ (continued) IAS 8.14 o
Prior to the application of the amendments, the Group had not identified any contracts as being onerous as the
unavoidable costs under the contracts, which were the costs of fulfilling them, comprised only incremental
costs directly related to the contract s. As a result of the amendments, certain other directly related costs have
been included by the Group in determining the costs of fulfilling the contracts. The Group, therefore,
recognised an onerous contract provision as at 1 January 2022, which increase d as of 31 December 2022
(Note 27). -
In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group applies the amendments to contracts for which it has %
not yet fulfilled all of its obligations, at the beginning of the annual reportin g period in which it first applies the -§
amendments (the date of initial application) and has not restated its comparative information. E
The effect of adoption of the IAS 37 amendments is as follows:
There is no material impact on other comprehensive income or the basic and diluted earnings per share.
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position (increase/(decrease)):
1 January 2022
DEE "
Assets =
Deferred tax assets 36 £
Total assets 36 g
<
Equity §
Retained earnings (84) £
Total equity (84) E’
3
Liabilities El
Provisions (current) 120 §
Total liabilities 120
Impact on the consolidated statement of profit or loss (increase/(decrease)):
2022
DEE
—
I\
Cost of sales (20) » I
Operating profit (20) RN
Income tax expense 6 =
Profit for the period (14) Y
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (14)
Non-controlling interests a
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued) IAS 8.14

Reference to the Conceptual Framework gAmendments to IFRS 3
i}z vEzmny£fzna© "z ¢vxz v " z{z" znaxQonckptual Framewakwitht« © -2z
reference to the current version issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.

The amendments add an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 Business Combinationsto avoid the
~©0«z ¥{ ! ¥azpma~y¢ E€yv GC |v~on0O© ¥ ¢ ¥ ohaaweuldbé witinrthe |
scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred
separately. The exception requires entities to apply the criteria in IAS 37 or IFRIC 21, respectively, instead of
the Conceptual Framework, to determine whether a present obligation exists at the acquisition date.

The amendments also add a new paragraph to IFRS 3 to clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date.

In accordance with the tran sitional provisions, the Group applies the amendments prospectively, i.e., to
business combinations occurring after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments (the date of initial application).

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as there were no
contingent assets, liabilities or contingent liabilities within the scope of these amendments that arose during the
period.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before  Intended Use g Amendments to IAS 16 Leases

The amendment prohibits entities from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment,

any proceeds of the sale of items produced whilst bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling such items, and the costs of producing those items, in profitorlo ss.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group applies the amendments retrospectively only to items
of PP&E made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity first
applies the amendment (the da te of initial application).

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as there were no sales
of such items produced by property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of
the earliest period presented.

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards g Subsidiary as a first -time adopter
The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of IFRS 1 to measure cumulative
a"voOtvad~¥no y~{{z"z2zox20© «©~n| 2}z VE¥«n2a© "z | ¥"2azy
a1z lv'zwnaCoO yv?az ithdadpsimens@eré madesfor Go¥solidalion précedures and for the
effects of the business combination in which the parent acquired the subsidiary. This amendment is also applied
to an associate or joint venture that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of IFRS 1.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as it is not a first  -time
adopter.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments g zz© ~n 2}z CFE !z" xzwmaC 2z02a {¥" yz
The amendment clarifi es the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include

only those paid or received between the borrowe r and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
WY" T ¥-2z" ¥" ¢zaoyz  ¥wo 2}z ¥a}lz" CO wz}ve{C Fipancialz ~©
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement .

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies

the amendment (the date of initial application). These amendments had no impa ct on the consolidated financial
©3vazEgzo2© ¥{ 2}z \ " ¥« v©O @}z "z -z"z w©o¥ E£¥y~{~xv?a~
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
2. Significant accounting policies (continued) G
2.4 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures  (continued) IAS 8.14 o

IAS 41 Agriculture g Taxation in fair value measurements

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 that entities exclude cash flows for
taxation when measuring the fair value of assets within the scope of I AS 41.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as it did not have
assets in scope of IAS 41 as at the reporting date.

=
2
Commentary g
For illustrative purposes, the Group has listed all the disclosures of new and amended standards and interpretations that 8
vz z{{zx3~-z {"¥f£ F _vo«v’' GEGG =«n¢tz©O0©® ¥23}z" -~0z ©3vazy: =

financial stat ements. To the extent that an entity is not affected by a particular amendment, standard or interpretation, it
is sufficient to disclose that fact together with its title.

In some jurisdictions, the adoption of IFRS for reporting purposes may be subjectt o a specific legal process (e.g., in the
European Union or Australia). In those jurisdictions, the effective dates may, therefore, be different from the IASB's

effective dates. Nevertheless, all new standards and interpretations must be considered for disc losure as standards issued
but not yet effective, in accordance with IAS 8.30, when an entity provides a complete set of financial statements,
irrespective of whether the legal process referred to above has been completed.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

2. Significant accounting po licies (continued)

2.5 Correction of an error

In July 2020, a subsidiary entered into a sales contract with a new customer to sell fire prevention equipment
for a two -year period. As part of the negotiations, a variation was made to the standard terms and conditions
to sell the equipment to this customer on consignment basis , under which the Group does not relinquish
control of the consigned product until it is sold to an end customer . However, the subsidiary continued to
recognise revenue at the point before control transferred to the customer . As a consequence, revenue was
overstated. In January 202 2, the subsidiary conducted a detailed review of the terms and conditions of its

sales contracts and discovered the error.

The error has been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement line items for the prior

periods, as follows:

Impact on equity (increase/(decrease) in equity)

31 December 2021

1 January 2021

PEEE PEE
Inventories 1,000 500
Trade receivables (3,500) (1,500)
Total assets (2,500) (1,000)
Income tax payable 750 300
Total liabilities 750 300
Net impact on equity (1,750) (700)
Impact on statement of profit or loss (increase/(decrease) in profit)
31 December 202 1
PEE
Revenue from contracts with customers (2,000)
Cost of sales 500
Income tax expense 450
Net impact on profit for the year (1,050)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (1,050)
Non-controlling interests c
Impact on basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) (increase/(decrease) in EPS )
31 December 2021
Earnings per share
Basic, profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent =bEC
Diluted, profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent =bEC
Earnings per share for continuing operations
Basic, profit from continuing operations attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent =bEC
Diluted, profit from continuing operations attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent =bEC
i}z x}ve|z y~y w‘B¥2 }y-az vo ~£]vx?q ¥o dXN {¥ alz |
flows.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The! "z!v va~¥o ¥{ 2}z \ " ¥«! CO x¥o@©¥¢~yvazy {~ovaox~v¢
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and

the accompanying disclosures, and the disclos ure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relatingtothe Gro « | CO© z ®! ¥©« "z 2¥ "~ ~©j© voy «axz 2y~

3  Capital management Note 6

3 Financial instruments risk management and policies Note 21.5

3 Sensitivity analyses disclosures Notes 17, 18, 20, 21.4, 21.5 and 32.

Judgements

AN oalz 1T ¥xzOO© ¥{ v! ! ¢ policids, marjageméanth¥sanadé @e follawiny judgements) IAS 1.122

which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal  and termination options g Group as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non -cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods IFRS 16.18
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an IFRS 16.19
option to terminate th e lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain  whether or not to exercise the option to renew or
terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise
either the renewal or termination . After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to e  xercise or not
to exercise the option to renew or to terminate  (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant custom isation to the leased asset).

The Group included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of plant and machinery with shorter
non-cancellable period (i.e., three to five years) . The Group typically exercise s its option to renew for these
leases because there will be a significant negative effect on production if a replacement  asset is not readily
available. The renewal periods for leases of plant and machinery with long er non-cancellable periods (i.e., 10 to
15 years) are not included as part of the lease term as these are not reasonably certain to be exercised . In
addition, t he renewal option s for leases of motor vehicles a re not included as part of the lease term because the
Group typically leases motor vehi cles for not more than five years and , hence, is not exercising any renewal
options. Furthermore , the periods covered by termination options are included as part of the lease term only
when they are reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Refer to Note 31 for information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise
date of extension and termination options that are noti ncluded in the lease term.

Property lease classification g Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term
not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial  property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it
retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties and accounts f or the
contracts as operating leases.

Assets held for sale
On 1 October 202 2, the Board of Directors announced its decision to discontinue the rubber segment consisting IFRS 5.7

of Hose Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary. Operations of Hose Limited are classified as a disposal group held IFRS 58
for sale. The Board considered the subsidiary to meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale at that date for
the following reasons:
Hose Limited is available for immediate sale and can be sol d to the buyer in its current condition IFRS 5.BA
IFRS 5.9

3 The actions to complete the sale were initiated and expected to be completed within one year from the date
of initial classification

3 A potential buyer has been identified and negotiations as at the reporting date ar e at an advance stage
3  The shareholders approved the plan to sell on 14 November 202 2
For more details on the discontinued operation, refer to  Note 14 .
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and  assumptions (continued)
Judgements (continued)

Consolidation of a structured entity

In February 202 2, the Group and a third -party partner formed an entity, Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited, to IFRS 12.7(a)
acquire land and construct and operate a fire equipment safety facility. The Group holds 20% of the voting :EEE ii:;
shares in this entity. The third -party partner contribute y v | | "~ ¥ ®~ £ v 2 z ¢ 2022 GepleEiigBEE Frs128
of the voting shares, for the acquisition and construction of the fire safety test facility. The third -party partner IFRS 12.9
~© X¥E£E£-~2azy ay¥ ! "¥a-yz v!! " ¥®-£vaz¢  DF comHeRAE Edect- o o2
The construction is expected to be completedin 2024v 2 v a2 ¥avy ¢ x¥O02 ¥{ v,| | ¥®~EF

is entitled to a 22% return on the outstanding capital upon the commencement of operations. Under the

contractual arrangeme ntwiththethird -} v -2~ 1 v 2a3oz" A 23}z \"¥«! }vO v E£Ev
W¥V'y ¥{ y~"zx2¥" © voy 2}z \"¥«! CO v!!"¥avet ~O "z8«

fourth annual period, the partner is entitled to a 100% capital return. The EIR is 11% and the interest
VXX«E«Cva@zy ¥no 23}z x¥o?2”" ~w«?2zy VEY¥Q022. TheXGtouplisteffegtive HE H .
guaranteeing the returns to the third -party partner. On completion of the construction, the operations of  Fire

Equipment Test Lab Limited will be solely carried out by the Group.

Based on the contractual terms, the Group assessed that the voting rights in Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited
are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity. Also, it is assessed that there is insufficient
z8§«~2" [ ~ovaox~ao|owthee@ily B AratcEits activities withdut the non  -equity financial support
of the Group. Therefore, the Group concluded Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited is a structured entity under
IFRS10 Consolidated Financial Statements and that the Group controls it with no non -controlling interests. The
voting shares of the third -party partner are accounted for as a financial liability.

i}z " z{¥" " zA [~"2z2 Z8«~| £f£znwa |jz0O©2 avw a~£~2zy ~0O0 X¥o0O¥
The shares of the third -party partner are recorded as a long -term loan and the return on investment is recorded
as interest expense.

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds less than a majority of voting right s (de facto control)

The Group considers that it controls Electronics Limited even though it owns less than 50% of the voting rights. IFRS

This is because the Group is the single largest shareholder of Electronics Limited with a 48% equity interest. The llFOF'{B;llff(i)
remaining 52% of the equity shares in Electronics Limite d are widely held by many other shareholders, none of IFRS 12.8
-} ~x} ~oy~a~y«vee }¥¢y £¥7z 2}lve F: ¥{ 2}z z8«~2a I IFRS129
from 1 October 2015 to 31 December 202 2). Since 1 October 2015, which is the date of acquisition of

Electronics Limited, there is no history of the other shareholders collaborating to exercise their votes

collectively or to outvote the Group.

Commentary

IAS 1.22 requires an entity to disclose the judgements that management has made in the process of applying the entity's
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

IFRS 12 adds to the general requirements of IAS 1 by s pecifically requiring an entity to disclose all significant judgements
and estimates made in determining the nature of its interest in another entity or arrangement, and in determining the

type of joint arrangement in which it has an interest. IFRS 12.7 re quires that an entity disclose information about
significant judgements and assumptions it has made (and changes to those judgements and assumptions) in determining:

3 Thatit has control of another entity
3 Thatit has joint control of an arrangement or signi ficant influence over another entity

3 The type of joint arrangement (i.e., joint operation or joint venture) when the arrangement has been structured
through a separate vehicle

An entity must disclose, for example, significant judgements and assumptions m ade in determining that

It does not control another entity even though it holds more than half of the voting rights of the other entity
It controls another entity even though it holds less than half of the voting rights of the other entity

It is an agent or principal as defined by IFRS 10

W N L W

It does not have significant influence even though it holds 20 per cent or more of the voting rights of another entity
3 It has significant influence even though it holds less than 20 per cent of the voting rights of another  entity

The Group assessed that it controls Electronics Limited, despite having less than a majority of the voting rights, based on
the guidance under IFRS 10.B42.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions  (continued)
Judgements (continued)

The Group does not have any interest in unconsolidated structured entities. Interests in such  entities require the
disclosures under IFRS 12.24-31. These disclosures have been illustrated in our publication, Applying IFRS: IFRS 12
Example disclosures for interests in unconsolidated structured entities , (March 2013) available at ey.com/ifrs .

Entities should also consider the impact of climate -related matters if those matters create uncertainties that affect
assumptions used to develop estimates . IAS 1 requires disclosure of information about the assumptions an entity makes
about the future that ha ve a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year.  This
information is intended to allow users to understand the judgements entities make about the future.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting IAS 1.125
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year, are des cribed below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and

assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or cir cumstances arising

that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment and investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at f air value, with changes in fair value being recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. For investment properties, a valuation methodology based on a discounted cash flow
(DCF) model was used, as there is a lack of comparable market data because of the nature of the properties. In
addition, it measures the office properties in Euroland at revalued amounts, with changes in fair value being
recognised in OCI. The office properties were valued by reference to transactions involving properties of a

similar nature, location and condition. The Group engaged an independent valuation specialist to assess fair
values as at 31 December 202 2 for the investment properties and at 1 January and 31 December 202 2 for the
office properties in Euroland.

The key assumptions used to determine the fair value of the properties and sensitivity analyses are provided in
Notes 17 and 18.

Impairment of non -financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, IAS 36.6
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from bindng ©v ¢ z © 2 " vo©Ov X3 ~¥o©OA x¥oy«x?2z)
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs of disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation

is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next fi ve years and do not include
restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will

enhance the performance of the assets of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the
discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash -inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite

useful lives recognised by the Group. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the
different CGUSs, including a sensitivity analysis, are disclosed and further explained in  Note 20.

IAS 36.33(b)

COVID-19 commentary

As the current environment remains uncertain, it is important that entities  continue to provide detailed disclosure of the
assumptions made, including any updates since prior period , the evidence they are based on and the impact of a change in the
key assumptions (sensitivity analysis).

Given the inherent level of uncertainty and the sensitivity of judgements and estimates, disclosures of the key assumptions
used, and judgements made in estimating recoverable amounts is important.

It is possible that COVID-19 is still a triggering event for some entit ies that requires them to perform an impairment test in
accordance with IAS 36. Entities will need to assess the key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the
different CGUs. Key inputs to both the value in use and the fair value less cost of disposal models used to undertake the
impairment assessment should be reassessed to factor in any impact.

The non-financial assets that are likely to be subject to such impairment triggers include: property, pla  nt and equipment,
intangible assets (including those with indefinite lives) , goodwill, and inventories.

To the extent that the impact of COVID-19 is less severe than previously anticipated and the economic environment is
recovering, entities may need to consider whether any impairments recognised in the pre vious year as a result of the situation
at that time should be reversed as required by IAS 36.110 .
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets IFRS 7.35G
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision IFRS 7.35F(c)
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns

(i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and ot  her forms

of credit insurance).

i}z | "¥-~0~¥0o £va@3" ~® ~0O0 ~op~2~y¢¢ wvOzy ¥o 2}z \" ¥«
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward -looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i .e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year

which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed defaultr ates are updated and changes in the forward -
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
ZXY¥Oa¥E~Xx X¥oy~2-~¥oOC i}z \ " ¥«! CO }~02¥" ~xvet x " zy~2
a¥a wz “z!7zO©zmayva@~oz ¥{ x«©2¥£z CO vxa«ve yz{VWt¥r«!
trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in Note 21 .

Commentary

Under IFRS 7.35G(b), an entity must disclose how forward -looking information has been incorporated into the
determination of ECL, including the use of macroeconomic information. The Group did not provide detailed information on
how the forecast economic co nditions have been incorporated in the determination of ECL because the impact is not
significant. Entities are expected to provide more detailed information if the forward  -looking information has a significant
impact in the calculation of ECL.

Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for share -based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate
valuation model, which depends on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share
option or appreciation right, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The Group
initially measures the cost of cash -settled transactions with employ ees using a binomial model to determine the
fair value of the liability incurred. For cash -settled share -based payment transactions, the liability needs to be
remeasured at the end of each reporting period up to the date of settlement, with any changes in  fair value
recognised in profit or loss. This requires a reassessment of the estimates used at the end of each reporting
period. For the measurement of the fair value of equity -settled transactions with employees at the grant date,
the Group uses a binomial model for Senior Executive Plan (SEP) and a Monte-Carlo simulation model for
General Employee Share Option Plan (GESP). The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for
share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 33.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level
of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning strategies.

i}z \"¥«! }vO BO OFAEHFENEVMAEEEG ¥{ 2v® ¢¥00z© xv ~ ~zys { |AS1281()
that have a history of losses, do not expire, and may not be used to offset taxable income elsewhere in the

Group. The subsidiaries neither have any taxable temporary difference nor any tax planning opportunities

available that could partly support the recognition of these losses as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the

Group has determined that it cannot recognise deferred tax assets on the tax losses carried forward.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax assets, profitand equity would have increased
w- BDFGMAEEEC [« 2}z" yz2avNok€.¥o 3y®z© v’ 'z y~0OxC¥0Ozy
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions  (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Defined benefit plans (pension benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan and other post -employment medical benefits and the present value
of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An  actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexi  ties
involved in the valuation and its long -term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate,
management considers the interest rates of corporate bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the
postz £} ¢¥ £zwo?d wzwoz{~2 ¥w¢~|va@~¥o -~23} ya ¢agten@dly vao ¢V
acknowledged rating agency, and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected
term of the defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having
excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the

basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and
pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about pension obligations are provided in  Note 32.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active ma rkets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments. See Note 21.4 for further disclosures.

Contingent consideration, resulting from business combinations, is valued at fair value at the acquisition date as
part of the business combination. When the contingent consideration meets the definition of  a financial liability,
it is subsequently remeasured to fair value at each reporting date. The determination of the fair value is based

on discounted cash flows. The key assumptions take into consideration the probability of meeting each
performance target and the discount factor (see Notes 8 and 21.4 for details).

As part of the accounting for the acquisition of Extinguishers Limited, contingent consideration with an estimated
{v~" =vet«z ¥{ DOPLFI AEEE -v©O " zx¥|®8~0zy v2a 2}z vXxX8§«~0O-~
date. Future developments may require further revisions to the estimate. The maximum consideration to be paid is
DFAFGJAEEEC i}z x¥pop2~p|zon2 x¥oO~yz ve~-Noe2l2® x¢vOoo-~{ ~

Development costs

The Group capitalises costs for product development projects. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on
Evov|z£zra CoO «y| z£znad 2alvyad azxlo¥¢¥| ~xve¢ voy zXx¥o¥,
development project has reached a defined milestone according to an established project management model.

In determining the amounts to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future

cash generation of the project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits. At 31
December2022A 23} z xv~ " ~o| VvE¥«o? ¥{ xv!| ~2ave-~0zJO ybrFAZKIMK] /

This amount includes significant investment in the development of an innovative fire prevention system. Prior to
being marketed, it will need to obtain a safety certificate issued by the relevant regulatory authorities. The
innovative nature of the product gives rise to some uncertainty as to whether the certificate will be obtained.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions  (continu ed)

Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Provision for decommissioning

As part of the identification and measurement of assets and liabilities for the acquisition of Extinguishers

Limited in 202 2, the Group has recognised a provision for decommissioning obligations associated with a

factory owned by Extinguishers Limited. In determining the fair value of the provision, assumptions and

estimates are made in relation to discount rates, the expected cost to dismantle and remove the plant from the

site and the expected timing of those costs. The carrying amount of the provision as at 31 December 202 2 was
DFAGGFAEEE BGEG-C i}z |\ "¥«! zO©a~£v3az©® 23a}va 2}z cacia®s C
the provision using the DCF method based on the following assumptions:

3 Estimated range of costpersgqm -BFEDGJ =D GE >
3 Discount rate 814%

If the estimated pre -tax discount rate used in the calculation had been 1% higherthan £vev | z £z a2 C©
alz xv© 7 ~m| VE¥«wp?a ¥[ al}lz I"¥42~0~¥0o -¥«Cty }v-oz wzz

Revenue recognition - Estimating variable consideration for returns and volume rebates IFRS 15.126
The Group estimates variable considerations to be included in the transaction price for the sale of electronic
equipment with rights of return and volume rebates.

The Group has developed a statistical model for forecasting sales returns. The model uses the historical return
data of each product to come up with expected return percentages. These percentages are applied to determine
the expected value of the variable consideration. Any significant changes in experience as compared to
historical return pattern will impact the expected return percentages estimated by the Group.

i}z \"¥«! CO z®! zx2zy -¥¢«fz “zwva@z© v z vove ©zy ¥uo
single volume threshold. Determining whether a customer will be like ly entitled to rebate will depend on the
X«©2¥f£z"  CO }~©2¥ " ~xve¢ " zwvaz®© zma~ag¢zfzm@ yvaoy VXX«E.

The Group applied the statistical model for estimating expected volume rebates for contracts with more than
one volume threshold. The m odel uses the historical purchasing patterns and rebates entitlement of customers
to determine the expected rebate percentages and the expected value of the variable consideration. Any
significant changes in experience as compared to historical purchasing patterns and rebate entitlements of
customers will impact the expected rebate percentages estimated by the Group.

The Group updates its assessment of expected returns and volume rebates quarterly and the refund liabilities

are adjusted accordingly. Estim ates of expected returns and volume rebates are sensitive to changes in
X~"X«£©@2voxz© voy 2}z \"¥«! CO !voa z®lz" " ~zuxz “z]|Vv'"
"z " z©zumayva~—oz7 ¥{ x«©2¥£z  ©OC vx?2«v(e " z2k31 DeCember302 2, thev
VE¥«o? " zx¥|o~0©zy vO " z{«my ¢~vw~¢~23~20 {¥" 2}z z®]
PJAMI | AEEE>C

Revenue recognition - Estimating stand -alone selling price g Quality Points loyalty programme IFRS15.126
The Group estimates the stand -alone selling price of the loyalty points awarded under the Quality Points
programme. The stand -alone selling price of the loyalty points issued is calculated by multiplying the estimated
redemption rate and the monetary value assigned to the loyalty points. In estimating the redemption rate, the
Group considers breakage which represents the portion of the points issued that will never be redeemed. The
Group applies statistical projection methods initsestima 2 ~¥o «©~no| x«©2¥£z " ©C } ~0©2
the main input. The redemption rate is updated quarterly and the liability for the unredeemed points is adjusted
accordingly. In estimating the value of the points issued, the Group considers the mix  of products that will be
Vvav~¢tvwetz ~o 23}z {«@« "z ~@m z®x}va|z {¥ ¢¥ vea | ¥~
value assigned to the loyalty points is commensurate to the stand -alone selling price of the products eligible for
redemption (i.e., the value of each point is equivalent to the stand -alone selling price of any products eligible for
redemption divided by number of points required).

As points issued under the programme do not expire, estimates of the stand -alone selling price are subject to
©~| s~{~xve?d& «wBxz @y~pn2 C Vo~  ©O~|&8~{~xvao? x}ve|zO ~a=&n
redemption rate. As at 31 December202 2A 23} z z©2 ~fvdzy ¢~vw~¢~2" (¥ &npo
DPKLMAEEE>CEVz ¢} zzyDOf|~2 ~¥n " va&az «©zy }vy wzzwe }~|}z"
carrying amount of the estimated liability for unredeemed points as at 31 December 202 2 would have been
}~1}Yz" w BOABEEEEEBEEG
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
3. Significant accounting judgement s, estimates and assumptions (continued) S <
Estimates and assumptions (continued) 0l

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate IFRS 16.26
The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental

borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay

to borrow over a similar term , and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar

value to the right -of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group

E-¥«ty }vaz 2¥ ! vTCA -}~x} 7 z Sedcate’ aetvailablé (suhvas fer $ubsidiarjeg o

that do not enter into financing transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and

X¥oy~2~¥o@© ¥{ 2}z ¢zv©Oz ={¥" z®VE| ¢zA -}zo C¢Czv@&wP V'
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certainentity -©} zx ~{ ~x z©2 ~£vaz©O =0« bpnevrd@itrathg). O« wO~y ~v "
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Commentary

IAS 1 requires an entity to disclos e significant judgements applied in preparing the financial statements (IAS 1.122) and
significant estimates that involve a high degree of estimation uncertainty (IAS 1.125). The disclosure requirements go
beyond the requirements that exist in some other | FRS, such as IAS 37.

These disclosures represent a very important source of information in the financial statements because they highlight the
areas in the financial statements that are most prone to change in the foreseeable future. Therefore, any informa  tion
given should be sufficiently detailed to help readers of the financial statements understand the impact of possible
significant changes.

The Group has, for illustrative purposes, included disclosures about significant judgements and estimates beyond w hat is
normally required, and potentially also beyond what is decision useful. Under IAS 1, it is only those judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements and those estimates that have a
significant risk of resulting in material adjustments in respect of assets and liabilities within the next financial year that
should be addressed in this section.

Consolidated financial statements

It is important that entities carefully assess which judgements and estimates are most significant asr equired by IAS 1 and

make the disclosures accordingly, to allow the users of the financial statements to appreciate the impact of the

judgements and estimation uncertainties. Disclosures of judgements and estimation uncertainties that do not have a

signifixvead ~ ~©j ¥{ "zO«¢t@~o| ~@m £vaz  ~ve¢ vy «O©O2£zpn20© £v xt«?a
ability to identify the key judgements and estimation uncertainties.

-
COVID-19 commentary N
Given the level of uncertainty and the sensitivity of judgements and estimates, clear disclosure of the key assumptions g g
used, and judgements made is particularly important in financial statements prepared during the  COVID-19. Although S

assumptions may already have been updated for the impact of COVID19 in the previous year, entities should again ™
carefully scrutinise their existing judgements and estimates as they may find additional areas in which they will need to
make judgements and estimates.

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

4. Revenue from contracts with customers

4.1 Disaggregated revenue information

hz2a ¥«2 wze¢¥- ~© 2}z y~Ov| | " z|va~¥o ¥{ 2}z \ " ¥«! Co®©
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Fire prevention

Segments equipment Electronics Total

PEE PEE PEEE
Type of goods or service
Sale of fire prevention equipment 85,438 ¢ 85,438
Sale of electronic equipment Cc 69,263 69,263
Installation services 17,131 ¢ 17,131
Others* 7,226 ¢ 7,226
Total revenue from contracts with customers 109,795 69,263 179,058
Geographical markets
Euroland 76,413 50,421 126,834
United States 33,382 18,842 52,224
Total revenue from contracts with customers 109,795 69,263 179,058
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods and services transferred at a point in time 90,141 69,263 159,404
Goods and services transferred over time 19,654 C 19,654
Total revenue from contracts with customers 109,795 69,263 179,058
* Includes revenue from procurement services and service -type warranties.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Fire prevention

Segments equipment Electronics Total

DEE DEE DEE
Type of goods or service
Sale of fire prevention equipment 69,107 Cc 69,107
Sale of electronic equipment ¢ 66,621 66,621
Installation services 16,537 Cc 16,537
Others* 6,823 ¢ 6,823
Total revenue from contracts with customers 92,467 66,621 159,088
Geographical markets
Euroland 62,239 48,968 111,207
United States 30,228 17,653 47,881
Total revenue from contracts with customers 92,467 66,621 159,088
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods and services transferred at a point in time 73,696 66,621 140,317
Goods and services transferred over time 18,771 c 18,771
Total revenue from contracts with customers 92,467 66,621 159,088

* Includes revenue from procurement services and service -type warranties.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

4. Revenue from contracts with customers  (continued)
4.1 Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

Set out below, is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in
the segment information ( Note 5):

For the years ended 31 December

2022 2021
Fire Fire
prevention prevention
equipment Electronics equipment Electronics
PEE PEE PEE PEE
Revenue
External customer 139,842 69,263 121,905 66,621
Inter -segment Cc 7,465 ¢ 7,319
139,842 76,728 121,905 73,940
Inter -segment adjustments and eliminations (30,047) (7,465) (29,438) (7,319)
Total revenue from contracts with
customers 109,795 69,263 92,467 66,621
Commentary

The Group presented disaggregated revenue based on the type of goods or services provided to customers, the
geographical region, and the timing of transfer of goods and services. Entities will need to make this determination based
on entity -specific and/or industry -specific factors that would be most meaningful to their busine sssuch as internal
reporting and external reporting to shareholders .

The Group presented a reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue with the revenue information disclosed for each
reportable segment. Entities may find it appropriate to provide disaggre gated revenue information within the segment
reporting disclosures.

4.2 Contract balances

31 December

1 January
2022 2021 2021

DEE DEE DPEE
Trade receivables (Note 23) 25,672 22,290 25,537
Contract assets 4,541 5,180 3,450
Contract liabilities ( Note 29) 5,842 3,374 2,528

The acquisition of a subsidiary resulted in increase in trade receivables of DF AL F K ABEZE(202 I
b MJ HAENSBE 8). IF2022, B179,000 (202 1: 71,000 ) was recognised as provision for expected credit
losses on trade receivables.

Contract assets relate to revenue earned from ongoing installation services . As such, the balances of this
account vary and depend on the number of ongoing installation services at the end of the year . In 2022, 6,000
(202 1: B5,000 ) was recognised as provision for expected credit losses on contract assets .

Contract liabilities include long-term advances received to deliver special fire prevention equipment and short -
term advances received to render installation services as well as transaction price allocated to unexpired service
warranties, and loyalty point s not yet redeemed . The outstanding balances of these accounts increased in 202 2
and2021y «z 2¥ a8}z x¥02 ~p«¥«®© ~ox  zv@e2¥e 2}z \ " ¥«! CO

The significant increase in contract liabilites in 2022- v© £v~&o¢~ y«z 2¥ JdelmzadvinGes GE
received from customers during the year . In 202 2A 139,000 (20210 DPKGAEEE> -v© " zx¥]| !
long-term advances increasing the contract ¢ ~v w~ ¢ ~ 2 {N\Npt® €3.3 v The scyquisition of a subsidiary also
resultedinan~a x " zv©z ~1o x¥o2 " vyxa 2022202110~ D Net®@H¥ £ DI GMAEEE

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 15.114-
115

IFRS 15.116(a)

IFRS 15.117
IFRS 15.118

IFRS 15.117
IFRS 15.118

IFRS 15.117
IFRS 15.118
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

4. Revenue from contracts with  customers (continued)
4.2 Contract balances (continued)

Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:

2022 2021

PEE PEE
Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 2,486 1,836
Performance obligations satisfied in previous years 516 252

Commentary

IFRS 15.116 requires the disclosure of the opening balances of receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from
contracts with customers, if not otherwise separately presented or disclosed. The Group has presented the balances as at
1 January 202 1 to comply with this req uirement.

The Group disclosed its receivables arising from contract s with customers separately from other receivables. It will be
necessary for entities that have material receivables from non -IFRS 15 contracts to separate these balances for
disclosure pur poses. For example, an entity may have accounts receivable relating to leasing contracts that would need
to be disclosed separately from accounts receivable related to contracts with customers.

IFRS 15.116 also requiresy ~©x ¢ ¥ ©« ~ z ¥ { ¢ = zthezepasting perociaf was-ilmded in-the contract

¢t~vw~¢~2" wvevaxz va a3}z wz|~omo~ao| ¥{ a}z !z ~¥yC vay &z~
¥YWe~| vad~¥o© Ova~0Of~zy =¥" v’ 2a~yv¢c¢  dpredentisinatabularemariative - ~ ¥ « ©
format.

The Group provided qualitative and quantitative disclosures of its contact balances and changes on those balances during
the period. Entities are permitted to disclose information about contract balances, an  d changes therein, as they deem to
be most appropriate, which would include a combination of tabular and narrative information.

4.3 Right of return a ssets and refund liabilities

2022 2021
PEE PEE
Right of return assets 1,124 929
Refund liabilities
Arising from retrospective volume rebates 4,658 4,504
Arising from rights of return 1,584 1,340
6,242 5,844

4.4 Performance obligations
Ao { ¥ £va~¥n v w¥ «dmafcg ablightiong aré sGr@maris 2d below:
Fire prevention equipment

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the equipment and paymentis generally due within 30
to 90 days from delivery.

The performance obligation to deliver fire prevention equipment with a manufacturing lead time of two years

has two alternative payment options. The customer can pay the transaction price equal to the cash selling price
upon delivery of the equipment or pay a lower transaction price upon signing the contract . There is a significant
financing component for those con tracts where the customer elected to pay in advance.

In some contracts, a one -year warranty beyond fixing the defects that existed at the time of sale is provided to
customers. The warranty is accounted for as a separate performance obligation and a portion of the transaction
price is allocated . The performance obligation for the warranty service is satisfied over the coverage period
based on time elapsed.

Electronic equipment

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the equipment and payment is generally due within 30
to 90 days from delivery. Some contracts provide customers with a right of return and volume rebates which
give rise to variable consideration subject to constraint .

Customers are entitled to loyalty points which results in allocation of a portion of the transaction price to the
loyalty points. Revenue is recognised when the points are redeemed.

In addition, the Group updates its estimates of the points that will be redeemed on a quarterly basis and any
adjustments to the contract liability balance are charged against revenue.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 15.116(b)
IFRS 15.116(c)

IFRS15.821(c)

IFRS
15.821(b)

IFRS 15.119
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

4. Revenue from contracts with customers  (continued)
4.4 Performance obligations (continued)

Installation services

The performance obl igation is satisfied over -time and payment is generally due upon completion of installation
and acceptance of the customer . In some contracts , short-term advances are required before the installation
service is provided.

Procurement services

There are contracts with customers to acquire, on their behalf, special fire prevention equipment produced by
foreign suppliers. The Group is acting as agent in these arrangements. T he performance obligation is satisfied,
and payment is due upon receipt of the e quipment by the customer.

Commentary

IFRS15 requires an entity to provide more descriptive information about its performance obligations. IFRS 15.119 requires

an entity to include a description of all of the following:

3 When the entity typically satisfies its performance obligations (for example, upon shipment, upon delivery, as services are
rendered or upon completion of service), including when performance obligations are satisfied in a bill -and-hold
arrangement

3 The significant payment terms (fo r example, when payment is typically due, whether the contract has a significant
financing component, whether the amount of consideration is variable and whether the estimate of variable consideration
is typically constrained in accordance with IFRS 15.56 -58)

3 The nature of the goods or services that the entity has promised to transfer, highlighting any performance obligations to
arrange for another party to transfer goods or services (i.e., if the entity is acting as an agent)

3 Obligations for returns, refun ds and other similar obligations
3 Types of warranties and related obligations

The Group provided this required information in this section of the notes. This is one way that entities can comply with the
disclosure requirement of IFRS 15.119. Entities may also decide to disclose this required information as part of its
disclosure of significant accounting policies . For illustrative purposes, most of the information included in this section of
the notes was also included in the disclosure of significant accoun ting policies.

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as [IFRS15120
at 31 December are, as follows :

IFRS
2022 2021  15.1200)0)
H000 PEE
Within one year 12,915 8,793
More than one year 7,216 2,152
20,131 10,945
The remaining performance obligations expected to be recognised in more than one year relate to the delivery IFRS

of special fire prevention equipment that is to be satisfied within two years and the customer loyalty 15-120(e)(1)

programme. The customer loyalty points have no expiration and redemptions can go beyond two years
(Note 29). All the other remaining performance obligations are expected to be recognised within one year.

Commentary

As a practical expedient provided in IFRS 15.121 , an entity can decide not to disclose the amount of the remaining
performance obligations for contracts with original expected duration of less than one year or those that meet the
requirements of the right to invoice practical expedient in IFRS 15.B16. If an entity uses this practical expedient, it is
required to disclose that fact.

The Group used a quantitative approach to disclose information about remaining performance obligations  and did not use
this practical expedient.

COVID-19 commentary

Entities may need to use significant judgement to determine the effect of uncertainties related to COVID19 on their revenue
accounting, e.qg., estimates of variable consideration (including the constraint) and provide appropriate disclosures of these
judgements. Decisions made in response to the pandemic (e.g., modifying contracts, continuing transacting with ¢ ustomers
despite collectability concerns, revising pricing) and its evolution may need to be disclosed. Entities may also need to
consider the impact of delays in deliveries due to supply chain issues caused by the COVID 19, which may impact volume
rebate estimations , amongst other things, due to lower sales during the year. The disruption of supply chains m ay result in
some cases in significant increase s in the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under certain contracts which , in turn,
may impact the measurement of the provision for onerous contracts.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

5. Segment information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on its products and services and IAS 1.138(b)
has three reportable segments, as follows: IFRS 8.22(a)
) . . ) ) o ] . IFRS 8.22(b)
3 The fire prevention equipment segment, which produces and installs extinguishers, fire prevention
equipment and fire retardant fabrics .
3 The electronics segment, which is a supplier of electronic equipment for defence, aviation, electrical
safety markets and consumer electronic equipment for home use. It offers products and services in the
areas of electronics, saf ety, thermal and electrical architecture
3 The investment properties segment, which leases offices and manufacturing sites owned by the Group
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.
Commentary
Al gh MCGG=v> "z8§«~"2z2© zoa~3~70 2¥ y~0Ox¢t¥0z {vx232¥"  © «Ozy 2¥
organisation, as well as factors considered in determining aggregation of operating segments. Operati ng segments often
exhibit similar long -term financial performance if they have similar economic characteristics. For example, similar long -
term average gross margins for two operating segments would be expected if their economic characteristics were simila .
Two or more operating segments may be aggregated into a single operating segment if the segments have similar
economic characteristics, and the segments are similar in each of the following respects:
(a) The nature of the products and services
(b) The nature of the production processes
(c) The type or class of customer for their products and services
(d) The methods used to distribute their products or provide their services
(e) If applicable, the nature of the regulatory environment, for example, banki  ng, insurance or public utilities
This analysis requires significant judgement as to the circumstances of the entity. The Group does not have any operating
segments that are aggregated, but, if it had, disclosures about the basis for aggregation must be ma de.
The Executive Management Committee is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) and monitors the IFRS 8.27(%)
operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation ’
and performance assessment. Segment perf ormance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured
consistently with profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements. However, the performance of Showers
a~£~2zyA 2}lz \"¥«| CO ¥~pa8 Sz7o2«”z ~0O CO¥AC @AV}3zz W N~
(including finance costs, finance income and other income ) and income taxes are managed on a Group basis and
are not allocated to operating segments.
i Tveo©{z" |7 ~xz0©0© wz?-zzo ¥z Hengthbadisin@manber sinfiladto rahsactiohs v o 8.27(2)
with third parties. '
Fire Adjustments
Year ended prevention Investment Total and
31 December 202 2 equipment Electronics properties segments eliminations  Consolidated
PEEI DEEI DEEI DEEI DEE DEEI
Revenue
External customers 139,842 69,263 1,404 210,509 (30,047) 180,462  IFRS 8.23(a)
Inter -segment - 7,465 - 7,465 (7,465) - IFRS 8.23(b)
Total revenue 139,842 76,728 1,404 217,974 (37,512) 180,462
Income/(expenses)
Cost of inventories
recognised as an expense (99,533) (65,193) - (164,726) 33,619 (131,107 ) IFRS 8.23(f)
Employee benefits expenses (27,149) (5,323) (777) (33,249) (500) (33,749) IFRS 8.23(f)
Depreciation and
amortisation (3,852) (489) - (4,341) - (4,341) IFRS 8.23()
Goodwill impairment
(Note 20) - (200) - (200) - (200) IFRs 8.23(i)
Share of profit of an associate
and a joint venture
(Notes 10, 11) 83 - - 83 588 671 IFRS 8.23(g)
Segment profit 9,667 2,968 321 12,956 (1,868) 11,088 IFRS8.23
Total assets 78,454 44,814 8,893 132,161 15,25 2 147,413 |FRS 8.23
Total liabilities 33,191 7,252 1,704 42,147 44,583 86,730 IFRS8.23
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

5. Segment information (continued)

Fire .
Adjustments
Year ended prevention Investment Total and
31 December 202 2 equipment Electronics properties segments eliminations Consolidated
Other disclosures
Investment in an associate and
a joint venture ( Notes 10, 11) 3,187 - - 3,187 - 3,187 IFRS 8.24(a)
Capital expenditure 7,325 2,842 1,216 11,383 - 11,383 IFRS 8.24(b)
Inter-©z | £zwn?2 " z-zwo«zO®© Vv'z zZ¢~£~0Va3zy «| ¥o X¥oO¥C¢C~yva-~¥

column. All other adjustments and eliminations are part of detailed reconciliations presented further below

Fire Adjustments
Year ended prevention Investment Total and
31 December 202 1 equipment  Electronics properties segments  eliminations Consolidated
DEEI PEEI PEEI PEEE PEEE PEEE

Restated Restated Restated
Revenue
External customers 121,905 66,621 1,377 189,903 (29,438) 160,465 IFRS 8.23(a)
Inter -segment - 7,319 - 7,319 (7,319) - IFRS 8.23(b)
Total revenue 121,905 73,940 1,377 197,222 (36,757) 160,465
Income/(expenses)
Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense (95,642) (58,616) - (154,258) 32,960 (121,298) IFRS 8.23(f)
Employee benefits expenses (19,199) (8,400) (702) (28,301) (850) (29,151) IFRS 8.23(f)
Depreciation and amortisation (2,860) (610) - (3,470) (324) (3,794)  IFRs 8.23(¢)
Impairment of property, plant IFRS 8.23()
and equipment (Note 17) (301) - - (301) - (301) IAS 36.129
Share of profit of an associate
and a joint venture ( Notes 10,
11) 81 - - 81 557 638 IFRS 8.23(q)
Segment profit 4,387 5,396 314 10,097 (1,217) 8,880 IFRS 8.23
Total assets 61,747 40,409 7,983 110,139 526 110,665 IFRS 8.23
Total liabilities 30,167 4,066 1,688 35,921 28,902 64,823 IFRS 8.23
Other disclosures
Investment in an associate and IFRS 8.24(a)
a joint venture ( Notes 10, 11) 2,516 - - 2,516 - 2,516 IFRS 8.24(b)
Capital expenditure 4,068 3,513 1,192 8,773 - 8,773
Commentary

Additional disclosure may be required if the chief operating decision maker (CODM), which is the Executive Management
Committee of the Group in the case of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited, regularly reviews certain other items recorded
in the statemen t of profit or loss, i.e., depreciation and amortisation, impairments and the share of profit in associates.

IFRS 823(f) requires an entity to disclose material items of income and expense disclosed in accordance with 1AS 1.97 .
IAS 1.97 requires an entity to disclose separately the nature and amount of material items of income or expense. In order
to fulfil requirements of IFRS 8 .23(f), the Group disclosed for each reportable segments the following items of income or
expenses that are included in the measu re of the segment profit or loss reviewed by CODM: cost of inventories recognised
as an expense, and employee benefits expenses.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
5. Segment information (continued) S <
Adjustments and eliminations ol

Finance costs, finance income, other income, and fair value gains and losses on financial assets are not
allocated to individual segments as the underlying instruments are managed on a group basis.

Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial asset s and liabilities are not allocated to those segments as

IFRS 8.28
they are also managed on a group basis.
Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment =
properties including assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries. Inter -segment revenues are eliminated on %
consolidation. -§
Reconciliation of profit 2022 2021 IFRs8280) [S
PEE PEE
Restated
Segment profit 12,956 10,097
Finance income (Note 13.4) 202 145
Gain on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss ( Note 13.1) 850 ¢
Loss on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss ( Note 13.2) (1,502) Cc 2
Finance costs (Note 13.3) (1,366) (1,268) GE)
Other income (Note 13.5) 98 66 §
Inter -segment sales (elimination) (150) (160) kS
Profit before tax and discontinued operations 11,088 8,880 §
Reconciliation of a ssets 2022 2021 IFRS8.28() é
PEE PEE =
Segment operating assets 132,119 110,139 §
Deferred tax assets (Note 15) 425 365 o
Loan to an associate (Note 21.1) 200 o}
Loan to a director (Note 21.1) 13 8
Derivatives 1,102 153
Assets held for sale (Note 14) 13,554 c -
Total assets 147,413 110,665 &
2 N
Reconciliation of | iabilities 2022 2021 [FRS8.28(d) § o
PEE DEE &
Restated
Segment operating liabilities 42,147 35,921
Deferred tax liabilities ( Note 15) 2,454 607
Current tax payable 3,511 3,563
Interest -bearing loans and borrowing 22,806 24,478 ”
Derivatives 2,687 254 g
Liabilities held for sale ( Note 14) 13,125 ¢ é
Total liabilities 86,730 64,823 FRs833() [=
Geographic information E
2022 2021 E
PEE PEE Z
Revenue from external customers Restated g
Euroland 128,238 112,584 =
United States 52,224 47,881 2
Total 180,462 160,465
The revenue information above is based on the locations of the customers. IFRS 8.34 o
Revenue from one customer amountedto D GJ AJ GFREIOE DPGFAGKHAEEE>A v~ ~©~mn | IFRS833() @
prevention equipment segment. <

Appendices
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

5. Segment information (continued)
Adjustments and eliminations  (continued)

2022 2021
PEE PEE
Non-current operating assets
Euroland 40,934 29,684
United States 9,865 7,821
Total 50,799 37,505

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment,  right -of-use assets, investment
properties and intangible assets.

Commentary

Interest income and interest expense have not been disclosed by segment as these items are managed on a group basis
and are not provided to the CODM at the operating segment level. Disclosure of operating segment assets and liabilities is
only required when such measures are provided to the CODM. The Group provides information about operating assets and
liabilities to the CODM. The other operations (e.g., treasury) do not constitute an individual operating segment and may be

l " z©zwmazy «wmyz" v ©z!vivaz xvaz|¥" T ¢Evee ¥a}lz" ©z| £zmaOC =
Ay «©2£z02@© voy z¢~f£~ova-~¥o@©CC
i}z \ " ¥«! CO ~maz oyve¢ “"z!¥"a~o| ~© ©z=2a «| @a¥ Tz!y¥'a —g yxx¥

more extensive if internal reports had been prepared on a basis other than IFRS (e.g.,national GAAP or tax basis). In this
case, a reconciliation between the internally reported items and the externally communicated items needs to be
presented.

The Group has classified an operating segment as a discontinued operation in 202 2. IFRS 8 Operating Segments does not
provide guidance as to whether segment disclosures apply to discontinued operations. Although the disposed segment is
material, the Group has not disclosed the results within the segment disclosures under IFRS 8. IFRS 5.5B states that the
requirements of other standards d o not apply to discontinued operations, unless they specify disclosures applicable to
them. Since IFRS 8 does not refer to discontinued operations, entities are not required to include them as a reportable
segment. This would be the case even if the CODM continued to monitor the discontinued operation until disposal.
Nevertheless, an entity would not be prohibited from disclosing such information, if desired.

i}z \"¥«!CO XdYb "z|«¢tv' ¢ "z-a~z-© 2}z ©z| £z o2 sshadqokévenue ~ ¥ o
profits, assets and liabilities to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its

performance. However, as required by IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements A 2} z \ " ¥«! C© ~paz"z©2 ~n 2}
for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method. The eliminations arising on account of differences
wz?a-zzo | ¥l ¥"a-¥Ypoydz x¥oO¥¢t~yva@~¥no voy z8«~2a" f£z=2al¥y vz

6. Capital management

[¥" 2}z ! «" 1 ¥0z ¥{ 2}z \ " ¥«! CO xv!~ayvye¢ E£vaov|zfzuaA
shares, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The

primary objective ofthe Group C©® xv! ~2v ¢ £vaov|z£zw2d ~© 2¥ £V®~£~0z °?

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and
the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust

the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Gro up monitors
capital using a gearing ratio, which is @etdebtG/ ~-~yzy w~ 2¥ay¢ xv!~ave ! ¢«O©
keep the gearing ratio between 20% and 40%. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and short -term deposits, excluding discontinued operations.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

6. Capital management (continued)

2022 2021
PEEE PEELI
Restated
Interest -bearing loans and borrowings other than convertible preference
shares (Note 21.2) 22,201 23,811
Trade and other payables (Note 30) 16,969 20,023
Less: cash and short-term deposits ( Note 24) (17,528) (14,916)
Net debt 21,642 28,918
Convertible preference shares (Note 21.2) 2,778 2,644
Equity 58,273 45,102
Total capital 61,051 47,7 46
Capital and net debt 82,693 76,664
Gearing ratio 26% 38%

Inordertovx} ~z-z 2} ~© ¥-z veet ¥w zx2~azA stoitherthingsyaims © énsuxev !
that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest -bearing loans and borrowings that define capital

structure requirements. Breaches in meeting th e financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call
loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches of the financial covenants of any interest -bearing loans and
borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 202 1.

Commentary

IAS 1.134 -135 require entities to make qualitative and quantitative disclosures regarding their objectives, po  licies and
processes for managing capital. The Group has disclosed its gearing ratio as this is the measure it uses to monitor capital.
The Group considers both capital and net debt as relevant components of funding, hence, part of its capital management.
However, other measures or a different type of gearing ratio may be more suitable for other entities.

IFRS 7.18-19 requires disclosures in the event of a default or breaches as at the end of a reporting period and during the
year. Although there are no exp licit requirements addressing the opposite situation, the Group has disclosed the restriction
on capital represented by financial covenants as it considers it relevant information to the users of the financial

statements. The Group did not provide addition al information on its debt covenants because the likelihood of the breach
occurring is remote.

7. Group information
Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include:

Country of % equity interest

Name Principal activities incorporation 2022 2021
Extinguishers Limited Fire prevention equipment Euroland 80 ¢
Bright Sparks Limited Fire prevention equipment Euroland 95 95
Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited Fire prevention equipment Euroland 100* ¢
Wireworks Inc. Fire prevention equipment United States 98 98
Sprinklers Inc. Fire prevention equipment United States 100 100
Lightbulbs Limited Electronics Euroland 87.4 30
Hose Limited Rubber equipment Euroland 100 100
Electronics Limited Electronics Euroland 48* * 48

*  Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited holds 20% of the equity in Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited but
consolidates 100% of this entity. See Note 3 for details on interest held in Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited.

**  Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited consolidates this entity based on de facto control. See Note 3 for more
details.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 24.13
IFRS12.10(a)
IFRS12.12(a)
IFRS12.12(b)

IFRS 12.9

IFRS 12.9
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

7. Group information (continued)
The holding company

The immediate and ultimate holding company of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited is S.J. Limited which owns

58.22% (202 1: 57.55%) of its ordinary shares is based and listed in Euroland.

Entity with significant influence over the Group

International Fires P.L.C. owns 31.48% of the ordinary shares in Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited (202 1:

31.48%).
Associate

The Group has a 25% interest in Power Works Limited (202 1: 25%). For more details, refer to Note 11.

Joint arrangement in which the Group is a joint venturer

The Group has a 50% interest in Showers Limited (202 1: 50%). For more details, refer to Note 10.

Commentary

IFRS 12.10(a) requires entities to disclose information about the composition of the group. The list above discloses

~a{ ¥ £va~¥o vw¥«a 2} Entites ntedo@de tfakthis@isclosure is requ@ed for material subsidiaries
only, rather t han a full list of every subsidiary. The above illustrates one example as to how the requirements set out in

IFRS 12 can be met. However, local legislation or listing requirements may require disclosure of a full list of all subsidiar ies,

whether material or not.

8. Business combinations and acquisition of non

Acquisitions in 202 2
Acquisition of Extinguishers Limited

-controlling interests

On 1 May 202 2, the Group acquired 80% of the voting shares of Extinguishers Limited, a non-listed company
based in Euroland and specialising in the manufacture of fire retardant fabrics, in exchange forthe  CompanyC ©
shares. The Group acquired Extinguishers Limited bec ause it significantly enlarges the range of products in the

fire prevention equipment segment that can be offered to its clients.
The Group has elected to measure the non -controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Extinguishers Limited as at the date of acquisition were:

Assets

Property, plant and equipment ( Note 17)
Right-of-use assets (Note 31)

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables (Note 4)

Inventories

Patents and licences (Note 19)

Liabilities

Trade payables

Lease liabilities (Note 31)

Contract liabilities (Note 4)

Contingent liability ( Note 27)

Provision for restructuring (Note 27)

Provision for decommissioning costs (Note 27)
Deferred tax liability ( Note 15)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value

Non-controlling interest measured at fair value
Goodwill arising on acquisition ( Note 19)
Purchase consideration transferred

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

Fair value recognised
on acquisition

DEEL
7,042
248
230

1,716
3,330
1,200

13,766

(1,901)
(213)
(428)
(380)
(900)

(1,200)

(1,511)

(6,533)

7,233

(1,547)
2,231

7,917
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
8. Business combinations and acquisition of non -controlling interests (continued) S <
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed  (continued) Vil

itz {v~" —vet«z ¥{ 2@}z 38"vyz "zxz~-vwtz©O© VE¥«o?© 2¥ . IFRS3BE4N)
PFALJI AEEE vey ~2 ~© z®|zx?zy 2}va alz {«¢¢ x¥o2 " vx:

The Group measured the acquired lease liabilities usin g the present value of the remaining lease payments at IFRS 3.288
the date of acquisition. The right -of-use assets were measured at an amount equal to the lease liabilities a nd
adjusted to reflect the favourable terms of the lease relative to market terms.

=
o
Commentary ‘§
IFRS 3.28B require s the lease liability to be measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments as if the E
acquired leasewerev ©z- ¢zv®©z v?& 2}z vx8§«~©~23~¥m yvazC i}lva ~0OA 2}z E

provisio ns using the present value of the remaining lease payments at the acquisition date. The right -of-use asset is
measured at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted to reflect the favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease
when compared with marke t terms. Because the off -market nature of the lease is captured in the right -of-use asset, the
acquirer does not separately recognise an intangible asset or liability for favourable or unfavourable lease terms relative
to market.

Prior to the acquisition, Extinguishers Limited decided to eliminate certain product lines (further details are
given in Note 27). The restructuring provision recognised was a present obligation of Extinguishers Limited
immediatel y prior to the business combination. The execution of the restructuring plan was not conditional upon
it being acquired by the Group.

The deferred tax liability mainly comprises the tax effect of the accelerated depreciation for tax purposes of
tangible and intangible assets.

i}z |¥¥y-~¢¢ ¥{ DGAGHFAEEE x¥£! ~©z© 2}z -vet«z ¥{ z IFRS3B6e)
customer list, which is not separately recognised. Goodwill is allocated entirely to the fire prevention segment.

Due to the contractual terms imposed on acquisition, the customer list is not separable. Therefore, it does not

meet the criteria for recognition as an intangible asset under IAS 38. None of the goodwill recognised is IFRS 3.B64(k)
expected to be deductible for income tax purposes .

Consolidated financial statements

V x¥po?2~p|lzea ¢~vw~¢~2" va {v~" -vet«z ¥{ DODHMEAEEE - v IFRS3B64()
supplier whose shipment was rejected, and payment was refused by the Group due to deviations from the :Zng_'::(a)
defined technical specifications of the goods. The claim is subject to legal arbitration and is only expected to be -
finalised in late 202 3. As at the reporting date, the contingent liability was re -assessed and is determined to be N
Dl EEAEEEA wv ©z wdpfobablé quzome ®ee Alote?27). The charge to profit or loss has been 2 o
recognised. s o

The fair value of the non -controlling interest in Extinguishers Limited, a non-listed company, has been estimated  IFRS 3.864(0)(i) N

by applying a discounted earnings technique. The fair value measurements are based on significant inputs that

are not observable in the market. The fair value estimate is based on:

3 An assumed discount rate of 14%

3  Aterminal value, calculated based on long-term sustainable growth rates for the industry ranging from 2%
to 4%, which has been used to determine income for the future years

3 Areinvestment ratio of 60% of earnings

From the date of acquisition, Extinguishe " © a~£~2zy x¥wo2" ~w«2zy DFLAMIJILAEE
profit before tax from continuing operations of the Group. If the combination had taken place at the beginning
of the year, revenue fromcontinuin | ¥ | z" v2& ~¥ o © - ¥ 2583000 and profithbefarextax frden

IFRS 3.B64(q)(i)
IFRS 3.B64(q)(ii)

Additional Australian disclosures

continuing operationsf ¥~ 2} z \ " ¥« | - ¥@8y00}v-z wzzo DF

Purchase consideration DEEL

Shares issued, at fair value 7,203  IFRS 3.B64(f)(iv)

Contingent consideration liability 714  IFRS3.B64(f)(ii)

Total consideration 7,917  |as 7.40(0)

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

Transaction costs of the acquisition (included in cash flows from operating activities) (600) )

Net cash acquired with the subsidiary (included in cash flows from investing activities) 230  1AS 7.40(c) «®

Transaction costs attributable to issuance of shares (included in cash flows from financing <

activities, net of tax) (32) é @

Net cash flow on acquisition (402) g_ o
< I

™
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

8. Business combinations and acquisition of non -controlling interests  (continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed  (continued)

The Company issued 2,500,000 ordinary shares as consideration for the 80% interest in Extinguishers Limited.
The fair value of the shares is calculated with reference to the quoted price of the shares of the Company at the

yvaz ¥{ vx8§«~0~2a2~¥oA -}~x} -vOb BGCMM z" ©}v"zC i}z
DPLAGEHAEEEC

i "voOvx?2~¥o x¥02 0 ¥fsedhdRErE AdLEeH in adminigtratize@Xpenses. The attributable
X¥020 ¥{ @}z ~00C«vuoxz ¥{ 2}z ©}v" zO ¥{ DPHGAEEE } v-z

premium.

Contingent consideration

As part of the purchase agree ment with the previous owner of Extinguishers Limited, a contingent consideration

has been agreed. There will be additional cash payments to the previous owners of Extinguishers Limited of:

a) PKLIJAEEEA ~{ 2}z zwaa~2a" " | zaozbeford axdn ad2 -mént pebidd AfterBHe AE E E
acquisition date
Or

b) bPFAFGJAEEEA ~{ 2}z zma~2a" | zoz " vaz©O bDFMminhp&iedEferthe"
acquisition date

As at the acquisition date, the fair value of the contingent considera @ ~¥o - v © z©O2 ~fvazy 2a¥

As at 31 December 202 2, the key performance indicators of Extinguishers Limited show that it is highly
probable that the target will be achieved due to a significant expansion of the business and the synergies
realised. The fair value of the contingent consideration determined at 31 December 202 2 reflects this
development, among st other factors and a remeasurement charge has been recognised through profit or loss.
The fair value is determined using a DCF method. The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurements, together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 202 2 are provided in

Note 21.4 . A reconciliation of fair value measurement of the contingent consideration liability ~ (Level 3) is
provided below:

DEE
As at 1 January 2022
Liability arising on business combination 714
Unrealised fair value changes recognised in profit or loss 358
As at 31 December 2022 1,072

The fair value of the contingent consideration liability increased due to a significantly improved performance of
Extinguishers Limited compared with the budget. The contingent consideration liability is due for final
measurement and payment to the former shareholders on 30 September 202 3.

Commentary

The classification of a contingent consideration requires an analysis of the individual facts and circumstances. It may be
classified as follows: equity or a financial liability in accordance with IAS 32 and IFRS 9, a provision in accordance with
IAS 37, or in accordance with other standards, each resulting in different initial recognition and subsequent

measurement. The Group has determined that it has a contractual obligation to deliver cash to the seller and there  fore it
has assessedit to be a financial liability (IAS 32.11). Consequently, the Group is required to remeasure that liability at fair
value at each reporting date with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9
(IFRS3.58(b)(i)).

As part of the business combination, contingent payments to employees or selling shareholders are common methods of
retention of key people for the combined entity. The nature of such contingent payments, however, needs to be evaluated
in each individual circumstance as not all such payments qualify as contingent consideration, but are accounted for as a
separate transaction. For example, contingent payments that are unrelated to the future service of the employee are
deemed contingent considerat ion, whereas contingent payments that are forfeited when the employment is terminated
are deemed remuneration. Paragraphs B54 gB55 of IFRS 3 (in connection with IFRS 3.51, 52(b)) provide further guidance.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

8. Business combinations and acquisition of non

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed (continued)

Acquisition of additional interest in Lightbulbs Limited

On 1 October 202 2, the Group acquired an additional 7.4% interest in the voting shares of Lightbulbs Limited,
~ax"zvO~aun| ~20 ¥-wvz" ©O} ~) ~o2z"z0a a¥ MLCI : C-coawwollitg x ¥
shareholders. The carrying value of the net assets of Lightbulbs Limited (excluding goodwill on the original

VX 8«~0O~2 ~ 824 0600.Falldvindis-asschedule of additional interest acquired in Lightbulbs Limited:

-controlling interests  (continued)

PEE

Cash consideration paid to non -controlling shareholders 325
Carrying value of the additional interestin  Lightbulbs Limited (135)
190

Difference recognised in retained earnings

Acquisitions in 202 1

On 1 December 202 1, the Group acquired 80% of the voting shares of Lightbulbs Limited, a company based in
Euroland, specialising in the production and distribution of  lightbulbs. The Group acquired this business to
enlarge the range of products in the electronics segment.

The Group elected to measure the non -controlling interest in the acquiree at the proportionate share of its

~maz"z©28 ~o 2}z VvXx8§«~"2zCO ~yzma@~{~vwtz Bmza VvOOz?2OC

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Lightbulbs Limited as at the  date of acquisition were:

Fair value recognised

on acquisition
DEEE
Land and buildings (Note 17) 1,280
Cash and cash equivalents 50
Trade receivables (Note 4) 853
Inventories 765
Total assets 2,948
Trade payables (807)
Deferred tax liability ( Note 15) (380)
Provision for maintenance warranties (50)
Total liabilities (1,237)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 1,711
Non-controlling interest (20% of net assets) (342)
Goodwill arising on acquisition ( Note 19) 131
Purchase consideration transferred 1,500
Cash flow
on acquisition
PDEEE
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 50
Cash paid (1,500)
Net cash flow on acquisition (1,450)

The net assets recognised in the 31 December 202 1 financial statements were based on a provisional
assessment of their fair value whilst the Group sought an independent valuation for the land and buildings owned
by Lightbulbs Limited. The valuation had not been completed by the date the 2021 financial statements were
approved for issue by the Board of Directors .
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
8. Business combinations and acquisition of non -controlling interests  (continued) S <
Acquisitions in 202 1 (continued) Vil

In April 202 2, the valuation was completed and the acquisition date fair value of the land and buildings was IFRS 3.49
DFAGMEAEEEA vo ~ox” zvOz ¥{ DGEmABDERomparative inforiationiwasy -~ ~© "ro>867@m
restated to reflect the adjustment to the provisional amounts. As a result, there was an  increase in the deferred

Aay® ¢~vw~¢~2" ¥!{ DKEAEBEY¥wXy¥ WVR-~o|joXx~gdy20zz 6% ¥{} zDGMAL

X¥" " z270O| ¥oy~ao| "zZy«xd@~¥op ~no | ¥¥y-~¢¢ ¥{ DFFGAEEEA " z:

acquisition. The increas ed depreciation charge on the buildings from the acquisition date to 31 December 2021

was not material.

[ "¥E£ 2}z yvaz ¥{ vX8«~0O~2~¥oA a~|}2w«twO a~£~2zy x¥ IFRS3B
tax from continuing operations of the Group. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of 2021, the

Group@ revenue from continuing operv @ ~¥ 0 © - ¥ « ¢y ,078,60@ andvthezprofit Eefor tax from

continuin| ¥ | z"va~¥o0O - ¥«(00§0. }v-z wzze BDLMI

c
o
=
o
=)
©
o
=
=
=

i}z | ¥¥y-~¢¢ ¥{ DFHFAEEE X¥£! ~©0z© 2}z {v~" -vt«z ¥ IFRS3B6)

Commentary

In the 202 1 business combination, the Group elected to value the non -controlling interest using its proportionate share of
a1z Vx8«~"22CO ~yzuoa 2002 businkss combifation, @@®Gréu@electéddo valje the non -controlling
interest at fair value. This election can be made separately for each business combination and is not a policy choice that
determines an accounting treatment for all business combinations the Group will carry out (IFRS 3.19).

9. Partly owned subsidiaries

Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non -controlling interests is provided below: IFRS12.10(ii)
IFRS12.12

Proportion of equity interest held by non  -controlling interests:

Consolidated financial statements

Name Country of incorporation and operation 2022 2021
Electronics Limited Euroland 52% 52%
Extinguishers Limited Euroland 20% o}
Lightbulbs Limited Euroland 12.6% 20%
2022 2021
PEE p E E [FRS12.12()) CF\I|
Accumulated balances of material non -controlling interest: IFRS12.B10
Electronics Limited 490 277 é N
Extinguishers Limited 1,696 c z -
Lightbulbs Limited 263 344 N
Profit allocated to material non -controlling interest:
Electronics Limited 243 192
Extinguishers Limited 149 Cc
Lightbulbs Limited 54 2
(%]
The summarised financial information of these subsidiaries is provided below. This information is based on IFRS 12.B11 %
amounts before inter -company eliminations. :EE: 12:;21(5’) §
Summarised statement of profit or loss for 202 2: Electronics  Extinguishers Lightbulbs =
Limited Limited Limited %
PEE PEE PEE g
Revenue from contracts with customers 2,546 17,857 5,748 %
Cost of sales (1,450) (15,678) (4,090) S
Administrative expenses (354) (1,364) (1,020) g
Finance costs (250) (65) (132)
Profit before tax 492 750 506
Income tax (25) (6) (80)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 467 744 426 g
Total comprehensive income 467 744 426 -
Attributable to non -controlling interests 243 149 54 @
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 30 ¢ c

Appendices
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement

9. Partly owned subsidiaries (continued)

Summarised statement of profit or loss for 202 1:

Revenue from contracts with customers
Cost of sales

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit for the year from continuing operations
Total comprehensive income

Attributable to non -controlling interests
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Summarised statement of financial position as at 31 December

Inventories and cash and bank balances (current)

Property, plant and equipment and other non -current assets
(non-current)

Trade and other payables (current)
Interest -bearing loans and borrowing and deferred tax
liabilities (hon -current)
Total equity
Attributable to :
Equity holders of parent
Non-controlling interest

Summarised statement of financial position as at 31 December

Inventories and cash and bank balances (current)

Property, plant and equipment and other non -current assets
(non-current)

Trade and other payables (current)

Interest -bearing loans and borrowing and deferred tax
liabilities (non -current)

Total equity

Attributable to :
Equity holders of parent
Non-controlling interest

(continued)

Electronics Lightbulbs
Limited Limited
PEE PEE
2,100 476
(1,250) (360)
(150) (85)
(350) (11)
350 20
20 (8)
370 12
370 12
192 2
49 ¢
202 2:
Electronics Extinguishers Lightbulbs
Limited Limited Limited
DEE DEE DEE
971 7,043 2,348
1,408 10,273 1,409
(417) (5,822) (1,182)
(1,019) (3,016) (485)
943 8,478 2,090
453 6,782 1,827
490 1,696 263
2021:
Electronics Lightbulbs
Limited Limited
DEE PEE
698 1,668
1,280 1,359
(350) (822)
(1,095) (485)
533 1,720
256 1,376
277 344

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 12.B11
IFRS 12.12(g)
IFRS 12.B10

73

Contents

c
o
=
3]
>
©
o
=
=
=

Consolidated financial statements

Notes

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices

|

o

(e7]

<t

Lo/




Notes to the consolidated financial statement

9. Partly owned subsidiaries (continued)

Summarised cash flow information for year ended 31 December 202 2:

(continued)

Electronics  Extinguishers Lightbulbs
Limited Limited Limited
PEE PEE PEE
Operating 507 809 558
Investing (15) (280) 6
Financing (250) (65) (132)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 242 464 432
Summarised cash flow information for year ended 31 December 202 1:
Electronics Lightbulbs
Limited Limited
PEEI PEEI
Operating 460 23
Investing (20) (20)
Financing (350) (112)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 100 (8)

Commentary

IFRS 12.12 requires the above information only in respect of subsidiaries that have non -controlling interests that are
material to the reporting entity (i.e., the Group). A subsidiary may have significant non  -controlling interest per se, but
disclosure is not required if that interest is not material at the Group level. Similarly, these disclosures do not apply to the
non-controlling interests that are material in aggregate but not individually.  In addition, it should be noted that the above
information sho uld be provided separately for each individual subsidiary with a material non -controlling interest. The
Group has concluded that Extinguishers Limited, Lightbulb Limited and Electronics Limited are the only subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

When there is a change in the ownership of a subsidiary, IFRS 12.18 requires disclosure of a schedule that shows the

effects on equity of any changes in its ownership interest in the subsidiary that did not result in a loss of ¢ ontrol. When
alz"z v'z ©~|o~{~xvE?2 " 702" ~x2~¥o© ¥o a2}z \"¥«! CO ¥ ~20 O
liabilities of the Group, IFRS 12.13 requires disclosure of the nature and extent of significant restrictions. The Group  did

not have any such restrictions.

IFRS 12.10 (b) (iv) requires disclosure of information to enable the users to evaluate the consequences of losing control
of a subsidiary during the period. The Group did not lose control over a subsidiary during the per iod.

10. Interest in a joint venture

The Group has a 50% interest in Showers Limited, a joint venture involved in the manufacture of some of the IFRS 12.20
\"¥«! €O £v-~no ! “¥y«x?® ¢~0z© ~8 {~"2z |"z-zods-~¥o LmBedis! o oo
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial
information of the joint venture, based on its IFRS financial statements, and reconciliation with the carrying
amount of the investment in the ¢ onsolidated financial statements are set out below:
Summarised statement of financial position of Showers Limited:

2022 2021

PEEE D E E E IFRS 12812
Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents PN MNAE E E IFRS 12.B13
(20210 PLI HAEEE> voy | "z 202EdNB2© DFAEH 3,226 2,808
Non-current assets 2,864 2,964
Current liabilities, including tax payable ® MN A E2BFLIO=BDF| HAEEE > (224) (1,102)
Non-current liabilities, including deferred tax liabilites D GL MAEEE
(20210 PHGJAEEE®zVByw¥¥o¥- ~o2D2l10) BEBEEE! (1,020) (1,000)
Equity 4,846 3,670
\ "¥«! CO ©} v-5®6(2021: 50%)« ~ 2 2,423 1,835
Gooduwill ¢ ¢

. . L 2,423 1,835 IFRs

\ "¥«] CO xv ~o| VvE¥«wm? ¥[ a}z ~0o-7z0 12.B14(b)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
<
10. Interest in a joint venture  (continued) S =
Summarised statement of profit or loss of Showers  Limited:
2022 2021 1o
PEEE PEEE
Revenue from contracts with customers 60,094 58,876
Cost of sales (54,488) (53,420)
Administrative expenses, including depreciaton PF AGHKAEEE IFRS 12.B13
(20210 PFAGHJAEEE> (2,638) (2,586) -
Finance costs, including interest expense D GE | A RBEO =DFJEAEEE (204) (200) IFRs128B13 2
Profit before tax 2,764 2,670 B
Income tax expense (1,588) (1,556) IFRS12B13 |82
Profit for the year (continuing operations) 1,176 1,114
Total comprehensive income for the year (continuing operations) 1,176 1,114 I:I.'ZZF.{BSlZ(b)
\ "¥«! CO ©}vTz ¥{ ! T¥{~2 ({¥" a}yz Tzv" 588 557

The joint venture had no other contingent liabilities or commitments as at 31 December 2022 and 202 1, except  FRS12.22(a)
trade purchase commitments of 620,000 ( 202 1: B1,032,000) , for which the Group has a corresponding :EE? iiéi(:)
commitment, a s disclosed in Note 34 . Showers Limited cannot distribute its profits without the consent from B19

the two venture partners.

Commentary

IFRS 12.B14 requires separate presentation of goodwill and other adjustments to the investments in joint ventures and
associates in the above reconciliation. The Group does not have goodwill or other adjustments.

IFRS 12.21(a) requires the separate disclosure of information for joint operations, as it relates  to all types of joint
arrangements. The Group does not have any joint operations.

Consolidated financial statements

The Group has presented the summarised financial information of the joint venture based on its IFRS financial statements.
IFRS 12.B15 allows this information to be provided using alternative bases, if the entity measures its interest in the joint
venture or associate at fair value, and if the joint venture or associate does not prepare IFRS financial statements and
preparation on that basis would be impracticable or cause und ue cost. Applying both the impracticable and undue cost
thresholds involves significant judgement and must be carefully considered in the context of the specific facts and
circumstances. In either case, the entity is required to disclose the basis on which the information is provided.

-
IFRS 12.22(b) requires additional disclosures when the financial statements of the joint venture or associate used in N
applying equity method are as of a different date or for a different period from that of the entity. This is not applicable to AN

5 N
the Group. g
IFRS 12.22(c) requires disclosure of unrecognised share of losses of a joint venture and associate. This is not applicable to E'\I)
the Group.

Entities will need to consider whether there is any impairment of their investments in jo  int ventures. Impairment charges

relating to investments in joint ventures should be accounted for in accordance with the equity method under IAS 28.

IAS 28 requires the investment in a joint venture to be considered as asingle cash-| zesz " va3 ~o| «&o~2A “va}
y¥-oC ~woay a} generatihguiite deerminad ®)}the joint venture. The impairment test should be undertaken

in accordance with the requirements of IAS 36.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
11. Investment in an associate S [
The Group has a 25% interest in Power Works Limited, which is involved in the manufacture of fire prevention :"222 122(1)( ) o

equipment for power stations in Euroland. Power Works Limited is a private entity that is not listed on any public
z®x}voe| zC i}z \ " ¥werlWo®s Limited B dczo@rited forwsing #he equity method in the
consolidated financial statements. The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the

\ "¥«! CO ~u-zO©2f£zm2a ~o e¥-z" | ¥ {© a~£~2zyO0

2022 2021

PDEEE P E E E IFRS 12.B12 g
Current assets 6,524 6,324 E
Non-current assets 13,664 12,828 :§
Current liabilities (4,488) (3,904) =
Non-current liabilities (12,644) (12,524)
Equity 3,056 2,724
\ "¥«! CO ©} vg259%(2021: 5B ~ 2 764 681
Goodwill c c
\ "¥«! CO xv " T ~@m| VE¥«ma ¥{ a}lz ~ao-2z¢ 764 681

2022 2021 g

PEEE PEEE 8
Revenue from contracts with customers 33,292 32,640 E
Cost of sales (27,299) (26,765) §
Administrative expenses (1,665) (1,632) §
Finance costs (2,996) (2,938) g
Profit before tax 1,332 1,305 2
Income tax expense (1,000) (981) 3
Profit for the year (continuing operations) 332 324
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods, net of tax (120) C
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in ) =
the subsequent periods, net of tax 120 C N

L L . IFRS 12.B12(b)
Total comprehensive income for the year (continuing operations) 332 324 N
\ "¥«! CO ©}v©iz ¥{ |T"¥{~2 {[{¥" a}z Tzv" 83 81 =
™

The associate requires the \ " ¥ «dor@t to distribute its profits. The Group does not foresee giving such IFRS12.22(a) «
consent at the reporting date.
The associate had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. IFRS 12.23
Commentary

IFRS 12.21(c) and IFRS 12.B16 require disclosure of the aggregated information of associates and joint ventures that are
accounted for using the equity method and are not individually material. The Group did not have any immaterial
associates or joint vent ures.

The Group has presented the summarised financial information of the associate based on its IFRS financial statements.
IFRS 12.B15 allows this information to be provided using alternative bases.

Entities will need to consider whether there is any impa irment of their investments in associates. Impairment charges

relating to investments in associates should be accounted for in accordance with the equity method under IAS 28. IAS 28

requires the investment in an associate to be considered asa singlecash -| zaz " v& ~a| «@o~a A “ya}z" a
the separate cash-generating units determined by the associate. The impairment test should be undertaken in accordance

with the requirements of IAS 36 .
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
5
12. Fair value measurement i
Thefollowing2 vw¢z | " ¥-~yz© 2}z {v~" =-vet«z £zvO«  z£f£zw2d } ~2 ol
Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 December 202 2: :iii iig;g
. ) IFRS 13.93(b)
Fair value measurement using IFRS 13.97
Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable IS
markets inputs inputs i
Date of valuation Total  (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 8
PEE PEE PEE PEE =

Assets measured at fair value:
Investment properties ( Note 18 ):
Office properties 31 December 2022 4,260 c ¢ 4,260
Retail properties 31 December 2022 4,633 c ¢ 4,633
Derivative financial assets ( Note 21.4 ):

Foreign exchange forward ) ) %
contracts US dollars 31 December 202 2 492 C 492 C £
Foreign exchange forward ) ) g
contracts GB pounds sterling 31 December 202 2 400 C 400 C T
Embedded foreign exchange §
derivatives Canadian dollars 31 December 2022 210 c ¢ 210 £

Listed equity investments ( Note 21.4 ): E
Power sector 31 December 2022 219 219 ¢ ¢ %
Telecommunications sector 31 December 2022 118 118 ¢ ¢ §

Non-listed equity investments (Note 21.4 ):
Power sector 31 December 202 2 675 C C 675
Electronics sector 31 December 2022 363 c ¢ 363

Quoted debt instruments ( Note 21.4): .
Euroland government bonds 31 December 202 2 1,378 1,378 ¢ ¢ N
Corporate bonds consumer 8 o~
products sector 31 December 2022 92 92 ¢ ¢ S N
Corporate bonds technology ) ) e
sector 31 December 202 2 152 152 C C

Revalued property, plant and equipment ( Note 17 )*:
Office properties in Euroland 31 January 2022 1,749 Cc c 1,749

Discontinued operations ( Note 14) 1 October 2022 2,751 Cc c 2,751

Assets for which fair values are disclosed ( Note 21.4):
Loan at amortised cost

Loan to an associate 31 December 202 2 197 C C 197
Loan to a director 31 December 202 2 11 ¢ c 11
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 202 2. IFRS 13.9(c)

* Due to a change in accounting policy, revaluations of property, plant and equipment were recognised in Level 3 for the first
time. Refer to Note 17 for more information.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

12. Fair value measurement (continued)

Fair value measurement hierarchy for

Liabilities measured at fair value:

liabilities as at 31 December 202 2:

Fair value measurement using

Derivative financial liabilities ( Note 21.4 ):

Interest rate swaps

Foreign exchange forward
contracts (GB pounds sterling)

Embedded commaodity
derivatives (brass)

Embedded commaodity
derivatives (chrome)

Foreign exchange forward
contracts gUS dollars

Commodity derivative (copper)

Contingent consideration liability
(Note 8)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed (

Interest -bearing loans and borrowings:

Floating rate borrowings
(Euroland)

Floating rate borrowings (US)
Convertible preference shares
Fixed rate borrowing

Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
Date of valuation Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
PEE PEE PEE PEE
31 December 202 2 35 ¢ 35 o}
31 December 202 2 800 c 800 o}
31 December 202 2 600 ¢ ¢ 600
31 December 202 2 182 ¢ ¢ 182
31 December 202 2 90 ¢ 90 c
31 December 202 2 980 ¢ 980 o}
31 December 202 2 1,072 ¢ ¢ 1,072
Note 21.4):
31 December 2022 10,420 ¢ 10,420 o}
31 December 202 2 2,246 ¢ 2,246 C IFRS 13.93(a)
31 December 2022 2,766 c 2,766 C IFRS 13.93(b)
31 December 2022 6,321 C 6,321 C IFRs13.97

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 202 2.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

12. Fair value measurement (continued)
Fair value measurement hierarchy for

Date of valuation

Assets measured at fair value:

Investment properties ( Note 18 ):

31 December 202 1
31 December 202 1
Derivative financial assets ( Note 21.4 ):

Foreign exchange forward
contracts US dollars

Foreign exchange forward
contracts GB pounds sterling 31 December 202 1

Listed equity investments (Note 21.4):
Power sector 31 December 202 1
31 December 202 1
(Note 21.4 ):

Office properties
Retail properties

31 December 202 1

Telecommunications sector
Non-listed equity investments

Power sector 31 December 202 1

Electronics sector 31 December 202 1
Quoted debt instruments (Note 21.4):

Euroland government bonds 31 December 202 1

Corporate bonds consumer
products sector 31 December 202 1

Assets for which fair values are disclosed ( Note 21.4 ):
Loan at amortised cost

Loan to a director 31 December 202 1

assets as at 31 December 202 1:

Fair value measurement using

Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
PEE PEE PEE PEE
3,824 ¢ ¢ 3,824
4,159 ¢ ¢ 4,159
100 ¢ 100 o}
53 ¢ 53 o}
200 200 (o} o}
100 100 (o} o}
390 ¢ (o} 390
508 ¢ (o} 508
1,210 1,210 (o} o}
400 400 (o} o}
9 ¢ (o} 9

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 202 1.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
12. Fair value measurement (continued) S &
Fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at 31 December 2021: Vil

Fair value measurement using

Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
Date of valuation Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
DEE PEE PEE PEE

Liabilities measured at fair value:
Derivative financial liabilities ( Note 21.4 ):

c
i)
=
3]
=]
S
[e)
=
c

Foreign exchange forward
contracts - US dollars 31 December 2021 254 - 254 -

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed (  Note 21.4 ):
Interest -bearing loans and borrowings:
Floating rate borrowings

(Euroland) 31 December 202 1 11,877 - 11,877 -
Convertible preference shares 31 December 202 1 2,621 - 2,621 -
Fixed rate borrowing 31 December 202 1 8,944 - 8,944 -

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 202 1.

In determining fair value measurement, the impact of potential climate -related matters, including legislation,
which may affect the fair value measurement of assets and liabilities in the financial statements has been
considered. These risks in respect of climate -related matters are included a s key assumptions where they
materially impact the measure of recoverable amount, these assumptions have been included in the cash-flow
forecasts in assessing value-in-use amounts.

Consolidated financial statements

At present, the impact of climate -related matters is not material tothe G ¥« ! C© { ~mvax~v¢ ©2

Commentary

IFRS 13.94 requires appropriate determination of classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of: -
3 The nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability , and o
3  The level of the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement i s categorised é ﬁ
The Group has applied the factors and disclosed the quantitative information under IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement based = -

on the classes of assets and liabilities determined as per IFRS 13.94. As judgement is required to determine the classes of N
properties, other criteria and aggregation levels for classes of assets may also be appropriate, provided they are based on
the risk profile of the assets (e.g., the risk profile of properties in an emerging market may differ from that of properties in
a mature market).

Inputs used in a valuation technique may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. However, for disclosure
purposes, the fair value measurement must be categorised in its entirety (i.e., de pending on the unit of account) within

the hierarchy. That categorisation may not be so obvious when there are multiple inputs used. IFRS 13.73 clarifies that

the hierarchy categorisation of a fair value measurement, in its entirety, is determined based on  the lowest level input
that is significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the entire measurement
requires judgement and consideration of factors specific to the asset or liability (or group of assets and/or liabilities) being
measured and any adjustments made to the significant inputs in arriving at the fair value. These considerations have a
follow -on impact on the disclosures of valuation techniques, processes and significant inputs and entities should tail or
their disclosures to the specific facts and circumstances.

For assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period measured at fair value on a recurring basis, IFRS 13.93(c)
requires disclosure of the amounts of transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the hierarchy, the reasons for those
a"yo©{z " © voy 2}z zwpa-~-a~CO ! ¥¢~x {¥" yza@z f£~wm-~o| -}zo 2}z
level must be disclosed and discussed separately from transfers out of each level.

Additional Australian disclosures

The IFRS 13 measurement and disclosure requirements do not apply to leasing transactions accounted for under IFRS 16.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

13. Other income/expense s
13.1 Other operating income

2022 2021

PEE PEE
Government grants ( Note 28) 1,053 541 1AS 20.39(b)
Gain on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss 850 - IFRS 7.20(a)(i)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 532 2,007 iAs197
Total other operating income 2,435 2,548 iAs198
The net gain on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss relates to foreign exchange forward
contracts that did not qualify for hedge accounting and embedded derivatives which have been separated.
13.2 Other operating expenses

2022 2021

PEE PEE
Bid defence costs 579 31 1as1.97
Cost of WEEE (Note 27) 102 22 1as1.97
Change in fair value of investment properties ( Note 18) 306 300 ias197
Loss on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1,502 - IFRS 7.20(a)
Ineffectiveness on forward commodity contracts designated as
cash flow hedges (Note 21.3) 65 - IFRS 7.24(b)
Total other operating expenses 2,554 353
Bid defence costs were incurred in respect of obtaining advice in defending a hostile takeover bid by a
competitor. The competitor did not proceed with the bid.
Net loss on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss relates to foreign exchange forward
contracts that did not qualify for hedge accounting and embedded derivatives which have been separated.
Commentary
IAS 1 does not require an entity to present the results of operating activities as a line item in the income statement. If an
entity elects to do so, it must ensure that the amount presented is representative of activities that would normally be
“z|lviyzy v©O C¥| z " va&@~o| C =2Vh RgWXhElguidancyd opeidting profity, ¥nze@ity o ¥ ¢ | 7}
needs to apply judgement in developing its own accounting policy under IAS 8.10.
The Group has taken the view that presenting the gains and losses on foreign exchange forward contracts and embedded
derivatives in operating income and expenses reflects the economic substance of those transactions as they are entered
into to hedge forecast sales and purchases and are, therefore, clearly associated with transactions which are part of the
operating income a nd expenses (IAS 8.10(b)(ii)). Other entities may take alternative views and, hence, there is diversity in
practice.
13.3 Finance costs

2022 2021
DEEE DEEE
Interest on debts and borrowings 1,036 1,020
Interest arising from revenue contracts 109 62  IFRS 15.65
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 31) 178 185
Total interest expense 1,323 1,267 IFRS 7.20(b)
Unwinding of discount and effect of changes in discount rate on provisions IAS 37.60
(Note 27) 43 1
Total finance costs 1,366 1,268
Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited 81
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
=
o
13. Other income/expenses (continued) <
13.4 Finance income 0l
2022 2021
PEEE PEEE
Interest income on a loan to an associate 17 -
Interest income from debt instruments at fair value through OCI 185 145  |Frs 7.20(0)
Total finance income 202 145

Commentary

Finance income and finance cost are not defined terms in IFRS. Some regulators limit the inclusion of certain income and
expense within those items (e.qg., restricted to interest income and expense), whilst other jurisdictions allow additional
items to be included.

c
o
=
o
=)
©
o
=
=
=

IFRS 15.65 requires the effects of financing (interest revenue or interest expense) to be presented separately from
revenue from contracts with customers in the statement of comprehensive income. The Group included the interest
expense on contract liabilities as part of finance costs.

13.5 Other income 8
2022 2021 GE)
DEEE DEEE £
0
Foreign exchange gains on interest -bearing loans and borrowings 57 67 )
Fair value gain on equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss 37 9  IFRS7.20(a)() §
Gain (loss) on sale of debt instruments at fair value through OCI 8 (4)  IFRS 7.20(a)iii) §
Dividend income from equity instruments at fair value through OCI 3 - IFRS 7.20(a)(vii) %
Impairment loss on debt instruments at fair value  through OCI (7) (6) =
Total other income 98 66 g
O
Commentary
Nox¥fz ~© yz{~wmzy ~8o 23}z x¥oxz|]aq«vet {"VvEz-¥"j vO ¢~wvx  zinOz
equity, other than those relating to contributionsfrom } ¥¢yz "~ © ¥{ z8«~2~ x¢v-~£0C =x}v!az
presented a net measure of income with impairment losses on debt instruments at fair value through OCI offsetting other K,'
income items. IAS 1.32 does not permit the offsetting income and e xpenses unless required or permitted by an IFRS. In this "
case, the Group does not consider this to be offsetting as it is for presentation purposes only and the balances are not g &
material enough to warrant separate presentation. z
(%)
o~

13.6 Depreciation, amorti sation, lease payments, foreign exchange differences and costs of
inventories

2022 2021 1as1.104
PEEE PEEE
Included in cost of sales: 8
Depreciation 3,802 3,063 §
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ( Note 17) - 301  AS36.126() [
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets ( Note 19) 125 174  1AS38.118(d) E
Net foreign exchange differences (65) (40) AS21.52() E
Warranty provision ( Note 27) 106 52 ﬁ
Variable lease payments (Note 31) 71 66 =
Expense relating to short -term leases (Note 31) 22 21 _%
Costs of inventories recognised as an expense 131,107 121,298 IAS 2.36(d) 2
Included in administrative expenses:
Depreciation 429 430
Impairment of goodwill ( Note 20) 200 - IAS36.126(a) -
Remeasurement of contingent consideration ( Note 8) 358 - ™
Net foreign exchange differences 33 8 IAS2152(1) <
i
H 5
< I
™
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

13. Other income/expenses (continued)
13.7 Employee benefits expense

Included in cost of sales:
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs
Post-employment benefits other than pensions
Share-based payment expense

Included in selling and distribution expenses:
Wages andsalaries
Social security costs
Pension costs
Post-employment benefits other than pensions
Share-based payment expense

Included in cost of administrative expenses:
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs
Post-employment benefits other than pensions
Share-based payment expense

Total employee benefits expense

13.8 Research and development costs
i}z V' ¥«!CO z¢zx2 " ¥u~x0O W«O©O~87z0O

2022 2021 ias1.104
DEE PEE
6,551 6,513
664 659
350 305
38 28
103 123
10,882 10,220
1,102 1,135
560 496
61 45
165 197
11,238 7,410
1,349 1,343
488 465
54 40
144 172 rrs 251(a)
33,749 29,151

"z0O0©zv" x}

vey yz-az¢

. IAS 38.126

enabled safety equipment. Research and development costs that are not eligible for capitalisation have been

expensed in the period incurred (in 2022A 2} ~© - v © DAEAANGCGBFAEBEAEEE>>A

in administrative expenses.

13.9 Administrative expenses

Employee benefits expense (Note 13.7 )

Acquisition -related transaction costs

Research and development costs

Depreciation

Expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets (Note 23)
Impairment of goodwill ( Note 20)

Expenserelating to leases of low-value assets (Note 31)

Remeasurement of contingent consideration ( Note 8)

Net foreign exchange differences

Other administrative expenses
Total administrative expenses

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

vay

2022 2021 1As1.104
DEE DEE
13,273 9,430
600 Cc
2,235 1,034
429 430
185 76
200 Cc
18 17
358 Cc
33 8
959 1,016
18,290 12,011
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
]
14. Discontinued operations | <
On 1 October 202 2, the Group publicly announced the decision of its Board of Directors to  sell Hose Limited, a :iii g:ii 0l
wholly owned subsidiary. On 14 November 202 2, the shareholders of the Company approved the plan to sell.
The sale of Hose Limited is expected to be completed within a year from the reporting date . At
31 December 202 2, Hose Limited was classified as a disposal group held for sale and as a discontinued
¥lz"va@a~¥oC i}z w«O~oz0C0O ¥{ | ¥0©Oz a~£~2zy "z|"20Czun2zy
segment until 1 October 202 2. With Hose Limited being classifie d as discontinued operations, the Rubber
Equipment segment is no longer presented in the segment note. The results of Hose Limited for the year are -
presented below: %
>
=}
2022 2021 IFRS5330)) 5
DEE| D E E | IFRS5.34 »
Revenue from contracts with customers 42,809 45,206
Expenses (41,961) (44,880)
Operating income 848 326
Finance costs (525) (519)
Impairment loss recognised on the remeasurement to fair value less costs i}
to sell (110) C  IFrs 5.33(b)iii)
Profit/(loss) before tax from discontinued operations 213 (193)

Tax benefit/(expense):
IFRS 5.33(b)(ii)

@
c
Q
=
]
s
0
Related to pre -tax profit/(loss) from the ordinary activities for the period (26) 5 1as 12.81(h)(i) g
. . IFRS 5.33(b)(iv) [
Related to remeasurement to fair value less costs to  sell 33 C ins12sinp =
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations 220 (188) 2
©
S
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Hose Limited classified as held for sale as at 31 December are, as IFRS 5.38 2
follows: 38
2022 IFRS 5.38
DEE IFRS 5.40
Assets
Intangible assets (Note 19) 135 -
Property, plant and equipment ( Note 17) 4,637 N
Debtors 7,180 @ ﬁ
Equity investments gnon-listed 308 3
Cash and short-term deposits ( Note 24) 1,294 e
Assets held for sale 13,554
Liabilities
Creditors (7,241)
Deferred tax liability (75) ”
Interest -bearing liabilities ( Note 21.2) (5,809) g
Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale (13,125) é
Net assets directly associated with disposal group 429 5
Amounts included in accumulated OCI: %
Fair value reserve of equity investments gnon-listed 66 IFRS 5.38 %
=}
Deferred tax on fair value reserve (20) <
Reserve of disposal group classified as held for sale 46 _g
- 5
T
<
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

14. Discontinued operations (continued)

The net cash flows incurred by Hose Limited are, as follows: IFRS 5.33(c)
2022 2021
PEELI PDEEL
Operating (2,999) 3,192
Investing ¢ ¢
Financing (436) (335)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow (2,435) 2,857
Earnings per share 2022 2021
Basic, profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations DECI =P E C 1As3368
Diluted, profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued  operations DECI =bEC
Interest-wzv”™ ~o| ¢~vw~¢~2~720 XxX¥£| ~0z v {~®zy “v&az wvagoj (IFRS77

in full on 1 January 202 3.

Commentary
IFRS 5Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations specifies certain disclosures required in respect of

discontinued operations and non -current assets held for sale. IFRS 5.5B states that the requirements of other standards
do not apply to discontinued operations, unless the other standards specify disclo sures that are applicable to them.

IFRS 12.B17 clarifie s that disclosures of summarised information specified in IFRS12.B10-B16 are not required when an
znad~a " CO ~mdz" z0O2 ~m v O©O«wO~y~v' A ¥~po28 Szpop2«"z ¥° VEOGBY¥X-~)
classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5. The other disclosure requirementsin ~ [ gh FG v | | ¢ 2 ¥ |
held-for-sale interests. The Group concluded that there is no additional information that it needs to disclose about its

wholly owned subsidiary, Hose limited, which is classified as disposal group held for sale as at 31 Decemb er 202 2.

IAS 33.68A provides an option to present the earnings per share from discontinued operations either on the face of the
statement of profit or loss or in the notes. The Group has opted to present the earnings per share from discontinued
operations in the notes.

Write -down of property, plant and equipment

Immediately before the classification of Hose Limited as discontinued operations, the recoverable amount was
estimated for certain items of property, plant and equipment and no impairment loss was identified. Following

the classification, awrite -y ¥ - o« FY{EAREEE =woz2 ¥{ 2v® DLLAEEEZ20221t @ducez:
the carrying amount of the assets in the disposal group to their fair value less costs to  sell. This was recognised

in discontinued operations in the statement of profit or loss. Fair value measurement disclosures are provided in
Note 12.

As at 31 December 202 2, there was no further write -down as the carrying amount of t he disposal group did not
fall below its fair value less costs to sell.

Investment in non-listed equity shares

The discontinued operation includes an investment in non-listed equity shares (Level 3 in the fair value IFRS 7.8(d)
hierarchy) of Electronici z © a2y - ~2} v x308,000. Thexcpllaborfténwitit ERdironi® Test :EE: ;:ig
Ltd is closely related to the discontinued operation of Hose Limited and is therefore reclassified as part of the IFRS 7.25

discontinued operations. This investment is classified as equity instruments designated at fair value through
OCI. The Group did not pledge the financial asset nor receive any collateral for it. As at the reporting date, the
carrying amount equals the fair value of the instrument. Refer Note 21.4 for the details on the recognition,

measurement, valuation techniques and inputs used for this investment

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited 85
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

14. Discontinued operations (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurement of the investment in non-listed equity shares:

PEE
As at 1 January 2021 304
Sales ¢
Purchases ¢
Total gains and losses recognised in OCI 4
As at 1 January 2022 and 1 October 202 2 308
Sales ¢
Purchases ¢
Total gains and losses recognised in OCI ¢
As at 31 December 2022 308

There were no gains or losses recognised in profit or loss or in OCI with respect to these assets.

Refer to Note 21.5 for details on the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments.

Commentary

IFRS 5 explains that disclosures in other standards do not apply to non -current assets (or disposal groups) classified as
held for sale or discontinued operations unless those other standards require:

3  Specific disclosures in respect of non -current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued
operations

3  Disclosures about the measurement of assets and liabilities with in a disposal group that are not within the scope of
the measurement requirements of IFRS 5 and such disclosures are not already provided in the other notes to the
financial statements

The requirement in the second bullet above reflects the fact that such  assets continue to be measured in accordance with
the specific standard dealing with them. In practice, much of the requirements will be satisfied by the disclosure of
accounting policies. The requirement for other disclosures will depend on the standard ¢ oncerned. The illustration above
reflects this circumstance, as the non -listed equity instruments is a financial instrument as defined in IFRS 9 and is
therefore scoped out of the measurement requirements of IFRS 5.

While, the assets of discontinu ed operations are non -recurring fair value measurements under IFRS 13.93(a), equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI held by the discontinued operations are recurring fair value
measurements since they are required to be measured at fair value at the end of each reporting p eriod.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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IFRS 13.93(f)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

15. Income tax
Commentary

The Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD)/G20 Inclusive Framework on Base Erosion and
Profit Shifting (BEPS) addresses the tax challenges arising from the digitalisation of the global economy.

The Pillar Two Global anti-Base Erosion rules (GIoBE Rules) represent the first substantial overhaul of the international tax
rules in almost a century. The GIoBE Rules propose four new taxing mechanisms under which mu ltinational enterprises
(MNESs) would pay a minimum level of tax (Minimum Tax): the Subject to Tax Rule is a tax treaty -based rule that generally
proposes a Minimum Tax on certain cross-border intercompany transactions that otherwise are not subject to a mi  nimum
level of tax, the Income Inclusion Rule (lIR), the Under Taxed Payments Rule (UTPR), and the Qualified Domestic Minimum
Top-up Tax (QDMT) generally propose a Minimum Tax on the income arising in each jurisdiction in which an MNE operates.

Under IAS 12 Income Tax, a new tax law is effective when it is enacted or substantively enacted in a particular jurisdiction.
MNEs need to monitor the regulatory developments in respect of (substantive) enactment of the GIoBE Rules in all of the
jurisdictions where t hey operate either through wholly - or partially -owned subsidiaries, joint ventures, flow through

entities or permanent establishments.

If the GIoBE Rules have not yet been (substantively) enacted in the jurisdictions in which an MNE operates, there is no
specific IFRS disclosure requirement. However, entities may consider whether to provide additional information on the

potential impact of the GIoBE Rules if it is helpful to understand the financial statements.

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are:

Consolidated profit or loss

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year
Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

Consolidated other comprehensive income

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:

Net (gain)/loss on cash flow hedges

Net change in costs of hedging

Net loss on debt instruments at fair value through OCI

Net (gain)/loss on equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI
Revaluation of office properties in Euroland

Net gain on hedge of net investment

Remeasurement (gain)/loss on actuarial gains and losses

Deferred tax charged to OCI

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

2022 2021
PEEI PEEI
Restated
2,883 2,770
(18) (44)
227 (493)
3,092 2,233
2022 2021
DEEI DEEI
265 (10)
10 Cc
6 c
8 ?3)
(254) Cc
(83) Cc
(110) 117
(158) 104

IAS 1.17(c)
IAS 12.88

IAS 12.79

IAS 12.80(a)
IAS 12.80(b)

IAS 12.80(c)

IAS 12.81(ab)

IAS 1.90
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
15. Income tax (continued) S |
Commentary ol

Deferred taxes related to the revaluation of office properties in Euroland have been calculated at the tax rate of the
jurisdiction in which they are located (30% of the total revaluation of D846,000, see Note 17).

The tax effect of cash flow hedge instruments reflects the change in balances from 2021 to 2022 only for the effective
portion (ineffectiveness has been accounted for directly in profit or loss). The reconciliation of these changes to the notes
is difficult to directly observe. For illustrative purposes, a reconciliation is provided below (please note that the net change

is also included in the statement of comprehensive income): s
Assets Liabilities §
2022 2021 2022 2021 :é
DEEI DEEI DEEE DEEI =
Foreign exchange forward contract assets 5 5
(Note 21.1) 252 153 C C
Foreign exchange forward contract liabilities 5 5
(Note 21.2) C C 170 254
Commodity forward contract ( Note 21.2) C C 980 C
Ineffectiveness of commodity contract C C (65) C
(Note 13.2) 5 5 @
Amount transferred to inventories ( Note 21.3) C C 183 S
Total balances 252 153 1,268 254 5
Net variation in OCI 99 1,014 %
Net increase of cash flow hedge balances during 915 '§
2022 (net liability and net loss) D g
Tax rate 30% =
Tax gain 275 %
- =2
o
2
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit £ « ¢2 ~! ¢ ~zy W Z« ¥ ¢v oy Cl@ndy 'AS1281 ) [
202 2:
2022 2021
DEEI DEEE
Restated P

Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations 11,088 8,880

Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation 213 (193) % 8

Accounting profit before income tax 11,301 8,687 = .

Va Z« " ¥¢voyCO ©2vac«a¥ " 1:30%¥£z 23ve 3,390 2,606 o

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years (18) (44)

Government grants exempted from tax (316) (162)

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (231) (89)

Share of results of an associate and joint ventures (201) (191)

Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes: )
Impairment of goodwill 60 c z
Contingent consideration remeasurement ( Note 8) 107 Cc 2
Other non -deductible expenses 10 c g

Effect of higher tax rates in the United States 284 108 =

At the effective income tax rate of 27% (202  1: 26%) 3,085 2,228 ﬁ

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 3,092 2,233 =

Income tax attributable to a discontinued operation @) (5) %

3,085 2,228 2

Commentary

The tax effects above can be reconciled using a 30% tax rate applied to the amounts in the following notes: )

™

3  Government grants (Note 28) upon recognition in the income statement .
3  Unrecognised tax losses using the change in the amount mentioned in Note 3 under the section headed Taxes. <t
3 Impairment of goodwill in Note 20 and contingent consideration expense in Note 8.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

15. Income tax (continued)

COVID-19 commentary

As a measure to assist entities during the COVID19, economic stimulus packages in some jurisdictions have included income
tax concessions and other rebates. If entities are active in a jurisdiction in which such measures are still in place, the following
disclosures may also be impacted:

3 An explanation of changes in the applicable tax rate compared to the prior period
3 The amount and expiry date of any tax losses carried forward .

3 The nature of evidence supporting the recognition of deferred tax assets when the entity has suffered a loss in the
current period .

Business disruption resulting from the COVID-19 may lead to an entity recognising asset impairments or forecasting future
losses. These circumstances may involve uncertainties that an entity must consider in its analysis of the recoverability of
deferred tax assets. Entities should update their projections of income for recent events. Tax losses that were otherwise
expected to be utilised in the near term should be reviewed to determine if they might expire unutilised and how this would
impact management's judgement on the amount of deferred tax asset to be recognised.

As the impact of COVID19 is less severe in many countries in 20 22 than in prior years, entities should update their
projections accordingly taking into account the amended forecasts for the future periods. Entities should further consider
whether they need to provide additional disclosures to explain the use of estima tes or management's judgement in reaching
its conclusions on the amount of unrecognised deferred tax assets.

Such judgements may include whether the tax laws were substantively enacted as of the reporting date, and the
determination of the accounting for i ncome tax credits. Similarly, the impact of expected or already enacted curtailments of
previously introduced measures must be considered.

In applying judgement, entities should consider IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments . Although IFRIC 23 was not
specifically developed to deal with a scenario such as the COVID-19, it, nonetheless, provides helpful guidance to consider in
accounting for the uncertainties that exist with respect to the application of complex tax legislation that was newly iss  ued in
response to the pandemic. It requires an entity to consider whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. If the entity concludes that the position is not probable of being accepted, the effect of the
uncer2 v ~o2 -~ ©ozzy© 2a¥ wz " z{¢zx?zy ~ua 2}z zopa-27CO vVxx¥«nd~ng

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

89

Contents

c
o
=
o
=)
©
o
=
=
=

Consolidated financial statements

Notes

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices

|

o

(e7]

<t

Lo/




|

(N
Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
15. Income tax (continued) S |
Deferred tax o

Deferred tax relates to the following:

Consolidated statement Consolidated statement
of financial position of profit or loss
2022 2021 2022 2021  |as 12.81())
PEE PEEI PEEI b E E | 1AS 12.81(g)(ii)
Restated Restated §
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (2,838) (599) 723 (298) é
Revaluations of investment properties to fair value (2,330) (1,422) (92) (90) é
Revaluations of office properties in Euroland to fair ) ) )
value (254) C C C
Revaluations of equity instruments to fair value
through profit or loss (16) (5) 11 3
Revaluations of financial assets at fair value through OCI 13 (4) ¢ ®
Revaluation of forward contracts and embedded
derivatives 196 Cc (196) Cc %
Revaluation of a hedged loan to fair value (11) c 11 ¢ £
Net gain on hedge of a net investment (83) Cc ¢ ¢ %
Share based payments 51 100 49 ¢ E
Post-employment medical benefits 102 59 (43) (33) é
Pension 813 834 (89) 55 5
Revaluations of an interest rate swap (fair value ) ) g
hedge) to fair value 11 C (11) C §
Revaluations of cash flow hedges 270 30 35 ¢ 38
Expected credit losses of debt financial assets 110 70 (40) 3
Contract liabilities for customer loyalty points 270 203 (67) (199)
Leases 76 72 4) (20)
Convertible preference shares 91 55 (36) (31) =
Losses available for offsetting against future 425 365 (24) (44) o
taxable income 2 I
Deferred tax expense/(benefit) 227 (654) g o
Net deferred tax liabilities (2,104) (242) Q
Reflected in the statement of financial position as
follows:
Deferred tax assets 425 365
Deferred tax liabilities:
Continuing operations (2,454) (607)
Discontinued operations (75) c
Deferred tax liabilities, net (2,104) (242)
Commentary

i}z \"¥«! CO ¢zvOz v £zuo2© fortazpupases «ix dcomtng for«thexdeferredvtax felatimg to
the lease, the Group considers both the lease asset and liability separately. The Group separately accounts for the
deferred taxation on the taxable temporary difference and the deductible temporary difference , which upon initial
recognition are equal and offset to zero . Deferred tax is recognised on subsequent changes to the taxable and temporary
differences.

Additional Australian disclosures

Entities should assess the impact of climate -related matters on future taxable profits and whether they are sufficient to
recover the deferred tax assets. The assumptions used in these estimations should be consistent with those used
elsewhere in the financial statements. [42)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
<
15. Income tax (continued) S [
Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities, net 2022 2021 1o
PEE PEE
Restated
As of 1 January (242) (459)
Adoption of amendments to IAS 37 36 ¢
As of 1 January as restated (206) (459) g
Tax expense during the period -§
recognised in profit or loss (227) 493 =
Tax income/(expense) during the period -
recognised in OCI (158) 104
Discontinued operation 2) ¢
Deferred taxes acquired in business combinations (1,511) (380)
As at 31 December (2,104) (242)
Commentary

Although not specifically required by IAS 1 or IAS 12, the reconciliation of the net deferred tax liability may be helpful.

As in some other disclosures included in this note, the cross reference with the amounts from which they are derived is
not direct. Nevertheless, the reasonableness of each balance may be obtained from the respective notes by applying a
30% tax rate. The exception being the accelerated depreciation for tax purposes whose change during the year is mainly
explained by the acquisition of Extinguishers Limited (see Note 7).

i}z \"¥«] }vO 2v® ¢t¥0O0Oz© 2} v202Y0 ¥BFZA F-NoM AZEE B¥>¢ v3a}lyv 2¥ {v " |as12.81()
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

Consolidated financial statements

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they may not be used to offset IAS 12.37
taxable profits elsewhere in the Group, they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss -making for some IAS 12.81(€)
time, and there are no oth er tax planning opportunities or other evidence of recoverability in the near future. If

atlz \" ¥« -z"z vwtCz 2¥ "zx¥|w8~0z VvVe¢ «a"zx¥|wv~0zy VY.

(20210 399,400). o

i}z 2zE£l ¥ v" " y~{{z7z8Xx2z© VOO¥Xx~Vvdazy -~2a} ~po-z02£zauo
{¥" -}~x} v yz{z"7"zy 2v® ¢~vw~¢~2" }VvO o¥2 wzzo 7 zX
(2021:BPFAI J MAEEE>C i étamined thaktHe undistriuted profits of its subsidiaries, joint venture IAS 12.81(f) Q
or associate will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. The Group has an agreement with its associate that

the profits of the associate will not be distributed until it obt  ains the consent of the Group. The Group does not
ved ~x~1védz | ~a~o|] ©O«Xx} x¥po©zwnad ya algz "zl ¥"2a8~p| yva,
its profits until it obtains the consent of all venture partners.

Notes
2

There are no income tax co nsequences attached to the payment of dividends in either 2022 or 202 1 by the IAS 12.82A
Group to its shareholders.

Commentary

IAS 1.61 requires an entity to separately disclose the line items that are included in the amounts expected to be recovered
or settled within 12 months and more than 12 months after the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities may be
considered one example, for items comprising such amounts. However, IAS 1.56, in contrast, does not permit
presentation of those items as current, which suggests that providing the disclosures required by IAS 1.61 does not apply
to deferred tax assets and liabilities . Therefore, the Group did not provide disclosures of the expected recovery and
settlement of its deferred tax assets.

Additional Australian disclosures
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

16. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPSis calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPSis calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary e  quity holders of the parent (after
adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The following table reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS calculations:

2022 2021
PEEI PEEI
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent: Restated
Continuing operations 7,708 6,408
Discontinued operations 220 (188)
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
for basic earnings 7,928 6,220
Interest on convertible preference shares 247 238
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent adjusted
for the effect of dilution 8175 6,458
2022 2021
Thousands Thousands
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic EPS* 20,797 19,064
Effects of dilution from:
Share options 112 177
Convertible preference shares 833 833
Weighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for the effect
of dilution* 21,742 20,074

* The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in treasury share s
during the year.

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the
reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

To calculate the EPS for discontinued operations ( Note 14 ), the weighted average number of ordinary shares
for both the basic and diluted EPS is as per the table above. The following table provides the profit/(loss)
amount used:

2022 2021
PEEI PEEI
Profit/(loss) attributable to  ordinary equity holders of the parent from
discontinued operations for the basic and diluted EPS calculations 220 (188)

Commentary

Entites ©} ¥« ¢y wz v-v~ 'z ¥{ 2@}z " z8«~"z£zw82@ ~8o ~Vh HHCLE=x> 2¥ y
shares) that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future, but were not included in the calculation of
diluted earnings per share because? } z=~ v’ 7z vod~y~¢«®~az {¥° 2a}lz 1z ~¥y=0> |°~

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 33.70(a)

IAS 33.70(a)

IAS 33.70(b)

IAS 33.70(b)

IAS 33.70(d)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

17. Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Office  Constru

land and properties ction in Plant and Other IAS 1.78(a)

buildings in Euroland  progress  machinery  equipment Total |as16.73()

PEE PDEEE PEE PDEELE PEE D E E 1as16.73(d)
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2021 10,765 1,122 Cc 17,657 5,500 35,044
Additions 1,587 C C 6,048 150 7,785
Acquisition of a subsidiary ( Note 8) 1,280 Cc Cc ¢ ¢ 1,280
Disposals (3,381) Cc Cc (49) C (3,430)
Exchange differences 10 ¢ c 26 C 36
At 31 December 2021 10,261 1,122 Cc 23,682 5,650 40,715
Additions 1,612 Cc 4,500 4,403 190 10,705
Acquisition of a subsidiary ( Note 8) 2,897 Cc Cc 4,145 C 7,042
Disposals Cc Cc Cc (4,908) C (4,908)
Assets held for sale (Note 14) (4,144) Cc Cc (3,980) C (8,124)
IFRS

Revaluation adjustment Cc 846 Cc ¢ Cc 846  13.93(e)(i)
Transfer* Cc (219) Cc ¢ Cc (219) 1as16.35()
Exchange differences 30 ¢ ¢ 79 c 109
At 31 December 202 2 10,656 1,749 4,500 23,421 5,840 46,166
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2021 4,061 99 Cc 11,044 900 16,104
Depreciation charge for the year 351 3 Cc 2,278 450 3,082
Impairment ( Note 20) Cc Cc Cc 301 o} 301
Disposals (3,069) Cc Cc (49) ¢ (3,118)
Exchange differences 5 ¢ ¢ 12 ¢ 17
At 31 December 2021 1,348 102 c 13,586 1,350 16,386
Depreciation charge for the year ** 383 117 Cc 2,827 470 3,797
Disposals Cc Cc c (3,450) C (3,450)
Assets held for sale (Note 14) (1,283) Cc c (2,094) ¢ (3377
Transfer* Cc (219) c Cc ¢c (219)
Exchange differences 20 c c 30 c 50
At 31 December 202 2 468 ¢ ¢ 10,899 1,820 13,187
Net book value
At 31 December 202 2 10,188 1,749 4,500 12,522 4,020 32,979
At 31 December 202 1 8,913 1,020 Cc 10,096 4,300 24,329

* This transfer relates to the accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date that was eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the revalued asset.

??2 Yz | "zx~va~¥no {(¥" 2}z zv' z®xC«yw®ldy o ~£]v-~"£zo2 ¢¥0O00O ¥|{

Commentary

If a lessee does not present right -of-use assets separately in the statement of financial position, IFRS 16.47 requires the
right -of-use assetsto be included within the same line item as that within which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they were owned . If the Group had included its right -of-use assets within property, plant and
equipment, a column for the right -of-use assets would be included in the above table with a cross -reference to the details
in Note 31 .
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o

<

o
17. Property, plant and equipment  (continued) <
IN2021A 2}z ~£lv-~"£z82 C¢¥0O ¥{ DIOEFOACETRIEproparty, plant® ami equigmert } o oora B
in the fire prevention segment to the recoverable amount as a result of technological obsolescence. This was
"zZXxX¥|v~0zy ~»o 2}z ©%vazfzwoma ¥{ | T¥{~2a ¥" (C¥0OO vO x¥
31 December 202 1 was based on value in use and was determined at the level of the CGU. The CGU consisted of
the Euroland-based assets of Sprinklers Limited, a subsidiary. In determining value in use for the CGU, the cash
flows were discounted at a rate of 12.4% on a pre -tax basis.
Capitalised borrowing costs 5
The Group started the construction of a new fire safety facility in February 202 2. This project is expected to be I
completed in February 202 3. The carrying amount of the fire safety facility at 31 December 202 2 was E
b HAE E E 2R E:Wil).The fire safety facility is financed by a third party in a common arrangement. =
The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 December 2022- v © DHEE@RMREEE :22 2222:;

Nil). The rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was 11%, which is the
EIR of the specific borrowing.

Land and buildings
Land and buildingswitha x v ™= " ~o | Vv E£¥«no2 20210 BELJAMAEEEEEANREE >= vz O« W  1AS 16.74(3)
©zx«"z 2a-¥ ¥{ 23}z \ " ¥«! CO wvoj ¢¥vooOC

Assets under construction
Included in property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2022 was an amountof B F A J E E 2R E:Hil) = IAS 16.74(b)
relating to expenditure for a plant in the course of construction.

Equipment received from customers

In 202 2, the Group received D F NE A RREO =b F J Ed égHifarent from customers to be utilised in the IAS 16.73(a)
. L . . . IFRS 15.66

production process. The initial gross amount was estimated at fair value by reference to the market price of IFRS 15.69

these assets on the date on which control is obtained .

Consolidated financial statements

Disposals of property, plant and equipment

IN2022A 2}z \ " ¥«| O©O¥C¢y z8«~| £zw?a - ~21 y ay¥yayg¢ woz?2 xy 7 IASIEE8A
DFANNEARREAL *jaz \ " ¥«| ©¥Cy {"zz}¥Cy ¢vay voy v w«~Cy oon
XvO} x¥wo0O~yz ' va2~¥o ¥{inshiGtheseriNpadalE k@ recogrisedmg Fart df ather operating

income in the statement of profit or loss ( Note 13).

—
Revaluation of office properties in Euroland o
Management determined that the office properties in Euroland constitute a separate class of property, plant IFRS 13.94 é N
and equipment, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the property. z

™
Fair value of the properties was determined using the market comparable method. The valuations have been IAS 16.77(b) N
performed by the valuer and are based on proprietary databases of prices of transactions for properties of IFRS 13.93(d)
similar nature, location and condition. As at the date s of revaluation on 1 January and 31 December 202 2, the
" ¥lz"a~70C {v~" -vet«z©®© v 'z wvOzy ¥8o -vi«va@~¥om© !z~
independent valuer who has valuation experience for similar office properties in Eurolan d since 2011 . A net
gain from the revaluationof the¥ { { ~xz | "¥| z" 8 ~z2© ~ o 2@ Wvas kaeognised {OCLD M| K

Fair value measurement disclosures for the revalued office properties are provided in Note 12.

Significant unobservable valuation input: Range IFRS
Price per square metre PHG-PHJE 13.93(h)(i)

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated price per square metre in isolation would result in a significantly
higher (lower) fair value on a linear basis.

Additional Australian disclosures
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o

<

o
17. Property, plant and equipment  (continued) o <
Reconciliation of carrying amount IFRS 13.93(e) o

PEE

Carrying amount as at 1 January 202 2* 1,020
Level 3 revaluation gain recognised due to change in accounting policy to revaluation model as
at 1 January 2022 1,210
Carrying amount and fair value as at 1 January 2022 2,230
Depreciation for the year (117) s
Level 3 revaluation loss on revaluation as at 31 December 202 2 (364) ‘§
Carrying amount and fair value as at 31 December 202 2 1,749 8

=

* The Group changed the accounting policy with respectto the measurement of office properties in Euroland as
at 1 January 2022 on a prospective basis. Therefore , the fair value of the office properties in Euroland was not
measured at 1 January 202 1.

If the office properties in Euroland were measured using the cost model, the carrying amounts would be, as IAS 16.77(€)
follows:

2022

PEE
Cost 1,122
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (105)
Net carrying amount 1,017
Commentary

The Group has changed its accounting policy to measure the office properties in Euroland at the revalued amount in

accordance with IAS 16. Under IAS 16.36, if an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the entire class of

property, plant and equ ipment to which that asset belongs should be revalued. IAS 16.37 defines a class of property, plant

vey z8«~| £zr2 vO v | ¥« ~ao| ¥{ vO0©z?0© ¥{ O~£~¢v" B©va«'z vay
properties in Euroland constitut e separate class of property, plant and equipment, based on their nature, characteristics

and risks.

Consolidated financial statements

Under IAS 16.31, the revalued amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is its fair value at the date of revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations shall be made
with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined
using fair value at the end of reporting period. Due to significant volatility of the fair value of office properties in Euroland —l
during 202 2 the Group performed a revaluation as at 31 December 202 2.

Fair value was determined using the market comparable method. This means that valuations perform ed are based on prices g g
of transactions involving properties of a similar nature, location and condition. Since this valuation was performed using a 3
significant non -observable input, the fair value was classified as a Level 3 measurement. g*\la

Since revaluation s of property, plant and equipment in accordance with IAS 16 represent a recurring fair value
measurement, the Group disclosed the information required by IFRS 13.93 for recurring fair value measurements. The
disclosures provided are based on Example 17 fr om the lllustrative examples to IFRS 13. It is assumed in these illustrative
financial statements that only one unobservable input, price per square metre, was used by the valuers. In practice, the
market comparable method may require the use more than one unobservable input. In such cases, the disclosures would
cover the additional significant unobservable inputs.

IFRS 13.99 requires an entity to present the quantitative disclosures of IFRS 13 in a tabular format, unless another format
is more appropriate . The Group included the quantitative disclosures in a tabular format.

Entities should consider the impact of climate -related matters on the life of property, plant and equipment. The introduction
of legislation or other regulations may result in a reducti on of the economic life of assets, compared to original forecasts.
Entities may also need to assess deprecation rates to increase the rate of deprecation of these assets. Furthermore, new
legislation may introduce new or stricter obligations to decommissio n assets and, as a result, may give rise to new or
remeasured provisions for decommissioning.

COVID-19 commentary

Many entities will have to assess property, plant and equipment for impairment. Entities may need to update their assumptions
about the future use of an asset, specifically the remaining useful life and residual values. Property, plant and equipment m  ay
be under-utilised or idled for a period, which may lead entities to change plans and require a reassessment of the useful life
estimates used in the depreciation calculations. Additionally, a weak economy may affect the residual value of property, plan t

Additional Australian disclosures

and equipment that will also need to be included in any estimates of depreciation expense. Considering the weakening of the %
impact of COVID19 in many countries, the economic environment may in some cases be experiencing signs of recovery , in
which case, entities may need to consider whether any impairments recognised in previous year s should be reversed as required %

by paragraph 110 of IAS 36.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

18. Investment properties

2022 2021 |as40.76
PEEI PEEI
Opening balance at 1 January 7,983 7,091
Additions (subsequent expenditure) 1,216 1,192
Net loss from fair value remeasurement (306) (300)
Closing balance at 31 December 8,893 7,983
i}z \"¥«!CO ~m-~z©af£zma | "¥lz"a-70 x¥on©O~02 ¥{ a-¥ x¥
alya alz ~g-z©3afzma | "¥lz"a-70 x¥on©~02 ¥{ a-¥ xtvOO
characteristics and risks of each property.
As at 31 December 202 2 and 202 1, the fair values of the properties are based on valuations performed by IAS 40.75(€)
Chartered Surveyors & Co., an accredited independent valuer. Chartered Surveyors & Co. is a specialist in
valuing these types of investment propertie s. A valuation model in accordance with that recommended by the
International Valuation Standards Committee has been applied.
2022 2021 |as40.75(f)
PEEI PEEI
Rental income derived from investment properties 1,404 1,377
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) generating
rental income (included in cost of sales) (101) (353) 1as 40.75(f)i)
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) that did not
generate rental income (included in cost of sales) (37) (127)  1as 20751y
Profit arising from investment properties carried at fair value 1,266 897
The Group has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations to IAS 40.75(9)
purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements. 145 40.750)
Fair value hierarchy disclosures for invest ment properties are in Note 12.
Reconciliation of fair value:
Investment properties
Office Retail
properties properties
DEEE DEEE
As at 1 January 2021 3,397 3,694
IFRS
Remeasurement recognised in profit or loss (144) (156)  13.93()G)
IFRS
Purchases 571 621  1393()i)
As at 31 December 2021 3,824 4,159
Remeasurement recognised in profit or loss (in other operating expenses) (247) (159)  IFrs 13.93(1)
Purchases 583 633
As at 31 December 2022 4,260 4,633

Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation of investment properties:

Valuation IFRS
technique Significant unobservable inputs Range (weighted average) 13.93(c)
2022 2021
Office DCF method Estimated rental value per sqm per month DFEDGJ = DNBDGH =
properties (refer below) Rent growth p.a. 1.75% 1.76%
Long-term vacancy rate 3%- 10% (5%) 3%- 9% (4%)
Discount rate 6.5% 6.3%
Retail DCF method Estimated rental value per sgm per month DFIPHJ =DbFIDHH =
properties (refer below) Rent growth p.a. 1% 1.2%
Long-term vacancy rate 4%- 12% (7%) 4%-13% (8.5%
Discount rate 6.5% 6.3%
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) 21
18. Investment properties (continued) S [
Using the DCF method, fair value is estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of o

¥-0z" ©}~! ¥-z" 2}z vo©z2CO ¢~{z ~oxtC«y~m| vo z@®~2 ¥
series of cash flows on a real property interest. To this projected cash flow series, a market -derived discount

rate is applied to establish the present value of the income stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is
normally separately determined and differs fro m the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows and outflows are determined by events such as
rent reviews, lease renewal and related re -letting, redevelopment, or refurbishment. The appropriate duration is
typically driven by market beha viour that is a characteristic of the class of real property. Periodic cash flow is
typically estimated as gross income less vacancy, non -recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance cost, agent and commission costs and other oper ating and management expenses. The series of
periodic net operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the

projection period, is then discounted.

c
i)
=
3]
=]
S
[e)
=
c

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rental value and rent growth per annum in isolation would result
in a significantly higher (lower) fair value of the properties. Significant increases (decreases) in the long  -term
vacancy rate and discount rate (and exit yield) in isolation would result in a significantly  lower (higher) fair
value.

Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a directionally IFRS13.93(h)(i)
similar change in the rent growth per annum and discount rate (and exit yield), and an opposite change in the
long-term vacancy rate.

Commentary
The Group has elected to value investment properties at fair value in accordance with IAS 40.

If, for recurring and non -recurring fair value measurements, the highest and best use of a non -financial asset differs from

its current use, an entity must disclose that fact and the reason why the asset is being used in a manner that differs from

its highest and best use (IFRS13.93(i)). The Group has assessed that the highest and best use of its properties does not

differ from their current use. An example of what might be disclosed if the highestandbestuse ¥{ 2}z \ " ¥«! CO
property is determined to be other than its current use is, as follows:

Consolidated financial statements

3  The Group has determined that the highest and best use of the property used for office space is its current use.
3  The highest and best use of the retail property at the measurement date would be to  convert the property for
residential use. For strategic reasons, the property is not being used in this manner.

In addition to the disclosure requirements in IFRS 13, IAS 1 requires disclosure of the significant judgements management a
has made about the fut ure and sources of estimation uncertainty. IAS 1.129(b) includes, as an example of such a

disclosure, the sensitivity of carrying amounts to the methods, assumptions and estimates underlying their calculation, o N
including the reasons for the sensitivity. As such, information beyond that required by IFRS 13.93(h) may be needed in g o
some circumstances. g

IAS 40 permits investment properties to be carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. If the Group accounted f or investment properties at cost, information about the cost basis and
depreciation rates (similar to the requirement under IAS 16 for property, plant and equipment) would be required. IAS
40.79(e) requires disclosure of fair value of the properties. Fort he purpose of this disclosure, the fair value is required to
be determined in accordance with IFRS 13. Also, in addition to the disclosures under IAS 40, IFRS 13.97 requires
disclosure of:

3 The level at which fair value measurement is categorised i.e., Leve |1, Level 2 or Level 3
3 Adescription of valuation technique and inputs, for Level 2 or Level 3 fair value measurement
3 If the highest and best use differs from the current use of the asset, th at fact and the reason

IFRS 13.99 requires an entity to present the quantitative disclosures of IFRS 13 in a tabular format, unless another
format is more appropriate. The Group included the guantitative disclosures in tabular format, above.

COVID-19 commentary

The impact on fair value measurement (FVM) arising from COVID-19 and the continuing economic and market disruptions
varies across countries, markets and industries. Some uncertainty is likely to continue, even as many jurisdictions begin to
ease the restri ctions and open up their economies. When valuations are subject to significant measurement uncertainty due to
the current environment and there is a wider range of estimates of FVM, the entity is required to apply judgement to
determine the point within that range that is most representative of FVM in the circumstances.

Additional Australian disclosures

While market volatility may suggest that the prices are aberrations and do not reflectf  air value, it would not be appropriate %
for an entity to disregard market prices at the measurement date, unless those prices are from transactions that are not
<

orderly.

A significant increase or decrease in volume or activity in a market can also influence the valuation techniques used in the
FVM. Entities will need to assess how those techniques are applied and whether inputs are observable at the measurement
date.

Appendices
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
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]
19. Intangible assets and goodwill o <
Patents and Licences
licences with Lo}
Development  with definite indefinite
costs useful life  useful life Goodwill Total  |as38.118()
PEE PEE PEE PEE D E E 1As 38.118()
Cost
At 1 January 2021 1,585 395 240 119 2,339
Additions ginternally developed 390 ¢ ¢ ¢ 390 5
Acquisition of a subsidiary (restated *) Cc Cc ¢ 131 131 I
At 31 December 2021 1,975 395 240 250 2,860 g
Additions ginternally developed 587 C C C 587 =
Acquisition of a subsidiary c 30 1,170 2,231 3,431
Assets held for sale Cc (138) ¢ c (138)
At 31 December 2022 2,562 287 1,410 2,481 6,740
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2021 165 60 ¢ Cc 225 @
Amortisation 124 50 ¢ ¢ 174 S
At 31 December 2021 289 110 ¢ ¢ 399 £
Amortisation 95 30 ¢ ¢ 125 °
Impairment ( Note 20) C C C 200 200 9
Assets held for sale Cc (3) ¢ Cc (3) .g
At 31 December 2022 384 137 ¢ 200 721 é
©
Net book value §
At 31 December 2022 2,178 150 1,410 2,281 6,019 3
At 31 December 202 1 (restated*) 1,686 285 240 250 2,461

* The amount of goodwill is restated and does not correspond to the figures in 202 1 financial statements since adjustments
to the final valuation of acquisition of Lightbulbs Limited were made, as detailed in  Note 8.

There are two fire prevention research and development projects: one is to improve fire detection and sprinkler ]
systems and the other is related to fire -retardant fabrics for motor vehicles and aircraft.

(%]

o N
Acquisition during the year g N

Patents and licences include intangible assets acquired through business combinations. The patents have been ™
granted for a minimum of 10 years by the relevant government agency, whilst licences have been acquired with
the option to renew at the end of the period at little or no cost to the Group. Previous licences acquired have

been renewed and have allowed the Group to determine that these assets have indefinite useful lives. As at

31 December 202 2, these assets were tested for impairment (Note 20).

Additional Australian disclosures
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
20. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite  useful lives S <
For impairment testing goodwill acquired through business combinations and licences with indefinite useful lives "

are allocated to the electronics and fire prevention equipment CGUs, which are also operating and reportable
segments.

Carrying amount of goodwill and licences allocated to each of the CGUs:

Fire prevention

Electronics unit equipment unit Total -

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 %

PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE '§

Goodwil 50 250 2,231 ¢ 2,281 250 ias3613s) [
Licences 360 ¢ 1,050 240 1,410 240  1as 36.134(h)

The Group performed its annual impairment test in  October 202 2 and 202 1. The Group considers the
relationship between its market capitalisation and its book value, among st other factors, when reviewing for
indicators of impairment. As at 31 December 202 2, the market capitalisation of the Group was below the book
value of its equity, indicating a potential impairment of goodwill and impairment of the assets of the operating
segments. In addition, the overall decline in construction and development activities around the world, as well
as the ongoing economic uncertainty, have led to a decreased demand in both the fire prevention equipment
and electronics CGUs.

Electronics CGU

The recoverable amount of the electronics CGU of PHL AJ KGAEEE v © 2022 hhbbeéhzleteznfinedz 'S 36.130()
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior :2222:1121((?)%"\3)
management covering a five -year period. Th e projected cash flows have been updated to reflect the decreased IAS 36.134(d)(v)
demand for products and services. The pre -tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 15.5% ( 202 1: IAS 36.126(a)
12.1%) and cash flows beyond the five -year period are extrapolated using a 3.0% g rowth rate ( 202 1: 5.0%) that

is the same as the long-term average growth rate for the electronics industry. It was concluded that the fair

value less costs of disposal did not exceed the value in use. As a result of this analysis, management has

recognisedvae ~£|v~"£zw?2 x}v" |z ¥{ DGEEAEEE ~8o 2}z x«" " zuo
PGIJEAEEE v © v 220HFTheimpaizngénweharge is recorded within administrative expenses in the

statement of profit or loss.

Consolidated financial statements

—
Fire prevention equipment CGU &
The recoverable amount of the fire prevention equipment CGU is also determined based on a value in use IAS 36.130(e) N
calculatign using cas:h flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior management covering a five - :2::2'11:2((30“) g N
year period. The projected cash flows have been updated to reflect the decreased demand for products and IAS 36.134(d)(iv) %)
services. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 14.4% ( 202 1: 12.8%). The growth rate 'AS36.134(d)(v) o

used to extrapolate the cash flows of the unit beyond the five -year period is 4.1% (202 1: 3.8%). This growth rate

exceeds the industry average growth rate by 0.75%. Management of the fire prevention equipment unit believes

this growth rate is justified based on the acquisition of Extinguishers Limited. This acquisition has resulted in the

Group obtaining control of an industry patent, thereby preventing other entities from manufacturing a

specialised product for a period of 10 year s. The Group has an option to renew the patent after the 10 years

}v=z z®| ~"zyC VO v " z0O«¢t?2 ¥{ 23}z vove O©O~0OA 2}z "z ~0©IAS3613400
impairment for this CGU.

Key assumptions used in value in use calculations and s ensitivity to changes in assumptions
The calculation of value in use for both electronic and fire prevention equipment units is most sensitive to the IAS 36.134(d)()
(¢

following assumptions: IAS 36.134(d)(i)
9 p : 1AS 36.134(f)

IAS 36.134(f)(ii)

Gross margins IAS 36.134(f)(ii)

Discount rates

Additional Australian disclosures

Market share during the forecast period

3
3
3 Raw materials price inflation
3
3

Growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecast period

™
Climate-related matters g The Group constantly monitors the latest government legislation in relation to climate - ™
related matters. At the current time, no legislation  has been passed that will impact the Group. The Group will <

adjust the key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations and sensitivity to changes in assumptions should a 7
. o

change be required. S [y
=

o [Nsel
Qo
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

20. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite  useful lives (continued)

Gross margins Gross margins are based on average values achieved in the three years preceding the beginning
of the budget period. The gross margins for the electronics CGU and the fire prevention equipment CGU were
22.17% and 26.03%, respectively. These are increased over the budget period for anticipated efficiency
improvements. An increase of 1.5% per annum was applied for the electronics unit and 2% per annum for the
fire prevention equipment unit .

Decreased demand can lead to a decline in the gross margin. A decrease in the gross margin by 1.0% would
result in a further impairment in the electronics unit. A decrease in the gross margin by 5.0% would result in
impairment in the fire prevention equipm ent unit.

Discount rates Discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, taking
into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been
incorporated in the ¢ ash flow estimates. The discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of

the Group and its operating segments and is derived from its weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The

WACC takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of equity is derived from the expected return on
~o-zO©2f£zma w a2}z \"¥«! CO ~p-az©2¥"  ©-Bearindborrowikg®the Gfolpisy z -
obliged to service. Segment -specific risk is incorporated by applying individual beta factors. The beta factors are
evaluated annually based on publicly available market data. Adjustments to the discount rate are made to factor

in the specific amount and timing of the future tax flows in order to reflect a pre  -tax discount rate.

A rise in the pre -tax discount rate to 16.0% (i.e. , +0.5%) in the electronics unit would result in a further
impairment. A rise in the pre -tax discountrate to 15.6%(i.e. +1.2%) in the fire prevention equipment unit would
result in impairment.

Raw materials price inflation Estimates are obtained from published indices for the countries from which
materials are sourced, as well as data relating to specific commodities. Forecast figures are used if data is
publicly available (principally for Euroland and the United States), otherwise past actual raw material price
movements are used as an indicator of future price movements.

Management has considered the possibility of greater -than-forecast increases in raw material price inflation.
This may occur if anticipated r egulatory changes result in an increase in demand that cannot be met by
suppliers. Forecast price inflation lies within a range of 1.9% to 2.6% for the electronics unit and 2.1% to 4.5%
for the fire prevention equipment unit, depending on the country from  which materials are purchased. If prices
of raw materials increase on average by 0.5% more than the forecast price inflation, the Group will have a
further impairment.

Market share assumptions When using industry data for growth rates (as noted below), these assumptions are
~£l ¥ aypa wzxv«®©z £vov|z£f£zunad yvOOzO©Oz©® }¥- 2}z «w~2C(C
a1z {¥"zxvO2 ! z"~¥yC bvaov|z£fzr?a z®! zx?2 ©20%)tabe stabl evérC ©
the forecastpe™ ~¥y C bvaov|z£zo?2 z®!zx20© 2}z \ " ¥«! CO | ¥O0~2a~¥:x
to its competitors to strengthen following the acquisition of Extinguishers Limited. i}z \"¥«! CO £v
the fire prevention equipment market is currentl y 37%.

Although £vov | z£zr2 z®! zx20© 2}z \ " ¥«! CO £v ' jz2a ©}v 'z ¥{
forecast period, a decline in the market share by 8% would result in a further impairmentin  the electronics unit .
Similarly, a decline in market share in the fire prevention equipment market by 20% would result in impairment

in the fire prevention equipment unit.

Growth rate estimates Rates are based on published industry research. For the reasons explained above, the
long-term rate used to ext rapolate the budget for the fire prevention equipment unit includes an adjustment on
account of the acquisition of a significant industry patent.

Management recognises that the speed of technological change and the possibility of new entrants can have a
significant impact on growth rate assumptions. The effect of new entrants is not expected to have an adverse
impact on the forecasts, but could yield a reasonably possible alternative to the estimated long -term growth
rate of 5.2% for the electronics unit and 8.4% for the fire prevention equipment unit. A reduction by 0.8% in the
long-term growth rate in the electronics unit would result in a further impairment. For the fire prevention
equipment unit, a reduction by 0.3% in the long-term growth rate would result in impairment.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

20. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives (continued)

Commentary

The Group has determined the recoverable amounts of its cash generating units (CGUs) based on value in use under

IAS 36. If the recoverable amounts are determined using fair value less costs of disposal, IAS 36.134(e) requires
disclosure of the valuation technique(s) and other information including: the key assumptions used , a description of
fEvov|z£zvaCO v! ! " ¥vx} atdelewel of fair valuze hierar@yandthedreasén(s) for chan ging valuation
techniques, if there is any change. Furthermore, if fair value less cost of disposal is determined using discounted cash flow
projections, additional information such as the period of cash flow projections, growth rate used to extrapolate ca  sh flow
projections and the discount rate(s) applied to the cash flow projections are required to be disclosed. An entity is not
required to provide disclosures required under IFRS 13, these disclosures under IAS 36.134(e) are similar to those under
IFRS 13.

IAS 36.134(d)(i) requires disclosure of key assumptions made for each CGU for which the carrying amount of goodwill or
~pdyao| ~w¢tz vO©z2a© -~2} ~oyz{-~o~2z «O©z{«¢ ¢~-z© ve¢C¥xvazof
goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. While the disclosures above have been provided for illustrative
purposes, companies need to evaluate the significance of each assumption used for the purpose of this disclosure.

IAS 36.134(f) requires disclosures of sensitivity analysis for each CGU for which the carrying amount of goodwill or

intangible assets with indefinite useful ¢ ~-z© v¢¢¥xvazy 2a¥ alya X\j ~© ©~|o~{~xva

carrying amount of goodwill or intangib le assets with indefinite useful lives. These disclosures are made if a reasonably

| ¥00~w¢z x}ve|z ~B VvV jz VOO«E|?3&~¥no «Ozy ?a¥ yicaryiigamauntlo} z
exceed its recoverable amount. The Group has made these disclosures for all the key assumptions for the electronics unit,
since there is an impairment charge during the year and the carrying amount equals recoverable amount, and for the fire
prevention equipment unit, as it is believed that a reasonably possib le change in the key assumptions may cause

impairment. Entities need to also take into account the consequential effect of a change in one assumption on other
assumptions, as part of the sensitivity analyses when determining the point at which the recovera ble amount equals the
carrying amount (IAS 36.134(f)(iii)). The Group has considered this in the disclosures herein.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities
21.1 Financial assets

2022 2021
PEE PEE
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
Foreign exchange forward contracts 640 ¢
Embedded derivatives 210 ¢
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Foreign exchange forward contracts 252 153
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Listed equity investments 337 300
Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI
Non-listed equity investments
Power Limited 417 205
Power Supplier Inc. 258 185
Electronics Manufacturing Inc. 70 151
Electronics Seller Inc. 293 Cc
Electronic Test Ltd. ¢ 308
Electronics Supplier Ltd. ¢ 49
1,038 898
Debt instruments at fair value through OCI
Quoted debt instruments 1,622 1,610
Total financial assets at fair value 4,099 2,961
Debt instruments at amortised cost
Trade receivables (Note 23) 25,672 22,290
Loan to an associate 200 o}
Loan to a director 13 8
Total financial assets * 29,984 25,259
Total current 26,223 22,443
Total non -current 3,761 2816

* Financial assets, other than cash and short -term deposits

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments  reflect the positive change in fair value of those foreign
exchange forward contracts that are not designated in hedge relationships, but are, nevertheless, intended to
reduce the level of foreign currency risk for expected sales and purchases.

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments reflect the positive change in fair value of foreign exchange
forward contracts, designated as cash flow hedges to hedge highly probable forecast sales in US dollars (USD).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  include investments in lis ted equity shares. Fair values of
these equity shares are determined by reference to published price quotations in an active market

Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI include investments in equity shares of non -listed
companies. The Group holds non-controlling interests (between 2% and 9%) in these companies. These
investments were irrevocably designated at fair value throug h OCI as the Group considers theseinvestments to
be strategic in nature.

In 202 2, the Group sold its equity interest in Electronics Supplier Ltd. as this investment no longer coincides

-~2} a2}z \"¥«! CO ~wm-zO2fzwva ©2"vaPUEBEEEzvey~2}2V &«

"zZXx¥| 8~0zy ~8o dX* ¥{ DéamEdeaningu @202 2,the @dup receivey dividéhds'in the
amount of B H A Efiédri Power Limited.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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IFRS 7.11A(a)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities

21.1 Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments at fair value through OCI include investments in quoted government and corporate bonds .
Fair values of these debt instruments are determined by reference to published price quotations in an active
market .

(continued)

Debt instruments at amortised cost  include trade receivables and receivables from related parties.

Commentary

IFRS 7.11A requires disclosure of which investments in equity instruments have been designated to be measured at fair
value through OCI and the fair value of each such investment at the end of the reporting period. For illustrative purposes,
the Group provided disclosure for each individual investment.

Entities will need to apply the concept of materiality for this disclosure requirement , such that disclosures are provided
separately for investments that are themselves material and aggregated disclosures m ay suffice for immaterial items.

21.2 Financial liabilities: Interest -bearing loans and borrowings

Interest rate Maturity 2022 2021

IFRS 7.7

% DEE DPEE
Current interest -bearing loans
and borrowings
Lease liabilities (Note 31) 45-7.8 2023 455 418
Bank overdrafts EURIBOR+1.0 On demand 966 2,650
PFAJEEAEEE wvaoj ¢¥vao EURIBOR+0.5 1 Nov 202 3 1,411 Cc
PGAGEEAEEE wvaoj ¢C¥vao EURIBOR+0.5 31 Mar 202 2 C 74
Total current interest -bearing loans
and borrowings 2,832 3,142
Non-current interest -bearing loans
and borrowings
Lease liabilities (Note 31) 45-7.8 2024-2035 2,706 2,553
8% debentures 8.2 2024-2029 3,374 3,154
8.25% secured loan of USD3,600,000 *LIBOR+0.2 31 May 2027 2,246 ¢
Secured bank loan LIBOR+2.0 31 Jul 2027 3,479 3,489
DFAJEEAEEE (20210O; BDEFEWYVY € E, EURIBOR+0.5 1 Nov 202 3 Cc 1,357
DGALJEAEEE (20210; DGYJE E, EURIBOR+1.1 2025-2027 2,486 2,229
PGAGEEAEEE wvaoj ¢¥va EURIBOR+0.5 31 Mar 2025 2,078 2,078
PJAMENAEEE wvaoj ¢¥va 7.5 1 Jan 2026 Cc 5,809
Loan from a third -party investor in Fire
Equipment Test Lab Limited 11.0 2024 3,000 Cc
Convertible preference shares 11.6 2027 2,778 2,644
Total non -current interest -bearing
loans and borrowings 22,147 23,313
Total interest -bearing loans
and borrowings 24,979 26,455
* Includes the effects of related interest rate swaps.
Commentary
IFRS 7.7 only requires disclosure of information that enables users of the financial statements to evaluate the  significance
of financial instruments for its financial position and performance. As the Group has a significant amount of interest -
bearing loans and borrowings on its statement of financial position, it has decided to provide detailed information to the
users of the financial statements about the EIR as well as the maturity of the loans.
Bank overdrafts IFRS 7.7
i}z wvej] ¥-z"y'v{@0© v'z ©zx«’ ztgrmdeposits. | ¥ 2 ~¥no ¥{ 2}z

PFAJEEAEEE wvaoj ¢C¥vao
This loan is unsecured and is repayable in full on 1 November 202 3.

8% debentures

itz M: yzwzod« " z© viz “z}v vwtz ~8 z8«ve¢ vopo«vR2024080
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

21.2 Financial liabilities: Interest  -bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

8.25% secured loan

i}z ¢¥vo ~0O0 Ozx«"zy w Vv {~702% x}v' |z ¥-z" xz"?@v-~no
DGA| EE A®R E:Nil).=

Secured bank loan

This loan has been drawn down under a six-year multi -option facility (MOF). The loan is repayable within

12 months after the reporting date but has been classified as long term because the Group expects, and has the
discretion, to exercise its rights under the MOF to refinance this funding. Such immediate replacement funding

is available until 31 July 202 7. The total amount repayableon £v 23 «*~ ~2~ ~© DPHAJEEAEEEC
wo v {~702 x}v |z ¥-az" xz av~nm ¥{ a}z \"¥«!CO 202Mny
PJAEEEAEEE>C

PGALJEAEEE wvaoj ¢C¥vao

The Group increased its borrowings under thisloancon2 " vx 23 w  BDGJEAEEE y«’ ~o| @&}
~© "z}jv vw¢z ~@o 2a-¥ ~o@©23v¢E£zo? ©0X5v oBF ADGIAE AEEERAEE EyE« zy «¥%2
31 December 202 7.

PGAGEEAEEE wvaoj ¢C¥vao
This loan is unsecured and is repayable in full on 31 March 2025. As of 31 December 2021A LI AEEE -
repayable on 31 March 202 2.

PJAMENAEEE wvaoj ¢C¥vao
This loan has been transferred to the net balance of the liabilities held for sale.

Convertible preference shares
At 31 December 202 2 and 202 1, there were 2,500,000 convertible preference shares in issue. Each share has

v v’ vtz ¥{ DPF voy ~0O0 x¥wo-z " 2~w¢z va@ 2lz ¥|2a~¥np
Group on 1 January 202 4 on the basis of one ordinary share for ev ery three preference shares held. Any
preference shares not converted will be redeemed on 31 December 2027v & v | " ~xz ¥{ Th&CG

preference shares carry a dividend of 7% per annum, payable half -yearly in arrears on 30 June and

31 December. The dividend rights are non -cumulative. The preference shares rank ahead of the ordinary shares
in the event of a liquidation. The presentation of the equity portion of these shares is explained in ~ Note 25
below.

Other financial liabilities

2022 2021
PEE PEE
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
Foreign exchange forward contracts 720 Cc
Embedded derivatives 782 c
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Foreign exchange forward contracts 170 254
Commodity forward contracts 980 Cc
Interest rate swaps 35 Cc
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Contingent consideration ( Note 8) 1,072 Cc
Total financial instruments at fair value 3,759 254
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost, other than interest -bearing loans
and borrowings
Trade and other payables (Note 30) 16,969 20,023
Total other financial liabilities 20,728 20,277
Total current 19,922 20,277
Total non-current 806 ¢

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 1.73

IAS 1.79(a)(v)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
21. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) S <
21.2 Financial liabilities: Interest  -bearing loans and borrowings (continued) .

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments  reflect the negative change in fair value of those foreign
exchange forward contracts that are not designated in hedge relationships, but are, nevertheless, intended to
reduce the level of foreign currency risk for expected sales and purchases.

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments reflect the negative change in fair value of foreign exchange IFRS 7.32A
forward contracts, designated as cash flow hedges to hedge highly probable future purchases in GBP. This al so
includes the change in fair value of commodity forward contracts entered into during 202 2.

Contingent consideration

As part of the purchase agreement with the previous owner of Extinguishers Limited, a contingent consideration

has been agreed. This consideration is dependent on the profit before tax of Extinguishers Limited during a
12£¥wo2} 172" ~¥yC i}z {v~" —vet«z ¥{ 2}z x¥wop?2~p|zo2 x¥ang
Avt«z ~wox"zvOzy 2¥ DFAERIRAJIEEAS sig@ficantly enHaRced/performaneezcompared
to budget. The contingent consideration is due for final measurement and payment to the former shareholders

on 30 September 202 3.

IFRS 3.B64(g)

c
i)
=
3]
=]
S
[e)
=
c

Commentary

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures requires an entity to disclose information about rights to set off financial
instruments and related arrangements (e.g., collateral agreements) and to provide users with information that is useful in
evaluating the effect of netting arrangement © ¥o vao zw2~2-CO {~ovox-~ve | ¥0~2~¥woC

The Group is not setting off financial instruments in accordance with IAS 32 and does not have relevant offsetting
arrangements. However, if an entity has recognised financial instruments that are set off in accordance  with IAS 32 or are
subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement, even if the financial instruments are not set

off in accordance with IAS 32, then the disclosures in IFRS 7.13A -13E will be required.

Consolidated financial statements

COVID-19 commentary

Entities may have obtain ed additional financing, amend ed the terms of existing debt agreements or obtain ed waivers if they
no longer satisfied debt covenants. In such cases, they will need to consider the guidance provided in IFRS 9 to determine
whether changes to existing contractual arrangements represent ed a substantial modification or, potentially, a contract
extinguishment, which would have accounting implications in each case. Furthermore, e ntities may need to determine
whether a breach of covenants will require non -current liabilities to be reclassified as current liabilities in the ir financial

-
statements N
Guarantees b N
o
Where guarantees are issued by governments for a below market rate fee, entities will have to assess whether this con stitutes z

a government grant to be accounted for and disclosed in accordance with IAS 20 (Referto  Note 2.3(f) ). In performing such an g
assessment, entities will need to consider the level of the interest rate offered to the borrower on the guaranteed loan and
whether the economics of the overall transaction are providing a benefit to the lender, the borrower orto b oth. For example,
if a benefit to a lender from a below market -rate fee on a guarantee is required to be partially offset by a reduction in the
interest earned on the loan to the borrower, the value of any government grant to the lender may be reduced ore  liminated. In
such a case, the value of the grant accrues mainly to the borrower in the form of a below market-rate loan relative to the

W¥ " "¥-272"CO x"zy~2 " ~0jC

Where such guarantees are provided at below market rates by holding companies or other group e ntities, the initial benefit
provided may need to be accounted for as an equity transaction between group entities.

Additional Australian disclosures
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)

21.3 Hedging activities and derivatives
The Group is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations. The primary risks managed IFRS 7.21A
using derivative instruments are foreign currency risk, commodity price risk, and interest rate risk.

i}z \"¥«! CO "~©fj £vaov]|zEfzuma ©2 vy tskare explamad in}N¥te 215 below.©

Commentary

The disclosure requirements for entities applying hedge accounting are set out in IFRS 7 .21A-24G. The objective of the
hedge accounting disclosures is for entities to disclose information about:

3 The risk management strategy and how it is applied to manage risks (IFRS 7.22A822C)

3 How the risk management activities may affect the amount, timing and uncertainty of future cash flows (IFRS 7.23Aa
23F)

3 The effect hedge accounting had on the statement of financial position, the statement of comprehensive income and
the statement of changes in equity (IFRS 7.24A-24F)

In applying this objective, an entity has to consider the necessary level of detail, the balance betwee n different disclosure

requirements, the appropriate level of disaggregation and whether additional explanations are necessary to meet the

objective.

The hedge accounting disclosures should be presented in a single note or a separate section of the financ ial statements.

An entity may include information by cross -referencing to information presented elsewhere, such as a risk report, provided

that information is available to users of the financial statements on the same terms as the financial statements and  at the

same time.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

The Group uses foreign currency -denominated borrowings and foreign exchange forward contracts to manage
some of its transaction exposures. The foreign exchange forward contracts are not designated as cash flow
hedges and are entered into for periods consis tent with foreign currency exposure of the underlying
transactions, generally from one to 24 months.

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

Cash flow hedges

Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange forward contracts are designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges of forecast IFRS 7.22B(a)
sales in US dollars and forecast purchases in GBP. These forecast transactions are highly probable, and they

X¥E! " ~©z vw¥«? GJ: ¥{ 2}z \ " ¥«! CO 2¥aye¢ z® expebtarly OV

purchases in GBP.The foreign exchange forward contract balances vary with the level of expected foreign

currency sales and purchases and changes in foreign exchange forward rates.

Commaodity price risk

The Group purchases copper on an ongoing basis as its operating activities in the electronic division require a IFRS 7.22B(a)
continuous supply of copper for the production of its electronic devices. The increased volatility in copper price

over the past 12 months has led to the decision to enter into commodity forward contracts.

These contracts, which commenced on 1 July 202 2, are expected to reduce the volatility attributable to price
fluctuations of copper. Hedging the price volatility of forecast copper purchases is in accordance with the risk
management strategy outlined by the Board of Directors.

There is an economic relationship between the hedged items and the hedging instruments as the terms of the IFRS 7.22B(b)
foreign exchange and commodity forward contracts match the terms of the expected highly probable forecast :EEi ;jzi@)
transactions (i.e., notional amount and expected paymen t date). The Group has established a hedge ratio of 1:1

for the hedging relationships as the underlying risk of the foreign exchange and commodity forward contracts

are identical to the hedged risk components. To test the hedge effectiveness, the Group use s the hypothetical

derivative method and compares the changes in the fair value of the hedging instruments against the changes in

fair value of the hedged items attributable to the hedged risks.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited 106
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

21.3 Hedging activities and derivatives
The hedge ineffectiveness can arise from:

(continued)
IFRS 7.22B(c)

Differences in the timing of the cash flows of the hedged item s and the hedging instruments

3 Different indexes (and accordingly different curves) linked to the hedged risk of the hedged items and

hedging instruments
3 i}z x¥«onaz” v’
and hedged items

a~z00C x°

3 Changes to the forecasted amount of cash flows of hedged item s and hedging instruments

The Group is holding the following foreign exchange and commodity forward contracts:

As at 31 December 2022
Foreign exchange forward contracts (highly
probable forecast sales)
C¥2a ~¥ove¢ VE¥«o?=~np
Average forward rate ( EUR/USD)
Foreign exchange forward contracts (highly
probable forecast purchases
C¥2a ~¥ove VE¥«o?=-~np
Average forward rate (EUR/ GBP)
Commodity forward contracts
Notional amount (in tonnes)
c¥2~¥ov(e
Vaz"v|z }zylzy "v@
As at 31 December 2021
Foreign exchange forward contracts (highly
probable forecast sales)
cC¥2 ~¥ove¢ VE¥«n?2=-~no
Average forward rate (EUR/ USD)
Foreign exchange forward contracts (highly
probable forecast purchases
Notional amount(in B E E E >
Average forward rate (EUR/GBP)

VEY¥«oa =~an

zy~2 " ~0©j y~{{z"zma¢ ~f£]vx?
Maturity IFRS 7.23B
Less than 1to3 3t06 6t09 9to 12
1 month months months months months Total
5] 2,950 3,000 3,150 3,450 3,250 15,800
1.166 1.169 1.172 1.175 1.185 -
5] 1,450 1,330 1,880 1,750 1,550 7,960
0.876 0.877 0.878 0.879 0.881 -
- - 450 530 - 980
- - 2,600 3,000 - 5,600
- - 5.77 5.66 - -
15} 2,650 2,850 3,000 3,200 2,900 14,600
1.200 1.203 1.206 1.209 1.211 -
1,250 1,150 1,500 1,600 1,450 6,950
0.882 0.883 0.884 0.885 0.886 -
IFRS 7.24A

The impact of the hedging instruments on the statement of financial position is, as follows:

IFRS 7.24A(a)
IFRS 7.24A(b)
IFRS 7.24A(c)

Change in fair
value used for

As at 31 December 202 2

Foreign exchange forward contracts
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Commaodity forward contracts

As at 31 December 2021

Foreign exchange forward contracts
Foreign exchange forward contracts

measuring \ps 7 o4a(d)
Notional Carrying  Line item in the statement of ineffectiveness
amount amount  financial position for the period
PEE| PEE| PEEE
15,800 252  Other current financial assets 386
7,960 (170) Other current financial liabilities (99)
5,600 (980) Other current financial liabilities (980)
14,600 153  Other current financial assets 137
6,950 (254) Other current financial liabilities (31)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities
21.3 Hedging activities and derivatives

The impact of hedged items on the statement of financial position

Highly probable forecast sales
Highly probable forecast purchases
Copper purchases

follows:

Year ended 31 December 202 2
Highly probable forecast sales
Highly probable forecast purchases

Copper purchases
Year ended 31 December 2021
Highly probable forecast sales

value used for Cash flow Cost of value used for Cash flow Cost of
measuring hedge  hedging measuring hedge hedging
ineffectiveness reserve reserve ineffectiveness reserve reserve
PEEI PEEI PEEI PEEI PEEL PEEI
386 165 12 137 107 -
(99) (110) 9) (31) a77) -
(915) (617) (23) - - -
The effect of the cash flow hedge in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is, as
Total Ineffective - Cost of Amount
hedging ness Lineitem hedging reclassified Line item
gain/(loss) recognised in the recogni from OCl to inthe
recognised in profitor ~ statement of sed in profitor  statement of
in OCI loss profitor loss ocClI loss profit or loss
PEEI PEEI PEEI PEE
386 - - 21 (283) Revenue
(99) - - (16) - -
Other operating
(915) 65 expenses (33) - -
137 - - - (125) Revenue
(31) - - - 53 Cost of sales

Highly probable forecast purchases

Commentary

(continued)
(continued)

31 December 2022

is, as follows:

31 December 2021

Change in fair

Change in fair

IFRS 7.24C(b)(iv) requires that the amount reclassified from cash flow hedge reserve into profit or loss as a reclassificatio n
adjustment be differentiated between : (a) amounts for which hedge accounting had previously been used, but for which

the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur , and (b) the amounts that have been transferred because the
hedged item has affected profit or loss. The amounts re classified by the Group from OCI to profit or loss only relates to the

latter.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 7.24B(b)

IFRS 7.24C(b)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued) S <
21.3 Hedging activities and derivatives  (continued) Vil

Fair value hedge

At 31 December 202 2, the Group had an interest rate swap agreement in place with a notional amount of IFRS 7.22B(a)
j hYHAKEEAEEE =20BKGIBDKARBE> }=z"  zw 2}z \ " ¥«| "ZX2~-20

pays interest at a variable rate equal to LIBOR+0.2% on the notional amount. The swap is being used to hedge

the exposure to changes in the fair value of its fixed rate 8.25% secured loan.

There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument as the terms of the IFRS 7.22B(b)
interest rate swap match the terms of the fixed rate loan (i.e., notional amount, maturity, payment and reset IPRS 7.228(c)

c
o
=
o
=)
©
o
=
=
=

dates). The Group has established a hedge ratio of 1:1 for the hedging relationships as the underlying risk of the RS 1220
interest rate swap is identical to the hedged risk component. Tot est the hedge effectiveness, the Group uses
the hypothetical derivative method and compares the changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument
against the changes in fair value of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.
The hedge ineffectiveness can arise from:
3 Different interest rate curve applied to discount the hedged item and hedging instrument
3 Differences in timing of cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument
3 Thex¥«maz "y a~-70C x"zy~2 " ~0©j y~{{z zmwa¢~  ~£!vx?a~n
hedged item
The impact of the hedging instrument on the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022 is, as IFRS 7.24A
follows:

Change in fair value  IFRS 7.24A(a)

used for measuring IFRS 7.24A(b)
IFRS 7.24A(c)

Consolidated financial statements

Notional Carrying Line item in the ineffectiveness IFRS 7.24A(d)
amount amount statement of financial position for the period
US$000 DEEI DEEI
Interest rate swap 3,600 35 Other current financial liability 35
The impact of the hedged item on the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022 is, as follows: IFRS 7.24B(a)
Change in fair value
Accumulated used for measuring cF\l'
Carrying fair value Line item in the ineffectiveness "
amount adjustments  statement of financial position for the period g a
PEEI DEEI PEEI = -
Fixed-rate borrowing 2,246 35 Interest -bearing loans and borrowings 35 N

The ineffectiv eness recognised in the statement of profit or loss was immaterial.

Hedge of net investments in foreign operations

Included in interest -bearing loans at 31 December 202 2 was a borrowing of USD3,600,000 which has been IFRS 7.22B(a)
designated as a hedge of the net investments in the two subsidiaries in the United States, Wireworks Inc. and
Sprinklers Inc., beginning 2022.i } ~© w¥" ™ " ¥- ~o| ~0©0 wz-~w#o| «Ozy ¥ }zy| z

exchange risk on these investments. Gains or losses on the retranslation of this borrowing are transferred to

OCI to offset any gains or losses on translation of the net investm ents in the subsidiaries.

There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument as the net investment IFRS 7.22B(b)
creates a translation risk that will match the foreign exchange risk on the USD borrowing . The Group has :Eiz ;:gi(c)
established a hedge ratio of 1:1 as the underlying risk of the hedging instrument is identical to the hedged risk

component. The hedge ineffectiveness will arise when the amount of the investment in the foreign subsidiary

becomes lower than the amount of the fixed rate borrowing.

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices
3

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited 109




|

(N
Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
5
21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued) o <
21.3 Hedging activities and derivatives  (continued) .
The impact of the hedging instrument on the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022 is, as IFRS 7.24A
follows:

Change in fair  IFRS 7.24A(a)

value used for  'FRS 7.24A(0)
IFRS 7.24A(c)

_ _ o | Measuring op 7 aan()
Notional Carrying  Line item in the statement of ineffectiveness 5
amount amount  financial position for the period 'g
US$000 PEEI DEEI 8
Foreign currency denominated Interest -bearing loans and <
borrowing 3,600 2,246  borrowings 278
The impact of the hedged item on the statement of financial position is, as follows: IFRS 7.24B(b)
Change in fair value used for Foreign currency
measuring ineffectiveness translation reserve
DEE| PEEI 2
Net investment in foreign subsidiaries 278 195 GE)
()
The hedging gain recognised in OCl before tax is equal to the change in fair value used for measuring IFRS 7.24B(b) %
effectiveness. There is no ineffectiveness recognised in profit or loss. '§
g
Impact of hedging on equity é
Set out below is the reconciliation of each component of equity and the analysis of other comprehensive income: :EE? ;g:E %
Foreign g
Cost of currency o
Cash flow hedging translation
hedge reserve reserve reserve
DEEE DEEE
As at 1 January 2021 (94) - (327) -
Effective portion of changes in fair value arising from: &
Foreign exchange forward contracts gforecast sales 137 - - N
Foreign exchange forward contracts gforecast purchases (31) - - g o
Amount reclassified to profit or loss (72) - - )
Foreign currency revaluation of the net foreign operations * - - (117)
Tax effect (20) - -
As at 1 January 2022 (70) - (444)
Effective portion of changes in fair value arising from:
Foreign exchange forward contracts gforecast sales 365 21 - "
Foreign exchange forward contracts gforecast purchases (83) (16) - g
Commodity forward contracts (882) (33) - 8
Amount reclassified to profit or loss (283) 4) - g’
Amount transferred to inventories 180 3 - =
Foreign currency revaluation of the USD borrowing - - 278 E
Foreign currency revaluation of the net foreign operations - - (246) ﬁ
Tax effect 211 9 (83) k|
As at 31 December 2022 (562) (20) (495) £
* Hedging of net investment in foreign operations only started in 202 2. 2
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued) 8 i
21.3 Hedging activities and derivatives  (continued) o]
COVID-19 commentary
Hedging

Ao zpma-~a~C@© 2 " voOVX2a~¥o®© £v wz ! ¥©23a!¥ozy ¥° xvoxz~e¢¢zyasa¥’
result of the COVID19. If the entity designated such transactions as a hedged forecast transaction in a cash flow hedge, it
wouldnzzy 2 ¥ x¥o©O~yz~ -}za}z" 2}lz 2a83°"yvoOvVvXxe®~¥o -vO ©2~¢¢ v €} ~|

That is, if the COVID19 affects the probability of hedged forecast transactions occurring and/or the time period designated at
the inception of a hedge, an entity would need to determine whether it can continue to apply hedge accounting to the forecast
transaction or a proportion of it, and for continuing hedges whether any additional ineffectiveness has arisen.

c
i)
=
3]
=]
S
[e)
=
c

3 If an entity determines that a forecast transaction is no longer highly probable, but still expected to occur, the entity
must discontinue hedge accounting prospectively .

3 If an entity determines that the timing of a forecast transaction has changed, and the cash flows are now expected to
occur at a different time than initially forecast, the outcome would depend on the nature of the hedged item and how
the hedge relationship was documented and judgement will be needed in considering the appropriate accounting
treatment .

3 If an entity determines that a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, in addition to discontinuing hedge
accounting prospectively , it must immediately reclassify to profit or loss any accumulated gain or loss on the hedging
instrument that has been recognised in other comprehensive income .

Embedded derivatives

In 202 2, the Group entered into long-term sale contracts with a customer in Canada. The functional currency of IFRS9.4.3.3
the customer is USD. The selling price in the contracts is fixed and set in Canadian dollars (CAD). The contracts

require physical delivery and will be held for the purpose of the delivery of the commodity in accordance with

alz w« z ' CO sre@uremeriszThe cGhirakts have embedded foreign exchange derivatives that are

required to be separated.

Consolidated financial statements

The Group also entered into various purchase contracts for brass and chrome (for which there is an active
market) with a number of suppliers in South Africa and Russia. The prices in these purchase contracts are linked
to the price of electricity. The contracts have embedded commodity swaps that are required to be  separated.

The embedded foreign currency and commodity derivatives have been separated and are carried at fair value ~
through profit or loss. The carrying values of the embedded derivatives at 31 December 202 2 amounted to 2 [
DPGFEAEEE =¥2}2z" 20210V HDx~ULE wO@z PO@MGAEEE =20210z Pc{~+¢>\Cno g N
effects on profit or loss are reflected in operating income and operating  expenses, respectively. = -

I3\
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities

21.4 Fair values

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value s¥ {
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Financial assets
Loans to an associate and a director
Non-listed equity investments
Listed equity investments
Quoted debt instruments
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Embedded derivatives
Foreign exchange forward contracts in cash
flow hedges

Total

Financial liabilities

Interest -bearing loans and borrowings
Floating rate borrowings*
Fixed rate borrowings
Convertible preference shares

Contingent consideration

Derivatives not designated as hedges
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Embedded derivatives

Derivatives in effective hedges

Total

* Includes an 8.25% secured loan carried at amortised cost adjusted for the fair value movement due to the hedged interest

rate risk.
v e «z

i}z {v-~"

Commentary

£zvO«”

IFRS 7.29 provides that disclosure of the fair value s of financial instruments is not required:

3 When the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value (e.g., short

payables)

3  For a contract containing a discretionary participat

cannot be measured reliably
or

3 For lease liabilities

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

(continued)
alz \ " ¥«! CO© .IFRST2S
IFRS 7.26
IFRS 7.29
2022 2021
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
PEE DEE] PEE!I PEEI
213 208 8 9
1,038 1,038 898 898
337 337 300 300
1,622 1,622 1,610 1,610
640 640 - -
210 210 - -
252 252 153 153
4,312 4,307 2,969 2,970
(12,666) (12,666) (11,877) (11,877)
(6,374) (6,321) (8,239) (8,944)
(2,778) (2,766) (2,644) (2,621)
(1,072) (1,072) - -
(720) (720) - -
(782) (782) - -
(1,185) (1,185) (254) (254)
(25,577 ) (25,512 ) (23,014) (23,696 )
z£zwa }~z v x}  ¥{ vee¢NuiMEIZE«! CO
-term trade receivables and
ing feature (as described in IFRS 4) if the fair value of that feature
112
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
5
21. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) o <
21.4 Fair values (continued) w0l
The management assessed that the fair values of cash and short -term deposits, trade receivables, trade :Eiz 12-33(‘1)

payables, bank overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the
short -term maturities of these instruments.

IFRS 7.29

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

3 Long-term fixed -rate and variable -rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Group based on
parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the customer
and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into
account for the estimated losses of these receivables.

c
i)
=
3]
=]
S
[e)
=
c

3 The fair values of the quoted notes and bonds are based on price quotations at the reporting date. The fair
value of unquoted inst ruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities, as well as other non -current
financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. In  addition to being sensitive to a reasonably possible
change in the forecast cash flows or the discount rate, the fair value of the equity instruments is also
sensitive to a reasonably possible change in the growth rates. The valuation requires managementt o use
unobservable inputs in the model, of which the significant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables
below. Management regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant
unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair value.

3 The fair values of the non-listed equity investments have been estimated using a DCF model. The valuation
requires management to make certain assumptions about the model inputs, including forecast cash flows,
the discount rate, credit risk and volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can
wz " zvO¥ovwt¢ vOO©Oz©O©Ozy veoy v’z «Ozy ~o fon-lstedegdity o?
investments.

3 Thereisanactive market { ¥ © 2} z listed efuity iGv@stments and quoted debt instruments .

Consolidated financial statements

3  The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally financial
institutions with investment grade credit ratings. Interest rate swaps, foreign exchange forward contracts
and commodity forward contracts are valued using valuation techn iques, which employ the use of market
observable inputs. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap
models using present value calculations. The models incorporate various inputs including the credit quality -
of counte rparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates, yield curves of the respective currencies,
currency basis spreads between the respective currencies, interest rate curves and forward rate curves of
the underlying commodity. Some derivative contracts are fully cash collateralised, thereby eliminating both
X¥«maz "y a™ " -©; v apgrfodninee risk; A% at 31MeEcendbera202:2¥tlee mark -to -market ™
value of other derivative asset positions is net of a credit valuation adjustment attributable to der ivative
counterparty default risk. The changes in counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the hedge
effectiveness assessment for derivatives designated in hedge relationships and other financial instruments
recognised at fair value.

Notes
2

3 Embedded foreign currency and commodity derivatives are measured similarly to the foreign currency
forward contracts and commodity derivatives. The embedded derivatives are commodity and foreign
currency forward contracts which are separated from long -term sales contr acts where the transaction
currency differs from the functional currencies of the involved parties. = However, as these contracts are not
X¥¢¢vaz " ve~0OzyA @}z \"¥«] VCO¥ 28yvjz©O ~non2¥ yvxx¥«o?t
derivative assets) ¥ © 2} z \ 7 ¥ «pe@@nante risk (for¥he embedded derivative liabilities) and
includes a credit valuation adjustment or debit valu ation adjustment, as appropriate, by assessing the
maximum credit exposure and taking into account market -based inputs concerning probabilities of default
and loss given default.

3 i}z {v~" =avet«z© ¥ {beafiny bans andberiowlir®s arexdéterminedy using the DCF
£z23} ¥y «O~n| y~Ox¥«pd “yaz al}lya "z ¢zx20©0 drlingpero@ O «
The own non-performance risk as at 31 December 202 2 was assessed to be insignificant.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities

21.4 Fair values (continued)
Description of significant unobservable inputs to

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy, together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December

(continued)

valuation:

202 2 and 202 1 are shown

below:
Significant
Valuation unobservable Range Sensitivity of the
tec hnique inputs (weighted average) input to fair value
Non-listed DCF Long-term growth 202 2: 3.1%- 5.2% (4.2%) 5% Q02 1: 5%) increase
equity method rate for cash flows 202 1:3.19%-5.1% (4%) (decrease) in the growth
investments for subsequent rate would result in an
power sector years increase (decrease) in fair
—vt«z w DFLA
(2021:BPFJ AEEE>
Long-term 2022:5.0%-12.1% (8.3%) 15% (202 1: 12%) increase
operating margin 202 1:5.2%- 12.3% (8.5%) (decrease) in the margin
would result in an increase
(decrease) in fair value by
DPGFAEREL..BEFNAE|I
WACC 2022:11.2% -14.3% (12.6%) 1% Q02 1: 2%) increase
2021:11.5% - 14.1% (12.3%)  (decrease) in the WACC
would result in a decrease
(increase) in fair value by
DFEAEREL: &FJ AE|
Discount for lack 2022:5.1%- 15.6% (12.1%) 2% Q02 1: 3%) increase
of marketability 2021: 5.4%- 15.7% (12.3%) (decrease) in the discount
would decrease (increase)
the fair value w~ B MAE
(2021:BDNAEEE >
Non-listed DCF Long-term growth  2022: 4.4%- 6.1% (5.3%) 3% Q02 1: 3%) increase
equity method rate for cash flows 202 1: 4.6%- 6.7% (5.5%) (decrease) in the growth
investments for subsequent rate would result in an
electronics years increase (decrease) in fair
sector -vt«z w  BDGHA

Long-term
operating margin

WACC

Discount for lack
of marketability

2022: 10.0% - 16.1% (14.3%)
2021: 10.5% - 16.4% (14.5%)

2022: 12.1% - 16.7% (13.2%)
2021: 12.3% - 16.8% (13.1%)

2022: 5.1%- 20.2% (16.3%)
2021: 5.3%- 20.4% (16.4%)

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

(2021:DGJ AEEE >

5% Q02 1: 4%) increase
(decrease) in the margin
would result in an increase
(decrease) in fair value by
DPFGAEBRE. :BFHAEI

1% @02 1: 2%) increase
(decrease) in the WACC
would result in a decrease
(increase) in fair value by
DGFAEBRE :BGGAEI

1.5% (202 1: 2%) increase
(decrease) in the discount
would decrease (increase)
the fair value w~ DL AJ
(2021:DPMAGEE >
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)
21.4 Fair values (continued)
Valuation Significant Range Sensitivity of the
technique unobservable inputs  (weighted average) input to fair value
Embedded Forward Discount for 2022:0.02% - 0.05% (0.04%) 0.5% increase (decrease)
derivative pricing counterparty 2021: - would result in an increase
assets model credit risk (decrease) in fair value by
523,000 .
Embedded Forward Discount for non - 2022:0.01% - 0.05% (0.03%) 0.4% increase (decrease)
derivative pricing performance risk 2021: - would result in an increase
liabilities model (decrease) in fair value by
520,000 .
Loans to an DCF Constant 2022:1.5%- 2.5% (2.0%) 1% Q02 1: 2%) increase
associate and  method prepayment rate 2021: 1.6%- 2.7% (2.2%) (decrease) would result in
a director an increase (decrease) in
{v~" —vet«z w
(2021:PGFAEEE>
Discount for non - 202 2:0.08% 0.4% (202 1: 0.4%)
performance risk 2021:0.09% increase (decrease) would
resultin an increase
(decrease) in fair value by
DGFAEEE
(2021:DPGEAEEE>
Contingent DCF Assumed 20220 BHBIEA A00 10%decrease in the
consideration ~ method probability -adjusted 502 1: - assumed probability -
liability profit before tax of adjusted profit before tax
Extinguishers of Extinguishers Limited
Limited results in a decrease in fair
value of the contingent
consideration liabili ty by
PHNEAEEE
5% increase inthe
assumed probability -
adjusted profit before tax
of Extinguishers Limited
would not change fair
value of the contingent
consideration liability
Discount rate 2022: 14% 2% increase (decrease) in
2021: - the discount rate would

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

result in an increase
(decrease) in fair value of
the contingent
consideration liability by
DGJAEEE
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)
21.4 Fair values (continued)

Significant
Valuation unobservable Range Sensitivity of the
technique inputs (weighted average) input to fair value
Discount for own 202 2: 0.05% 0.4% increase (decrease)
non-performance 2021: - in the discount for own
risk non-performance risk

would result in an increase
(decrease) in fair value of

the contingent

consideration liability by

DJAEEE

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts that the Group has determined that market

participants would take into account when pricing the investments.

Reconciliation of fair value measurement of non  -listed equity investments classifie d as equity instruments

designated at fair value through OCI (Level 3):

Power Electronics Total
PEE DEEE PEE
As at 1 January 2021 386 502 888  IFRS 13.93(e)(i)
Remeasurement recognised in OCI 4 6 10 IFRS 13.93(e)(iii)
Purchases c ¢ ¢
Sales C ¢ C
As at 1 January 2022 390 508 898
Remeasurement recognised in OCI 54 (80) (26)
Purchases 231 293 524
Reclassified in assets held for sale c (308) (308)
Sales C (50) (50)
As at 31 December 2022 675 363 1,038
Reconciliation of fair value measurement of embedded derivative assets and liabilities (Level 3) :
Embedded foreign
exchange Embedded commodity
derivative asset derivative liability
Canadian dollar Brass Chrome
PEEE DPEE DPEEE
As at 1 January 2021 and 202 2 Cc c Cc
Remeasurement recognised in statement of profit or
loss during the period (363) (209) (80)
Purchases 573 809 262
Sales C c ¢
As at 31 December 2022 210 600 182

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
21.4 Fair values (continued)

Commentary

An entity should provide additional information that will help users of its financial statements to evaluate the quantitative
information disclosed. An entity might disclose some or all of the following to comply with IFRS 13.92:

3 The nature of the item being measured at fair value, including the characteristics of the item  being measured that are
taken into account in the determination of relevant inputs. For example, if the Group had residential mortgage -
backed securities, it might disclose the following:

The types of underlying loans (e.g. , prime loans or sub-prime loans)
Collateral

Guarantees or other credit enhancements

Seniority level of the tranches of securities

The year of issue

The weighted-average coupon rate of the underlying loans and the securities
The weighted-average maturity of the underlying loans and the securities
The geographical concentration of the underlying loans

W WL L LN

Information about the credit ratings of the securities

3 How third -party information such as broker quotes, pricing services, net asset values and relevant market data was
taken into account w hen measuring fair value

The Group does not have any liabilities measured at fair value and issued with an inseparable third -party credit

enhancement. If the Group had such liabilities, IFRS 13.98 requires disclosure of the existence of credit -enhancement and

whether it is reflected in the fair value measurement of the liability.

IFRS 13.99 requires an entity to present the quantitative disclosures of IFRS 13 in a tabular format, unless another
format is more appropriate. The Group included the quantitative disclosures in tabular format, above.

IFRS 13.93(h)(ii) requires a quantitative sensitivity analysis for financial assets and financial liabilities that are measur  ed
at fair value on a recurring basis. For all other recurring fair value measurements that  are categorised within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy, an entity is required to provide:

3 A narrative description of the sensitivity of the fair value measurement to changes in unobservable inputs if a change
in those inputs to a different amount might result in a significantly higher or lower fair value measurement
3 If there are inter -relationships between the inputs and other unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement,
a description of the inter -relationships and of how they might magnify or mitigate the effect of changes in the
unobservable inputs on the fair value measurement .
For this purpose, significance shall be judged with respect to profit or loss, and total assets or total liabilities, or, whe n
changes in fair value are recognised in OCI, total equity. The Group included the quantitative sensitivity analyses in tabular
format, above.

21.5 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

i}z \"¥«!CO ! "~ox~!'ve {~mvax~ve¢ ¢~vw~¢~2~z0OMmnd¥rade and IFRS 7.33
¥alz" 1v vwtz©OC i}z £v~o |« | ¥0z ¥{ 23}z0z {~mvex-~v¢e
principal financial assets i nclude trade receivables, and cash and short -term deposits that derive directly from

its operations. The Group also holds investments in debt and equity instruments and enters into derivative
transactions.

The Group is exposedtomv " j z&8 " ~©j A x"zy~2 " ~0©j voy ¢~8«~y~2 :
fEvov|z£fzra ¥{ a8} z0z " ~0©jOC i}z \ " ¥«!CO ©zu~¥" £vav]|.
advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk go vernance framework for the Group. The financial

T ~©f X¥E£f£~23z7 ! "¥a~yz70© VOO« vaxz 2a¥ a}lz \ " ¥«!CoO 0Oz
are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measu red and
Evov|zy ~8 VXX¥'yvexz -~2} 2}z \"¥«! CO !¥¢t~x~z© vay

management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and
©«l z" =~©~¥oC "2 Hh@notrading in derWatiyei@ specdldtivexplrpodes may be undertaken.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
5
21. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) o <
21.5 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies (continued) o
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value o r future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of IFRS7.33

changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other
price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial inst ruments affected by market risk include
loans and borrowings, deposits, debt and equity investments and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 December in 202 2 and 202 1.

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to IFRS 7.40
floating interest rates of debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies
are all constant and on the basis of the hedge designations in place at 31 December 202 2.

c
o
=
o
=)
©
o
=
=
=

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of pension and other
post-retirement obligations , provisions, and the non-financial assets and liabilitie s of foreign operations. The
analysis for the contingent consideration liability is provided in  Note 8.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

3 The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in
respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at
31 December 202 2 and 202 1 including the effect of hedge accounting.

3 The sensitivity of equity is calculated by considering the effect of any associated cash flow hedges and
hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation at 31 December 202 2 for the effects of the assumed
changes of the underlying risk.

Interest rate ri sk

Consolidated financial statements

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate IFRS 7.21A(a)
Wzxv«©z ¥{ x}vo|z© ~no £v’ jz?® ~p2z"z0a "vaz0O0OC i}z \~° | [FRS 7.22A
ratesrelates | ©~ ~£v " ~¢ 2@ ¥ depedebt obligationvath fibaking jinterest rates.
The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and
W¥ " ¥- ~n| ©C i}z \maiMtain b6r@wing¥at fixed Tates @ inter¥st of not more than 50%,
excluding borrowings that relate to discontinued operations. To manage this, the Group enters into interest rate 4
swaps, in which it agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variab le rate N
interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed -upon notional principal amount. At 31 December 202 2, 2 o
v{2z" 2a8yj~o| ~po38¥ vxx¥«o?d a}lz z[{zx?2a ¥{ ~ma8z7z0O02 "y g &
fixed rate of interest ( 202 1: 50%). ™
I3\
Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge  accounting. With all other variables held
X¥o©avoaA a}lz \"¥«! CO ! "¥{~2 wz{¥"z av® ~© v{{zxazy
Increase/decrease Effect on profit é
in basis points before tax  |rrs7.40() [
2022 PEE 8
Euro +45 (48) 8
US dollar +60 (13) g
=}
Euro -45 33 =
US dollar -60 12 S
=}
2021 2
Euro +10 (29)
US dollar +15 ¢
Euro -10 12 o
US dollar -15 ¢
<

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently
observable market environment, showing a significantly higher volatility than in prior years.

Appendices
3
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
21.5 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of IFRS 7.21A(a)
x}vao|z© ~o {¥ z~|8 z®x}va|z "vazOC i}z \ ¥«! CO z® y A
"z¢tvazoO© ! T~f£vi~¢T 2a¥ 2alz \"¥«! CO ¥!z"va@~p| vXx?2~-a~3-~
X« " Tzox > vay 2}z \ " ¥«! CO mz?2 ~0-202£z02Q© ~no {¥" z~|

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by hedging transactions that are expected to occur within a
maximum 12 -month period for hedges of forecasted sales and purchases and 24 -month period for net
investment hedges.

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Group negotiates the terms of the
derivative to match the terms of the hedged exposure. For hedges of forecast transactions, the derivative
covers the period of exposure from the point the cash flows of the transactions are forecasted up to the point of
settlement of the resulting receivable or payable that is denominated in the foreign currency.

The Group hedges its exposure to fluctuations on the translation into euros of its foreign operations by holding
net borrowings in foreign currencies and by using foreign currency swaps and forwards.

At 31 December 202 2 and 202 1, the Group hedged 75% and 70%, for 9 and 12 months, respectively, of its
expected foreign currency sales. Those hedged sales were highly probable at the reporting date. This foreign
currency risk is hedged by using foreign currency forward contracts.

Commentary

For hedges of forecast transactions, useful information to help users understand the nature and extent of such risks may

include:

3 Time bands in which the highly probable forecast transactions are grouped for risk management purposes

3 i}z zopa~-2a7"CO | ¥¢~x~20© vaoy ! " ¥xz00z© {¥" E£vov|~m| 2}z " ~0O
instruments and the hedged items may be aligned, such as using foreign currency bank accounts to address
differences in cash flow dates)

Entities should tailor these disclosures to the specific facts and circumstances of the transactions.

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and GBP exchange
"vazOA -~3} ve¢e ¥2}z" avi~vwtzO }z¢y x¥o©2vwo?2C i}z
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities including non -designated foreign currency derivatives and
ZEwWzyyzy yz ~-ava~az©OC i} zaxeqfityis odud to dhanges in the fairvadue of ©@ard ~ z
z®X}vo| z X¥p28"yxa© yzO~|ova@zy vO xv0O} {¢¥- }zy|z©O v
foreign currency changes for all other cu rrencies is not material.

Change in  Effect on profit Effecton  IFRS 7.40(a)
USD rate before tax pre-tax equity
PEE PEEE
2022 +5% (30) (154)
-5% 20 172
2021 +4% (40) (146)
4% 40 158
Change in  Effect on profit Effect on
GBP rate before tax pre-tax equity
PEE PEEE
2022 +5% 26 102
5% (15) (113)
2021 +4% 31 92
a% (28) (96)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

21.5 Financial instruments risk management objectives and  policies (continued)

The movement in the pre -tax effect is a result of a change in the fair value of derivative financial instruments
not designated in a hedge relationship and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in US dollars, where the
function al currency of the entity is a currency other than US dollars. Although the derivatives have not been
designated in a hedge relationship, they act as an economic hedge and will offset the underlying transactions
when they occur.

The movement in pre-tax equity arises from changes in US dollar borrowings (net of cash and cash equivalents)
in the hedge of net investments in US operations and cash flow hedges. These movements will offset the
a"yoO¢tva~¥o ¥{ 2}z jh ¥!'z" v2a~¥o©C nz2a vOO©z2© ~u2¥ 7z

Commaodity price risk
The Group is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities. Its operating activities require the ongoing IFRS 721A(a)

purchase and manufacture of electronic parts and therefore require a continuous supply of copper.  The Group is IFRS 7.22A
exposed to changes in the price of copper on its forecast copper purchases.
i}z V' ¥«!CO W¥V'y ¥{ Y~"2zx2¥ © }VvVO yz-z¢¥!zy vaoy zaua:
and its mitigation. Based on a 12-month forecast o f the required copper supply, the Group hedges the purchase
price using forward commodity purchase contracts. The forward contracts do not result in physical delivery of
copper but are designated as cash flow hedges to offset the effect of price changes in copper. The Group
hedges approximately 45% of its expected copper purchases considered to be highly probable.
The Group also entered into various purchase contracts for brass and chrome (for which there is an active
market). The prices in these purchase c ontracts are linked to the price of electricity.
Forward contracts with a physical delivery that qualify for normal purchase, sale or usage and that are
therefore not recognised as derivatives are disclosed in Note 21.3 .
Commaodity price sensitivity
The following table shows the effect of price changes in copper net of hedge accounting impact.
Change in Effect on profit Effect on
year-end price before tax equity  |ers 7.40(a)
2022 DEELI DEEI
Copper +15% (220) (585)
-15% 220 585
Brass +4% (8) (8)
-4% 8 8
Chrome +2% (20) (20)
-2% 10 10
Equity price risk
i}z \ 7 ¥«! C@ondiste®equaity investryents are susceptible to market price risk arising from
uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The Group manages the equity price risk through IFRS 7.33(b)
diversification and by placing limits on individual and total equity instruments. Reports on the equity portfolio
V'z ©O«wE~a23zy ay a}lz \"¥«! CWO O0wwO®¥OCEvkwy |ZE¥XalCE& aW¥w\
approves all equity investment decisions.
At the reporting date, the exposure to non-listed equity investments va {v~" =vet«z -v© DF,IFRS733@a)

analyses of these investments have been provided i n Note 21.4 .

At the reporting date, the exposure to equity investments at fair value listed on the NYSE- v © B H H IGikdh E FRS7.40
that the changes in fair values of the equity investments held are strongly positively correlated with changes of

the NYSE market index, the Group has determined that an increase/( decrease) of 10% on the NYSE market

~oyz® x¥«¢y }v-az vo ~£]000xifcreasd/(deuréase) ah@e ifcoriezatd equityd J A

attributable to the Group .
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
21.5 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions,
foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

(continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

Customer credit risk is managed by each businessun~2 ©«w zx2 2a¥ a}z \ " ¥«! CO
control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an
extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance  with this assessment.
Outstanding customer receivables and contract assets are regularly monitored and any shipments to major
customers are generally covered by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance  obtained from reputable
banks and other fi nancial institutions . At 31 December 202 2, the Group had 55 customers (202 1: 65) that
¥-zy ~a £¥"z 2}lvwo DGJEAEEE
contract assets outstanding. There were five customers ( 202 1: seven customers) with balances greater than
B Fmillion accounting for just over 1 0% @02 1: 12%) of the total amounts of receivable and contract assets .

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for g roupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and rating, and  coverage by letters of
credit or other forms of credit insurance) . The calculation reflects the probability -weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, curr ent conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions . Generally, trade receivables are
written -off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity . The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carryi ng value of each class of financial assets disclosed in
Note 23 . The Group does not hold collateral as security . The letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance
are considered integral part of trade receivables and considered in the calculation of impairment. At

31 December 202 2, 60% 02 1: 65%) of the Groups trade receivables are covered by letters of credit and other
forms of credit insurance. These credit enhancements obtained by the Group resulted in a decrease in the ECL
¥{ DGGAEEE v©O v®2@arR10 z&Q@E ARSI Rvaluates the concentration of risk with
respect to trade receivables and contract assets as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and
industries and operate in large ly independent markets.

z v X } 51% @092 1:\6694) &f alldhe egeivabl¥sandv

hz?2 ¥«2 wz¢¥- ~0 2a}lz ~o{¥"£f£va@~¥o vw¥«? 28}z x"zy-~2
assets using a provision matrix:
31 December 202 2 Trade receivables
Days past due
Contract 30360 61390 >91
assets Current <30 days days days days Total

PEEE DEEE DEEE DEEE DPEEE DEEE DEE
Expected credit loss rate 0.13% 0.12% 1.5% 4% 7% 12%
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at default 4,547 16,787 4,864 2,700 1,151 514 26,016
Expected credit loss 6 20 73 108 81 62 344
31 December 2021 Trade receivables

Days past due
Contract 30360 61390 >91
assets Current <30 days days days days Total

PEEE DEEE DEEE DEEE DPEEE DEEE DEE
Expected credit loss rate 0.10% 0.10% 1.2% 3% 5% 10%
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at default 5,185 15,603 3,482 1,897 995 531 22,508
Expected credit loss 5 16 42 57 50 53 218

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
21. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) S <
21.5 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies (continued) o

Financial instruments and cash deposits

X"zy~2 7" ~0©j { " ¥f£ wvt¢tvexz© -~2} wvaoji©O voy {~ovaox-~v¢ IFRS7.33
VXX¥ yvexz -~2} a}lz \"¥«! CO :¥¢~X:C "0—|z©a£zna©_¥{ ‘:EEZ;:Z?LO(C)
and within credit limits assignedt ¥ zv x} Xx¥«woaz" 1 v"2a C X¥«popaz" ] y"a X

Board of Directors on an annual basis and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the

\ "¥«! CO [~avaxz X¥E£E£~22377C i}z ¢~£~20© v'z ©z2 2¥ £~
{~ovex~ve C¥OO© 2} ¥«|} VvV x¥«maz ' ly a~TC@ !¥azoa~y¢ {-

The Group invests only on quoted debt securities with very low credit risk. The Group C ©  yingtwrfents at fair

value through OCI comprised solely of quoted bonds that are graded in the top investment category (Very Good

and Good) by the Quality Credit Rating Agency and, therefore, are considered to be low credit risk investments.

The Group recognised provision for expected credit losses on its debt instruments at fair value through OCI of IFRS 7.16A
PLAEIEZ22 (2021:DKAB.EE

c
i)
=
3]
=]
S
[e)
=
c

i}z \"¥«!CO E£EVR®~£«Ef z®! ¥O«“z 2¥ x"zy~2 " ~0j {¥° 2a}z
31 December 202 2 and 202 1 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in Note 21.1 except for derivative financial

~o @2 «£z83OC i}z \ ¥«! CO £VO®~£«£ z® ¥O©« z “z¢va~n| a
table below.

Commentary

As required by IFRS 9, the Group used the simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade receivables and contract assets

that did not contain a significant financing component. The Group applied the practical expedient to calculate ECL using a
provision matrix. In practice, many entities use a provision matrix to calculate their current impairment allowances.

However, in order to comply with the IFRS 9 requirements, corporates would need to consider how current and  forward -
looking~=a { ¥" £va~¥ao £~|}2 v{{zx?2a 2} z~§and cofstgaehily, h@Chelnfor@ati¥n wemdv ¢ vy z
affect their current expectations and estimates of ECLs.

Consolidated financial statements

The Group applied the low credit risk operational simplification in assessing the significant increase in credit risk of its ~ debt
instruments at fair v alue through OCI. This simplification is optional and can be elected on an instrument -by-instrument
basis. For low-risk instruments for which the simplification is used, an entity would recognise an allowance based on 12 -
month ECLs. However, if a financial instrument is not, or no longer, considered to have low credit risk at the reporting

date, it does not follow that the entity is required to recognise lifetime ECLs. In such instances, the entity has to assess

whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition which requires the recognition of H
lifetime ECLs.

The ECLs relating to cash and short-term deposits of the Group rounds to zero. In practice, an ECL may need to be é ﬁ
charged on cash and short-term deposits. z

Entities should assessthe impact of climate -related matters on the credit provided to debtors. Deb tors Cability to pay I3\l
debts may be reduced if they are also impacted by climate -related matters.

Refer to Good Bank- lllustrative Financial Statements publication for the illustrative disclosures on the general approach
of measuring ECLs.

Liquidity risk )
The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool. :EE: ;'22@) g
i}z \"¥«!'CO ¥W zx2~-z ~© 2¥ f£v~pa8y-~o v wvevexz wz?- 2
bank overdrafts, bank loans, debentures, preference shares, and¢ zv ©z x¥wo2 " vx2©C i}z \ <
more than 25% of borrowings shou Id mature inthenext12 £ ¥ o2} | z" ~¥y C V| | " ¥®~£v?2; s
debt will mature in less than one year at 31 December 2022 (202 1: 11%) based on the carrying value of 2
borrowings reflected in the financial statements. The Group assessed the concentra tion of risk with respect to IFRS7.B8 %
refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group has access to a sufficient variety of sources of s
funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. 3

<

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in
the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political o r other conditions. Concentrations 2

~oy~xvaz a}lz "zg¢va@~az ©zuO©~2~--~2 ¥{ 2}z \ " ¥«!CoO !z
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities

(continued)

21.5 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Inordertov - ¥~y zZ®xz©O0~-2z

X¥opxzoar”

va~¥o©O ¥{ " ~©0jA 2}z \~

guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are
controlled and managed accordingly. Selective hed ging is used within the Group to manage risk concentrations

at both the relationship and industry levels.

COVID-19 commentary

Entities with concentrations of risk may face greater risk of loss than other entities. IFRS 7.34(c) requires that concentrat ion
of risk should be disclosed if not otherwise apparent from other risk disclosures provided.

Therefore, entities should consider including the following information:

3 Adescription of how management determines concentrations of risk

3 Adescription of the shared characteristic that identifies each concentration. For instance, the shared characteristic may
refer to geographical distribution of counterparties by groups of countries, individual countries or regions within

countries and/or by industry .

3 The amount of the risk exposure associated with all financial instruments sharing that characteristic

Entities that identified concentrations of activities in areas or industries affected by the
disclosed the concentration because they did not believe that the entity was vulnerable to the risk of a near -term severe
impact, should now reconsider making such a disclosure. At the same time , the negative impact of COVID-19 is gradually
declining in many countries , so liquidity risk might be dependent on the current economic environmenti n which entities are

operating .

COVID19 and have not previously

Therefore, it is expected that the disclosures required under IFRS 7 in this area will reflect any significant changes in the
liquidity position as a r esult of the COVID19 and its development. Entities should be mindful that this disclosure is consistent
with their assessment of the going concern assumption.

i}z 2vwetz wzCe¥- O«EEVT

undiscounted payments:

Year ended 31 December 2022

Interest -bearing loans and borrowings
(excluding items below)

Lease liabilities (Note 31)

Convertible preference shares
Contingent consideration

Other financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

Derivatives and embedded derivatives

Year ended 31 December 202 1

Interest -bearing loans and borrowings
(excluding items below)

Lease liabilities (Note 31)

Convertible preference shares

Trade and other payables

Other financial liabilities

Derivatives and embedded derivatives

~©z© 2}z £ vldbditiesFased dn co¥tfactudlz ¥ {
On Lessthan 3to 12 1to5
demand 3 months months years > 5years Total  |ers 7.39(a)(0)
DEE DEE DEE DEE DEE DEE
966 Cc 1,422 10,554 8,000 20,942
48 117 290 2,454 1,473 4,382 IFRS 16.58
Cc Cc c 676 2,324 3,000
Cc Cc 1,125 Cc Cc 1,125
Cc Cc Cc 150 c 150
3,620 12,547 802 Cc C 16,969
1,970 2,740 391 1,191 1,329 7,621
6,604 15,404 4,030 15,025 13,126 54,189
On Less than 3to 12 1to5
demand 3 months months years > 5 years Total
PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE
2,650 Cc 76 8,872 11,600 23,198
32 90 296 2,386 1,432 4,236 IFRS 16.58
Cc Cc Cc 624 2,376 3,000
4,321 13,959 1,743 ¢ ¢ 20,023
Cc Cc Cc 202 Cc 202
549 1,255 c ¢ ¢ 1,804
7,552 15,304 2,115 12,084 15,408 52,463

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued)
21.5 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Commentary
IFRS 16.58 requires disclosure of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities applying IFRS 7.39 and IFRS 7.B11 separately

from the maturity analyses of other financial liabilities. As such, the Group presented a separate line item for lease
liabilities in the maturity analysis of its financial liabilities.

The maturity analysis sh ould include the remaining contractual maturities for derivative financial liabilities , for which
contractual maturities are essential to an understanding of the timing of the cash flows.

The financial derivative instruments disclosed in the above table are the gross undiscounted cash flows.
However, those amounts may be settled gross or net. The following table shows the corresponding
reconciliation of those amounts to their carrying amounts:

Less
On than 3 3to 12 1to5 Over
Year ended 31 December 202 2 demand months months years 5 years Total
PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE
Inflows 800 1,000 250 700 950 3,700
Outflows (1,970) (2,740) (391) (1,191) (1,329) (7,621)
Net (1,170) (1,740) (141) (491) (379)  (3,921)
Discounted at the applicable
interbank rates (1,170) (1,731) (139) (463) (343)  (3,846)
Less
On than 3 3to 12 1to5 Over
Year ended 31 December 202 1 demand months months years 5 years Total
DEE DEE DEE DEE DEE DEE
Inflows 500 1,000 C ¢ ¢ 1,500
Outflows (549) (1,25 5) c o} ¢ (1,804)
Net (49) (255) Cc o} o} (304)
Discounted at the applicable i
interbank rates (49) (255) C C C (304)
Collateral

The Group has pledged part of its short -term deposits in order to fulfil the collateral requirements for the

derivatives contracts. At 31 December 2022 and 202 1, respectively, the fair values of the short -term deposits

l1¢zy|lzy -z"z DIJAEEEAEEE vey DGAEEEAEEEA " z©] zx?2 ~thez ¢~

securities to the Group. The Group also holds a deposit in respect of derivative contracts of BJ KJ AEEE v

31 December2022 (20210 DPHMJAEEE>C i}z \ " ¥«| }Vv©O vo ¥w¢~|va~¥:

upon settlement of the contracts. The re are no other significant terms and conditions associated with the use of

collateral.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 7.B11B

IFRS 7.39(a)(b)

IFRS 7.39(a)(b)

IAS 7.48
IFRS 7.14
IFRS 7.38
IFRS 7.15
IFRS 7.36(b)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
ic
]
21. Financial assets and financial liabilities  (continued) O |5
. . ageg .. . . . age |AS 744A
21.6 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities IAS 7 440G 0|
Reclassified as Foreign  Changes 31
1 January Cash part of exchange in fair New December IAS 7,448
2022 flows disposal group movement values leases Other 2022 |as7.44D
PEEE PDEEE DEEE DEEE DEEE DPEEE DEEE PEEE s
Current interest - ‘§
. =]
bearing loans and S)
borrowings <
(excluding items
listed below) 2,724 (2,032) Cc (6) Cc Cc 1,691 2,377
Current lease
liabilities (Note 31) 418 (406) c c c 42 401 455
Non-current
interest -bearing %
loans and G
borrowings g
L 5]
(excluding items 7
listed below) 20,760 5,649 (5,809) (51) ¢ ¢ (1,108) 19,441 z
8
S
Non-current lease =
liabilities (Note 31) 2,553 c ¢ ¢ ¢ 551 (398) 2,706 &
=]
Dividends payable Cc Cc Cc Cc Cc Cc 410 410 S
| | | | 3 3 ]
Derivatives C C C C 58 C C 58
Total liabilities
from financing
activities 26,455 3,211 (5,809) (57) 58 593 996 25,447
-
N
Foreign
9
1 January exchange New 31 December IAS 1.38 IAS 7_448% I\
2021 Cash flows movement  leases Other 2021 |as7.44D b4
DEEE DEE DEELI DEE DEE DEEE ?\l’
Current interest -bearing loans and
borrowings (excluding items listed below) 4.479 (4,250) (10) é 2505 2724
Current lease liabilities (Note 31) 355 (341) c 22 382 418
Non-current interest -bearing loans and
borrowings (excluding items listed below) 18,624 4,871 (57) C (2,678) 20,760
Non-current lease liabilities (Note 31) 2,734 Cc Cc 203 (384) 2,553
Total liabilities from financing  activities 26,192 280 (67) 225 (175) 26,455

i}z €d2}z " C x¥t«fo ~oxt¢t«yz©O aguzentpdtipreokirtere¥t{-bearimgdaans @@~ {
borrowings, including lease liabilities to current due to the passage of time, the accrual of special dividends that
were not yet paid at year -end, and the effect of accrued but not yet paid interest on interest -bearing loans and
borrowings, including lease liabilities . The Group classifies interest paid as cash flows from operating activities.

Additional Australian disclosures
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

21. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

21.6 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities ~ (continued) NS

Commentary

IAS 7.44A requires an entity to provide disclosures that will enable the users of the financial statements to evaluate

changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non -cash

changes. The Group provided a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the statement of financial

position for liabilities arising from financing activities, which include the changes identified in IAS 7.44B as applicable. This

reconciliation provides a link to the amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows (IAS 7.44D).

An entity may provide the disclosure r equired by IAS 7.44A in combination with disclosures of changes in other assets and

liabilities. However, it is required to disclose the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities separately from the

changes on those other assets and liabilit ies (IAS 7.44E).

There is no prescribed format for this disclosure, but Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited has selected a tabular format as

it considered it the most efficient and meaningful way of meeting the requirement in IAS 7.44A and its objective, given the

facts and circumstances.

22. Inventories
2022 2021 1As2.36(b)
PEE P E E 1AS1.78(c)

Raw materials (at cost) 6,240 7,136

Work in progress (at cost) 13,357 9,722

Finished goods (at lower of cost and net realisable value) 6,430 6,972

Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value 26,027 23,830

During 2022A D GMKEIOE PGl GAEEE> -v®© " zx¥| o~0zy v© vo z®] zilAS236e)
realisable value. This is recognised in cost of sales.

COVID-19 commentary

Inventories might need to be written down to their net realisable value because of reduced movement in inventory, lower
commodity prices, or inventory obsolescence due to lower -than-expected sales.

IAS 2 Inventories requires that fixed production overheads are included in the cost of inventory based on normal

production capacity. Reduced production might affect the extent to which overheads can be included in the cost of

inventory.

Entities should assess the signific ance of any write -downs and whether they require disclosure in accordance with IAS 2.
Disclosures about inventories, including the measurement bases used, assist users in understanding how transactions, events
and conditions are reflected in the financial statements and the sensitivity to change. At a minimum, entities will need to
disclose the amount of any write -down of inventories recognised in profit or loss, as well as any subsequent reversal of such
write -downs. In addition, entities need to disclose the circumstances or events that lead to a reversal of any write -down.

23. Trade receivables and contract assets

Trade receivables

2022 2021 1AS1.78(b)
DEEE DEE IFRS76
Receivables from third -party customers 24,845 21,376
Receivables from an associate (Note 35) 551 582
Receivables from other related parties ( Note 35) 620 550
26,016 22,508
Allowance for expected credit losses (344) (218)
25,672 22,290
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, referto  Note 35. IAS 24.18(b)

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited 126
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o
Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
23. Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) S =
Contract assets ‘
LO|

As at 31 December 202 2, the Group has contractassets ¥ { DIl AJ I2RAG EBJ AFMEAEEE> an} IFRS737
VEC¥-vaxz {¥° z®|zx?3zy20x10zpPIJAEEEGCCzO ¥{ DKAEEE = IFRS 15.118()

Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract IFRS 7.35H
assets:
2022 2021 c
PEE PEE "§
As at 1 January 223 244 8
Provision for expected credit losses (Note 13.9) 185 76 5
Write -off (54) (95) IFRS7.35I(c)
Foreign exchange movement 4) 2
As at 31 December 350 223

The significant changes in the balances of trade receivables and contract assets are disclosed in Note 4.2 whilst ~ IFRS 7.351
the information about the credit exposure s are disclosed in Note 21.5 .

Commentary

IFRS 7.35H requires tabular disclosure of a reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing balance of the loss
allowance by class of financial instrument. The Group has provided this required reconciliation for trade receivables and
contr act assets. The reconciliation for debt instruments at fair value through OCI was not provided as the movement of
the loss allowance is not material.

IFRS 7.35I requires an entity to provide an explanation of how significant changes in the gross carryinga mount of
financial instruments during the period contributed to changes in the loss allowance. However, it does not explicitly
require a reconciliation of movements in the gross carrying amounts in a tabular format and the requirement could be
addressed using a narrative explanation.

Consolidated financial statements

COVID-19 commentary

Large-scale business disruptions may give rise to liquidity issues for some entities and consumers. Changesin credit quality of
loan portfolios and trade receivables (amongst other items) as a result of COVID19 in prior years and its declining impact in
2022 in many countries may have a significant influence ¥ &8 vao zwo2 ~2~CO z®! zx2zy m ' zy~2 ¢}

-
A number of regulators have published guidance on the regulatory and accounting implications of the impact of the =~ COVID-19. N
In March 2020, the IASB published a document, for educational purposes, entitled Accounting for expected credit losses 2 N
applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments in the light of current uncertainty resulting from the  COVID19 to help support the 5 N
consistent application of accounting standards on expected credit losses. The document is broadly consistent with the = o

guidance from the regulators and emphasises that IFRS 9 does not set bright lines or a mechanistic approach to determ ining N
when there is a significant increase in credit risk (SICR), nor does it dictate the exact basis on which entities should dete rmine
forward looking scenarios to measure expected credit losses.

Entities should consider the following in updating their E CL calculations due to the COVID19:

3 The use of reasonable and supportable information. Given the unprecedented circumstances, it is critical that entities
provide transparent disclosure of the critical assumptions and judgements used to measure the ECL

Re-segmentation of loan portfolios or groups or receivables

Individual and collective assessment of loans, receivables and contract assets. In order to accelerate the detection of
such changes in credit quality not yet detected at an individual level, it may be appropriate to adjust ratings and the
probabilities of default on a collective basis, considering risk characteristics such as the industry or geographical
location of the borrowers

3 Changesin payment terms. If payment terms are extended or reduced in light of the current economic
circumstances, the terms and conditions of the extension or reduction will have to be assessed to determine their
impacts on the ECL estimate

Additional Australian disclosures

The ECL calculation and the measurement of significant fluctuation in credit risk bo th incorporate forward -looking information
using a range of macroeconomic scenarios and, as such, entities need to reassess the inputs to their provision matrix used to
calculate ECLs. Uncertainties in market trends and economic conditions may persist due to COVID19, which may impact
actual results which differ materially from the estimates in ECL.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o

24. Cash and short -term deposits o
2022 2021

PEE PEE 1o
Cash at banks and on hand 11,732 11,125
Short-term deposits 5,796 3,791
17,528 14,916

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short -term deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the resp ective short -term deposit rates.

c
o
=
3]
>
©
o
=
=
=

At 31 December 2022A 2} z \ 7 ¥ « | }vy v-20210vBEFAGHEAEEEAEEE =oy" I1As750@)
borrowing facilities.

The Group has pledged a part of its short -term deposits to fulfil collateral requirements. Referto  Note 21.5 for IAS 7.48
further details.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following at 31 IAS 7.45
December:
&
2022 2021 E
PEETE PEETLE %
Cash at banks and on hand 11,732 11,125 @
Short-term deposits 5,796 3,791 '§
Cash at banks and short-term deposits attributable to discontinued operations 1,294 ¢ &
18,822 14,916 e
Bank overdrafts (966) (2,650) g
Cash and cash equivalents 17,856 12,266 §
S
Commentary

The Group included its bank overdrafts as part of cash and cash equivalents. This is because these bank overdrafts are
“z)v vwt¢z ¥o yzEfvaoay voy {¥ £ vo ~po?dz| (IABF8), v~ 2 ¥{ a}z \ ¥«

An entity would need to assess whether its banking arrangement is an integral part of its cash management. Cash -
management includes managing cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of meeting short -term commitments rather N
than for investment or other purposes. The Interpretations Committee concluded in June 2018 thati f the balance of a PPN
banking arrangement do es not often fluctuate from being negative to positive, then this indicates that the arrangement % N
y¥z© o¥a [¥"f£ yom ~pmaz|“"y¢ lv a ¥{ a}z zpa-a~CcO xv©O} £vav| zl Zm

o~
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
<
o
25. Issued capital and reserves o~
Authorised shares 2022 2021 'AS178(e)
Thousands Thousands IAS 1.79(2)() el
d"y~osv”™ ™ ©}v ' z© ¥{ DF zvx} 22,588 20,088  IAS 1.79(a)(ii)
L: xXx¥op-z"2a~wCz | "z{z"zoxz O©O})v z0O0 ¥{ | 2,500 2,500
25,088 22,588
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid Thousands DEE AS1.79(2)(.(\IS
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 202 1 19,388 19,388 %
Issued on 1 May 202 2 for acquisition of Extinguishers Limited ( Note 8) 2,500 2,500 -§
At 31 December 2022 21,888 21,888 2

Duringthe  zv™ A 2}z v«?2}¥" ~©zy ©}v 'z xv|~23ve¢ -vO ~ox’  zvO:
©}v"z© ¥{ DBPF zvx}C

Share premium D E E lins1786)
At 1 January 2021 Cc "
Cash on exercise of share options in excess of cost of treasury shares 80 E»
At 31 December 2021 80 g
Issuance of share capital for the acquisition of Extinguishers Limited ( Note 8) 4,703 Kz
Cash on exercise of share options in excess of cost of treasury shares 29 2
Transaction costs for issued share capital (32) é
At 31 December 2022 4,780 k5

©

©
Treasury shares Thousands D E E 1As 1.79(a)wi) E
At 1 January 2021 335 774 38
Issued for cash on exercise of share options (65) (120)
At 31 December 2021 270 654
Issued for cash on exercise of share options (75) (146)
At 31 December 2022 195 508 .

I\
Share option schemes 2 o
i}z \"¥«] }VvO 2-¥ ©}v'z ¥|2~¥no Ox}z£z0© «omyz" -} ~x} =] O
granted to certain senior executives and certain other employees. Refer to Note 31 for further details. < o
13\

Share options exercised in each respective year have been settled using the treasury shares of the Group. The
reduction in the treasury share equity component is equal to the cost incurred to acquire the shares, on a
weighted average basis. Any excess of the cash received fro m employees over the reduction in treasury shares
is recorded in share premium.

(%]

. ()

Other capital reserves Share-based Convertible 3
payments preference shares Total 2

(2]

PEE PEE PEE S

=

As at 1 January 2021 338 228 566 £
Share-based payments expense during the year 298 C 298 ‘§
At 31 December 2021 636 228’ 864 <
Share-based payments expense during the year 307 C 307 g
At 31 December 2022 943 228 1,171 s
<
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

25. Issued capital and reserves (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves
Other capital reserves
Share-based payments
The share-based payments reserve is used to recognise the value of equity -settled share -based payments
provided to employees, including key management personnel, as part of th eir remuneration. Refer to Note 31
for further details of these plans.
Convertible preference shares
The convertible preference share reserve covers the equity component of the issued convertible preference
shares. The liability component is included in Interest -bearing loans and borrowings (see Note 21.2).
All other reserves are as stated in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
OCI items, net of tax:
The disaggregation of changes of OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:
Year ended 31 December Fair value
2022 reserve of Foreign
Cash flow Cost of financial currency Asset
hedge hedging assets at translation  revaluation Retained
reserve reserve FVOCI reserve surplus earnings Total
PEE PEE PEE PEEE PEE PEE PEEE
Net gain on a hedge of net
investment ¢ c Cc 195 Cc Cc 195
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations Cc Cc Cc (246) Cc Cc (246)
Currency forward contracts 197 4 Cc Cc Cc Cc 201
Commodity forward contracts (617) (23) Cc Cc Cc Cc (640)
Reclassified to statement of
profit or loss (198) 3) (6) Cc Cc Cc (207)
Fair value loss on debt
instruments at FVOCI Cc Cc 9) Cc Cc c 9)
Fair value loss on equity
instruments designated at
FVOCI Cc (18) Cc Cc ¢ (18)
Share of OCI of an associate (o} Cc (30) c 30 c c
Remeasurement on defined
benefit plan Cc Cc Cc Cc Cc 257 257
Revaluation of office
properties in Euroland Cc Cc Cc Cc 592 Cc 592
(618) (22) (63) (51) 622 257 125
Year ended 31 December 2021 Fair value
reserve of Foreign
financial currency
Cash flow assets at translation Retained
hedge reserve FVOCI reserve earnings Total
DEE DEEE DEE DEEE DEEE
Exchange differences on translation of foreign i ) )
operations C C (117) C (117)
Currency forward contracts (265) c c Cc (265)
Reclassification to statement of profit
or loss 289 c Cc Cc 289
Fair value loss on debt instruments at FVOCI ¢ 4) ¢ ¢ 4)
Reclassification to statement of profit ] ) )
or loss C 3 C C 3
Fair value gain on equity instruments ] ) )
designated at FVOCI C 7 C C 7
Remeasurement on defined benefit plan ¢ ¢ ¢ (273) (273)
24 6 (117) (273) (360)
Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 1.79(b)

IAS 1.106A
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement

26. Distributions made and proposed

Cash dividends on ordinary shares declared and paid:
Final dividend for 202 1: 5.66 cents per share (2020: 3.93 cents per share)
Interim dividend for 202 2: 4.66 cents per share ( 202 1: 4.47 cents per share)

Special cash dividends on ordinary shares declared but not paid:
Special dividends for 202 2: 2.14 cents per share ( 202 1: Nil)

Proposed dividends on ordinary shares:
Final cash dividend for 202 2: 5.01 cents per share ( 202 1: 5.66 cents per share)

Special dividends were approved by an extraordinary shareholders meeting on 15 December
included as a separate line item in the statement of financial position.

(continued)

2022 2021
DEE DEE
1,089 749
890 851
1,979 1,600
410 ¢
1,087 1,082

202 2 and are

Proposed dividends on ordinary shares

are subject to approval at the annual general meeting and are not recognised as a liability as at 31 December.

27. Provisions

At 1 January 202 2

Adoption of amendments
to IAS 37

Acquisition of a
subsidiary (Note 8)
Arising during

the year

Utilised

Unused amounts
reversed

Unwinding of discount
and changes in the
discount rate

At 31 December 202 2

Current
Non-current

At 1 January 2021

Arising during the year
At 31 December 2021

Current
Non-current

Commentary

Social Waste Contingent
security electrical liability
Assurance - contributions and recognised in
type Restruct - Decomm- on share electronic a business Onerous
warranties uring issioning options equipment combination contracts Total
PDEE PDEE PDEE DEE bEE PEE PEE PEE
118 c c 4 53 c c 175
o c ¢ ¢ c c 120 120
¢ 900 1,200 ¢ ¢ 380 2,480
112 ¢ ¢ 26 102 20 20 280
(60) (59) ¢ (19) ®) ¢ ¢ (146)
(6) (6) ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ (12)
2 17 21 1 2 ¢ ¢ 43
166 852 1,221 12 149 400 140 2,940
166 305 c 28 400 140 1,042
¢ 547 1,221 121 ¢ ¢ 1,898
Waste
Social security electrical and
Assurance -type  contributions on electronic
warranties share options equipment Total
PEE PEE PEE PEE
66 3 31 100
52 1 22 75
118 4 53 175
118 c 38 156
C 4 15 19

The above table shows the voluntary disclosure of provisions for the comparative period as IAS 37.84 does not require

such disclosure.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 1.107

IAS 1.137(a)

IAS 37.84(a)

IAS 37.84(b)
IAS 37.84(c)

IAS 37.84(d)

IAS 37.84(€)

IAS 37.84(a)
IAS 37.84(b)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

27. Provisions (continued)

Assurance -type warranties

A provision is recognised for expected warranty claims on products sold during the year, based on past

experience of the level of repairs and returns. It is expected that these costs will be incurred in the next financial

year. Assumptions used to calculat e the provision for warranties were based on current sales levels and current IAS 37.85
information available about returns based on the warranty period for all products sold.

Restructuring

Extinguishers Ltd recorded a restructuring provision prior to being acquired by the Group. The provision relates
principally to the elimination of certain of its product lines. The restructuring plan was drawn up and announced
to the employees of Extinguis hers Limited in 202 2 when the provision was recognised in its financial
statements. The restructuring is expected to be completed by 202 4.

Decommissioning

A provision has been recognised for decommissioning costs associated with a factory owned by Extinguishers
Limited. The Group is committed to decommissioning the site as a result of the construction of the
manufacturing facility for the production of fire  retardant fabrics.

Social security contributions on share options

The provision for social security contributions on share options is calculated based on the number of options
outstanding at the reporting date that are expected to be exercised. The provision is based on market price of
the shares at the reporting date wh ich is the best estimate of the market price at the date of exercise. Itis
expected that the costs will be incurred during the exercise period of 1 January 202 3 to 31 December 202 4.

Waste electrical and electronic equipment
The provision for waste electrical and electronic equipment is calculated based on sales after 13 August 2007
(new waste) and expected disposals of historical waste (sales up to 13 August 200 7).

Onerous contracts

A provision is recognised for certain contracts with suppliers for which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations exceed the economic benefits expected to be received. It is anticipated that these costs will be
incurred in the next financial year.

28. Government grants IAS 20.39(b)
2022 2021
PEEE PEEE

At 1 January 1,551 1,450

Received during the year 2,951 642

Released to the statement of profit or loss (1,053) (541)

At 31 December 3,449 1,551

Current 149 151

Non-current 3,300 1,400

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. IAS 20.39(c)

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants.

COVID-19 commentary

In an attempt to mitigate the impact of the COVID-19, governments in many countries have introduced measures to aid
entities. These measures include direct subsidies, tax exemptions, tax reductions and credits, extended expiry period of
unused tax losses, reduction of pub lic levies, rental reductions or deferrals and low interest loans. Whilst some of these
measures meet the definition of government grants under IAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance, others do not. Accordingly, ent ities should analyse all facts and circumstances carefully to apply
the appropriate relevant accounting standards which may include, for instance, IFRS 9  Financial Instruments, IAS 12
Income Taxes, IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent A ssets and IFRIC 21 Levies.

IAS 20 requires entities to disclose the following information:

3  The accounting policy adopted for government grants, including methods of presentation adopted in the financial
statements

3  The nature and extent of government gran ts recognised in the financial statements and an indication of other forms
of government assistance from which the entity has directly benefited

3 Unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to government assistance that has been recognised
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement

29. Contract liabilities

Long-term advances for equipment
Short-term advances for i nstallation services
Customer loyalty points

Service-type warranties

Equipment received from customers

Total contract liabilities (Note 4)

Current
Non-current

29.1 Quality Points transactions

At 1 January

Deferred during the year

Recognised as revenue during the year
At 31 December

Current
Non-current

(continued)

2022 2021
DEE DEEE
2,820 844
1,374 1,258
900 678
524 410
224 184
5,842 3,374
2,880 2,486
2,962 888
2022 2021
PDEEI DEEE
678 551
1,381 1,256
(1,159) (1,129)
900 678
398 346
502 332

These amounts relate to the accrual and release of Quality Points transactions. As at 31 December 202 2, the
z©a ~£f£vazy ¢~vw~¢~2" [ ¥7 «®0020042020y6H,00H.02 © VE¥«o?zy

30. Trade and other payables

2022 2021
PEE PEE
Restated
Trade payables 15,421 18,551
Other payables 1,465 1,181
Interest payable 43 269
Related parties 40 22
16,969 20,023
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
3 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60 -day terms
3 Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months
3 Interest payable is normally settled quarterly throughout the financial year
3 For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to  Note 35
[¥" z®! ¢vaova~¥o© ¥o 2}z \ " ¥«ctefS6s réfertd dlotg223.- "~ ~©f £vav

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 7.39
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o

<

o
31. Leases IFRS 16.51 O =Y

IFRS 16.52

Group as a lessee w0l
The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant, machiner y, vehicles and other equipment used in its IFRS 16.59(a)
operations. Leases of plant and machinery generally have lease terms between 3 and 15 years, whilst motor IFRS 16.59(c)
vehicles and other equipment generally have lease terms between3 andJ ~zv " ©C i}z \ 7" ¥« ! (

~2© ¢zv©z© v z ©zx« zy w2} Genéralp BeGradEis rastrictet! Aront a¥sigring z
and subleasing the leased assets and some contracts require the Group to maintain certain financial ratios.
There are several lease contracts that include extension and termination options and variable lease payments,
which are further discussed below.

c
o
=
o
=)
©
o
=
=
=

The Group also has certain leases of machinery with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of office IFRS 16.60
equipment with low value . The Groupappl~z © 2 } 2 z & @} ¥airdMedse 6f low-value assetsGrecognition
exemptions for these leases.

Commentary

IFRS 16.52 requires lessees to disclose information in a single note or a separate section in the financial statements.
However, there is no need to duplicate certain information that is already presented elsewhere, provided that information
is incorporated by cross-reference in a single note or separate section. The Group provided most of the required

disclosures by IFRS 16 in this section of the financial statements. Cross -references are provided for certain required f’é
information outside of this section. g
g
2
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right -of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period: IFRS 16.54 -§
©
Plant and Motor Other £
machinery vehicles equipment Total 2
PEE DEEE DEEI DEE §
As at 1 January 2021 1,552 699 664 2,915 §
Additions (Note 8) 124 58 46 228 IFRs1653() |8
Depreciation expense (158) (131) (122) (411) IFRS16.53(a)
As at 31 December 2021 1,518 626 588 2,732 IFRS 16.53()
Additions (Note 8) 424 108 78 610 IFRS 16.53(h)
Depreciation expense 173) (136) (125) (434)  IFRs 16.53(a)
As at 31 December 2022 1,769 598 541 2,908  IFRS16:53() R
g N
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest -bearing loans and IFRS 16.54 g o
borrowings) and the movements during the period: @
2022 2021
PEE PEE
As at 1 January 2,971 3,089
Additions 593 225 @
Accretion of interest 178 185 IFRS1653() =i
o
Payments (581) (528) 3
As at 31 December 3,161 2,971 E
Current (Note 21.2) 455 418 [
Non-current (Note 21.2) 2,706 2,553 ﬁ
T
c
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 21.5 . IFRS 16.58 8
=}
T
<
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
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31. Leases (continued) Sl ~tl
Group as a lessee (continued) w0l
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss: IFRS 16.54
2022 2021
PDEELE PEETLE
Depreciation expense of right -of-use assets 434 411 IFRS16.53() B
Interest expense on lease liabilities 178 185 IFRS16.53(h) %
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in cost of sales) 22 21  IFRS 16.53(c) ‘§
Expense relating to leases of low -value assets (included in administrative IFRS 16.53(d) =
expenses) 18 17
Variable lease payments (included in cost of sales) 32 28 IFRS 16.53(e)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 684 662
The Group had total cash outflows for leases of 653,000 in 202 2 (594,000 in 202 1). The Group also had IFRS 16.53(9)

IFRS 16.59(b)(iv

non-cash additions to right -of-« ©z v ©©z 3 © voy ¢zv©Oz W2ZXvD-ICIARER).FHe DJI |,

future cash outflows relating to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in  Note 34.

Commentary

IFRS 16.53 requires disclosure of the following information, which users of the financial statements have identified as
being most useful to their analysis:

Depreciation charge for right -of-use assets, split by class of underlying asset
Interest expense on lease liabilities

Short-term lease expense for such leases with a lease term greater than one month

Consolidated financial statements

Low-value asset lease expense (except for portions related to short -term leases)
Variable lease expense (i.e., for variable lease payments not included in the lease liability)

Income from subleasing right -of-use assets

Total cash outflow for leases
Additions to right -of-use assets

Gains and losses arising from sale and leaseback transactions

(O CN RGN R @ RGN R N B @ RGN R N B O]

Carrying amount of right -of-use assets at the end of the reporting period by class of underlying asset

Notes
2

All of the above disclosures are required to be presented in a tabular format, unless another format is more appropriate.
The amounts to be disclosed must include cos ts that the lessee has included in the carrying amount of another asset g
during the reporting period (IFRS 16.54).

The standard requires disclosure of the total cash outflow for leases. T he Group also included the cash outflow related to
leases of low-value assets and short-term leases in the disclosure of the total cash outflow .

IFRS 16.55 requires disclosure of the amount of lease commitments for short -term leases when short -term lease
commitments at the end of the reporting period are dissimilarto the saf z | z 7 ~ ¥ yte@Cleag}edénide (that is
otherwise required to be disclosed). This disclosure requirement is not applicable to the Group.
Algh FKCJN "z8«~"2© vyy~2~¥ove¢ 8S«vet~2a3vad~o7z voy 8S«vVos@rgtdv?a~-:
meet the disclosure objective of the standard. This additional information may include , but is not limited to, information
that helps users of the financial statements to assess:
3 i}z wmva« z ¥{ 2}z ¢z00zzCO ¢zvO~u| VvXxa@~-~2a-~70@
3 Future cash outflows to which the lessee is potentially exposed that are not reflected in the measurement of lease
liabilities:

3 Variable lease payments

Additional Australian disclosures

3 Extension options and termination options

3 Residual value guarantees

3 Leases not yet commenced to which the lessee is committed

Restrictions or covenants imposed by leases o™
. ™)

Sale and leaseback transactions
<
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
31. Leases (continued) S |
Group as a lessee (continued) .

The Group has lease contracts for machiner y that contain s variable payments based on the number of units to IFRS 16.59(b)(7)

be manufactured. These terms are negotiated by management for certain machiner y that is used to IFRS 16.849
manufacture products without steady customer demand. Mv e v | z £z a2 C©O ¥align thexl@éase-expense©
with the units manufactured and revenueeamned. i } z { ¥¢ ¢ ¥-~o| | "¥-2~yz0©O© ~o{ ¥" £
lease payments, including the magnitude in relation to fixed payments:
Variable s
Fixed payments payments Total é
2022 DEE PEE PEE g
Fixed rent 352 ¢ 352 =
Variable rent with minimum payment 176 47 223
Variable rent only c 24 24
528 71 599
2021
Fixed rent 392 ¢ 392 P
Variable rent with minimum payment 189 45 234 é
Variable rent only c 21 21 %
0
581 66 647 s
2
g
A 5% increase inunits produced for the relevant products would increase total lease payments by 1%. =
()
K]
Commentary 1_53
Disclosures of additional information relating to variable lease payments could include (IFRS 16.B49): g
3 i}z ¢z00zzCO " zvO¥oO© {¥° «O©~un| -v ~vwtz ¢zvOz |v £z820© V ©
3 The relative magnitude of variable lease payments to fixed payments
3 Key variables upon which variable lease payments depend on how payments are expected to vary in response to
changes in those key variables
3 Other operational and financial effects of variable lease payments cF\}
Entities would need to exercise judgement in determini ng the extent of disclosures needed to satisfy the disclosure
objective of the s tandard (i.e., to provide a basis for users to assess the effect of leases on the financial position, financial ﬁ &
performance, and cash flows of the lessee). 2
™
13V
The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are
negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the
\ " ¥ «lugn@ss needs. Management exercises significant judgem ent in determining whether the se extension
and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised (see Note 3).
Set out below are the undiscounted potential future rental payments relating to periods  following the exercise IFRS 16.59(b)(ii) 4
date of extension and termination options that are not included in the lease term: FRS 16.850 3
o
Within five More than five é
years years Total 3
As at 31 December 2022 DEEE PEEE PEE %
3
Extension options expected not to be exercised 525 403 928 %
Termination options expected to be exercised 424 202 626 5
=
As at 31 December 2021 949 605 1,554 2
Extension options expected not to be exercised 504 398 902
Termination options expected to be exercised 388 176 564
892 574 1,466 ™
™
<
7l
8
e}
5 B
o
(o}
< %)
™
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

31. Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

Commentary

Disclosures of additional information relating to  extension and termination options could include (IFRS 16.B50):

3 i}z ¢z00zz2CO " zvO¥n©® {¥° «O©-~n| z®2zo©~¥nm ¥!a-¥Yo© ¥° az"g
3 The relative magnitude of optional lease payments to lease payments

3  The prevalence of the exercise of options that were not included in the measurement of lease liabilities

3  Other operational and financial effects of those options

Entities would need to exercise judgement in determining the extent of disclosures needed to satisfy the disclosure
objective of the standard (i.e., to provide a basis for users to assess the effect of leases on the financial position, finan  cial
performance, and cash flows of the lessee).

Group as a lessor
The Group has entered into operating leases on its investment property portfolio consisting of certain office IFRS 16.90

and manufacturing buildings (see Note 18). These leases have terms of between five and 20 years. All leases :EEE ig:g;
include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to prevailing
market conditions. The lesseeis also required to provide a residual value guarantee on the properties. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year is £1,404,000 (20210 1,877,000 ).
Future minimum rentals receivable under non -cancellable operati ng leases as at 31 December are, as follows:
2022 2021 IFRS16.97
PEE PEE
Within one year 1,418 1,390
Between 1 and 2 years 1,387 1,371
Between 2 and 3 years 1,411 1,389
Between 3 and 4 years 1,452 1,420
Between 4 and 5 years 1,380 1,340
More than 5 years 5,901 5,864
12,949 12,774

COVID-19 commentary

As described in Note 2.4, the IASB issued COVID19-Related Rent Concessions- amendment to IFRS 16 Leasesto provide
relief to lessees from applying IFRS 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the COVID19.

The amendment was intended to apply until 30 June 2021, but as the impact of the  COVID19 is continuing, the IASB, on
31 March 2021, extended the period of the application of the practical expedient until 30 June 2022. Many lessors have
provided rent concessions to lessees as a result of the COVID19. Rent concessions can include rent holidays or rent
reductions for a period of time, possibly followed by increased rent payments in future periods. Applying the requirements

in IFRS 16 for changes to lease payments, particularly assessing whether the rent concessions are lease modifications and
applying the required accounting, could be practically difficult in the current environment. The objective of the

amendment is to provide lessees that have been granted COVID19 related rent concessions with practical relief, whilst
still providing useful information about leases to users of the financial statements.

As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a COVID-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a
lease modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the  COVID
19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change under IFRS 16, if the ch ange were not a lease
modification. The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the  COVID-19.

A lessee that applies the practical expedient discloses that it has applied the practical expedient to all rent  concessions
that meet the conditions for the practical expedient or, if not applied to all such rent concessions, information about the
nature of the contracts to which it has applied the practical expedient. In addition, a lessee discloses the amount
recognised in profit or loss to reflect changes in lease payments that arise from such rent concessions to which the lessee
has applied the practical expedient.

Entities will need to assess whether the regulator in their jurisdiction allows the use of the reli  ef and the date from which it
is effective.

The Group did not have any leases impacted by the amendment.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

32. Pensions and other post -employment benefit plans
Net employee defined benefit liabilities

2022 2021

PEEE DEEE
US post-employment healthcare benefit plan 339 197
Euroland pension plan 2,711 2,780
Total 3,050 2,977

The Group has a defined benefit pension plan in Euroland (funded). Also, in the United States, the Group
providescertainpost-z £} ¢ ¥ £zo?2 }zved}xv z wzoz{~20 23¥ z£]| ¢C¥ z:
pension plan is a final salary plan for Eurol and employees, which requires contributions to be made to a

separately administered fund.

This plan is governed by the employment laws of Euroland, which require final salary payments to be adjusted

for the consumer price index upon payment during retirement. The level of benefits provided depends on the
£z£wz " CO ¢zwm| 2} ¥{ ©z =~xz vey O©OVe¢v" ~ va “za~-"zgz7ga
governed by the Board of Trustees, which consists of an equa | number of employer and employee
representatives. The Board of Trustees is responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the
definition of the investment strategy.

Each year, the Board of Trustees reviews the level of funding in the Euroland pension plan as required by

Z« ¥¢voyCO© z£!¢¥ £zuma ¢z| ~©¢v 2 ~labili matehirgstrategy arm investment~ a
risk management policy. This includes employing the use of annuities and longevity swaps to m anage the risks.
The Board of Trustees decides its contribution based on the results of this annual review. Generally, it aims to
}voz v (¥ 23{¥¢~¥ £~® ¥{ Vv x¥fw~ozy | E: ~8 z8«~2" vao
employment legislation r equires the Group to clear any plan deficit (based on a valuation performed in

accordance with the regulations in Euroland) over a period of no more than five years after the period in which

the deficit arises. The Board of Trustees aim to keep annual cont ributions relatively stable at a level such that no
plan deficits (based on valuation performed in accordance with the regulations in Euroland) will arise.

Since the pension liability is adjusted to the consumer price index,the | zo ©~¥ao | ¢ve ~0O0 z®;| ¥
inflation, interest rate risks and changes in the life expectancy for pensioners. As the plan assets include

significant investments in listed equity shares of entities in manufacturing and consumer products sector, th e
Group is also exposed to equity market risk arising in the manufacturing and consumer products sector.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the statement of financial position for the respective plans:

Post-employment healthcare benefit plan

Net benefit expense (recognised in profit or loss) 2022 2021
PEEE PEEE
Current service cost 142 108
Interest cost on benefit obligation 11 5
Net benefit expense 153 113

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations

P E E | 1AS19.141

Defined benefit obligation at 1 January 2021 88
Interest cost 5
Current service cost 108
Benefits paid (34)
Exchange differences 30
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December 2021 197
Interest cost 11
Current service cost 142
Benefits paid (22)
Exchange differences 10
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December 202 2 339

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

32. Pensions and other post -employment benefit plans (continued)

Euroland Plan

202 2 changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets

Pension cost charged to profit or loss

Remeasurement gains/(losses) in OCI

Sub-total Return on plan Actuarial changes Actuarial changes
included in assets (excluding arising from arising from
Net profit or amounts included changes in changes Sub-total
1 January Service interest loss Benefits in net interest demographic in financial Experience included in  Contributions 31 December
2022 cost expense (Note 13.7) paid expense) assumptions assumptions adjustments OCl by employer 2022
DEE DEE DEE DEE PEE PEE PEEE PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE
Defined benefit
obligation (5,610) (1,267) (256) (1,523) 868 C 211 (80) (20) 111 Cc (6,154)
Fair value of plan assets 2,830 ¢ 125 125 (868) 256 Cc Cc Cc 256 1,100 3,443
Benefit liability (2,780) (1,398) ¢ 256 211 (80) (20) 367 1,100 (2,711)
202 1 changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets
Pension cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gains/(losses) in OCI
Return on plan Actuarial changes Actuarial changes
Sub-total assets (excluding arising from arising from
Net included in amounts included changes in changes Sub-total
1 January Service interest  profit or loss Benefits in net interest demographic in financial Experience included in  Contributions 31 December
2021 cost expense (Note 13.7 ) paid expense) assumptions assumptions adjustments OCl by employer 2021
DEE DEE bEE bEE PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE PEE
Defined benefit
obligation (5,248) (1,144) (283) (1,427) 1,166 Cc (201) 70 30 (101) Cc (5,610)
Fair value of plan assets 2,810 é 161 161 (1,166) (289) c c c (289) 1,314 2,830
Benefit liability (2,438) (1,266) c (289) (201) 70 30 (390) 1,314 (2,780)

Commentary

An entity must assess whether all or some disclosures should be disaggregated to distinguish plans or groups of plans with ma terially different risks under the requirements of IAS 19.138. For

example, an entity may disaggregate disclosure about plans showi ng one or more of the following features: different geographical locations, characteristics such as flat salary pension plans
final salary pension plans or post -employment medical plans, regulatory environments, reporting segments and/or funding arrangeme

Entities must exercise judgement and assess the grouping criteria according to their specific facts and circumstances. In thi

Euroland, hence there is no further disaggregation shown.

Additional disclosures may also be provided to meet the objectives in IAS 19.135. For example, an entity may present an analy

distinguishes the nat ure, characteristics and risks of the obligation. Such a disclosure could distinguish:

(a) between amounts owing to active members, d eferred members, and pensioners
(b) between vested benefits and accrued but not vested benefits

(c) between conditional benefits, amounts attributable to future sala ry increases and other benefits

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

nts (e.g., wholly unfunded, wholly or partly funded).
s case, the Group has only one defined benefit pension plan in

sis of the present value of the defined benefit obligation that
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

32. Pensions and other post -employment benefit plans (continued)

The acquisitions of Extinguishers Limited in 202 2 and Lightbulbs Limited in 202 1 did not affect plan assets
or the defined benefit obligation, as neither of the entities had defined benefit plans.

The fair values of each major class of plan assets are as follows: IAS 19.142

Euroland plan

2022 2021
PEE PEE
Investments quoted in active markets:
Listed equity investments
Manufacturing and consumer products sector 830 655
Telecom sector 45 33
Bonds issued by Euroland Government 1,670 1,615
Cash and cash equivalents 400 250
Unqguoted investments:
Debt instruments issued by Good Bank International Limited 428 222
Property 70 55
Total 3,443 2,830
The plan assets include a property occupied by the Groupwitha { v ~" =V ¢ « z 22{L{O BB EBRAEH IAS19.143
Commentary
Under IAS 19.142, the Group has separated the plan assets within different classes. The Group hasaclass -¢ | "~ ¥ | z ~

which has not been further classified into categories. The amount is not determined to be material to the consolidated
financial statem ents.

The fair values of each classes of plan assets were determined in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 13.
However, the fair value disclosures required by IFRS 13 do not apply to plan assets measured at fair value in
accordance with IAS 19.

The principal assumptions used in determining pension and post -employment medical benefit obligations for |as 19.144
a1z \"¥«!CO ! ¢va® v z ©O}¥-a wz~¢t¥-0

2022 2021
% %
Discount rate:

Euroland pension plan 49 55

Post-employment medical plan 5.7 5.9
Future salary increases:

Euroland pension plan 35 4.0
Future consumer price index increases:

Euroland pension plan 2.1 2.1
Healthcare cost increase rate 7.2 7.4
Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65: Years Years
Euroland pension plan

Male 20.0 20.0

Female 23.0 23.0
Post-employment healthcare benefit plan

Male 19.0 19.0

Female 22.0 22.0

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

32. Pensions and other post -employment benefit plans (continued)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption s as at 31 December is, as shown below:

Assumptions for Euroland pension plan:
Future pension cost increase :
1%increase
1% decrease
Discount rate:
0.5% increase
0.5% decrease
Future salary increases:
0.5% increase
0.5% decrease
Life expectancy of male pensioners:
Increase by 1 year
Decrease by 1 year
Life expectancy of female pensioners:
Increase by 1 year
Decrease by 1 year

Assumptions for US post -employment healthcare benefit plan:

Future pension cost increase :
1%increase
1% decrease

Discount rate:
0.5% increase
0.5% decrease

Life expectancy of male pensioners:
Increase by 1 year
Decrease by 1 year

Life expectancy of female pensioners:
Increase by 1 year
Decrease by 1 year

Impact on defined
benefit obligation

2022 2021
PEE DEE
70 60
(80) (70)
(90) (100)
80 70
120 110
(110) (130)
110 100
(120) (130)
70 60
(60) (70)
110 105
(90) (95)
(90) (120)
100 80
130 125
(150) (155)
90 75
(80) (95)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the

defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the

reporting period. The sensitivity analyses are based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all other
assumptions constant. The sensitivity analyses may not be representative of an actual change in the defined

benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur i n isolation from one another.

The following are the expected payments or contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
Between 2 and 5 years

Between 5 and 10 years

Beyond 10 years

Total expected payments

2022 2021
PEE PEE
1,500 1,350
2,150 2,050
2,160 2,340
3,000 2,600
8,810 8,340

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 26.5 years

(202 1: 25.3 years).

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 19.145

IAS 19.145(b)

IAS 19.147(a)

IAS 19.147(b)
IAS 19.147(c)

141

Contents

c
o
=
o
=)
©
o
=
=
=

Consolidated financial statements

Notes

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices

|

o

(e7]

<t

Lo/




Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

32. Pensions and other post -employment benefit plans (continued)

Commentary

IAS 19.145(c) also requires disclosure of changes from the previous period in the methods and assumptions used in
preparing the sensitivity analyses, and the reasons for such changes. The Group did not have such changes.

IAS 19.145(a) requires disclosure of sensitivity analyses showing how the defined benefit obligation would be affecte  d by
reasonably possible changes in actuarial assumptions. The purpose of this publication is to illustrate the disclosures
required and the changes in the assumptions provided in the sensitivity analyses above are not necessarily reflective of
those in th e current markets.

The standard includes some overarching disclosure objectives and considerations that provide a framework to identify
the overall tone and extent of disclosures that should be included in the financial statement notes. For example, IAS
19.136 indicates that entities should consider the following when providing defined benefit plan disclosures:

3 The level of detail necessary to satisfy the disclosure requirements
3 How much emphasis to place on each of the various requirements
3 How much aggregation or disaggregation to undertake
3

Whether users of financial statements need additional information to evaluate the quantitative information
disclosed

These considerations are meant to assist entities in reconciling the overriding disclosure objective a long with the fact
that an extensive list of required disclosures still remains in the standard. In the Basis for Conclusions accompanying IAS
19, the IASB emphasise that information that is immaterial is not required to be disclosed, as set outin IAS 1.3 1.

The addition of clear disclosure objectives provides entities with an opportunity to take a fresh look at their defined

wzoez{~2 | ¢tva y~0OxC¥O« zOC Z¢~£~ova@~o| ~££f£vaz  ~vet y~Ox¢¥O«’

on those transactions and details that truly matter.

COVID-19 commentary

COVID19 at its current stage has had a significant impact on interest rates, expected inflation and asset values which may
have trigger ed the need for a re -measurement of the defined benefit obligation and pension plan assets. The current
environment may continue to affect the values of the p lan assets and obligations resulting in potential volatility in the
amount of the net defined benefit pension plan surplus/deficit recognised.

The impact of COVID19 will vary by entity, with some entities recognising increases in net pension assets, whilst others
having to recognise decreases. Entities should ensure that sufficient disclosures are made such that users are able to
understand the impacts of COVID19 on pension plans.

33. Share-based payments
Senior Executive Plan
Under the Senior Executive Plan (SEP), share options of the parent are granted to senior executives of the

parent, including members of key management personnel, - ~2} £¥"z 2}l va FG £¥no2} 0O

price of the share options is equal to the market price of the underlying shares on the date of grant. The share
¥l a~-¥o@© -z©2 ~{ v o y(non-narketcdndiition) \incréases iy @0%Zvihin three years from the
date of grant and the senior executive remains employed on such date. The share options granted will not

vest if the EPS performance condition is not met.

The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using a binomial option pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions on which the share options were granted. However, the above
performance condition is only considered in determining the number of instruments that will ultimately vest.

The share options can be exercised up to two years after the three -year vesting period and therefore, the
contractual term of each option granted is five years. There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Group
does not have a past practice of cash settleme nt for these share options. The Group accounts for the SEP as
an equity -settled plan.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 2.45(a)

IFRS 2.46
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
33. Share -based payments (continued) S =
General Employee Share Option Plan IFRS 2.45(a)
Under the General Employee Share Option Plan (GESP), the Group, at its discretion, may grant share options Lol

of the parent to employees other than senior executives, once the employee has completed two years of

service. Vesting of the share optionsisdependz @2 ¥ao 2}z \ " ¥«! CO 2¥ave¢ O} v’

to a group of principal competitors. Employees must remain in service for a period of three years from the IFRS 2.46
date of grant. The fair value of share options granted is estimated at the date of gran t using a Monte -Carlo IFRS 247())
simulation model, taking into account the terms and conditions on which the share options were granted. The

model simulates the TSR and compares it against the group of principal competitors. It takes into account

historical and expec ted dividends, and the share price volatility of the Group relative to that of its competitors

S0 as to predict the share performance.

c
o
=
o
=)
©
o
=
=
=

The exercise price of the share options is equal to the market price of the underlying shares on the date of IFRS 2.46
grant. The contractual term of the share options is five years and there are no cash settlement alternatives
for the employees. The Group does not have a past practice of cash settlement for these awards.

Share Appreciation Rights

i}z \"¥«!'CO w«©O~1nz0©0 Yz -z ¢ ¥ShaterAppteciatidh Righis (SARD), sattledzin chsh. v 1 IFRS 2.45(a)
The SARs vest when a specified target number of new sales contracts (non-market vesting condition) are :EEE ﬁﬁif(a)(m)
closed within three years from the date of grant and the employee continues to be employed by the Group at

the vesting date. The SARs can be exercised up to three years after the three -year vesting period and

therefore, the contractual term of the SAR s is six years. The liability for the Share Appreciation Rights is

measured, initially and at the end of each reporting period until settled, at the fair value of the Share

Appreciation Rights . This is done by applying an option pricing model, taking into account the terms and

conditions on which the Share Appreciation Rights were granted, and the extent to which the employees have

rendered services to date.

Consolidated financial statements

The carrying amount of the liability relating to the SARs at 31 December 2022 - v © D GN(OREE E IFRS 2.50
P F NI A EN®BARS had vested, granted or forfeited at 31 December 2022 and 202 1, respectively. IFRS 2:51(6)
The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:
2022 2021
b b
Expense arising from equity -settled share -based payment transactions 307,000 298,000 N
Expense arising from cash-settled share -based payment transactions 105,000 194,000
0
Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions 412,000 492 000 IFRS250 £ N
IFRS 2.51(a) Z
&
There were no cancellations or modifications to the awards in 2022 or 202 1. IFRS 2.47(c)
Movements during the year
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements
in, share options during the year (excluding SARSs):
2022 2022 2021 2021 @
Number WAEP Number WAEP 3
Outstanding at 1 January 575,000 PGCN 525000 pGCL B
Granted during the year 250,000 DHCN 155,000 DHCEF =
Forfeited during the year Cc Cc (25,000) DGC}H £
Exercised during the year (75,000) 2 DGCF  (65,000)1 D H CE IFRs 2.45() 9
<
Expired during the year (25,000) PHCE (15,000) PGCF E
Outstanding at 31 December 725,000 PHCC 575,000 D G C M IFRs2.45(d) _%
Exercisable at 31 December 110,000 PGCH 100,000 P G C J IFRs 2.45(b) 2
i}z -z~|}azy vaz"v]|z ©}v iz | " ~xz va a}yz yyvaz ¥{ z®z x~0z IFRS2450)

2 The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of these optionswas DHCF HC

Appendices
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

33. Share -based payments (continued)

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 December 202 2 IFRS 2.45(d)
was 2.94 years (202 1: 2.60 years).

The weighted average fair value ofoptions | "vaod zy y«” ~o| 2 RXR1I0OzBFCFMXC DF C IFRS247@)
i}z "volz ¥{ z®z"x~0z | " ~xz0 {¥" ¥|2~¥o00O ¥«2MWAQ ol GQC |Frs2.450)

a¥ DPDHCFH>C

The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the three plans for the years ended 31 December
202 2 and 202 1, respectively:

2022 2022 2022
SEP GESP SAR

Weighted average fair values at the measurement date bDHCI DHCF BbGCN
Dividend yield (%) 3.13 3.13 3.13
Expected volatility (%) 15.00 16.00 18.00
Riskafree interest rate (%) 5.10 5.10 5.10
Expected life of share options/SARs (years) 4.25 3.00 6.00
lz~|}2zy v=-z"v]|z ©}v' 'z |7 ~xz2 3.10 3.10 3.12
Model used Binomial Monte Carlo Binomial
2021 2021 2021
SEP GESP SAR

Weighted average fair values at the measurement date DHCEH DHCE DGCEK
Dividend yield (%) 3.01 3.01 3.01
Expected volatility (%) 16.30 17.50 18.10
Riskefree interest rate (%) 5.00 5.00 5.00
Expected life of options/SARs (years) 4.25 3.00 6.00
lz~|}2zy v=-z"v]|z ©}v'z | " ~xz2 2.86 2.86 2.88
Model used Binomial Monte Carlo Binomial

The expected life of the share options and SARs is based on historical data and current expectations and is

not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which
may not necessarily be the actual outcome.

34. Commitments and contingencies
Commitments

At 31 December 202 2, the Group had commitmentsof PGAHF ERREE BI AJEEAEEE> ~nx
DPGAEEERREE Bc~¢> " z¢ve@~o| 23¥ 3a3lz x¥f£|l ¢tza~¥o ¥{ 23}z
(20210 PIJFKAEEE> "z¢va~o| 2a¥ a”"yyz | @fitxehtrr®z X ¥E£E£~2 £z«

The Group has various lease contracts that ha ve not yet commenced as at 31 December 202 2. The future
lease payments for these non -cancellable lease contracts are | MA EvEhihoneyear A BDFNJ AEEE -
years v @ y10 000 thereafter .

Legal claim contingency

An overseas customer has commenced an action against the Group in respect of equipment claimed to be
yz{zx2&~-zC i}z z0O©3~£f£va@zy | v ¥«& ~0©0 DMIJEAEEE }béenty
set. Therefore, it is not practicable to state the timing of the payment, if any.

The Group has been advised by its legal counsel that it is only possible, but not probable, that the action will
succeed. Accordingly, no provision for any liability has been made in these financial statements.

Guarantees

The Group has provided the following guarantees at 31 December 202 2:

3 Guarantee to an unrelated party for the performance in a contract by the joint venture. No liability is
expected to arise

3 \«vivoazz ¥{ ~2020@}Q FHANEBEGEANMHER }=z vOO¥x~vazCO

been incurred jointly with other investors

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IFRS 2.47(a)(i)

IFRS 2.47(a)(ii)

IAS 16.74(c)
IFRS 12.23 (a)
IFRS 12.818-B19

IFRS
16.59(b)(iv)

IAS 37.86

IAS 24.21(h)

IAS 24.19(d)
IAS 24.19(€)

IAS 37.86
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

35. Related party disclosures

Contingent liabilities

i}z \7"¥«] Tzx¥|wB~0Ozy VvV Xx¥pD2~p|zp? ¢~vw~¢~23" ¥[ Dl E IFRS12230)
Limited (see Notes 8 and 27).

Note7! " ¥-a~yz© ~o{¥ £va~¥o vw¥«d 2}z \ " ¥«!' CO ©3" «x?«”
company. The following table provides the total amo unt of transactions that have been entered into with
related parties for the relevant financial year.

Amounts Amounts
Sales to Purchases owed by owed
related  from related related to related AS 24.18
parties parties parties* parties*  |as 2401
b b b b
Entity with significant
influence over the Group:
International Fires P.L.C. 2022 7,115,889 C 620,989 ¢
2021 5,975,222 C 550,103 ¢
Associate:
Power Works Limited 2022 2,987,882 C 551,996 ¢
2021 2,113,452 C 582,224 ¢
Joint venture in which the
parent
is a venturer:
Showers Limited 2022 c 589,975 ¢ 30,204
2021 C  431,0,885 ¢ 12,123
Key management personnel of
the Group:
da}z" y~"zx2¥" C 2022 225,022 510,400 o} 10,000
2021 135,135 489,790 o} 10,000

* The amounts are classified as trade receivables and trade payables, respectively (see Notes 23 and 30).

Amounts owed by  1AS24.13

Interest received related parties 'AS2418

Loans from/to related parties b b
Associate:
Power Works Limited 2022 20,000 200,000

2021 ¢ c
Key management personnel of the Group:
Y~"zx2¥" ©C ¢¥voo 2022 1,000 13,000

2021 ¢ 8,000

There were no transactions other than dividends paid between the Group and S.J. Limited, the ultimate
parent during the financial year ( 20210 Bc ~¢ >C
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

35. Related party disclosures (continued)

Contingent liabilities  (continued)

Loan to an associate

The loan granted to Power Works Limited is intended to finance an acquisition of new machines for the
manufacturing of fire prevention equipment. The loan is fully -secured and repayable in full on 1 June 202 3.
Interest is charged at 10%.

Terms and condit ions of transactions with related parties

i}z ©vezO 2¥ voy | «"x}vOz© {"¥E£ "z¢vazy | v 2a~z0© v AS242
length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year -end are unsecured and interest free and settlement IAS 24.18(b)
occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or

payables. For the year ended 31 December 202 2, the Group recognised provision for expected credit losses

¥ { D Gml&iagEo amounts owed by related parties (20210 1,800 ).

Commentary

i}z y~0Ox¢t¥©«"z 2}v?ad a3"yoQOVXeéd~¥m0© -~2} "zc¢vadzy v a~z20 v~
only required if an entity can substantiate such terms, but IAS 24.23 does not require such a disclosure. The Group

was able to substantiate the terms and therefore provides the disclosure.

Commitments with related parties

On 1 July 202 2, Bright Sparks Limited entered into a two -year agreement ending 30 June 202 4 with IAS 24.18(b)
Power Works Limited to purchase specific electrical and optical cables that Bright Sparks Limited uses in its IAS 24.210)
I "T¥y«x?@~¥o x x¢zC W ~|}2 hiv i© a~£~2zy z®) z2@2®and

DGJEAEEE ~&monthsof 202-4. TBetpurchase price is based on Power Works LimitedC© v x 2 «°
plus a 5% margin and will be settled in cash within 30 days of receiving the inventories.

The Group has provided a contractual commitment to Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited , whereby if the IFRS 12.14-15
assets held as collateral by Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited for its borrowing fall below a credit rating of

EVVCA 2}z lvizm2a . ~¢¢ O«wO2~2«27z yvOOz2© ¥{ vo z§«:

a¥ wz Tz ¢vxzy 31dDechnhERRERP®R1O ODPBPEAEEE>C

Transactions with key management personnel
Director @ loans

i}z \"¥«| ¥{{z2"© ©zw~¥" £fvov]|z£ze? v {vx~¢~2 a ¥y 11AS2418
the date of disbursement. Such loans are unsecured, and the interest rate is based on EURIBOR plu€.8 %
Any loans granted are included in financial ins truments on the face of the statement of financial position.
dalz" y~"zx2¥"  ©C ~n2z" 7020 IAS 24.18
During both 202 2 and 202 1, Group companies made purchases at market prices from Gnome Industries 145 24.150
Limited, of which the spouse of one of the directors of the Group is a director and controlling shareholder.
One director has a 25% (202 1: 25%) equity interest in Home Fires Limited. The Group has a contract for the
supply of fire extinguishers to Home Fires Limited. During 2022 and 202 1, the Group supplied fire
extinguishers to Home Fires Limited at market prices.
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group IAS 24.17

2022 2021

b b

Short-term employee benefits 3,983,115 3,621,716
Post-employment pension and medical benefits 487,875 417,114
Termination benefits 110,725 c
Share-based payment transactions 284,956 90,260
Total compensation paid to  key management personnel 4,866,671 4,129,090

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period
related to key management personnel.

Generally, the non -executive directors do not receive pension entittements from the Group. During 2022,
vo VE¥«UB72¥%{ v | v~y 2¥ v y~"zx?a¥" -} ¥ "za~"7zp02{" ¥
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued) o
35. Related party disclosures (continued) S <
Y~"zx2¥ ©C ~©w2z" 72020 ~o 2}z hza~¥" Z®zXx«?~-z et¢tva 0l

Share options held by executive members of the Board of Directors under the Senior Executive Plan to
purchase ordinary shares have the following expiry dates and exercise prices:

Exercise
Date of grant Expiry date price 2022 2021 |as24.17(e)
Number Number -
outstanding outstanding i)
2021 2024 DGCFH 10,000 10,000 §
2021 2024 DHCF 83,000 83,000 %
2022 2025 PDHCNM 27,000 ¢ =
Total 120,000 93,000

No share options have been granted to the non -executive members of the Board of Directors under this scheme.
Refer to Note 33 for further details on the scheme.

Commentary

Certain jurisdictions may require additional and more extensive disclosures, e.g., remuneration and benefits of key
management personnel and members of the Board of Directors.

36. Standards issued but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of IAS 8.30
~©O«voxz ¥{ 2}z \ " ¥«!CO {~ovox-ve¢ ©2vazfzo2© newandy~ "S¥@
amended standards and interpretations , if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new accounting standard
for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective,

IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4Insurance Contracts (IFRS 4) that was issued in 2005. IFRS 17 applies to all ty pes of
insurance contracts (i.e., life, non -life, direct insurance and re -insurance), regardless of the type of entities that
issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features.

A few scope exceptions will apply. The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for -
insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4, o
which are largely based on grandfathering previous loc al accounting policies, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive
model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of IFRS 17 is the general

model, supplemented by: )

Consolidated financial statements

Notes
2

U A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)
U A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short -duration contracts

IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with comparative figures
required. Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the
date it first applies IFRS 17. This standard is not applicable to the Group.

Amendments to | AS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non -current

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non -current. The amendments clarify:

What is meant by a right to defer settlement

That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

oo

That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms
of a liability not impact its classification

Additional Australian disclosures

(e N e

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 202 3 and must be
applied retrospectively. The Group is currently assessing the impact the amendment s will have on current
practice and whether existing loan agreements may require renegotiation. "l

Appendices
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

36. Standards issued but not yet effective  (continued)
Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8

"o [zw" «v’®  GEGFA 2}z ~VhW ~©0«zy VvEzoyfzo2© 2¥ ~Vh
702 ~£v2azOCC i}z vEzuyfzna© x¢v ~{~ 2}z y~©a~px2a~¥n
accounting policies and the correction of er rors. Also, they clarify how entities use measurement techniques

and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that
period. Earlier application is permitted as long as this fact is disclosed.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impactonthe Group C© { ~avex~v ¢ ©2avyaz
Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements, in which it provides guidance and examples to help en tities apply materiality judgements to
accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that
vz £¥7z «©z{«¢ w Tz|!¢vx~o| 2}z " z8«~"zE£zw2 [ ¥Switlgao"
"z8«~"z£zmad a¥ y-~-©OxC¥©z ?2}z~" E£vaz ~veC vxx¥«noa-~ao]
concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to IAS 1 are applicable for annual periods b eginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier
application permitted. Since the amendments to the Practice Statement 2 provide non -mandatory guidance on
the application of the definition of material to accounting policy information, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary.

The Group is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amended requirements .

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to IAS 12

In May 2021, the Board issued amendments to IAS 12, which narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception under IAS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023  and should be applied
to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented . In addition, at
the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented , a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient

taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability should also be recognised for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted
as long as this fact is disclosed.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments.

Commentary

IAS 8.30 requires disclosure of standards that have been issued but are not yet effective. These disclosures are required

to provide known or reasonably estimable information to enable users to assess the possible impact of the application of
suchlFRSsonva zwa ~2~CO {~ovox~ve ©2vaz£zur2@©OC i}z \"¥«! }vOo ¢-~02
effective, primarily for the illustrative purpose of these financial statements. An alternative that entities may consider

would betoonlylistand vyy " z©© 2} ¥©z -} ~x} v'z z®| zx2zy 2¥ }v=-z vao ~£]
performance, presentation and/or disclosures.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement (continued)

37. Events after the reporting period

On 14 January 2023A v w«~¢y~no| - ~2} v ©oza ge¥eklydamagedyfloogiig aBiF A K IAS1021
~o-zEa¥" ~7@© -~3} v @za W¥¥| -ve«z ¥{ DMILAEEE -z"z "1©¥
©}¥"a ¥{ 2}z x¥020 ¥{ "zw«~¢ty~o|] voy ¢¥O0O ¥{ ~p-azno?

COVID-19 commentary

As the impact of COVID19 is declining in many countries , many governments have been curtailing the measures they
implemented in prior years to address the resulting public health issues and the economic impact. At the same time , in some
jurisdictions , governments may re-introduce certain restrictions that had earlier been lifted. Entities will again need to assess

if they are affected, or expect to be impacted, by actions taken after the end of their reporting period. A critical judgemen t

and evaluation management needs to make is whether and, if so, what these events provide of evidence of conditions that
z®~©2zy va alz zoy ¥{ 23}z "z| ¥ 2a-~aqg| Lz " ~¥y {¥° a}z znoa-a~ (¢

If management concludes an event is a non-adjusting event, but the impact of it is material, the entity is required to disclose
the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect unless it is impractical to do so.

Areas that an entity should consider disclosing in its subs equent events note may include:
3 The curtailment of the measures taken in prior years to minimise the impact of COVID19 and to continue operations

3 That the entity continues to monitor COVID19 situation and will take further action as necessary in response to the
economic volatility

3 Any issuance of debt or equity or refinancing undertaken after reporting. Entities should disclose any amendments or
waivers of covenants agreed by lenders to accom modate COVID19 related concerns

Reorganisations to reduce the impact of COVID-19 and whether any disposals of business units have been decided

Any decisions made to suspend or alter dividends made after considering the inherent uncertainty surrounding the
financial impact of COVID-19

3 Whether COVID19 may continue to cause disruption to economic activity and whether there could be further adverse
impacts on revenue
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

Australian Accounting Standards as at 30 September 2022

The disclosure requirements of the following Australian Accounting Standards are applicable to the Group and
have been illustrated in the following pages of this section

AASB 1054

Interpretation 1031
Interpretation 1052

Australian Additional Disclosures
Accounting for the Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Tax Consolidation Accounting

The disclosure requirements of the Corporation Act 2001, Corporations Regulations 2001, ASIC and ASX are also
applicable to the Group and have been illustrated in this section. The following abbreviations are used:

ASIC CI
CA 300A

Reg 2M.3.03(1)

ASX

Australian Securities & In vestments Commission Corporations Instrument
Corporations Act 2001, section 300A

Corporations Regulations 2001, Chapter 2M, Regulation 3.03, paragraph 1
Australian Securities Exchange

The disclosure requirements of the following Australian Accounting Standards are not applicable to the Group and
have therefore not been illustrated in this supplement:

AASB 1004 Contributions

AASB 1023 General Insurance Contracts

AASB 1038 Life Insurance Contracts

AASB 1039 Concise Financial Reports

AASB 1049 Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting
AASB 1050 Administered ltems

AASB 1051 Land Under Roads

AASB 1052 Disaggregated Disclosures

AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of Accounting Standards

AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting

AASB 1056 Superannuation Entities

AASB 1057 Application of Australian Accounting Standards

AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors

AASB 1060 General Purpose Financial Statements g Simplified Disclosures for For -Profit and

Not-for -Profit Tier 2 Entities

Australian Petroleum Resource Rent Tax

The Superannuation Contributions Surcharge

Depreciation of Long -Lived Physical Assets: Condition-Based Depreciation and
Related Methods

Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly -Owned Public Sector Entities
Professional Indemnity Claims Liabilities in Medical Defence Organisations
Accounting for Road Earthworks

Interpretation 1003
Interpretation 1019
Interpretation 1030

Interpretation 1038
Interpretation 1047
Interpretation 1055
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Your directors submit their report for the year ended 31 December 2022
Directors CA 298(1)

The names and details of the Company's directors in office during the financial year and until the date of CA 300(1)(c)
this report are set out below. Directors were in office for this entire period unless otherwise stated.

Names, qualifications, experience and special responsibilities CA 300(10)(a)
V. Sheen (Non-executive Chair)

V. Sheen joined Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited in 2015 as the Group Chair. He also serves on the

\ " ¥« ] CO vy~ x¥££~22z7 voy -0 x}v-~" ¥{ 2}z "z£f«:

three years, Mr Sheen has also served as a director of the following other listed companies:

D.A. Bank Ltd* Cappointed 30 June 2016

The Oil Company Ltd* Cappointed 15 July 2017

Spartan Ltd Cappointed 30 October 2014, resigned 29 October 2020 CA 300(11)(e)

* Denotes current directorship
F. Canuck, B.Sc. (Managing Director)

F. Canuck joined Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited as part of the acquisition of the fire prevention
business in 2001, becoming Production Manager in 2013 and a director in 2017. He now combines the
role of Production Director with that of Managing Director whilst also serving as chair of the Group's
finance and treasury committees.

P.G. Gerherns, B.Com., FCA. (Finance Director)

P.G. Gerhernsjoined Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited as Finance Director in 2011. Prior to joining the
Group, he was a senior partner in an accounting firm. Mr Gerherns also serves on the Group's finance and
treasury committees.

M. Smith, LL.B.

M. Smith has combined her work as a practising solicitor with her role as a non -executive director of the
Company since 2010. She resigned as a non-executive director of the board on 31 January 2023. M.
hg~2} ©z"  ~zy v©O x}v~" ¥{ a}lz \ " wz'C®{vayza\X¥EECEt
nomination committees. During the past three years she has also served as a director of the following

listed companies:

Castle Ltd* Cappointed 15 July 2015

Carrington Ltd Cappointed 30 June 2012, resigned 29 June 2021 CA300(11)(e)
* Denotes current directorship
C. Feens, M. Eng.

C. Feens joined the board of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited as a non -executive director in 2015. He
is an engineer with significant expertise in the electronics and aviation industries and also serves on the
nomination and remuneration committees of the Group.

C. Buffy

C. Buffy is an American citizen and served as the President of the Australasian operations of S.J. Limited,
the ultimate holding company of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited, from 2010 to 2014. She retired as
a non-executive director of the board on 28 January 2022. During the past three years Ms Buffy has held
the following listed company directorships:

DE Manufacturing Ltd Cappointed 31 December 2011, resigned 30 June 2020
J. Vargo, B.Com., CA.

J. Vargo joined the board of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited as a non -executive director in 2016. He
is a practising chartered accountant and tax practitioner and is a member of the audit and remuneration
committees of the Group.
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Directors (continued)
K. Chopper, M. Sc.

K. Chopper joined the board of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited as a non -executive director on
1 August 2022. She has extensive knowledge of the chemical industry and has a Masters degree in
chemical engineering from the University of Melbourne.

M.A. Pryce, B.Com., CA.

M.A. Pryce is a practising chartered accountant and joined the board of Quality Holdings (Australia)
Limited in 2015.

Interests in the shares and options of the Company and related bodies corporate CA 300(11)(a),(c)

As at the date of this report, the interests of the directors in the shares and options of Quality Holdings
(Australia) Limited were:

c«Ewz " ¥{ c«Ewz" ¥{ | c«Ewz" ¥{ ¥!
o) v o} v ¥ y-av

V. Sheen 321,940 20,000 -
F. Canuck 702,000 6,000 110,000
P.G. Gerherns 117,500 5,000 98,500
M. Smith 122,000 - -
C. Buffy 40,000 - -
C. Feens 59,000 - -
J. Vargo 37,000 - -
K. Chopper 15,000 - -
M.A. Pryce 10,000 - -

Company Secretary
G.K. Dellas B.Com. (Hons), FCA. CA 300(10)(d)

G.K. Dellashas been the Company Secretary of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited for eight years. She
has been a chartered accountant for over 15 years.

Dividends
Cents $000 CA 300(1)(b)
Final dividends recommended:
ordinary shares 5.01 1,087
Dividends paid in the year: CA 300(1)(2)
Interim for the year
on ordinary shares 4.66 877
on preference shares 0.46 13
890
Final for 2021 shown as recommended
in the 2021 financial report
on ordinary shares 5.66 1,069
on preference shares 0.46 13
1,082

Commentary

Dividend information presented above includes dividends on preference shares in addition to dividends on ordinary
shares for illustrative purposes. In the notes to the financial statements, it is assumed that dividends were only paid
on ordinary shares.
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Principal activities
The principal activities during the year of entities within the consolidated group were: CA 299(1)(c)

3 Supply and servicing of electronic equipment for defence, aviation and electrical safety markets

3 Production, installation and servicing of extinguishers, fire prevention equipment and fire retardant
fabrics

3 Management of investment property
3 Productio n of rubber hosepipes for commercial applications
3 Leasing of offices and manufacturing sites that are surplus to the Group's requirements

Other than the planned discontinuance of the rubber equipment segment which came about through the

decision to sell Hose Limited, there have been no other significant changes in the nature of these activities

during the year.

CA 299(1)(a)

CA 299A(1)
ASX 4.10.17

Operating and financial revi ew

Commentary

i}z v | ¥ " ~vaz ~o{¥"£fva@~¥po 2a¥ y-~-Ox¢t¥O©z ~o 2}z ¥,z va-~no \%
operations and the sector in which it operates.

The requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 are:

3  For all entities, a review of operation s and the results of those operations

3 For listed entities, information that members of the listed entity would reasonably require to make an informed
assessment of:

3 The operations
3 Financial position
3  The business strategies, and prospects for future financi al years

Please also note that for listed entities, ASIC RG 247 Effective disclosures in an operating and financial review assists
directors of listed entities in preparing useful and meaningful operating and financial reviews.

COVID-19 commentary
As the global economic disruption due to the COVID-19 continues, entities are trying to communicate the financial effects
¥{ 2} ~©0 x"  ~©0~© ¥m 2a}lz~" {~omvox~ve¢ ©3vazfzn20OC jOz © ¥{ 23}z
response to the pandemic to be addressed as part of the operating and financial review. The information and explanations
~o 23}z ¥!z"va@~pop| voy {~ovex~ve¢ T z-~z- 0O}¥«Cty 2z¢¢ v ©2¥"
members would reasonably require to understand:
3  The impact of the COVID-19 and other factors related to the pandemic
3 The financial position of the entity, including how it has been affected by the impact of the  COVID-19
3  The business strategies of the entity, including those targeted towards the COVID-19 impact and prospects for
future financial years.
The purpose of this section is to:
3 Provide an overview of our business model
3 Discuss our strategy (including the risks associated with our strategy)
3 Outline the significant changes in the state of affairs

3 Provide a review of our financial condition

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited gkeeping the world safe from fire

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited has a long and proud history of protecting people and property from fire
and other safety risks. From our beginnings in 1978, as a local manufacturer of fire extinguishers serving the
Victorian market, we have expanded to supply a range of innovative safety products to customers around the
globe. Today, we have operations in eight countries and employ 500 people, supplying the defence, aviation,
property and manufacturing sectors with safety solutions.

Our business is divided into two key areas. The fire prevention equipment business produces and installs
extinguishers, fire prevention equipment and fire retardant fabrics. Our electronic safety products business
produces and supplies electronic equipment , including electronics, safety, thermal and electrical architecture,
for electrical safety applications.

All of our activities are driven by the same vision: to keep the world safe from fire.
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Realising the Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited vision

Keeping the world safe from fire

Market drivers Client focus Efficiency Enablers

Technological Agility gnd Knowin_g Deliv_ering eon|
change creativity to what will the highest SRS
keep us at keep our quality
Increased safely the forefront clients sa_fe service at Technology
expectations of safety now and in the lowest
technology the future possible
Globalisation price Relationship

Strategic pillars

Market drivers RG 247.51
Technological change: drives demand for new and improved safety technology and creates the possibility for

lower cost mass market safety solutions. There is the potential for disruptive market entrants from the

technology sector.

Increased safety expectations: new regulatory requirements in domestic and overseas markets drive demand
for mass market solutions. Requirement for aviation and defence to maintain best practice solutions drive
demand for innovative tailored products. This also means that existing solu tions become obsolete more quickly
and innovation and speed to market are now necessities, whilst price pressures continue to grow.

Globalisation: allows access to new, high growth markets. There is the potential for competition from new
market entrants from developing countries, with lower cost base.

Strategic pillars

Innovation

We need to stay at the forefront of technology if we are to find new ways of keeping the world safe from fire,
and to meet emerging risks to the safety of people and proper ty. To help us meet this challenge, Quality
Holdings (Australia) Limited has a world -leading research and development program that creates innovative
solutions to safety issues.

For the value of that innovation to be realised for our customers and our shareholders, solutions need to be
developed and brought to market as quickly as possible. Our business is focused on building a pipeline of
solutions from our leading edge, tailored offerings to affordable, mass market products.

Client focus

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited has a proud history of collaboration with our clients in aviation and defence
to create cutting -edge solutions. Through our involvement in industry sector associations, including our support
of the International Aviation Safety Solutions Network, we continue to build strong relationships across these
sectors, backed by our own Quality Holding Touch client relationship program.

Efficiency

To meet the challenges of a rapidly changing market, last year the Board announced the investment of
$300,000 in a five -year Quality Holding Agility plan. Quality Holding Agility is a set of initiatives focusing our
business on continuous improvement and e nabling us to adapt to the changing needs of our customers for new,
lower cost products. Key initiatives are:

3 Engagement with external consultants to develop more effective management of our working capital

3 Improving our product development processes to increase our speed to market for new mass market
products

3 Better integration of management reporting system s across the business, with particular focus on the
newly acquired operations

Enablers
People
Our people, their experience, enthusiasm and dedication, are the foundation of our business.

Technology
We ensure our people have the tools they need to deliver value.

Relationships
Strong relationships with regulators, suppliers and business partners help us to deliver on our promise of
keeping the world safe from fire.
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The Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited value chain

Client value
e s NN NN SN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN SN NN NN NN NN NN NS NN EEEEEEEEEENEEEEE
Aviation & Defence Manufacturing & Property
Social value
Innovation flow keeping the
- world safe from
Conversation to/ fire

Coadevelopment of

R&D tailored solutions

development of mass
market solutions

= =

Capital investment Capital investment

The market opportunity

Safety continues to be a growing market globally, driven by rapidly changing technology, increasingly stringent
regulation, and continuing expectation from our clients and their stakeholders that they will be safe in

everything they do. In particular, we s ee great opportunities in emerging markets as community expectations of
safety increase in line with economic growth.

At the same time, safety is a highly competitive business. We now compete on a global basis with
manufacturers from emerging markets suc h as China and India. We also face the potential of disruptive market
entrants from the technology sector, building on their existing customer base and technology platforms to

deliver electronic safety services.

Our strategy CA 299A(1)(c)

In order to respond to these challenges, we are focusing our business on the development of market -ready 2222‘:77‘5518
products, rather than components. To that end we are divesting our component manufacturing operations as
and when market conditions are favourable, and building our future product pipeline through a combination of
strategic acquisitions and a strong research and development program.
We consider our strategy to be sufficiently agile to deal with the increasing demand for sophisticated f ire
detection and prevention products. Our R&D programs are set to deliver customised and mass market products
to our customers on a timely basis.
As we begin to recognise revenue from products developed in previous years, we are confident that our
ongoing investment in R&D will continue to deliver sustainable returns in the future.
Managing the risks to our growth strategy CA 299A(1)(c)
In developing our strategy, the Board undertook a comprehensive risk review to identify the key risksto  our RG 247.60
business. The review included an internal and external stakeholder analysis that identified the diverse needs of
our various stakeholders and the potential risks to our business if those needs are not met. This analysis is
updated annually.
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Supply chain for components less certain The group has made additional investment in its procurement division to

since rubber hose division divestment ensure ongoing and competitive sources of components. In addition, the
terms of sale of Pipe Limited included long -term guarantees of supply.

Development of new R&D and products is Quality Holding Agility is improving our product development processes,

more expensive than forecast resulting in an increase in our speed to market for new mass market
products.

Supply chain genvironmental and human The Group is highly aware of managing risk in the supply chain,

rights impacts particularly as it moves away from manufacturing. Key issues relate to the

environmental impacts associated with the manufacturing process and
human rights risks in developing countries where we, or our supplier, have
a presence. The Group is preparing a supply chain strategy that will
include supplier screening against environmental and social criteria.

Increased competition from new market The Group is particularly focused on maintaining strong relationships with

entrants its clients and ensuring we continue to innovate to meet their needs. Our
Quality Holding Agility program will enable us to be agile in our response
to new competitive threats as th ey emerge, particularly through the
development of innovative products.

Significant changes in the state of affairs

Divestments, acquisitions and formations
J]v-oox|xxz00{ «¢¢  yz{zeyzy 23}z 2dvjz¥-z" w~y w [~"2z
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Sale of Hose Limited
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Acquisition of Extinguishers Limited

The fire prevention division of our business was substantially strengthened by the acquisition of Extinguishers
Limited, a company that has been established in Australia for many years. As well as a strong customer b ase
and quality product line, Extinguishers Limited has a world -leading research and development program that is
well placed to contribute to converting our tailored products for the mass market. The acquisition also

included a number of highly profitable fire prevention patents that will bring in stable revenue streams for
several years to come.

Formation of Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited
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Capital structure

Long-term borrowings
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3 $675,000, if the entity generates up to $1,500,000 of profit before tax in a 12 -month period after the
acquisition date

v -

3 $1,125,000, if the entity generates $1,500,000 or more of profit before tax in a 12 -month period after
the acquisition date

At 31 December 2022, the key performance indicators of Extinguishers Limited indicated that it was highly
probable it would generat e a profit before tax in excess of $1,500,000. Accordingly, that probability, when
considered in combination with the time value of money, resulted in a contingent consideration liability at
balance date of $1,072,000 associated with the acquisition of Ext inguishers Limited. The contingent
consideration liability is due to be settled on 30 September 2023.

Review of financial condition CA 299A(L)(8)

CA 299A(1)(b)

Profit from continuing operations
RG 247.45

The Group reported a profit before tax from continuing operations of $11.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, an increase of 25.1% from the prior year. The increase in profit before tax from continuing
operations was substantially driven from the contribution of Lightbulbs Limited inits f irst full year post
acquisition ($506,000) and the acquisition of Extinguishers Limited ($750,000).

Liquidity and capital resources
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Business divisions

Fire prevention equipment

The fire prevention equipment business produces and installs extinguishers, fire prevention equipment and
fire retardant fabrics for industrial markets.

The Group has been an assertive player in the fire prevention market over the last 12 months. Revenue in the
fire prevention segment was $139,842,000 for the year compared to $121,905,000 in the previous year.

The focus on cost efficiencies as part of Quality Holding Agility has contributed to segment profit increasing

by 121% to $9,687,000.
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Business divisions (continued)
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Electronics

Quality Holding produces and supplies electronic equipment for electrical safety application, with particular
focus on the defence, aviation, property and industrial sectors. Our products include electronics, safety,
thermal and electrical architecture.

The electronics business continues to perform strongly in a difficult market with sales increasing by 3.8% to
$76,728,000 (2021: $73,940,000).

Significant events after the balance date CA 299(1)(d)

On 14 January 2023, a building with a net book value of $1,695,000 and inventory with a net book value of
$857,000 were severely damaged by flooding resulting in estimated impairment losses of $2,552,000. It is
expected that insurance proceeds will fall short of the costs of rebuilding and the loss of  inventories by
$750,000. The financial effects of these events have not been reflected in the 31 December 2022 financial
statements.

On 22 January 2023 , the directors of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited declared a final dividend on
ordinary shares in respect of the 2022 financial year. The total amount of the dividend is $1,087,345 which
represents a fully franked dividend of 5.01 cents per share. The dividend has not been provided for in the
31 December 2022 financial statements.

Likely de velopments and expected results CA 299(1)(e)

Commentary
These disclosures are unique to the business operations of the Company and the sector it operates in.

[ ¥ vee zoa~23~70OA 23}z X¥ | ¥ va~¥o0©O Vx?2 GE Hikely dexefopmeitzithe? } v 2
zo2~2a " CO ¥!z"va~¥o®© ~o {«?2«"z T zv © vay 2a}lz z®!zxazy T z0O«!

Please also note that for listed entities, RG 247 provides additional guidance relating to this.
Environmental regulation and performance CA 299(1)(h)
The Group holds licences issued by the relevant environmental protection authorities of the various countries

in which the Group operates. These licences specify limits and regulate the management of discharges to the
air and storm water run -off associated with the fire prevention and rubber equipment operations.

The Group is registered under the National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting Act, under which it is required
to report energy consumption and greenhouse gas emissions for its Australian facilities for the 12 months
ended 31 December and future periods. The Group has established a separate sustainability group and data
collection systems and processes are in place to meet t he new requirements.

There have been no significant known breaches of the consolidated entity's licence conditions or any
environmental regulations to which it is subject.

Share options CA 300(1)(d)
Unissued shares CA 300(1)(e),(3).(6)

As at the date of this report, there were 723,875 unissued ordinary shares under options (725,000 at the
reporting date). Refer to the remuneration report for further details of the options outstanding for Key
Management Personnel (KMP).

Option holders do not have any right, by virtue of the option, to participate in any share issue of the Company
or any related body corporate.

Shares issued as a result of the exercise of options CA 300(1)(f.(3).(7)

During the financial year, employees and executives have exer cised options to acquire 75,000 fully paid
ordinary shares in Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited at a weighted average exercise price of $3.13 per
share.
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Indemnification and insurance of directors and officers CA 300(1)(g)

During the financial year, the Company indemnified Ms Smith against a liability for costs and expenses CA 300(8)(a),(9)
incurred in defending proceedings brought against her for a breach of employment regulations by Bright
Sparks Ltd. Ms Smith was acquitted. The amount of the indemnity was $8,000.

The Company has agreed to indemnify all the directors and executive officers for any breach of environmental CA 300(8)(a),(9)
or discrimination la ws by the Company for which they may be held personally liable. The agreement provides
for the Company to pay an amount not exceeding $200,000 provided that:

a. i}tz ¢~vw~¢~2" y¥70 n¥? v’ ~0z ¥«? ¥{ x¥poy«x? ~po-¥

bh. i}e~vw~¢~2" ~0 {¥" x¥©20© vey z® zr©z© ~ax«”""zy w
«y|lz£zw? ~© | ~=-zwm ~@m 2} z~" {Vv-a¥«" ¥ ~@o -}~x} 2

During or since the financial year, the Company has paid premiums in respect of a contract insuring all the CA 300(8)(b).(9)(F)

directors of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited against legal costs incurred in defending proceedings for
conduct other than:

a VvV -~¢{«¢ w'izvx} ¥{ y«?&"
bh. V x¥p2a "v-zo2~¥o ¥{ @3X¥~-¥¥OVvFMGEA® VOFMHGEER 32zy w
alX¥" | ¥ va~¥o© Vx? GEEF

The total amount of insurance contract premiums paid was $12,800.

Indemnification of auditors

To the extent permitted by law, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditors, Ernst & Young Australia, as CA 300(8)(@)
part of the terms of its audit engagement agreement against claims by third parties arising from the audit (for CA3000)b).).(e)

CA300(9)(d)
an unspecified amount). No payment has been made to indemnify Ernst & Young Australia during or since the
financial year.
Non-audit services
The following non -audit services were provided by the entity's auditor, Ermnst & Young Australia. The directors CA 300(11B)
are satisfied that the provision of non -audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence
for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001 . The nature and scope of each type of non -audit service
provided means that auditor independence was not compromised.
Ernst & Young Australia received or are due to receive the following amounts for the provision of non  -audit
services:
9

iv® Xx¥£| ¢~vaxz ©z" =-~xz0 HLAE
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Y~"zx2a¥ ©C £zz2~n]| © CA 300(10)(b)

The number of meetings of directors (including meetings of committees of directors) held during the year and
the number of meetings attended by each director were as follows:

bzza~o| © ¥{ X¥££-~22372z0

4 2 2 2 2

Number of meetings held: 12
Number of meetings attended:

V. Sheen 12 4 2 2 - -
F. Canuck 12 - - -

P.G. Gerherns 12 - - - 2 2
M. Smith 10 4 2 2 - -
K. Chopper 8 - - - - -
C. Feens 11 - 2 2 - -
C. Buffy 7 - - - - -
J. Vargo 12 4 2 - - -
M.A. Pryce 12 - - - - -

All directors were eligible to attend all meetings held, except C. Buffy, who was eligible to attend seven
y~"zx2¥" ©C £zz2a~0|© voy " C X}¥!!'z"A -}¥ -vO z¢~| ~wl

Committee membership CA 300(10)(c)

As at the date of this report, the Company had an audit committee, a remuneration committee, a homination
committee, a finance committee and a treasury committee of the board of directors.

Members acting on the committees of the board during the year were:

M. Smith (c) V. Sheen (c) V. Sheen (c) F. Canuck (c) F. Canuck (c)
J. Vargo M. Smith M. Smith P.G. Gerherns P.G. Gerherns
V. Sheen J. Vargo L.E. Ertz @

C. Feens C. Feens
Notes

(c) Designates the chair of the committee
@ Ms L.E. Ertz is an independent consultant and not a director
Rounding

The amounts contained in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest $1,000 (where rounding is ASIC C12016/191
applicable) where noted ($000) under the option available to the Company under ASICCorporations

=g¥«ay~an| ~un [~mvax-~ve¢DY201&/0PF ¥ThedDOmpary |s ¥n'eAti® to which B8 ~ « £ :

legislative instrument applies.
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Auditor independence and non -audit services

The directors received the following declaration from the auditor of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited.

Z"  n©2 nN¥«ao| iz¢ O @KF G

GEE \z¥" |z ha"zz? [v@®BF G NGI
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Building a better \ed W¥® GKIK h yoz™

working world

Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of Quality Holdings

(Australia) Limited
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Ernst & Young Australia

b.'@m%@d ~

D.G. Brown
Partner

Sydney

31 January 2023

Liability limited by a scheme approved under
Professional Standards Legislation.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Letter from the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Dear shareholders

The past year has been one of sound performance in a competitive market and delivery of several key
initiatives to support future shareholder value.

We achieved 25.1% growth in profit before tax and delivered strong results for shareholders, with our Total
Shareholder Return (TSR) continuing to outperform our market peers. Sales were up 12.6%, largely dr iven by
the timing of our R&D cycle, however building market share will be a focus for 2023 to ensure this trend does
not continue. Our executive team was also successful in refocusing our business for future growth, with the
acquisition of Extinguishers L td and plan to sell Hose Limited. The implementation of our Quality Holdings
Agility program is also delivering returns.

The safety of our people is always our primary concern and is a key measure of performance for everyone at
Quality Holdings (Australia ). The reduction of our Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate by 20% was a very pleasing
result.

For more detail on these initiatives, please refer to our Operating and Financial Review on page 156.
Remuneration outcomes

Our achievements above are reflected in the executive remuneration outcomes for this year. Executives

received an average of 82% of their Short -Term Incentive (STI) target for performance against a balance
scorecard of measures (see page 171 for more information). The sustained long-term performance of the

Group was also reflected in the vesting of Long -Term Incentives (LTI), with 100% of the award granted in 2019
2202 ~n| wvOzy ¥m f«ve~27 ]¥¢y~n|© =V«O2 " vet~v>CO " z¢

Changes to remuneration

The Board regularly revi ews our executive remuneration structure to ensure it continues to drive shareholder
value and enables us to attract and retain the talent we need. As we consolidate our newly focused Group, the
Board has decided to adopt changes to our remuneration struct ure to ensure a focus on long -term
sustainability of returns. These changes are outlined below.

FY?22 glntroduction of STI deferral

From FY22 onwards, executives will receive any STI awards as 75% cash and 25% in Quality Holdings

(Australia) shares. Theshv " z© - ~¢¢ wz yz{z""zy {¥" v {«"2}z" a.-¥
continued employment. This change ensures greater alignment with shareholder interests through executive
share ownership and encourages retention.

FY22 glntroduction of return on equity performance measure for LTI

ai® v-v'y®© | "vmazy y« ~um| 2}z Tzv" voy vee {«@«”"z Vv
gz2« " o do Zfedomfance Egpd@e«” zOC gdZ -vO ~pm2 " ¥y«xzy Vv®X¥O
Z®zZX«®~-2z2© ¥o |zwmz ' va&@~po]| zvioa~op|© 2a}vad z{{~x~zBp2C¢

FY23 glntroduction of performance rights

The Board has determined that performance rights, rather than share options, will be granted und er the LTI
i ¢vae {¥" v-v'y© {"¥f£ [nGH ¥o-v ' yo©C ez " {¥"£vaoxz " ~|1}
challenging market conditions and prevailing Australian market practice.

i}z W¥Vv' Yy ~0O x¥o{~yzop2a 23}lyd fagV¢2a¥o]¥¥e~-X-@0=Y¥02~
financial and strategic goals. We are committed to transparency and an ongoing dialogue with shareholders on
remuneration and to this end we have made changes to the remuneration report to improve the overa |l format
and flow of information. We have also added voluntary disclosure around the actual remuneration received by
executives.

On behalf of the Board, | invite you to review the full report and thank you for your continued interest.

Your sincerely

Vincent Sheen

Remuneration Committee Chair
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Contents CA 300A(1)
CA 300A(1A)

1. Remuneration report overview

2. Overview of executive remuneration

3. Performance and executive remuneration outcomes in FY22
4. How remuneration is governed

5. Overview of non-executive director remuneration

6. Statutory and share -based remuneration reporting

7. Actual remuneration of executives

1

Remuneration report overview

The Directors of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited present the Remuneration Report (the Report) for the CA 308(3C)
Company and its controlled entities for the year ended 31 December 2022. This Report forms part of the

Y~"zxa¥"  ©C gz! ¥" 2 v oy rdange@ithsectiorm 300A«0fthe 2 Qogporations ACbRG0¥. The

gz, ¥ 2 yzav~¢0 2}z "zf«mz " v@~¥o v " "vao|z£fzr20 {¥" f«

(KMP):

3 Non-executive directors (NEDSs)

3 Executive directors and senior executives (collective ly the executives)

KMP are those persons who, directly or indirectly, have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and

controlling the major activities of the Company and Group. AASB 124.9

The table below outlines the KMP of the Group and their movements during FY22:

cvEz e¥0~23~¥no iz £ v© " be Reg 2M.3.03(1)
ltems1-3

Non-executive directors

V. Sheen C¥E®zx«?®~-2z X}v~ [«¢¢ {~ovax~ve
M. Smith C¥E®zx«?@~-z Y~"zx2¥" [«¢¢ {~ovax~ve
C. Feens C¥E®zx«?d@~-z Y~"zx2¥" [«g¢ovex~ve “zv”
J. Vargo C¥E®zx«@~-z Y~"2zx2¥" [«¢¢ {~omvax~ve
M.A. Pryce C¥E®zx«@~-z Y~"zx2¥" [«¢¢ {~ovax~ve
K. Chopper C¥E®zx«d~-2z Y~"zx2¥" F V«| «©2 GEGG
C. Buffy C¥BE®zX«?2~az Y~"2zxa¥" Xzv©Ozy GM _vo«v’

Executive directors

!
o

F. Canuck bvav| | N¥YDX{ga~¥{ Z®zx«2~-z [«¢¢ {~mvax~ve
P.G. Gerherns [ ~avexz Y~"zx2¥" [«¢¢ {~omvax~ve

Senior executives

R.J. Ferns \V\zez"ve¢ bvev|z” jh d}z"va@~¥cV] | ¥~o02zy H _voc
G .K. Dellas X¥E£,ve hzx"z2av"™ " wvoy X}~z{ [«¢¢ {~omvox~ve
G. Braddy X}~z2{ J]«Evoe QgzO¥«" xz© d{{~xz[«¢¢ {~mvaox~v¢
A.M. John \'zoz " ve bvoelQb|zZ| z2©Obxyoy Vx8§«-V!! ¥~o2vy«G =~ GE
S. Moran \bCZ¢tzx2 " ¥o~x© hvez®© [ « ¢atv a{x—~v ¢ ~zv"~
M.X. Vo X}~z{ d}z"va2@~¥o00© d{{~xz" =XcXzvOzpPpvHEGEGG
L.P. Lyn \bC[~"2 e z-zuwd~¥n Z§«~!£zm2 XzvOzy HF Yzxz£v

Reg 2M.3.03(1)
M. Smith resigned on 31 January 2023, after the reporting date and before the  date the financial report was ltems4-5

authorised for issue. There were no other changes to KMP in this time.

2. Overview of executive remuneration

2A. How we determine executive remuneration policies and structures

Four principles guide our decisions about executive remuneration at Quality Holdings (Australia): CA 300A(1)(@)

3 Fairness: provide a fair level of reward to all employees
Transparency: build a culture of achievement by transparent links between reward and  performance

Alignment: promote mutually beneficial outcomes by aligning employee, customer and shareholder
interests

3 The Quality Holdings (Australia) Culture: drive leadership performance and behaviours that create a
culture that promotes safety, diversity and employee satisfaction
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Contents

2B. Our executive remuneration policies and structures

Corporate Information

We reward executives with a level and mix of remuneration appropriate to their position, responsibilities and CA
performance, in a way that aligns with the business strategy. 300A(1)(@),(b)

Executives receive fixed remuneration and variable remuneration consisting of short - and long-term incentive
opportunities. Executive remuneration levels are reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to the remuneration guiding principles and market movements.

Director's Report

The chart below provides a summary of the structure of exe cutive remuneration in FY22:

[ ~®zy " zE£«mz  Vvi
Base salary + superannuation + benefits

kv ' ~vw¢z 7" zE£«noz

STI plan LTI plan

Cash Deferred shares Options
(2 years) (3 years)

Introduction

Corporate Governance

60% financial performance

40% norfinancial performance 50% relative TSR
(50% financial and 50% non-financial for 50% ROE

functional executives)

Consolidated financial statements

2C. Remuneration mix - target

Disclosures in the financial statements

60%

CA

300A(1)(a),(b)

CA

300A(1)(e)(i)

0
25% 30%

* §
_ . kS
) Other Fixedremuneration %
50% executives STl 3
W LTI ®
i°]
5
s

*pased on the value granted during the year, determined using the fair value of share options at grant date.

Additional Australian disclosures

Closed Group (ASIC specific) disclosures

Appendices
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2D. Elements of remuneration

Corporate Information

Fixed remuneration
Fixed remuneration consists of base salary, superannuation and other non -monetary benefits and is designed

to reward for: §
. (0]

3 i}z Ox¥]z ¥{ 23}z z®zx«2®~-zZCO " ¥tz &
3 i}z z®zx«2~-2z2CO ©j~¢CCOA z®!'z" ~zoXxz vay 8§«ve~{~xv' g
()

5

3 Individual performance

=

S
It is set with reference to comparable roles in similar companies. 2

=)
STI CA 300A(1)(ba) £

=
Under the STI, all executives have the opportunity to earn an annual incentive award which is delivered in cash Reg 2M.3.03(1)

and deferred shares. The STI recognises and rewards annual performance. e 12(0) <)
How is it paid? 75% of any STI award is paid in cash after the assessment of annual performance. 25%
is deferred into Quality Holdings (Australia) shares for a further two year period.
The deferred component was introduced in FY22 to align with prevalent Australian
market practice and to encourage executive share ownership.

Corporate Governance

How much can executives Executives have a target STI opportunity of 50% of fixed remuneration, and a maximum
earn? STI opportunity of 100% of fixed remuneration.
Target STl is awarded for achieving the challenging objectives set prior to the
beginning of each year. Participants have the opportunity to earn up to two times
target for achieving stretch performance (i.e., significant out -performance against
performanc e measures).

How is performance The STI performance measures were chosen as they reflect the core drivers of short - CA 300A(1)(ba)(i)
measured? term performance and also provide a framework for delivering sustainable value to the CA 300A(1)(ba)(ii)
Group, its shareholders and customers.
We measure seven key performance indicators (KPIs) covering financial and non -
financial, Group and business unit measures of performance. For each KPI, a target and
stretch objective is set. A summary of the measures and weightings are set out in the

Consolidated financial statements

Disclosures in the financial statements

table below:
[~nvnx~v¢ c¥§~nvnx
e Wi « @~
60% 0% 40%
Other functional executives 50% 0% 50%
Business unit leaders 30% 30% 40%

Group earnings per share (EPS) and business unit profit before tax (PBT) are the
measures against which management and the Board assess the short -term financial
performance of the Group.

The non-financial measures in the STI plan are:
Market share

Customer satisfaction score
Implementation of key growth initiatives
Safety

Leadership/team contribution

Directors' declaration

N N N N W

When is it paid? The STI award is determined after the end of the financial year following a review of CA 300A(1)(ba)i)
performance over the year against the STI performance measures by the CEO (and in
the case of the CEO, by the Board). The Board approves the final STI award based on
this assessment of performance. 75% is paid in cash three months after the end of the
performance period.

Additional Australian disclosures

Deferral terms 25% of the STl is deferred into shares, with the number of shares calculated based on
feve~2a~ ]¥¢y~n| © =V«©2 " ve~v>CO -z~|}2zy v
immediately preceding the allocation date of the shares. The shares are subjectto a
further two year service period.

Closed Group (ASIC specific) disclosures

Appendices
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What happens if an
executive leaves?

What happens if there is a
change of control?

Are executives eligible for
dividends?

va~¥anop "Z:¥"a :X¥Qa~0<<zy>

If an executive resigns or is terminated for cause before the end of the financial year,
no STl is awarded for that year. Similarly any deferred STI awards are forfeited, unless
otherwise determined by the Board.

If an executive ceases employment during th e performance period by reason of
redundancy, ill health, death, or other circumstances approved by the Board, the
executive will be entitled to a pro -rata cash payment based on assessment of
performance up to the date of ceasing employment for that year a nd any deferred STI
awards will be retained (subject to Board discretion).

In the event of a change of control, a pro -rata cash payment will be made based on
assessment of performance up to the date of the ch ange of control and any deferred
STI awards will vest (subject to Board discretion).

Executives receive dividends on deferred STI awards.

LTI CA 300A(1)(ba)
Under the LTI for FY22, annual grants of share options were made to executives to align remuneration with
the creation of shareholder value over the long -term.
How is it paid? Executives are eligible to receive share options (being an option to acquire an ordinary
share in Quality Holdings (Australia) upon payment of a pre -determined exercise price).
How much can executives The CEO has a target LTI opportunity of 50% of fixed remuneration and executives
earn? have a target opportunity of 17% o f fixed remuneration.
The number of options granted is determined using the fair value at the date of grant
using a Monte-Carlo simulation model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the share options were granted.
How is performance Awards are subject to two measures, weighted equally: relative Total Shareholder EA zggA((l))((z)’?(D;
: A 300A(1)(ba)(i
measured? Retur.n (TSR) and Return on Eguny (ROE). . . . CA 300A(1)(ba)i)
Relative TSR was selected as it focuses executives on shareholder value creation and is Reg 2M.3.03(1)
widely accepted and understood by shareholders. Item 15(b)(vi)

ROE was introduced as a second measure in FY22 as it focuses executives on
generating earnings that efficiently use shareholder capital and the reinvestment of
earnings.

Relative TSR

TSR measures the percentage changeinacompas ~ C© ©} v~ z | " ~xzA
dividends received during the period, assuming that all those dividends are re -invested
into new shares.

fe«ve~2a~ ]¥¢y~o| © =V«©2 " ve~v>CO ihg ~© £zv
listed companies ranked 100 to 200 on the ASX200 Index (excluding companies in the
mining and financial services sectors). These companies were chosen as they are of a
similar size and reflect the Group's competitors for capital.

The TSR for Quality Holdings (Australia) and comparato r companies is measured over
three financial years (e.g., 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024 for the FY22 grant).

The proportion of options that may vest based on relative TSR performance is CA300A(1)(ba)(iv)
determined based on the following vesting schedule:

gz¢tva~1z " "i{H¥g Evaxz ez " xzwvayv|z -z02 ~n|
Below the 50" percentile 0%
At the 50 ™ percentile 50%
Between the 50 " and 75™ percentile Straight -line vesting between 50 -
100%
At or above the 75 " percentile 100%
ROE

ROE measures how well the Group hasused shareholder funds and reinvested earnings
to generate additional earnings. ROE is defined as the net profit after tax (NPAT)
y~-a~yzy W  Vv-az v|z ©}viz}¥tyz ©C z8§«~2aT A
X¥£!va~  CO {~omvax~ve " z!¥ a©C

The Board calculate s the ROE performance hurdle by setting annual ROE targets over
each of three financial years (e.g., 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024 for the FY22
grant) which are then averaged to determine the target ROE hurdle. Due to their
sensitive nature, annual RO E targets are disclosed retrospectively.
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The proportion of options that may vest based on ROE performance across the
performance period is determined based on the following vesting schedule:

Corporate Information

gdzZ | z" {¥"  £veoxz ez’ ' xzrndy|z -2z02%~n|
Below minimum of target range 0% ‘é
At minimum of target range 50% &
Within target range Straight -line vesting between 50 -100% g
At maximum of target range and above 100% §
c la)
When is performance The performance measures are tested at the end of the three year performance period CA 300A(1)(ba)i) %
measured? to determine the number of options that vest. There is no opportunity forre  -testing. 2
Options will lapse if the performance measures are not met at the end of the =
performance period. =
What happens if an If an executive resigns or is terminated for cause, any unvested LTI awards are
executive lea ves? forfeited, unless otherwise determined by the Board.

If an executive ceases employment during the performance period by reason of
redundancy, ill health, death, or other ¢ ircumstances approved by the Board, the
executive will generally be entitled to a pro -rata number of unvested options based on
achievement of the performance measures over the performance period up to the date
of ceasing employment (subject to Board discre tion).

The treatment of vested and unexercised awards will be determined by the Board with
reference to the circumstances of cessation.

Corporate Governance

What happens if there is a In the event of a change of control, the performance period end date  will be brought

change of control? forward to the date of the change of control and awards will vest based on
performance over this shortened period (subject to Board discretion).

Are executives eligible for Executives are not eligible to receive dividends on un vested options. Executives will

dividends? receive dividends on vested and unexercised options.

Sign on payments

Consolidated financial statements

In addition to fixed remuneration, STl and LTI, the Board may determine, from time to time, to award sign on
payments to new executives.

Disclosures in the financial statements

Ms Ferns received a sign on payment of $50,000 on commencement of employment in lieu of foregone
benefits and incenti ves in her previous employment. Ms Ferns received the full award in ordinary shares in
Quiality Holdings (Australia). In addition, she is entitled to receive a cash payment of $100,000 if she remains
employed for three years from the date of her appointment  (i.e., 3 January 2025).

2E. Changes for FY23

The Board has determined that Performance Rights, rather than share options, will be granted under the LTI
i ¢vae {¥" v-v'y©O {"¥f£ [nGH ¥o-v ' yo©OC ez " {¥" £voxz ggand}
the challenging market conditions.

Directors' declaration

Further details will be provided in the FY23 remuneration report.

3. Performance and executive remuneration outcomes in FY22
3A. Actual remuneration earned by executives in FY22

The actual remuneration earned by executives in FY22 is set out in section 7 below. This provides
shareholders with a view of the remuneration actually paid to executives for performance in FY22 and the
value of LTls that vested during the period.

Additional Australian disclosures

Closed Group (ASIC specific) disclosures
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3B. Performance against STl measures

V xX¥fw~ova~¥o ¥{Bi{evwxxvlC¢CEfrwvQ«o¥O@® ~© «Ozy 22¥ £zvVvEC
Group and business unit performance against those measures is as follows for FY22:

=
=)
=
IS
=
£
o
2
=
@
2
I
T
o
Qo
2
o
@]

)
Grow EPS Business Unit Market share stomer Safety People o
NPAT o
=]
Group o}
5
Investment Properties - i)
; . g
o}
Electronics - e
Slo
=3 3]
Fire Prevention Equipment - ’ = %
=
[9)
>
)
O
&
&
Below threshold hurdle C §
[S)
At target o
Between threshold and target ‘

Between target and stretch

Not Applicable -

Based on this assessment, the average STl award as a percent of target for FY22 was 82%.

3C. Performance against LTI measures

Consolidated financial statements

Disclosures in the financial statements

CA 300A(1)(b)
LTI vesting is based on TSR performance relative to the companies within the peer group. Quality Holdings CA 300A(LAA),( 1AB)
(Australia) has outperformed the median of the peer group for the past five years to 31 December 2022, as
outlined below.
300
250
g
o 200
3
@ 150 .5
e g
¥ 100 .-
i 3
50 ©
S
[S]
0 o
31/12/2017  31/12/2018  31/12/2019  31/12/2020  31/12/2021  31/12/2022 a
Date
- \edian TSR for the peer group o WY
() =
TSR (rebased to 100) Good Group (Australia) Limited % =
o
LTI vesting outcomes % =
LTI awards granted in 2020 were tested against the relative TSR performance measure. Quality Holdings & g
(Australia) achieved a TSR of 252% over the three -year performance period ended 31 December 2022, which E é
positioned it above the 75th percentile relative to companies in the peer group. Consequently, 100% of options 2 8
with a performance period ended 31 December 2022 vested and became exercisable. E| @
S
3D. Overview of company performance CA 300A1)(b) Z g
. CA T B
The table below sets out information about Quality Holdi & | © =V« ©2 " v ¢~v >CO zv "™ o~a]| ( zpnqan0148) < g
shareholder wealth for the past five years up to and including the current financial year. §
o
O

O T O T

ceVi =9CE>

Share price at year end ($) 4.2 3.7 3.4 3.2 2.9
Basic EPS(cents) 38 33 30.7 37.5 35
Total dividends (cents per share) 10.32 8.4 8.46 8.98 8.43

Appendices
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4. How remuneration is governed
4A. Remuneration decision making
i}z {¥¢C¥-~o| y~v]| " v £refunelation deeision rBakifAg)ramewoik¥ « | C©

Corporate Information

Board

Review and approval

Director's Report

c
S
B
3
Remuneration Committee g 8
e
X¥E£| Bo~yz " zEf£«onz ' va@~¥o {"vEz-¥"ji v g
Z®zX«®~=z ; CcZY "z£f£«pmz vi@-¥pDo ¥« 3
(]
<
CEO Remuneration advisors 8
. . - . . Q
Recommendations on remuneration outcomes External and independent remuneration advice ©
for executive team and information
Management

Implementing remuneration policies

The composition of the Remuneration Committee is set out on page 1 63 of this annual report. Further
~o{¥ " fva@~¥o ¥o 3}z gzf«omz va~¥o X¥f£f~22az7CO "¥¢tzA
www.qualityholdingsaustralialtd.com.au .

4B. Use of remuneration advisors CA 300A(1)(h)

Consolidated financial statements

The Remuneration Committee approved the engagement of Company ABC to provide remuneration
recommendations regarding the remuneration mix and quantum for executives.

Disclosures in the financial statements

Both Company ABC and the Committee are satisfied the advice received from Company ABC is free from
undue influence from the KMP to whom the remuneration recommendations apply.

The remuneration recommendations were provided to the Committee as an input into decision making only.
The Remuneration Committee considered the recommendations, along with other factors, in making its
remuneration decisions.

The fees paid to Company ABC for the remuneration recommendations were $35,000. In addition to providing
remuneration recommendations, Company ABC provided advice on other aspects of the remuneratio n of the
\ "¥«! CO zZ£!¢¥ 22O voy av  ~¥«© ¥2a}z" vya~0O¥" T ©z" -~x

Directors' declaration

4C. Clawback of remuneration

Na 28}z z-azo? ¥{ ©z" ~¥«© £~0Ox¥woy«x?a ¥" vstafeméents, theBodrd £ ~
has the discretion to reduce, cancel or clawback any unvested STl or LTI.

4D. Share trading policy

The Group securities trading policy applies to all NEDs and executives. The policy prohibits employees from
dealing in Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited securities whilst in possession of material non -public
information relevant to the Group.

Z®zZX«?~=2720© £«©3 w©o¥?a zpdaz" ~pd¥ vyvo o }zy|~8| v T vao]|zf
plan. The Group would consider a breach of this policy as gross misconduct, which may lead to disciplinary
action and potentially dismissal.

Additional Australian disclosures

Closed Group (ASIC specific) disclosures

Appendices
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4E. Executive employment agreements
CA 300A(1)(e)(vii)

Remuneration arrangements for executives are formalised in employment agreements. The following
Reg 2M.3.03(1) Item 13

outlines the details of contracts with executives:

CEO

The CEO is employed under a three year contract which can be terminated with notice by either the Group
or the CEO.

Under the terms of the present contract, as disclosed to the ASX on 14 September 2020:

The CEO receives fixed remuneration of $490,000 per annum.
i}z XZdCoO av" | z ¥ 50%ioffixel rerhu¥eration and maximum STI opportunity is 100%
of fixed remuneration.
3 The CEO is eligible to participate in the LTI plan on terms determined by the Board, subject to
receiving any required or appropriate shareholder approval.
All other executives are employed on individual open ended employment contracts that set out the terms
of their employment.
Termination provisions
i}z XZd voy z®zx«?2~-2z0OC 2z £~opvyad@~¥n ! " ¥-1-~0©~¥o© v~

CEO notice period (by 6 months None 12 months 6 months
company or executive)

Other executives notice = 3 months None 6 months 3 months
period (by company or

executive)

Termination payments
The following arrangements applied to outgoing executives in office during FY22:

L.P.Lyn

3 Due to health reasons, Ms Lyn resigned from her position on 31 December 2022. As a result, Ms Lyn
received a termination payment of $110,725, in accordance with the terms of her employment
contract.

3 Ms Lyn will receive her STI payment for the financial year ending 31 December 2022.

M.X. Vo
3 M.X. Vo resigned from the Group on 30 May 2022. Ms Vo received $50,301 in respect of outstanding
remuneration owed to her.

3 Ms Vo forfeited her STI payment for the financial year ending 31 December 2022, and forfeited her
unvested and unexercised share options.
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5. Overview of non -executive director remuneration CA 300A(1)(a),(b)
ASX Listing Rule 10.17

Corporate Information

faeve~2" ]¥¢y~a| © =V«©2 " ve~v>CO ¢cZY {zz !¥¢~x  ~0O
discharge the roles and responsibilities required in terms of good governance, strong oversight,
independence and objectivity. NEDs receive fees only and do not participate in any performance -related
incentive awards. NED fees reflect the demands and responsibilities of the directors.

The Remuneration Committee reviews NED remuneration annually against comparable companies. The
Board also considers advice from external advisors when undertaking the review process.

Director's Report

NED fees consist of base fees and committee fees. The payment of committee fees recognises the
additional time commitment required by NEDs who serve on Board committees. The chair of the Board

Introduction

. . . . . . L. (<]
attends all committee meetings but does not receive any additional committee fees in addition to base g
fees. g
g
The table below summarises Board and Committee fees payable to NEDs for FY22 (inclusive of 3
superannuation): %
g
oy eie 5
o
Chair 280,000
(2]
NED 120,000 I
ISl %)
X¥E£EE£~33z7z {220 o8 =
©
Audit Chair 35,000 kg &>
ot [
Member 17,500 % @
[
Remuneration Chair 30,000 =|e
ol s
Member 15,000 S
Nomination® Chair N/A % E
(2]
Member N/A 5 E
Ol¢e
>
A NEDs do not receive additional fees for participation in the Nomination Committee. 8
(8]
cCZYO®O £v wz " z~f£w« ©zy {¥7 z®| ze©z© " zvO¥aoviwlydoneto a

receive retirement benefits.
The Board has confirmed there will be n o increases in Board or committee fees for FY23.

Maximum aggregate NED fee pool

NED fees are determined within an aggregate NED fee pool limit, which is periodically approved by
shareholders. The maximum aggregate amount that may be paid to NEDs for their services is $1,500,000
during any financial year, as approved by shareholders at the 2021 AGM held on 30 March 2022.

Directors' declaration

The Board will not seek an increase to the aggregate NED fee pool limit at the 2022 AGM.

Additional Australian disclosures

Closed Group (ASIC specific) disclosures
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6. Statutory and share-based remuneration reporting

£
o
Q
. . (7]
6A. Executive KMP remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 .
S
°
h}¥B’2 £ . ] iz” [ ez  {¥° XV HEE=Vv: [ £
= - - SN0 xv HEEV=F [
hv¢v XV© c ¥ ' gzl cbcH R
{zz W¥ o d£f¥aogzal vog«v(jzaa~2a naz gBOF £
gz| GbCH g
F. Canuck 2022 470,710 141,213 16,000 44,717 37,408 46,640 15,690 773,228 28% g
2021 457,000 182,800 15,225 824 43,415 36,154 32,560 - - 767,978 29% @ o
P.G. Gerherns 2022 343,608 103,083 6,050 - 32,643 28,631 44,000 11,454 - 569,469 29% é
Q
2021 333,600 133,440 6,000 - 31,692 27,662 22,000 - - 554,394 29% g
R.J. Ferns® 2022 305,100 124,863 10,000 1,600 28,985 23,469 10,560 60,170 - 564,747 36% g
2021 - - - - - - - - - - - gl s
G.K. Dellas 2022 222,789 66,837 8,700 735 21,165 18,338 22,880 7,426 - 368,870 28% % g
k=] [3]
2021 216,300 86,520 8,496 721 20,549 17,638 26,400 - - 376,624 31% S g
G. Braddy 2022 266,000 79,800 5,000 - 25,270 21,662 7,480 8,867 - 414,079 24% S| 8
2021 266,000 106,400 4,520 - 25,270 21,462 440 - - 424,092 26% é
M.X. Vo* 2022 74,124 - - - 7,629 7.177 (8,000) - - 80,930 - 8
2021 192,000 62,031 5,200 - 18,240 15,569 3,000 - - 296,040 26%
AM. John® 2022 192,540 57,762 700 - 18,291 14,811 10,560 6,418 - 301,082 26% S
2021 - - - - - - - - - - - §
S. Moran 2022 248,024 74,408 6,000 - 23,562 19,778 6,820 8,268 - 386,860 24% %
2021 240,800 96,320 4,480 - 22,876 19,023 220 - - 383,719 26% é
o
L.P. Lyn® 2022 260,094 68,429 - - 21,669 19,746 18,120 7,603 110,725 506,386 19% a
2021 229,450 88,580 - - 21,038 19,035 5,640 - - 363,743 29%
Total executive KMP 2022 2,382,989 716,395 52,450 3,185 223,931 191,020 159,060 125,896 110,725 3,965,651 § %
Ml S
2021 1,935,150 756,091 43,921 1,545 183,080 156,543 90,260 - - 3,166,590 § 2
=N
g 2
= 3
3 7
z 8
= I
1 Non-monetary benefits include motor vehicle, travel and mobile phone allowances. _g if»._
2 Includes the component of STI which is deferred in shares. The fair value of the deferred share component is amortised over the two year vesting period. § §
3 R.J. Ferns was appointed to the role General Manager US Operations on 3 January 2022. She received sign -on share awards of $50,000 on commencement of employment (in lieu of foregone  benefits and incentives in her previous employment) which vested immedi ately on grant. In < %
addition, Ms Ferns will receive a cash incentive of $100,000 to the extent she remains in employment for three years from the date of her appointment (i.e., 3 January 2025). g
4 M.X. Vo ceased employment on 30 May 2022 and forfeited her share options and STI. Any share based payment expense previously recognised under AASB 2 in respect of the options has been reversed. S
5

A.M. John was appointed to the role General Manager g Mergers and Acquisitions on 2 January 2022.
L.P. Lyn ceased employment on 31 December 2022. The Board determined Ms Lyn could retain a proportion of the awards made unde rthe STl and LTI plan. For awards retained, any unamortised fair value was recognised at that date and for awards forfeited, the share -based
payment expense previously recognised under AASB 2 has been reversed.

)
Q
=
=]
c
@
=%
o
<
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5
The following table outlines the proportion of maximum STI earned in relation to the FY22 financial Reg 2M.3.03(1) &
Iltem 12
year.

5
o
(0]
0
F. Canuck 100% 43% o
o
P.G. Gerherns 100% 42% 2
R.J. Fens 100% 34% = ©
G.K. Dellas 100% 38% E
G. Braddy 100% 44% 5 8
M.X. Vo 100% 0% g
(]
AM. John 100% 44% 3
o
S. Moran 100% 54% Q
]
L.P. Lyn 100% 32% S
/5]
O

The proportion of STI forfeited is derived by subtracting the actual % of maximum received from the
maximum STI opportunity and was 55% on average for FY22.

6B. NED remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020

h} ¥@ 2 - cY® : CA 300(A)(1)(¢)
wz az|{ ZE! ¢C¥ Regil\:r.iog_(ﬂ

W¥v "'y
X¥EE~227

Consolidated financial statements

Disclosures in the financial statements

V. Sheen 2022 260,955 19,045 280,000
2021 261,722 18,278 280,000
M. Smith 2022 159,817 15,183 175,000
2021 159,817 15,183 175,000
C. Feens 2022 109,589 10,411 120,000
2021 109,589 10,411 120,000
C. Buffy* 2022 8,406 799 9,205 15
2021 109,589 10,411 120,000 =
J. Vargo 2022 134,703 12,797 147,500 s
2021 134,703 12,797 147,500 g
K. Chopper* 2022 45,037 4278 49,315 .
M.A. Pryce 2022 109,589 10,411 120,000 S
2021 109,589 10,411 120,000
Total 2022 828,096 72,924 901,020
2021 885,009 77,491 962,500

*  C. Buffy ceased employment on 28 January 2022.
** K. Chopper was appointed on 1 August 2022.

Additional Australian disclosures

Closed Group (ASICspecific) disclosures
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6C. Options awarded, vested and lapsed during the year

The table below discloses the number of share options granted, vested or lapsed during the year.

y4

¥

:x¥Qa~0«zy>

Share options do not carry any voting or dividend rights, and can only be exercised once the vesting conditions have been met

F. Canuck 2022
2020
P.G. Gerherns 2022
2020
R.J. Ferns 2022
G.K. Dellas 2020
G. Braddy 2022
2020
M.X. Vo 2022
2020
A.M. John 2022
S. Moran 2022
L.P. Lyn 2020

~ Determined at the time of grant per AASB 2. For details on the valuation of the options, including models and assumptions used, please r

24,000

8,000

24,000
15,000

1 January 2022
1 January 2020
1 January 2022
1 January 2020

1 January 2022
1 January 2020
1 January 2022
1 January 2020
1 January 2022
1 January 2020
1 January 2022
1 January 2022
1 January 2020

# Determined at the time of exercise at the intrinsic value.

There were no alterations to the terms and conditions of options awarded as remuneration since their award date.

$1.32

$1.32

$1.32

$1.32

$1.32
$1.32

31 December 2024
31 December 2022
31 December 2024
31 December 2022

31 December 2024
31 December 2022
31 December 2024
31 December 2022
31 December 2024
31 December 2022
31 December 2024
31 December 2024
31 December 2022

0.35
0.35

31 December 2025

31 December 2025

31 December 2025

31 December 2025

31 December 2025

31 December 2025
31 December 2025

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

efer to Note 33.

23,000

4,000

8,000
10,000

4,000

66,000 8,800

66,000 2,640

31,680 -

31,680 40,480

10,560 -

31,680 -
19,800 -

Reg 2M.3.03(1) Item 12(e)

Reg 2M.3.03(1) It em 15(a),(b)

CA 300(A)(1)(e)(iv)
CA 300A(1)(€)(ii) -(vi)

Reg 2M.3.03(1) Item 14

177

Contents

Introduction

Consolidated financial statements

Additional Australian disclosures

Appendices

Corporate Information

Director's Report

Corporate Governance

Directors' declaration Disclosures in the financial statements

Closed Group (ASIC specific) disclosures



gzEf«nmz  va&@~¥o "z ¥"2 =x¥pop?-~nD«zy?>

Contents

6D. Shares issued on exercise of options

Corporate Information

Reg 2M.3.03(1)

HF Yzxz£fwz" GEGG h}v"™z®© ev~y |z’
a ¥ X 7z @ ltem 16
F. Canuck 5,000 233 ‘§
P.G. Gerherns 1,500 2.33 &
G. Braddy 23,000 233 £
Total 29,500 ®
I °
6E. Option holdings of KMP* S
e
Reg 2M.3.03(1) =
Item 17 =15
c
o
>
o
Executive directors g
F. Canuck 74,000 50,000  (5,000) (9,000) 110,000 11,000 - 'g
P.G. Gerherns 50,000 50,000  (1,500) - 98,500 98,500 - s
O
Senior executives
R.J. Ferns ; 24,000 - - 24,000 24,000 - %
G.K. Dellas 60,000 - - (4,000) 56,000 56,000 - E| £
=] [0}
G. Braddy 23,000 24,000 = (23,000) - 24,000 2,000 - & £
M.X. Vo 10,000 8,000 - (18,000) ; ; ; § g
AM. John - 24,000 - - 24,000 24,000 - = E
= c
S. Moran 500 15,000 - - 15,500 15,500 - ol
A =
L.P. Lyn 31,000 - - (4,000) 27,000 27,000 - S]e
o =
Total 248,500 195,000 (29,500)  (35,000) 379,000 774,000 - g =
oo
=}
6F. Shareholdings of KMP* Reg 2M.3.03(1) 8
Iltem 18 9
Shares held in Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited (number) (&)

Wv ¢vaxz

F_vo«v?®
£
=
<
é
V. Sheen 310,940 20,000 - - - - 11,000 - 321,940 20,000 - - i)
M. Smith 112,000 - - - - - 10,000 - 122,000 - - - ‘8
C. Feens 49,000 - - - - - 10,000 - 59,000 - - - %
C. Buffy 35,000 - - - - - 5,000 - 40,000 - - -
J. Vargo 37,000 - - - - - - - 37,000 - - -
K. Chopper 15,000 - - - - - - - 15,000 - - - 2 g
M.A. Pryce 10,000 - - - - - - - 10,000 - - - 2 @
Executive directors s B
F. Canuck 699,000 6,000 - - 5,000 - (2,000) - 702,000 6,000 100,000 - % i
P.G. Gerherns 101,000 5,000 1,500 15,000 117,500 5,000 - - § %
Senior executives g 3),3’_
R.J. Ferns - - 50,000 - - - - - 50,000 - - - <:£ o
G.K. Dellas 510,000 - - - - - (2,000) - 508,000 - 200,000 - T W
G. Braddy - : : - 23,000 : : - 23,000 - - - s B
M.X. Vo 400,000 - - - - - - - 400,000 - - - -2 8
A.M. John - - - - - - - - - - - - 2
S. Moran - - - - - - 49,000 - 49,000 - - - 3
L.P. Lyn 34,000 - - - - - 10,000 - 44,000 - - - o
Total 2,312,940 31,000 50,000 - 29,500 - 121,000 - 2,498,440 31,000 300,000 -

* Includes shares and options held directly, indirectly and beneficially by KMP.

=

8

IS

ol &

# All equity transactions with KMP other than those arising from the exercise of remuneration options have been entered into under terms Reg .8 S
and conditions no more favourable than those the Group would have adopted if dealing at arm's length. 2M.3.03(1) 2 <
Item 19 8 =

a c

<|E

3
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6G. Loans to KMP and their related parties ( The below disclosure has been provided for illustrative purposes only)

(i) Details of aggregate of loans to KMP and their related parties:

2022 XXX XXX XXX - XXX

(ii) Details of KMP and their related parties with aggregate of loans above $100,000 in the reporting period:

KMP A XXX - XXX - XXX XXX
KMP B - - XXX - XXX XXX

(iif) Terms and conditions of loans to KMP and their related parties:

Loans to directors are interest free. Senior executives are charged interest at the concessional rate of 4% per
annum. The average commercial rate of interest during the year was 8%.

During the year, Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited provided a housing loan to P.G. Gerherns of $XXX
repayable within five years on interest free terms, secured by a registered first mortgage over the property.
No amount was repaid during the year. The | oan was approved by shareholders at the AGM.

A loan of $XXX was also provided to Everest Pty Ltd, a company controlled by R.J. Ferns. The loan is
repayable within three years, on a concessional rate of 4.25% per annum. An amount of $XXX was repaid
during t he year. The loan was approved by shareholders at the AGM.

6H. Other transactions and balances with KMP and their related parties

(i) Details and terms and conditions of other transactions with KMP and their related parties:

Purchases

During the year, purchases totalling $510 ,000 at a 5% discount to market prices have been made by Group
X¥Elvae~z0O0 {"¥£ \o¥fz N"oy«0O*" ~z0© a~£~2zyA ¥{ -} ~x}
shareholder. $10,000 was outstanding at 31 December 2022.

Sales

C. Feens holds a 25% equity interest in Home Fires Limited. During the year the Group supplied extinguishers
to Home Fires Limited to the value of $225,000 at normal market prices. At 31 December 2022, Home Fires
Limited owed nil to the Group.

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

:x¥Qa~0«zy>

Reg 2M.3.03(1)
Item 20

Reg 2M.3.03(1)
Iltem 21

Reg 2M.3.03(1)
Item 20(g)

Reg 2M.3.03(1)
Item 22
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(i) Amounts recognised at the reporting date in relation to other transactions:

:x¥Qa~0«zy>

Reg 2M.3.03(1)

2022 Iltems 23 & 24
$
Assets and liabilities Reg 2M.3.03(1)
Item 24(a), (b)
Current assets
Trade and other receivables -
Non-current assets
Total assets -
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 10,000
Non-current liabilities -
Total liabilities 10,000
Reg 2M.3.03(1)
Revenues and expenses Item 23(a), (b)
225,000 Reg2M.3.03(1)
Sale of goods Item 23(c)
Interest )
Doubtful debts -
Total revenue 225,000
Reg 2M.3.03(1)
Purchases/Cost of Goods Sold 510,000 Item 23(c)
Interest -
Dividends -
Total expenses 510,000
7. Actual remuneration earned by executives in FY22
The actual remuneration earned by executives in FY22 is set out below. This information is considered
to be relevant as it provides shareholders with a view of the remuneration actually paid to executives
for performance in FY22 and the value of LTIs that vested during the period. This differs from the
remuneration details prepared in accordance with statutory obligations and accounting standards on
page 175 of this report, as those details include the values of performance rights that have been
awarded, but which may or may not vest.
[ ~® iz" £~no hi N ai & -z i ¥2ve¢e
“zE£«mz” fv £zano "zE£«mz va~
F. Canuck 532,277 - 182,800 20,450 735,527
P.G. Gerherns 382,301 - 133,440 6,135 521,867
R.J. Ferns 336,685 - 33,333 50,000 420,018
G.K. Dellas 253,389 - 86,520 - 339,909
G. Braddy 296,270 - 106,400 94,070 496,740
M.X. Vo 87,930 50,301 76,800 - 215,031
AM. John 210,831 - - - 210,831
S. Moran 271,586 - 96,320 - 367,906
L.P. Lyn 249,763 - 88,580 - 338,343
1) Wz ©vev’ A QeyzB¥wgzlwv¥®~¥wzoz{~20 O«x} Vv©O £¥2a¥" -z}
VEC¥-vaoxz0O
2) iz " £~onva@~¥pop v £z020 v~y y«  ~o| 3}z {~ovox~ve¢ ~zv~ C
3 hi”* | v~y y«" " ~o| 23}z {~ovex~ve ~—zv~ [¥" z®VE] ¢zA 2}z
bv  GEBEG {¥¢¢¥-~a| 2}z "z¢zvOz ¥{ 2}z [nGF "z0«t2 0O ¥({
4) "pa@" ~o©O~Xx -~avet«z ¥{ ai”N @a}lvd@ -2z0O2zy Yy« ~o|] a}z {~ovaox
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors.
F. Canuck
Director
31 January 2023
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Consolidated statement of financial position

The below presentation of statement of financial position has been included because in Australia, assets and liabilities are
commonly presented in increasing order of liquidity.

Assets

Current assets

Cash and short-term deposits
Inventories

Right of return assets

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Prepayments

Other current financial assets

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Right-of-use assets

Investment in an associate and a joint venture
Non-current financial assets

Deferred tax assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Refund liabilities

Interest -bearing loans and borrowings
Other current financial liabilities
Government grants

Income tax payable

Provisions

Dividends payable

Liabilities directly associated with the assets held for
sale

Non-current liabilities

Interest -bearing loans and borrowings
Other non-current financial liabilities
Provisions

Government grants

Contract liabilities

Net employee defined benefit liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

As at
2022 2021 1 January 2021
$000 $000 $000
Notes Restated Restated
(Note 2.5) (Note 2.5)
24 17,528 14,916 11,066
22 26,027 23,830 24,296
43 1,124 929 856
23 25,672 22,290 25,537
4.2 4,541 5,180 3,450
244 165 226
20 551 153 137
75,687 67,463 65,568
14 13,554 c ¢
89,241 67,463 65,568
17 32,979 24,329 18,940
18 8,893 7,983 7,091
19 6,019 2,461 2,114
31 2,908 2,732 2,915
10,11 3,187 2,516 1,878
21 3,761 2,816 2,273
15 425 365 321
58,172 43,202 35,532
147,413 110,665 101,100
30 16,969 20,023 18,248
4.2,29 2,880 2,486 1,836
4.3 6,242 5,844 3,796
21.2 2,832 3,142 4,834
21 2,953 254 303
28 149 151 150
3,511 3,563 4,625
27 1,042 156 85
26 410 Cc Cc
36,988 35,619 33,877
14 13,125 Cc Cc
50,113 35,619 33,877
21.2 22,147 23,313 21,358
21 806 Cc Cc
27 1,898 19 15
28 3,300 1,400 1,300
4,29 2,962 888 692
32 3,050 2,977 2,526
15 2,454 607 780
36,617 29,204 26,671
86,730 64,823 60,548
60,683 45,842 40,552

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

IAS 1.10(a)
IAS 1.10()
IAS 1.49, IAS 1.51(c)

IAS 8.28

IAS 1.51(d),(e)

IAS 1.40A, IAS 1.40B
IAS 1.60, IAS 1.66
IAS 1.54()

IAS 1.54(g)

IFRS 15.B21

IAS 1.54(h)

IFRS 15.105

IAS 1.55

IAS 1.54(d), IFRS 7.8

IAS 1.54(j), IFRS 5.38

IAS 1.60

IAS 1.54(a)

IAS 1.54(b)

IAS 1.54(c)

IFRS 16.47

IAS 1.54(e), IAS 28.38
IAS 1.54(d), IFRS 7.8
IAS 1.54(0), IAS 1.56

IAS 1.60, IAS 1.69
IAS 1.54(k)

IFRS 15.105
IFRS15.821

IAS 1.54(m), IFRS 7.8(g)
IAS 1.54(m), IFRS 7.8
IAS 1.55, IAS 20.24

IAS 1.54(n)

IAS 1.54()

IAS 1.54(p), IFRS 5.38

IAS 1.60
IAS 1.54(m)

IAS 1.54(m), IFRS 7.8
IAS 1.54())

IAS 20.24

IFRS 10.105

IAS 1.55, IAS 1.78(d)
IAS 1.54(0), IAS 1.56
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Equity

Issued capital

Treasury shares

Other capital reserves

Retained earnings

Other components of equity

Reserves of a disposal group held for sale
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

IAS 1.10(a)
IAS 1.10(f)
IAS 1.49, IAS 1.51(c)

IAS 1.51(d),(e)
IAS 8.28

IAS 1.54(1) , IAS 1.78(e)

IFRS 5.38

IAS 1.54(q)

~a 2} 7= x{¥-ofy~oox«~zvy¢> ©?2

As at

2022 2021 1 January 2021

$000 $000 $000

Notes Restated Restated
(Note 2.5) (Note 2.5)

25 21,888 19,388 19,388
25 (508) (654) (774)
25 5,951 944 566
31,538 25,929 21,582

(642) (505) (418)

14 46 ¢ ¢
58,273 45,102 40,344
2,410 740 208

60,683 45,842 40,552

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements
2.3 Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 , Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.

Rounding

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
($000), except when otherwise indicated under the option available to the company under  ASIC Corporations
=g¥«oy~o| ~o [ ~oypous) khstrdrnt 2016/491 ¥The@OBmpgrw is an entity to which this
legislative instrument applies.

Australian Tax consolidation legislation

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited and its wholly owned Australian controlled entities implemented the tax
consolidation legislation as of 1 July 2005.

The head entity, Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated

group continue to account for their own current and deferred tax amounts. The Group has applied the Group
allocation approach in determining the appropriate amount of current taxes an  d deferred taxes to allocate to
members of the tax consolidated group.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited also recognises
the current tax liabilities (or assets) an d the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits assumed from controlled entities in the tax consolidated group.

Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entiti  es are recognised as
amounts receivable from or payable to other entities in the Group. Details of the tax funding agreement are
disclosed in Note 15.

Any difference between the amounts assumed and amounts re ceivable or payable under the tax funding
agreement are recognised as a contribution to (or distribution from) wholly  owned tax consolidated entities.

Goods and services tax (GST)
Revenues, expensesand assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except:

3 When the GST incurred on a sale or purchase of assets or services is not payable to or recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the revenue or the e xpense item
or as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset, as applicable

3  When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of

receivables or payables in the statement of financial position. Commitments and contingencies are disclosed

net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority.

Cashflows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is classified as part of operating cash flows.

Commentary
IFRS Standards Not Yet Issued in Australia

AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures requires, for an entity intending to comply with IFRS Standards, to
disclose the information specified in paragraphs 30 and 31 of AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors on the potential effect of an IFRS Standard that has not yet been issued by the AASB.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

©a

AASB 1054.8(a)
AASB 1054.9

ASIC CI2016/19 1

AASB Int 1052.16(a)

AASBInt 1052.7,
9(2),16(a),(b)

AASB Int 1052.12(a)

AASB Int 1052.12(b)

AASB Int 1052.12(c)

AASB Int 1031.7

AASB Int 1031.8
AASB Int 1031.9

AASBInt 1031.10 -11

AASB 1054.17
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15. Income tax
Tax consolidation
(i) Members of the tax consolidated group and the tax sharing arrangement

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited and its 100% owned Australian resident subsidiaries formed a tax
consolidated group with effect from 1 July 2002.  Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited is the head entit y of
the tax consolidated group. Members of the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax sharing
agreement that provides for the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities should the head
entity default on its tax payment obligations. No amounts have been recognised in the financial statements
in respect of this agreement on the basis that the possibility of default is remote.

(i) Tax effect accounting by members of the tax consolidated group

Measurement method adopted under AASB Interpretation 1052 Tax Consolidation Accounting

The head entity and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group continue to account for their own
current and deferred tax amounts. The Group has applied the group allocation approach in determining the
appropriate amount of current taxes and def erred taxes to allocate to members of the tax consolidated
group. The current and deferred tax amounts are measured in a systematic manner that is consistent with
the broad principles in AASB 112 Income Taxes. The nature of the tax funding agreement is dis cussed
further below.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, the head entity also recognises current tax
liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits
assumed from controlled entities in the tax consolidated group.

Nature of the tax funding agreement

Members of the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax funding agreement. Under the funding
agreement, the funding of tax within the Group is based on accounting profit, which is not an acceptable
method of allocation under AASB Interpretation 1052. The tax funding agreement requires payments
to/from the head entity to be recognised via an inter -entity receivab le (payable) which is at call. To the
extent that there is a difference between the amount charged under the tax funding agreement and the
allocation under AASB Interpretation 1052, the head entity accounts for these as equity transactions with
the subsidiaries.

The amounts receivable or payable under the tax funding agreement are due upon receipt of the funding
advice from the head entity, which is issued as soon as practicable after the end of each financial year. The
head entity may also require payment of interim funding amounts to assist with its obligations to pay tax
instalments.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

AASB Int 1052.16(a)
AASB Int 1052.16(c)
AASB Int 1052.53

AASB Int 1052.8
AASB Int 1052.9(c)
AASB Int 1052.16(b)

AASB Int 1052.16(c)

AASB Int 1052.52
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Contents

24. Cash and short -term deposits

Corporate Infor mation

2022 2021
$000 $000
Cash flow reconciliation Restated §
Reconciliation of net profit before tax to net cash flows from operations: AASB 1054.16 2
Profit before tax from continuing operations 11,108 8,880 o
Profit/(loss) before tax from discontinued operations 213 (193) £
Profit before tax 11,321 8,687 c %
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows: %
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment and right - 3
of-use assets 4,341 3,794 =
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 325 174 =15
Equipment received from customers (190) (150) %
Share-based payment expense 412 492 g
Decrease in fair value of investment properties 306 300 Q
Net foreign exchange differences (365) (240) g
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (532) (2,0072 g
Fair value adjustment of a contingent consideration 358 C o
Finance income (202) (145) I
Finance costs 1,366 1,268 5
Other income (98) (66) g 2
Net loss on derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss 652 Cc g g
Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture (671) (638) I %
Movements in provisions, pensions and government grants (835) (65) é i
Working capital adjustments: £ B
Increase in trade and other receivables, contract assets and "E’_, E
prepayments (7,102) 2,431 S 85
Decrease in inventories and right of return assets 1,129 1,111 ] <
: il =8 C
I_ncr_e_a_tse in trade and other payables, contract liabilities and refund 4511 2530 She
liabilities £
14,726 17,476 8
Interest received 250 221 3
Interest paid (1,067) (1,173) =
Income tax paid (2,935) (3,999)
Net cash flows from operating activities 10,974 12,525
4
Commentary c

When presenting the statement of cash flows using the direct method, AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures
requires an entity to provide a reconciliation of the cash flows from operating activities to profit (loss). The Group has
reconciled net cash flows from operating activities to profit before tax. However, a reconciliatio  n to profit after tax is also
acceptable under AASB 1054.

Directors' declaration

Certain working capital adjustments and other adjustments included in the reconciliation, reflect the change in balances
between 2022 and 2021, including the 2022 balances of the discontinued operat ions groupedinline-~23 z £© ¢v ©0©z 2
X¢tvOO~{~zy vO }z¢y {¥" ©vezC vaoy ¢é¢~vw~C¢~2~20©0 y~"zx2¢ VOO
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26. Distributions made and proposed

Franking credit balance
The amount of franking credits available for the subsequent financial year are:

3 Franking account balance as at the end of the financial year at 30%
(202 1: 30%)

3 Franking credits that will arise from the payment of income tax payable as
at the end of the financial year

3 Franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends as at the end
of the financial year

3 Franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as
receivables at the reporting date

Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited

2022 2021
$000 $000
9,057 7,627
1,823 1,264
(326) (324)
10,554_ 8,567_

@a

AASB 1054.13

AASB 1054.14(a)
AASB 1054.14(b)

AASB 1054.14(c)
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38. Auditors Gremuneration

ASIC requested that the largest six audit firms encourage their clients to adoptastandard { ¥ " £v 23 {¥" 28}l 7z y~0OX¢¥O«"
remuneration. This disclosure is considered mandatory for ASX 300 clients but all listed entities are encouraged to consider  adopting this
format in their FY202 2 financial reports.

The agreed disclosures are set out b elow:
I.  Category 1 - Fees to the group auditor for:
(i) auditing the statutory financial report of the parent covering the group
(i) auditing the statutory financial reports of any controlled entities
Il.  Category 2 - Fees for assurance services that are required by legislation to be provided by the auditor

Ill. Category 3 - Fees for other assurance and agreed -upon-procedures services under other legislation or contractual arrangements where
there is discretion as to whether the service is provided by the auditor or another firm

IV. Category 4 - Fees for other services
An entity shall provide this disclose of fees for each auditor or reviewer, including any network firm.

The auditor of Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited is Ernst & Young (Australia ). CA 300(11B)(a),
CA 300(11C)(a)

Consolidated

2022 2021
Fees to Ernst & Young (Australia) $ $
3 Fees for auditing the statutory financial report of the parent AASB 1054.10(2)
covering the group and auditing the statutory financial reports 1,206,000 1,185,500
of any controlled entities
3 Fees for assurance services that are required by legislation to be AASB 1054.10(2)
provided by the auditor
Assurance related 50,300 80,400
Special audits required by regulators 38,500 23,000
3 Fees for other assurance and agreed -upon-procedures services AASB 1054.10(a)
under other legislation or contractual arrangements where
there is discretion as to whether the service is provided by the
auditor or another firm
Other - -
3 Fees for other services AASB 1054.10(b)
) CA 300(11B)(a),
Tax compliance 37,000 43,500 CA 300(11C)(b)
Total fees to Ernst & Young (Australia ) 1,331,800 1,332,400
Fees to other overseas member firms of Ernst & Young (Australia)
3 Fees for auditing the financial report of any controlled entities 105,000 102,400 AASB 1054.10(b )
Fees for assurance services that are required by legislation to be
provided by the auditor
Assurance related - -
3 Fees for other assurance and agreed-upon-procedures services
under other legislation or contractual arrangements where
there is discretion as to whether the service is provided by the
auditor or another firm
Assurance compliance procedures 55,000 35,000
Fees for other services
; ; AASB 1054.10(b
3 Taxation services 14,900 14,600 CA 300(11B)(a)
_ ; ; AASB 1054.10(b
3 Other non -audit services 6,200 5,050 A 300(11E) )
Total fees to overseas member firms of Ernst & Young (Australia) 181,100 157,050
i ¥ave ve«y~2¥"CO "zE£«mz va@~¥no 1,512,900 1,489,450
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5
39. Information relating to  Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited (the Parent) Reg 2M.3.01(1) S
2022 2021
$000 $000 -
o
Current assets 44,183 39,413 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(a) §
Total assets 83,417 72,848 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(b) o
Current liabilities 17,444 20,233 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(c) £
Total liabilities 22,980 25,223 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(d) .g
=
o
Issued capital 26,559 19,388 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(e) 8| o
Retained earnings 33,513 27,975 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(e) E %
Asset revaluation surplus 47 47 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(e) g
Net unrealised gains reserve 64 50 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(e) 3
Employee equity benefits reserve 209 145 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(e) 3
Cash flow hedge reserve 45 20 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(e) ©
60,437 47,625 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(e) %
(@)
Profit or loss of the Parent entity 7,771 5,228 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(f)
Total comprehensive income of the Parent entity 7,810 5,298 Reg 2M.3.01(1)(g)
The Parent has issued the following guarantees in relation to the debts of its subsidiaries: Reg 2M.3.01(1)(h)

3 Pursuant to ASIC Corporations (Wholly-owned Companies) Instrument 2016/785 , Quality Holdings
(Australia) Limited and Hose Limited have entered into a deed of cross guarantee on 12 March 200 7.
The effect of the deed is that Quality Holdings (Australia) Limi ted has guaranteed to pay any deficiency
in the event of winding up of any controlled entity or if they do not meet their obligations under the
terms of overdrafts, loans, leases or other liabilities subject to the guarantee. The controlled entities
have also given a similar guarantee in the event that Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited is wound up or
if it does not meet its obligations under the terms of overdrafts, loans, leases or other liabilities subject
to the guarantee.

Consolidated financial statements

The Parent has a contingent liability whereby an overseas customer has commenced an action against the Reg 2M.3.01(1)()
Group in respect of equipment claimed to be defective. It has been estimated that the liability, should the
action be successful, is $850,000.

Disclosures in the financial statements

The Parent entity has contractual obligations to purchase plant and equipment for $975,000 at balance date Reg 2M.3.01(1)()
(202 1: $350,000) principally relating to the completion of operating facilities of Sprinklers Inc.

Notes

Directors' declaration

Additional Australian disclosures
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In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Quality Holdings  (Australia) Limited (the Company), | CA 295(5)(a)
state that:
=
<3
1. Inthe opinion of the directors: &
x%)
(a) the financial statements and notes of the Company and its subsidiaries (Collectively the CA 295(4)(d)(7) (i) £
Group) are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 , including: o .%
S
i) | ~=-~o| v 27 «z voy {v~" a~z- ¥{ 2}z X¥oO¥ S
31 December 2022 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and § g
c] c
= (]
(i) complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001 ; g
>
o
(b) the financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting CA 295(4)(ca) ﬁﬁ
Standards as disclosed in Note 2.2 ; and ©
o
(=),
(c) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and CA 295(4)(c) 8
when they become due and payable. "
s
2. This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the CA 295(4)(e) £ 2
directors by the chief executive officer and chief financial officer in accordance with section 295A % é
of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 31 Dec ember 2022. % g
HE
S|
On behalf of the board il =
g|E
o Q
K K -l
Frank Canuc 2|
S| é
F. Canuck CA 295(5)(c) S
Director 3
3
31 January 2023 CA 295(5)(b) =
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Commentary
In addition to the disclosures below which should be included in the notes to the financial statements, ASIC

iz
Corporations (Wholly -owned Companies) Instrument 2016/785 v ¢ ©¥ ~“z8«~"2z© 23} va 23l z y~"7 2
Holding Entity include a statement as to whether, as at the date of the declaration, there are reasonable grounds to 4
believe that the members of the Extended Closed Group will be able to meet any obliga tions or liabilities to which they 'g
are, or may become, subject by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee. g
Closed Group disclosures His
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Quality Holdings (Australia) g
Limited and the subsidiaries listed in the following table: % 8
% Equity interest » §
Name Country of incorporation 2022 2021 g
Extinguishers Limited Australia 80 - 3
Bright Sparks Pty Limited Australia 95 95 ©
Fire Equipment Test Lab Limited Australia 100 - g
Wireworks Inc. United States 98 98 38
Sprinklers Inc. United States 100 100
Light Bulbs Limited Australia 87.4 80
Hose Limited* Australia 100 100
Electronics Limited Australia 48 48

* Classified as held for sale

Entities subject to relief

Pursuant to ASIC Corporations (Wholly-owned Companies) Instrument 2016/785 , relief has been granted to
Hose Limited from the Corporations Act 2001 requirements for the preparation, audit and lodgement of

their financial report.

As a condition of the Corporations Instrument, Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited and Hose Limited (the
EXC¥Ozy \ " ¥«!C>A zunaz" zy ~uoa Wareh2907.The efiedt of thé deedl @ that « v
Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited has guaranteed to pay any deficiency in the event of winding up of a
controlled entity or if they do not meet their obligations under the terms of overdrafts, loans, leases or

other liabilities subject to the guarantee. The controlled entities have also given a similar gua rantee in the
event that Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited is wound up or if it does not meet its obligations under the
terms of overdrafts, loans, leases or other liabilities subject to the guarantee.

ASIC CI 2016/785

ASIC CI 2016/785
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Disclosures in the financial statements

c
The consolidated statement of pro fit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, summary of ASIC €1 2016/785 2
movements in consolidated retained earnings and consolidated statement of financial position of the (_53
entities that are members of the Closed Group are as follows: S
Closed Group e
2022 2021 2
$000 $000 fa
Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Revenue from contracts with customers 85,017 78,583
Cost of sales (62,506) (60,443) 9 @
Other operating income 1,968 1,586 §, ‘g
Other expenses (13,693) (11,463) Z1E
Finance costs (210) (187) £
Share of profit of an associate 275 240 =l @
Profit from continuing operations before income tax 11,090 8,316 E "06:
Income tax expense (3,253) (2,292) 2=
Profit after tax from continuing operations 7,598 6,024 % O
Profit/(loss) after tax from discontinued operation (refer ~ Note 14) 220 (188) S g
Profit for the year 7,818 5,836 § 2
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income E 8
Profit for the year 7,818 5,836 &
Other comprehensive income 3
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss ©

Net (loss) on cash flow hedges 27) (12)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss s
Revaluation of office properties in Australia 124 - " 'g
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 97 12) é S
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 7,915 5,824 o %
gl 5
<| =
3
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Closed Group

2022 2021
$000 $000
Summary of movements in consolidated retained earnings e
Retained earnings at the beginning of the year 25,945 25,709 2
Profit for the year 8,723 5,836 2
Dividends provided for or paid ) (1,984) (1,600) 2
Aggregate amounts transferred to reserves Cdepreciation transfer S
for buildings 12 - |5
Retained earnings at the end of the year 32,696 29,945 3
>
=)
Consolidated statement of financial position % §
Assets | &
Current assets g
Cash and short-term deposits 12,819 5,697 8
Trade and other receivables 13,809 18,224 %
Inventories 18,856 16,542 ‘g
Prepayments 90 79 S
47,060 40,542 o
Assets and disposal group classified as held for sale 13,554 - £
59,128 40,542 gl o
2|5
Non-current assets K £
Non-current financial assets 17,036 8,314 g g
Investment in an associate 764 681 g T
Deferred tax assets 90 90 = =
Property, plant and equipment 16,776 14,104 g _g
Investment properties 8,893 7,983 S|e
Intangible assets - 58 )
43,559 31,230 314
Total Assets 102,687 71,772 §
Liabilities [a)
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15,708 13,635
Interest -bearing loans and borrowings 516 690
Income tax payable 3,113 2,500 IS
19,337 16,825 g
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 13,125 - 2
32,462 16,825 2
S
Non-current liabilities §
Interest -bearing loans and borrowings 5,969 5,874 @
Deferred tax liabilities 2,312 1,189
Convertible redeemable preference shares 2,503 2,486
10,784 9,549 e 8
Total Liabilities 43,246 26,374 z 32
Net Assets 59,441 45,398 wlE
T T
§ ©
Equity 3 5
Issued capital 26,559 19,388 g 2
Retained earnings 32,696 25,945 < 0
Other reserves 186 65 g Z
Total Equity 59,441 45,398 g g_
Commentary o
If the deed of cross guarantee and the subsequent Closed Group disclosures were contained in the accounts of Quality Holdings §
(Australia) Limited, then an assessment would need to be made of the fair value of the deed of cross guarantee, which (8]

represents a financial liability to the Parent.
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Additional information required by the Australian Stock Exchange Ltd and not shown elsewhere in
this report is as follows. The information is currentas at21  January 202 3.

=

o

(a) Distribution of equity securities SJC:L

. . . w

(i) Ordinary share capital ASX4.10.5 5

. . . .. 19}

3 21,888,000 fully paid ordinary shares are held by 864 individual shareholders 9

a
All issued ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry the rights to dividends. ASX 4.10.6 é
ii) Preference share capital ASX 4.10.5 '§

(if) p 2l

3 2,500,000 7% convertible non -cumulative redeemable preference shares are held by ASX 4.10.16 = §

five individual shareholders §

(]

All issued convertible non -cumulative redeemable preference shares have a nominal value of $1 and ASX 4.10.6 g

are convertible at the option of the Company or the shareholder into ordinary shareson 1 January ©

2022 on the basis of one ordinary share for every three preference shares held. Each preference 8

share carries one right to vote but the right is limited to matters affecting the rights of such shares. S
(iii) Options ASX 4.105 %

3 725,000 options are held by 15 individual option holders ASX 4.10.16 ;F:J %

Options do not carry a right to vote. ASX 4.10.6 % £

s s

The number of shareholders, by size of holding, in each class are: ASX 4.10.7 2|

ASX 19.12 = =

Fully paid Redeemable bl =

ordinary shares preference shares Options £le

2|e

o+

1-1,000 823 - 1 g =

1,001 -5,000 21 - 1 of g

5,001 -10,000 6 - 3 @

10,001 -100,000 9 2 6 2

100,001 and over 5 3 4 (a)

864 5 15

Holding less than a marketable parcel 45 - - ASX 4.10.8 -

S

(b) Substantial shareholders ASX 4.10.4 g

Fully paid B

Ordinary shareholders Number Percentage 2

]

(8]

S.J. Limited 10,740,177 52.85 %

International Fires P.L.C. 6,937,366 31.48
17,137,543 84.33

g K
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(c) Twenty largest holders of quoted equity securities

Fully paid

Ordinary shareholders Number Percentage
S.J. Limited 10,740,177 52.85
International Fires P.L.C. 6,397,366 31.48
Macca Limited 434,891 2.14
JOG Pty Limited 434,891 2.14
The Hong Kong Family Trust 227,606 1.12
TW & Daughters Limited 93,481 0.46
M.A.B. Car Limited 93,481 0.46
Castellas Superannuation Trust 60,966 0.30
Weldin Pty Limited 20,322 0.10
Della Limited 20,322 0.10
Pat Lee Pty Limited 20,322 0.10
Feeney & Co Limited 16,258 0.08
AJH Industries Limited 16,258 0.08
Madz Limited 16,258 0.08
MVH Pty Limited 8,129 0.04
KMI Trust 8,129 0.04
Shimon & Sadhu Trust 6,097 0.03
Krupp & Mystery AG 6,097 0.03
GMB Limited 6,097 0.03
P. Barns 6,097 0.03

18,633,245 91.69

(d) Unquoted equity securities shareholdings greater than 20%

Number

Convertible non -cumulative redeemable preference shares

International Fires P.L.C. 101,000

(e) On market share purchases for executive LTI plan

During the year Quality Holdings (Australia) Limited purchased 50,000 shares at an average price of
$3.90 per share for the purpose of satisfying the entitlements of options holders under the executive plan.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

ASX 4.10.9

ASX 4.10.16

ASX 4.10.22
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Appendix A

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

(example of a single statement)
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for the year ended 31 December 202 2
Commentary

o /CX®@ c\D¥ ¢ ~yvazy
~a X ¥£z

©avyaz£gzoa

The Group presents the statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive income in two separate statements.
For illustrative purposes, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive is presented as a single statement in

this Appendix.

Continuing operations
Revenue from contracts with customers
Rental income

Revenue

Cost of sales
Gross profit

Other operating income

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Operating profit

Finance costs

Finance income

Other income

Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture
Profit before tax from continuing operations

Income tax expense
Profit for the year from continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) after tax for the year from

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:

Net gain on hedge of net investment

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Net gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges

Net change in costs of hedging

Net loss on debt instruments at fair value through OCI

Share of other comprehensive loss of an associate

Income tax effect relating to the components of OCI

Net other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods

Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:

Net gain/(loss) on equity instruments designated at fair value
through OCI

Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans
Revaluation of office properties in Euroland

Share of other comprehensive income of an associate

Income tax effect relating to the components of OCI

Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss in  subsequent periods

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

discontinued operations

15

14

213,25
21.3,25
213,25

13.

.

Quiality Holdings (Australia) Limited

=z®VE|] ¢z

IAS 1.49
IAS 1.10(b)
IAS 1.10A
2022 2021  |as151()
DEEL DEEEIAS828
Restated 1As 1.51(d)(e)
(Note 2.5) 1AS 1.81A
179,058 159,088  IFRS15.113(3)
1,404 1,377
180,462 160,465  'AS1.82(a)
(136,569) (128,386) 'AS1.103
43,893 32,079  IAS185,IAS 1.103
2,435 2,548 1AS1.103
(14,001) (12,964) 1As1.99, IAS 1.103
(18,290) (12,011) 1As1.99,I1AS 1.103
IAS 1.99, IAS 1.103
(2,554) (353) |asigs
11,483 9,299  IAS 1.BC55-56
(1,366) (1,268) 1As1.82(b), IFRS 7.20
202 145
98 66
671 638 IAS 1.82(c)
11,108 8,880 IAS185
IAS 1.82(d
(3092) _ (2233) msinrr
7,996 6,647 |AS185
IAS 1.82(ea)
220 (188)  iFrs's35)
8,216 6,459 1As 1.81A(a)
IAS 1.82A
278 - IFRS9.6.5.13
(246) (117) 'As2132
(883) 34 IFRS 7.23(c)
(32) -
(21) (1) IFRS 7.20(a)(viii)
(30) - IAS 1.82A(b)
198 (10) 1as1.91
(736) (94)
IFRS 7.20(a)(vii)
(26) 10 s 19.1205(1c)vII
367 (390) Ias19.122
846 _  IAS16.39
30 - 1AS 1.82A(b)
(356) 114 as190
861 (266)
125 (360) AS 1L81A()
8,341 6,099 IAS181A()
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for the year ended 31 December 202 2 IAS 1.10(b)
IAS 1.51(b)
IAS 1.51(c)
2022 2021
PEE DEE IAs828
Restated -
Profit attributable to: (Note 2.5) S
Equity holders of the parent 7,928 6,220  1AS 1.81B (a)(i) .§
Non-controlling interests 288 239 |As1.81B(a)() %
8,216 6,459 —

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 8,053 5,860 IAs 1.81(b)(i)
Non-controlling interests 288 239  IAS1.81B(b)0)
8,341 6,099
2
Earnings per share 16 IAS 33.66 é
3 Basic, profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders o
of the parent DECEH DECEH &
3 Diluted, profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity g
holders of the parent DECEH DECEH =
=
Earnings per share for continuing operations 16 E
3 Basic, profit from continuing operations attributable to ordinary §
equity holders of the parent DECEH DECEH g
3 Diluted, profit from continuing operations attributable to 8
ordinary equity holders of the parent DECEH DECEH
Commentary
The Group presents, for illustrative purposes, the disclosure of a single statement of profit or loss and OCI in this
Appendix.

The different components of OCI are presented on a net basis in the statement above. Therefore, an additional note is
required to present the amount of reclassification adjustments and current year gains or losses. Alternatively, the
individual components could have been presented within the statement of profit or loss and OCI.

Notes

In this Appendix, the Group illustrates the presentat ion of the income tax effects on OCI items on an aggregated basis as
allowed under IAS 1.91(b).
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Appendix B

Consolidated statement of profit or loss
(example of expenses disclosed by nature)

















































